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MONA CO, DEVELOPMENT, LLC. R
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MONA CO, DEVELOBMENT, LLC.

FORM 1065 OTHER INCOME STATEMENT 1
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

PERSONAL USE OF VEHICLES 9,457,
TOTAL TO FORM 1065, LINE 7 9,457,

FORM 1065 TAX EXPENSE STATEMENT 2
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

PAYROLL 'TAXES 3,796.
TAXES AND LICENSES 800.

TOTAL TC PORM 1065, LINE 14

4,596.

STATEMENT 3

FORM 10565 OTHER DEDUCTIONS

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
ACCOUNTING FEES 13,825,
ADVERTISING 13,975,
AUTO EXPENSES 3,117,
BANK CHARGES 7258,
COMPUTER & INTERNET 2,260.
INSURANCE 8,354,
LEGAL FEES 113,122,
MEALS AND ENTERTAINMENT 43,664,
OUTSIDE SERVICES 14,040.
PAYROLL FEES 3,996.
POSTAGE & DELIVERY 885,
SUPPLIES 5,113.
TELEPHONE 21.212.
TRAVEL 53,289,
TOTAL TO FORM 1065, LINE 20 217,577,

SUTPRERREPT  MONACODEV

11 STATEMERT(S) 1, 2, 3
SRR NA CG, DEVELOPMENT, LLC. MONACODL
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MONA CO, DEVELOPMENT, LLC.

SCHEDULE K

ADJUSTED GAIN OR LOSS

STATEMENT 4

DESCRIPTION

AMT BASIS ADJUSTMENT - 2008 RANGE ROVER-WHITE

TOTAL TO SCHEDULE K, LINE 17B

ADJUSTED GAIN OR LOSS ALLOCABLE TO:

ORDINARY GAIN OR LOSS

SHORT “TERM CAPITAL GAIN OR LOSS
LONG “TERM CAPITAL GAIN OR LOSS

SECTION 1231 GAIN OR LOSS
COLLBCTIBLES
UNRECAPTURED SECTION 1250 GBIN -

2B% RATE

25% RATE

AMOUNT
-6,379.
~6,37%,
SUBJECT TO
SPECIAL
RATES AMOUNT
6,379,

SCHEDULE K

NONDEDUCTIBLE EXPENSE

STATEMENT 5

DESCRIPTION

CLUB: DUES

EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURANCE

EXCLUDED MEALS AND ENTERTAINMENT EXPENSES

HEALTH INSURANCE
INSURANCE RED ARROW

PERSONAL AUTO

PERSONAL USE OF VEHICLE

UTILITIES

TOTAL TO SCHEDULE K, LINE 18C

AMOUNT

8,880,
21,473,
23,664,

8,648,

2,845:

674.

9.,457.

19,405,

95,046,

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

SCHEDULE L " STATEMENT 6
BEGINNING OF  END OF TAX

DESCRIPTION TAX YEAR YEAR

ADVANCES 75,260.

TOTAL TO SCHEDULE L, LINE 6 75,260,

NPPREERGS  MONACODEV

12

SEmiaahliEINONA CQ, DEVELOPMENT, LLC.

STATEMENT(S) 4, 5, 6

0954

MONA 2nd JDE - 00338

MONACOD1
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MONA CO, DEVELOPMENT, LLC. ki
SCHEDULE L OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES STATEMENT 7
BEGINNING OF END OF TAX
DESCRIPTION TAX YEAR YEAR
DUE TO AFFILIATE 55,000,
PAYROLL TAXES PAYABLE
TOTAL TO SCHEDULE L, LINE 17 55,000,

SCHEDULE L

OTHER LTIABILITIES

STATEHMENT 8

DESCRIPTION

LAND ROVER FINANCIAL

TOTAL TO SCHEDULE L

BEGINNING OF END QF TAX
TAX YEAR YEAR
11,015,
11,015,

FORM 1065 PARTNERS® CAPITAL ACCOUNT SUMMARY STATEMENT &
PARTNER BEGINNING CAPITAL SCHEDULE M-2 WITE- ENDING
NUMBER CAPITAL CONTRIBUTRD LNS 3, 4 & 7 DRAWALS CAPITAL
1 31,133, 73,000, -85, 820, 330, 17,983.
2 18,1396, 402,000. 238,563, 145,147. 36,686,
3 8,098. 100,000, -90,280, 554, 17,264,
TOTAL §7,62%, 575,000, -414,663. 146,031, 71,933.
13 STATEMENT(S) 7, 8, 9
SN MONA CG, DEVELOPMENT, LLC. -MONACOD1

(bt HONACODEY

55

MONA 2 JDE - 00339
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MONA CO, DEVELOPMENT, LLC.

—— =

SCHEDULE M-1 EXPENSES RECORDED ON BOOKS NOT DEDUCTED IN RETURN STATEMENT - 10

DESCRIPTTON AMOUNT
CLUB DUES 8.880.
EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURANCE 21,473,
HEALTH INSURANCE 8.648.
INSURANCE RED ARROW 2.845.
PERSONAL AUTO 674.
PERSONAL USE OF VEHICLE 9,457,
UTTLITIES 19,505.
TOTAL TO SCHEDULE M-1, LIKE 4 71,382,

STATEMENT(S) 10

14
Yol  HONACODEV Ol vONA O, DEVELOPMENT, LLC. MONACODI 0956

MONA 2o0d JDIZ - 00340
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MONA CO, DEVELOPMENT, LLC. b

SCHEDULE R-1

BLTEﬁNATIVE MINIMUM ‘i‘AX, ADJUSTED
GAIN OR LOSS, BOX 17, CORE B

DESCRIPTION

ORDINARY GAIN (LOSS)

TOTAL TG SCHEDULE K-1,

SUBJECT TO
SPECIAL
PARTNER FILING INSTRUCTIONS RATES AMOUNT
SKE FORM 7 6251 INSTRUCTIONS 1,595,

BOX 17, CODE B +1,59%,

SCHEDULE K- 1 NONDEDUGTIBLE EXPENSES, BOX 18, CODE C

DESCRIFTIOH PARTNER PFILING INSTRUCTIONS AMOUNT

EXCLUDED MEALS AND NONDEDUCTIBLE PORTION

ENTERTAINMENT KXPENSES 5,916,

TOTAL TO SCHEDULE K-1, BOX 18, CODE C 5,916,
16 PARTNER NUMBER 1

SRR 14 ACODREV G ONA CO, DEVELOPMENT, LLC. MONACODL

0959

MONA 2nd JDE - 00343

2291




IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

RHONDA HELENE MONA and
MICHAEL J. MONA, JR.,

Petitioners,
V.
THE EIGHTH JUDCIAL DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE STATE OF
NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY
OF CLARK, AND THE HONORABLE
JOE HARDY, DISTRICT JUDGE
Respondents,
and
FAR WEST INDUSTRIES,

Real Party in Interest.

SUPREME COURT NO. 68434

Electronically Filed

District Court Case ]\%%t _11 %-%}Mna-m-

Dept. No.: Clerk of Supreme Court

SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDIX TO REAL PARTY IN INTEREST’S

ANSWERING BRIEF

Yolume 4 of 4
Pages 0980 - 0997

fehfhkk

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9549

RACHEL E. DONN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 10568
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12580

HOLLEY DRIGGS

WALCH

FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada

89101

Attorneys for Real Party in Interest

Far West Industries

10594-01/1576501

Docket 68434 Document 2015-29797

2292




TABLE OF CONTENTS OF
SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDEX

(Chronological)

TAB Document Date Vol. # | Pages

1 Application of Foreign October 18, 2012 1 0001-
Judgment 0007

2 Order for Appearance of January 30, 2013 1 0008-
Judgment Debtors 0015

3 Transcript of Judgment November 25, 2013 1 0016-
Debtor Examination of 0160
Michael J. Mona, Jr.

4 Order for Examination of May 13, 2015 1 0161-
Judgment Debtor Michael J. 0169
Mona, Jr., Individually, and
as Trustee of the Mona
Family Trust Dated February
12,2001

5 Order for Examination of May 13, 2015 1 0170-
Rhonda Mona as Trustee of 0178
Judgment Debtor The Mona
Family Trust Dated February
12,2001

6 Transcript of Judgment June 26, 2015 2 0179-
Debtor Examination of 0497
Rhonda Mona (erroneously
named on its face as
“Deposition of Rhonda
Mona”)

7 Transcript of Judgment June 30, 2015 3 0498-
Debtor Examination of 0979
Michael J. Mona, Jr.

8 First Amended Complaint, | September 16, 2015 4 0980-
Far West Industries, etc. vs. 0997
Michael J. Mona, Jr., etc., et
al., Eighth Judicial District
Court Case No. A-15-

724490-C

10594-01/1576501
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TABLE OF CONTENTS OF
SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDEX

(Alphabetical)

TAB Document Date Vol. # | Pages

1 Applicaion [sic] of Foreign | October 18,2012 1 0001-
Judgment 0007

8 First Amended Complaint; September 16, 2015 4 0980-
Far West Industries, etc. vs. 0997
Michael J. Mona, Jr., etc., et
al., Eighth Judicial District
Court Case No. A-15-

724490-C

2 Order for Appearance of January 30, 2013 1 0008-
Judgment Debtors 0015

4 Order for Examination of May 13, 2015 1 0061-
Judgment Debtor Michael J. 0169
Mona, Jr., Individually, and
as Trustee of the Mona
Family Trust Dated February
12,2001

5 Order for Examination of May 13, 2015 1 0170-
Rhonda Mona as Trustee of 0178
Judgment Debtor The Mona
Family Trust Dated February
12,2001

3 Transcript of Judgment November 25, 2013 1 0016-
Debtor Examination of 0160
Michael J. Mona, Jr.

7 Transcript of Judgment June 30, 2015 3 0498-
Debtor Examination of 0979
Michael J. Mona, Jr.

6 Transcript of Judgment June 26, 2015 2 0179-
Debtor Examination of 0497
Rhonda Mona (erroneously
named on its face as
“Deposition of Rhonda
Mona”)

10594-01/1576501
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Electronically Filed
09/16/2015 03:43:42 PM

ACOM )
F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ. Q@:.. b s

Nevada Bar No. 9549

E-mail: tedwards@nevadafirm.com
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12580

E-mail: agandara@nevadafirm.com
HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH

FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone:  702/791-0308
Facsimile: 702/791-1912

CLERK OF THE COURT

Attorneys for Plaintiff Far West Industries
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California

corporation, Case No.: A-15-724490-C
Plaintiff, Dept. No.: XXXII
V.
MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an individual; FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

RHONDA HELENE MONA, an individual;
MICHAEL MONA 111, an individual;

LUNDENE ENTERPRISES, LL.C, a Nevada ARBITRATION EXEMPTION CLAIMED:
limited liability corporation, DOES 1through 10 Declaratory Relief Requested
and ROE CORPORATIONS 1 through 10,
inclusive,
Defendants.

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES (the “Plaintiff” or “Far West”), a California corporation, by

and through its attorneys, F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ. and ANDREA M. GANDARA,
ESQ., of the law firm of HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON,

complain of Defendants as follows:

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action based on the Judgment,
which is defined below, and the subject fraudulent transfers, which are described below, the
Nevada Constitution, and Chapters 17, 21, 31, and/or 112 of the Nevada Revised Statutes

((‘NRS”).

10594-01/1572403
0980
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2. The Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants because the Defendants are
residents of and/or conduct business in and/or engaged in the wrongful conduct complained of
herein in Clark County, Nevada.

3. Venue in Clark County, Nevada is proper pursuant to NRS 13.040.

PARTIES

4. Plaintiff Far West Industries is, and at all times relevant herein was, a California
corporation.

5. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereupon alleges that Defendant MICHAEL J.
MONA, JR. (“Mr. Mona”), is, anq at all relevant times has been, an individual residing in Clark
County, Nevada, the husband of Defendant RHONDA HELENE MONA, and the father of
Defendant MICHAEL MONA IIL

6. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereupon alleges that Defendant RHONDA
HELENE MONA (“Mrs. Mona™), is, and at all relevant times has been, an individual residing in
Clark County, Nevada, the wife of Mr. Mona, and the mother of Defendant MICHAEL MONA
IIL

7. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereupon alleges that Defendant MICHAEL
MONA III (“Michael II1”), is, and at all relevant times has been, an individual residing in San
Diego County, California, the son of Mr. Mona, the son of Mrs. Mona, and the sole member and
manager of Defendant LUNDENE ENTERPRISES, LLC.

8. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereupon alleges that Defendant LUNDENE
ENTERPRISES, LLC (“Lundene”), is, and at all relevant times has been, a Nevada limited
liability company with its principal place of business in Clark County, Nevada, and owned and
managed by its sole member Michael II1.

9. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate, or otherwise
of Defendants herein designated as Does I through 10 and Roe Corporations 1 through 10,
inclusive, are not known to Plaintiff at this time and are therefore named as fictitious defendants.
Plaintiff will seek to amend this Complaint to allege the true names and capacities of Does I
through 10 and Roe Corporations 1 through 10 when and as ascertained.
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

10. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the preceding allegations and by this reference
incorporates the same as though fully set forth herein.

FAR WEST’S JUDGMENT AGAINST MR. MONA AND THE MONA FAMILY TRUST

11.On February 23, 2012, the Superior Court of the State of California, County of
Riverside, Riverside Court (the “California Court”), entered Findings of Fact and Conclusions of
Law in the case of Far West Industries v. Rio Vista Nevada, LLC, et. al., Case No. RIC495966

(the “California Action”).

12. Among other things, the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law states that Mr.
Mona, among others, intentionally misrepresented material facts and concealed other material
facts from Plaintiff on behalf of Rio Vista Nevada, LLC, with intent to defraud Plaintiff and that
Plaintiff justifiably relied on those misrepresentations and omissions, which caused Plaintiff

damages.

13. The Findings of Fact and Conclusions also stated that Mr. Mona was the alter ego of

the Mona Family Trust, dated February 21, 2002 (the “Mona Family Trust”), such that he and
the Mona Family Trust are both liable for any and all damages awarded against Rio Vista
Nevada, LLC.

14.0On April 27, 2012, the California Court entered Judgment in the amount of
$17,777,562.18, plus costs of $25,562.56 and attorney fees of $327,548.84, in favor of Plaintiff
and against the following parties, jointly and severally: Mr. Mona, Mr. Mona as Trustee of the
Mona Family Trust, Rio Vista Nevada, LLC, and World Development, Inc. (the “Judgment”).

15. On October 18, 2012, Plaintiff domesticated the Judgment in Nevada by filing an

Application of Foreign Judgment with this Court, initiating the case entitled Far West Industries

v. Rio Vista Nevada, et. al., Case No. A-12-670352-F (the “Judgment Collection Action™).
16. As of September 1, 2015, the Judgment balance of the Judgment was $24,172,076.16.
17. Far West has attempted to execute against assets in satisfaction of the Judgment by,
among other things, garnishing Mr. Mona’s earnings, which wage garnishments totaled

$28,647.59 as of September 1, 20135,

10594-01/1572403
0982

2297




S~

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

MR. MONA FRAUDULENTLY TRANSFERS HIS INTERESTS IN ROEN VENTURES, LL.C

18. On November 25, 2013, Mr. Mona sat for an initial judgment debtor examination in
the Judgment Collection Action during which he admitted that just days prior he sold his 50%

interest in an entity called Roen Ventures, LLC (“Roen”) and a $2.6 million promissory note

owed to him by Roen Ventures, LLC (the “Roen Note™) for $500,000.
19. Mr. Mona’s sale of his interest in Roen and the Roen Note is the subject of a separate
fraudulent transfer action entitled Far West Industries v. CannaVEST Corp., et. al., Case No. A-

14-695786-F (the “Fraudulent Transfer Action”).

20. CannaVEST Corp. (“Cannavest™) is entity of which Mr. Mona is the Chief Executive

Officer, President, and Director.

MR. MONA FRAUDULENTLY TRANSFERS MRS. MONA MORE THAN $500,000

21.Mr. Mona testified at a judgment debtor examination on June 30, 2015 that he
transferred the $500,000 he received from selling his interest in Roen and the Roen Note to Mrs.
Mona.

22. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona did not receive any consideration for the

$500,000 transfer to Mrs. Mona.

MR. MONA FRAUDULENTLY TRANSFERS MRS. MONA MORE THAN $3.4 MILLION

23.0n May 13, 2015, Plaintiff obtained orders in the Judgment Collection Action
scheduling judgment examinations of Mr. Mona and Mrs. Mona (collectively referred to as the
“Monas”). The orders required the Monas to produce documentation prior to the examinations.

24. One of the documents the Monas produced was a Post-Marital Property Settlement
Agreement (the “Agreement”), executed on or about September 13, 2013.

25.In the Agreement, the Monas explain that they have sold their community property
shares of Medical Marijuana, Inc., for $6,813,202.20.

26. The Agreement then purports to divide the proceeds equally between themselves as
their separate property, with each receiving $3,406,601.10.

27. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona did not receive any consideration for the |

$3,406,601.10 transfer to Mrs. Mona.
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28. Mr. Mona failed to produce the Agreement pursuant to prior orders scheduling his
judgment debtor examination and requiring production of documents.

29. Mr. Mona also failed to disclose the Agreement during his testimony at the prior
judgment debtor examination on November 25, 2013.

30. Upon information and belief, Mrs. Mona invested $1,000,000 of the community
property proceeds obtained from the sale of the Medical Marijuana, Inc. shares in Roen.

31. On June 26, 2015, Mrs. Mona testified at a judgment debtor examination that she
gave Michael 11T $900,000 from money she received under the Agreement.

32. Upon information and belief, Mrs. Mona transferred the $900,000 to Michael 1II
without any constderation.

33. Upon information and belief, on or about March 7, 2014, Michael III purchased
certain real property located at 877 Island Avenue #701, San Diego, California 92101, APN:535-

114-04-11 (the “San Diego Property”) with the $900,000 from Mrs. Mona.

34. Upon information and belief, on or about November 5, 2014, Michael III transferred
the San Diego Property to his company, Lundene, without any consideration.

MR. MONA FRAUDULENTLY TRANSFERS MRS. MONA $90,000 TO PURCHASE A JAGUAR

35. Upon information and belief, on or about February 14, 2014, the Monas, acting as co-
trustees of the Mona Family Trust, sold stocks held in an investment account with Employers
Holdings, Inc. for approximately $100,000.

36. Mr. Mona testified at a judgment debtor examination on June 30, 2015 that he and
Mrs. Mona received $90,000 from the sale of stocks held in the Employers Holdings, Inc.
investment account and that he gave the money to Mrs. Mona to buy a car.

37. Upon information, Mr. Mona did not receive any consideration for the transfer of the
$90,000 to Mrs. Mona.

38. Upon information and belief, Mrs. Mona used the $90,000 to purchase herself a white
two-door convertible Jaguar (the “Jaguar”) in 2014.

MR. MONA FRAUDULENTLY TRANSFERS MICHAEL IIT A RANGE ROVER

39. Mr. Mona testified at a judgment debtor examination on June 30, 2015 that he |
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purchased a Range Rover vehicle (the “Range Rover™) either two or three years prior and that he
gave the Range Rover to his son (Michael I1I) a year prior.

40. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona, either individually or through his company,
Mona Co. Development, LLC, purchased the Range Rover in 2012 or 2013.

41. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona, either individually or through his company,
Mona Co. Development, LLC, transferred the Range Rover to Michael I in 2014.

42. Upon information, Mr. Mona did not receive any consideration for the transfer of the
Range Rover to Michael II1.

MR. MONA FRAUDULENTLY TRANSFERS ASSETS TO MRS. MONA AND ASSUMES INEQUITABLE
DISTRIBUTION OF LIABILITIES THROUGH SHAM DIVORCE

43. Upon information and belief, the Monas were married on or about October 17, 1982.

44. On or about July 2, 2015, Mrs. Mona filed a Complaint for Divorce with the Family
Division of the Eighth Judicial District Court, initiating Case No. D-15-517425-D (the
“Divorce”).

45, Less than one week before filing for divorce, on June 26, 2015, Mrs. Mona testified
that she was happily married and had no plan to get divorced at that time.

46. Mr. Mona similarly said he had no plans to divorce during his judgment debtor
examination on June 30, 20153, only two days before Mrs. Mona filed the Complaint for Divorce.

47. Upon information and belief, Mrs. Mona obtained an order to seal the proceedings in
the Divorce because the Monas wanted to prevent Far West from obtaining knowledge of
otherwise public filings and orders that affected its interests in the Judgment Collection Action.

48. On June 30, 2015, prior to Mrs. Mona filing the Complaint for Divorce, Far West
served counsel for the Monas with an Ex Parte Application for Order to Show Cause Why
Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should Not Be Subject to Execution and Why the Court Should Not
Find the Monas in Contempt (the “Motion for OSC”) in the Judgment Collection Action. In the
Motion for OSC, Far West requested, among other things, that the purported transfer pursuant to
the Agreement be deemed a fraudulent transfer and that it be allowed to execute against three
bank accounts in Mrs. Mona’s name: (1) a Bank of George checking account containing
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community property earnings from design projects performed by Mrs. Mona during the Monas’
marriage, (2) a Bank of George money market account that contained the remaining community
property proceeds from the sale of the Monas’ shares in Medical Marijuana, Inc. through the
Agreement, and (3) a Bank of Nevada checking account that was funded through with money
from the Bank of George money market account.

49. On July 15, 2015, this Court entered an Order regarding the Motion for OSC (the
“Sanctions_Order”) that, among other things, deemed the Agreement a fraudulent transfer,
allowed Far West to execute against the three bank accounts in Mrs. Mona’s name, and
prohibited the Monas from claiming any money transferred pursuant to the Agreement or any
money in the bank accounts in Mrs. Mona’s name as exempt from Far West’s execution.

50. The Sanctions Order is currently on appeal and Far West has since filed a Motion for
an Order Shortening Time for Bond Pending Appeal requesting that the Monas be required to
post a bond of no less than $24,172,076.16.

51. On July 16, 2015, Far West filed a Motion to Compel Application of Particular Assets

Towards Satisfaction of Judgment in the Judgment Collection Action (the “Motion to Compel”).

In the Motion to Compel, Far West requested, among other things, that certain property be
applied in satisfaction of the Judgment, namely, (1) several firearms that the Monas disclosed
they had during their judgment debtor exam testimony, (2) the Jaguar, and (3) an IRS tax refund
for 2014 in the amount of $55,541 that was due to the Monas based on disclosures they made in
advance of their judgment debtor examinations.

52. Upon information and belief, after receiving notice and obtaining knowledge of the
Motion for OSC, the Sanctions Order, and/or the Motion to Compel, the Monas stipulated into a

joint division of assets and liabilities (the “Divorce Stipulation™) in the Divorce.

53. On or about July 23, 2015, the Family Division of the Eighth Judicial District Court
entered a Decree of Divorce (the “Divorce Decree”) in the Divorce, which, upon information and

belief, incorporated the terms of Divorce Stipulation.

54. Upon information and belief, through the Divorce Stipulation and/or the Divorce

Decree, Mr. Mona transferred to Mrs. Mona:
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(a) Alimony of $10,000 per month;

(b)  $3,406,601.10 from the sale of the Monas’ community property stocks in
Medical Marijuana, Inc. based on the Agreement;

(©) 3,000,000 stock options in Cannavest shares out of 4,000,000 stock
options;

(d) A $787,760.88 receivable owed by Michael III, apparently for the
$900,000 loan Mrs. Mona gave him without consideration to purchase the San Diego
Property;

(e) Any returns on Mrs. Mona’s investment in Roen;

® Any bank accounts that are in Mrs. Mona’s name only, including, but not
limited to, bank accounts at the Bank of George and Bank of Nevada;

(g) The Jaguar;

(h) One-half of any tax refund received for the 2014 tax year,

i) Two dogs;

) Mrs. Mona’s personal property, including her jewelry, clothing, and
personalites; and

&) The furniture, furnishings, and firearms located at Mr. Mona’s and Mrs.
Mona’s personal residence, 2793 Red Arrow Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada 89135, that is

held in the name of the Mona Family Trust (the “Red Arrow Property”).

55. The Divorce Decree expressly recognizes that the Agreement is subject to Far West’s

claims in Judgment Collection Action.

56. Upon information and belief, through the Divorce Stipulation and/or the Divorce

Decree, Mr. Mona assumed all liabilities and encumbrances relating to the Red Arrow Property,

the debt arising from the Judgment, and debt owed to a third party Mike Sifen.

57. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona’s assumption of the habilities, encumbrances,

and debts in the Divorce Stipulation and/or Divorce Decree inequitably shifts community debts

to Mr. Mona while leaving him with insufficient assets to satisfy those obligations.

58. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona did not receive any consideration for the
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transfers of assets made to Mrs. Mona or his assumption of liabilities, debts, and encumbrances
through the Divorce Stipulation and/or Divorce Decree.

59. Upon information and belief, the Monas knew that the property they purported to
transfer through the Divorce Stipulation and/or was the subject of the Motion for OSC, the
Sanctions Order, and/or the Motion to Compel at the time they entered into the Divorce
Stipulation.

60. Upon information and belief, neither Mr. Mona nor Mrs. Mona disclosed the
existence of the Motion for OSC, the Sanctions Order, and/or the Motion to Compel in the
Divorce because they desired to conceal their improper transfer of assets and/or allocation of
debts through the Divorce Stipulation and/or the Divorce Decree.

61. Upon information and belief, the Monas agreed to the $10,000 per month alimony
award to Mrs. Mona through the Divorce Stipulation and/or Divorce Decree with the intent to
hinder, delay or defraud Far West.

62. Upon information and belief, the Monas agreed to ratify the transfer of $3,406,601.10
to Mrs. Mona under the Agreement through the Divorce Stipulation and/or Divorce Decree with
the intent to hinder, delay or defraud Far West.

63. Upon information and belief, the Monas agreed to transfer the aforementioned
property to Mrs. Mona through the Divorce Stipulation and/or Divorce Decree with the intent to
hinder, delay or defraud Far West.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Fraudulent Transfer of $500,000
The Monas

64. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the preceding allegations and by this reference
incorporates the same as though fully set forth herein.

65. Mr. Mona transferred $500,000 to Mrs. Mona.

66. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer with the actual intent to
hinder, delay or defraud Far West.

67. Mrs. Mona is an insider to Mr. Mona.
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68. Upon information, Mr. Mona retained possession or control of the property
transferred after the transfer.

69. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona concealed the transfer.

70. Before the transfer was made, Mr. Mona had been sued or threatened with suit.

71. Upon information and belief, the transfer was of substantjally all Mr. Mona’s assets.

72. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona removed or concealed assets.

73. Upon information and belief, the value of the consideration received by Mr. Mona
was not reasonably equivalent to the value of the assets transferred.

74. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona was insolvent or became insolvent shortly
after the transfer was made.

75. The transfer occurred shortly after a substantial debt was incurred.

76. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving a
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer or obligation.

77. Upon information and belief, at the time of the transfer, Mr. Mona intended to incur,
or believed or reasonably should have believed that he would incur, debts beyond his ability to
pay as they became due.

78. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer and Mr. Mona was insolvent at the fime
of the transfer or became insolvent as a result of the transfer.

79. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct by the Monas, Plaintiff has been
damaged in a substantial sum, in excess of $10,000.

80. Plaintiff has, by reason of the foregoing, been required to obtain the services of an
attorney and is entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs from the Monas.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Fraudulent Transfer of $3,406,610.10
All Defendants

81. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the preceding allegations and by this reference
incorporates the same as though fully set forth herein.
82. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona transferred $3,406,601.10 to Mrs. Mona.
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83. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer with the actual intent to
hinder, delay or defraud Far West.

84. Mrs. Mona is an insider to Mr. Mona.

85. Upon information Mr. Mona retained possession or control of the property transferred
after the transfer.

86. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona concealed the transfer.

87. Before the transfer was made, Mr. Mona had been sued or threatened with suit.

88. Upon information and belief, the transfer was of substantially all Mr. Mona’s assets.

89. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona removed or concealed assets.

90. Upon information and belief, the value of the consideration received by Mr. Mona
was nol reasonably equivalent to the value of the assets transferred.

91. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona was insolvent or became insolvent shortly
after the transfer was made.

92. The transfer occurred shortly after a substantial debt was incurred.

93. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving a
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer or obligation.

94. Upon information and belief, at the time of the transfer, Mr. Mona was engaged or
was about to engage in a business or a transaction for which his remaining assets were
unreasonably small in relation to the business or transaction.

95. Upon information and belief, at the time of the transfer, Mr. Mona intended to incur,
or believed or reasonably should have believed that he would incur, debts beyond his ability to
pay as they became due.

96. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer and Mr. Mona was insolvent at the time
of the transfer or became insolvent as a result of the transfer.

97. Upon information and belief, Mrs. Mona transferred $900,000 of the $3,406,601.10
from Mr. Mona transferred to Michael III without consideration.

98. Michael Il is an insider of Mr. Mona.
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99. Upon information and belief, Michael III purchased the San Diego Property with the
$900,000 Mrs. Mona transferred to him.

100.  Upon information and belief, Michael III did not take the $900,000 in good faith
for value.

101.  Upon information and belief, Michael III transferred the San Diego Property to
Lundene.

102.  Upon information and belief, Lundene did not take the San Diego Property in
good faith for value.

103.  As a direct and proximate result of the conduct by Defendants, Plaintiff has been
damaged in a substantial sum, in excess of $10,000.

104.  Plaintiff has, by reason of the foregoing, been required to obtain the services of an
attorney and is entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs from Defendants.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Fraudulent Transfer of $90,000
The Monas

105. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the preceding allegations and by this reference
incorporates the same as though fully set forth herein.

106. Mr. Mona transferred $90,000 to Mrs. Mona.

107. Mrs. Mona used the $90,000 to purchase Mrs. Mona the Jaguar in 2014.

108.  Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona and/or the Mona Family Trust made the
transfer with the actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud Far West.

109.  Mrs. Mona is an insider to Mr. Mona and the Mona Family Trust.

110. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona concealed the transfer.

111. Before the transfer was made, Mr. Mona had been sued or threatened with suit.

112.  Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona removed or concealed assets.

113.  Upon information and belief, the value of the consideration received by Mr. Mona
was not reasonably equivalent to the value of the assets transferred.

114.  Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona was insolvent or became insolvent

shortly after the transfer was made.
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115. The transfer occurred shortly after a substantial debt was incurred.

116. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving a
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer or obligation.

117.  Upon information and belief, at the time of the transfer, Mr. Mona intended to
incur, or believed or reasonably should have believed that he would incur, debts beyond his
ability to pay as they became due.

118. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer and Mr. Mona was insolvent at the time
of the transfer or became insolvent as a result of the transfer.

119. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct by the Monas, Plaintiff has been
damaged in a substantial sum, in excess of $10,000.

120.  Plaintiff has, by reason of the foregoing, been required to obtain the services of an
attorney and is entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs from the Monas.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Fraudulent Transfer of Range Rover
Mr. Mona and Michael 11X

121. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the preceding allegations and by this reference
incorporates the same as though fully set forth herein.

122.  Mr. Mona, either individually or through his company, Mona Co. Development,
LLC, transferred a Range Rover to Michael II1.

123.  Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer with the actual intent to
hinder, delay or defraud Far West.

124. Michael III is an insider to Mr. Mona.

125. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona concealed the transfer.

126. Before the transfer was made, Mr. Mona had been sued or threatened with suit.

127. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona removed or concealed assets.

128. Upon information and belief, the value of the consideration received by Mr. Mona
was not reasonably equivalent to the valuc of the assets transferred.

129. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona was insolvent or became insolvent
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shortly after the transfer was made.

130.  The transfer occurred shortly after a substantial debt was incurred.

131.  Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving a
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer or obligation.

132.  Upon information and belief, at the time of the transfer, Mr. Mona intended to
incur, or believed or reasonably should have believed that he would incur, debts beyond his
ability to pay as they became due.

133. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer and Mr. Mona was insolvent at the time
of the transfer or became insolvent as a result of the transfer.

134.  As a direct and proximate result of the conduct by Mr. Mona and Michael 111,
Plaintiff has been damaged in a substantial sum, in excess of $10,000.

135.  Plaintiff has, by reason of the foregoing, been required to obtain the services of an
attorney and is entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs from Mr. Mona and
Michael 1.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Fraudulent Transfer Through Divorce Stipulation and Divorce Decree
The Monas

136.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges the preceding allegations and by this reference
incorporates the same as though fully set forth herein.
137. Upon information and belief, through the Divorce Stipulation and/or Divorce
Decree, Mr. Mona transferred to Mrs. Mona:
(a) Alimony of $10,000 per month;
(b) $3,406,601.10 from the sale of the Monas’ community property stocks in
Medical Marijuana, Inc.;
(c) 3,000,000 stock options in Cannavest shares;
(d) A $787,760.88 receivable owed by Michael I1I;
(e) Any returns on Mrs. Mona’s investments in Roen;
68) Any bank accounts that are in Mrs. Mona’s name only, including, but not
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limited to, bank accounts at the Bank of George and Bank of Nevada;

(g) The Jaguar;

h) One-half of any tax refund received for the 2014 tax year,

1) Two dogs;

)] Mrs. Mona’s personal property, including her jewelry, clothing, and
personalites; and

(k) The furniture, furnishings, and firearms located at the Red Arrow

Property.

138. Upon information and belief, through the Divorce Stipulation and/or Divorce
Decree, Mr. Mona assumed all debts associated with the Red Arrow Property, the debt owed
under the Judgment, and debts owed to third party Mike Sifen as his sole and separate debts.

139. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made transfers through the Divorce
Stipulation and/or Divorce Decree with the actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud Far West.

140. Mrs. Mona is an insider to Mr. Mona.

141. Upon information, Mr. Mona retained possession or control of the property
transferred after the transfer.

142. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona concealed the transfer.

143. Before the transfer was made, Mr. Mona had been sued or threatened with suit.

144. Upon information and belief, the transfer was of substantially all Mr. Mona’s
assets.

145. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona removed or concealed assets.

146.  Upon information and belief, the value of the consideration received by Mr. Mona
was not reasonably equivalent to the value of the assets transferred.

147. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona was insolvent or became insolvent
shortly after the transfer was made.

148. The transfer occurred shortly after a substantial debt was incurred.

149.  Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving a
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer or obligation.
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150. Upon information and belief, at the time of the transfer, Mr. Mona intended to
incur, or believed or reasonably should have believed that he would incur, debts beyond his
ability to pay as they became due.

151. Upon information and belief, Mr. Mona made the transfer without receiving
reasonably equivalent value in exchange for the transfer and Mr. Mona was insolvent at the time
of the transfer or became insolvent as a result of the transfer.

152. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct by the Monas, Plaintiff has been
damaged in a substantial sum, in excess of $10,000.

153.  Plaintiff has, by reason of the foregoing, been required to obtain the services of an
attorney and is entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs from the Monas.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Civil Conspiracy
All Defendants

154. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the preceding allegations and by this reference
incorporates the same as though fully set forth herein.

155. Upon information and belief, the Defendants conspired and agreed with each
other to commit the aforementioned transactions to hide, transfer, and/or accept the transferred
properties with the intent of hindering, delaying, and/or defrauding the Plaintiff in its collection
of the Judgment.

156. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct by Defendants, Plaintiff has been
damaged in a substantial sum, in excess of $10,000.

157.  Plaintiff has, by reason of the foregoing, been required to obtain the services of an
attorney and is entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs from Defendants.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Declaratory Relief
All Defendants

158. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the preceding allegations and by this reference
incorporates the same as though fully set forth herein.

159. An actual, justiciable controversy exists between Plaintiff and Defendants
regarding the nature of the aforementioned transactions and assets, including whether Plaintiff
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may execute upon and apply those assets towards the satisfaction of the Judgment.

160. Plaintiff contends that the aforementioned transactions are fraudulent transfers
and that Plaintiff may execute upon and apply those assets, based upon the fraudulent transfers
and/or the community property nature of the assets, towards the satisfaction of the Judgment.

161. Notwithstanding the above, upon information and belief, Defendants contend that
aforementioned transactions are not fraudulent transfers and that Plaintiff may not execute upon
and apply those assets towards the satisfaction of the Judgment.

162. Plaintiff is entitled to a declaratory judgment and determination that the
aforementioned transactions are fraudulent transfers and that Plaintiff may execute upon and
apply those assets, based upon the fraudulent transfers and/or the community property nature of
the assets, towards the satisfaction of the Judgment.

163. A judicial determination is necessary and appropriate at this time and under the
circumstances so that Plaintiff may ascertain its rights in connection the aforementioned
transactions and fraudulent transfers.

164.  Plaintiff has, by reason of the foregoing, been required to obtain the services of an
attorney and is entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs from Defendants.

DEMAND

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendants as follows:

1. For all damages allowed by law as to each of Plaintiff’s Causes of Action;

2. For prejudgment and postjudgment interest, at the highest rate permitted by
applicable law;

3. For a declaration by the Court that that the aforementioned transactions are
fraudulent transfers and that Plaintiff may execute upon and apply those assets, based upon the

fraudulent transfers and/or the community property nature of the assets, towards the satisfaction

of the Judgment;
4, For an order avoiding the fraudulent transfers;
5. For an order of attachment and/or garnishment against the fraudulently transferred

assets property and other property of the transferees;
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10594-01/1572403
0996

2311




o R N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28

6. For an injunction against further disposition by the Defendants of the fraudulently

transferred assets and of other property;

7. For all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees, incurred by

Plaintiff in connection with the commencement

and prosecution of this action; and

8. For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated this 15th day of September, 2015.

10594-01/1572403

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON

/s/ F. Thomas Edwards

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9549

E-mail: tedwards@nevadafirm.com
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ).
Nevada Bar No. 12580

E-mail: agandara@nevadafirm.com
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone:702/791-0308

Facsimile: 702/791-1912

Attorneys for Plaintiff Far West Industries
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Electronically Filed

03/14/2016 05:22:44 PM

ROPP % A zgﬂw,..,.,

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 9549 CLERK OF THE COURT
E-mail: tedwards@nevadafirm.com

ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ. ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
Nevada Bar No. 12580 03/16/2016 12:38:28 PM
E-mail: agandara@nevadafirm.com

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH

FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: 702/791-0308

Facsimile: 702/791-1912

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Far West Industries

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California Case No: A-12-670352-F
corporation,
Dept. No.: XV
Plaintiff,
v. PLAINTIFF FAR WEST INDUSTRIES’

REPLY TO ROEN VENTURE, LLC’S
RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a Nevada limited | OPPOSITION TO MOTION (1) FOR
liability company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT, | DEFAULT JUDGMENT AGAINST ROEN
INC., a California corporation; BRUCE MAIZE, | VENTURES, LL.C FOR UNTIMELY

an individual, MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an ANSWERS TO WRIT OF

individual; DOES 1 through 100, inclusive, GARNISHMENT INTERROGATORIES;
AND (2) TO COMPEL ROEN
Defendants. VENTURES, LLC’S TURNOVER OF

PAYMENTS MADE TO, ON BEHALF OF,
OR FOR THE BENEFIT OF MICHAEL J.
MONA, JR., AND OPPOSITION TO
COUNTERMOTION FOR ATTORNEYS’
FEES AND COSTS

Date of Hearing: March 21, 2016
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m.

Plaintiff FAR WEST INDUSTRIES (“Far West”), by and through its attorneys, F.
THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ. and ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ. of the law firm of HOLLEY
DRIGGS WALCH FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON, hereby submits this reply in support
of its Motion: (1) For Default Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for Untimely Answers to
Writ of Garnishment Interrogatories; and (2) To Compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of

Payments Made to, on Behalf of, or for the Benefit of Michael J. Mona, Jr. (the “Motion™) and

10594-01/Reply to Opposition to Motion for Default Judgment
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opposition to Roen Ventures LLC’s (“Roen”) Countermotion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (the
“Countermotion”).

In its Opposition to the Motion and Countermotion, Roen admits “[i]n this case, Roen
actually answered the Writ of Garnishment immediately after the deadline.” See Roen’s
Opposition and Countermotion at 11:1-2. Despite conceding this point, Roen relies upon
inapplicable rules and cases in an attempt to avoid the automatic default resulting from its
neglect as garnishee. However, Roen’s statutory default under NRS 31.290(2) was immediate
and unqualified, and therefore judgment must be entered against Roen pursuant to NRS
31.260(2). Turnover of any future payments owed under Roen and Mr. Mona’s Management
Agreement is appropriate under NRS 21.320. Finally, as Far West is entitled to default judgment
and turnover over of funds from Roen, Roen’s Countermotion must be denied.

Dated this 14™ day of March, 2016.

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 9549

ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 12580

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Far West Industries
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L
ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND"

After obtaining a Writ of Execution for Mr. Mona’s Roen earnings on December 4, 2015,
Far West sought to have the Writ of Execution and related Writ of Garnishment served upon
Roen by the Office of the Ex-Officio Constable for the Las Vegas Township (“Las Vegas
Constable”). Unfortunately, on December 11, 2015 the Las Vegas Constable incorrectly served
the Writ of Execution and related Writ of Garnishment on Mr. Mona’s counsel, Tye Hanseen,
instead of Roen. See Instructions to Sheriff. Constable — Clark County, preceding Served Writ of
Garnishment, Executed by L. Crane P #9595, attached to the Motion as Exhibit 5 (reflecting
signature of Tye Hanseen). Roen now discloses in its principal Bart Mackay’s (“Mr. Mackay™)
Declaration that just four days after Mr. Mona, through counsel, was tipped off as to the
imminent Roen garnishment, Mr. Mackay, acting on behalf of Roen, signed a $41,912.58 check
to Bank of America for six months of advance mortgage payments for Mr. Mona. See Mr.
Mackay’s Declaration in Support of Roen’s Opposition and Countermotion (“Mr. Mackay’s
Declaration™), ¥ 7 and Exhibit 1-A to Mr. Mackay’s Declaration.

On January 7, 2016, the Las Vegas Constable personally served Mr. Mackay with the
Writ of Execution and related Writ of Garnishment, not on January 8, 2016 as Mr. Mackay
recollects. See Served Writ of Garnishment, Executed by L. Crane P #9595, Ex. 5 to the Motion,
at p. 6>. By that time, Roen had already helped Mr. Mona withhold nearly $42,000 from Far
West’s execution. On January 29, 2016, Roen mailed its answers to interrogatories in the Writ
of Garnishment two days after they were due and in those answers Roen conveniently reported
that no payments were due under Roen and Mr. Mackay’s Management Agreement. See Writ of
Garnishment With Answers to Interrogatories from Roen, postmarked January 29, 2016 from

Provo, UT (“Roen Writ Answers”), attached to the Motion as Exhibit 6.

! The background facts from the Motion are incorporated by reference herein. See Motion at 3-6.

2 The copy of the Served Writ of Garnishment has duplicate pages for page 6 with the last page
containing the executed affirmation of service on Roen.

-3-
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I1.
LEGAL ANALYSIS

A. Roen’s Failure to Timely Answer Interrogatories Resulted in Immediate Default
Under Nevada’s statutory scheme, a garnishee’s default for failure to timely respond to
interrogatories in a writ of garnishment is immediate, automatic and without qualification:

The garnishee shall answer the interrogatories in writing upon
oath or affirmation and submit the answers to the sheriff within
the time required by the writ. The garnishee shall submit his or
her answers to the judgment debtor within the same time. If the
garnishee fails to do so, the garnishee shall be deemed in
default.

NRS 31.290(2). Emphasis added.

The facts here reflect that garnishee Roen was required to answer the interrogatories in
Far West’s Writ of Garnishment on January 27, 2015, contrary to Mr. Mackay’s incorrect
recollections. Compare Served Writ of Garnishment, Executed by L. Crane P #9595, attached to
the Motion as Exhibit 5 (reflecting personal service on Mr. Mackay on January 7, 2016) and
Roen Writ Answers, Ex. 6 to the Motion (postmarked January 29, 2016 from Provo, UT) with
Mr. Mackay’s Declaration, Y 3, 5 (stating that Mr. Mackay recollects receiving notice of Writ of
Garnishment on January 8, 2016 and placing responses to Writ of Garnishment on January 28,
2016). Roen did not send the answers until January 29, 2015, which means that it is deemed in
default and judgment must be entered against it. NRS 31.290(2).

Now that Roen realizes the consequences of its conduct, it desperately and incorrectly
seeks refuge in NRPC 3.5A and NRCP 55. First, Roen has failed to cite to any authority that
would apply the requirements of NRPC 3.5A or NRCP 55 to failures to respond to garnishment
interrogatories, when those rules are clearly meant to reply to failures to respond to complaints.
Second, even if these rules did apply in the instant case, they have not been violated. NRPC
3.5A only prevents an attorney from “causing” entry of default without first consulting with
opposing counsel. Under NRS 31.290(2), if the garnishee fails to timely respond to the
interrogatories, the garnishee “shall be deemed in default” immediately, automatically and

without any action required. Thus, Far West did not and was not required to “cause” a default to

4.
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be entered, because pursuant to NRS 31.290(2), Roen was automatically in default. Therefore,
even if NRPC 3.5A is applicable, it has not been violated.

Likewise, while NRCP 55 is not applicable, even it was applicable, Far West complied
with the rule. NRCP 55 only requires 3-days of notice “prior to the hearing on such application
[for default judgment].” Roen received notice of the hearing on Far West’s motion to default
judgment along with the filing of the motion, such that Roen has had more than 30 days of
notice. Far West had no responsibility to inform Roen or its counsel of the statutory penalty for
its admittedly late answers to interrogatories. Roen’s arguments with regard to these rules are
frivolous and should be disregarded.

Roen cannot remedy its failure to timely respond to Far West’s Writ of Garnishment
because the default already is established as a matter of law. See NRS 31.290(2). The blame for
waiting until after January 27, 2015 to answer the interrogatories can fairly be placed on Roen.

B. Default Judgment Should Be Entered Against Roen

As to the judgment amount that should be entered against Roen, Far West concedes that
the garnishment statutes could be read in multiple ways. Far West believes that the “amount of
money specified” in the Writ of Garnishment is informed by the concurrently served Writ of
Execution. See NRS 31.320. The Writ of Execution reflected that Far West’s Judgment against
Mr. Mona exceeded $24 million and Roen was clearly notified of the risk of entry of judgment
against Roen “in the amount due [Far West]” for failure to answer within 20 days. See Served
Writ of Garnishment, Executed by L. Crane P #9595, Ex. 5 to the Motion, at p. 2.

To the extent that this Court is inclined to accept Roen’s more limited interpretation of
the garnishment statutes, Far West is still entitled to a judgment for the amount due to Mr. Mona
under the Management Agreement. More specifically, Far West should be awarded the
$6,985.43 monthly mortgage beginning from January 7, 2016, when Roen was served with the
Writ of Garnishment, through the initial term of the Management Agreement, or November 23,
2016, which is ten months of payments for a total of $69,854.30. Since Roen and Mr. Mona
apparently take the position that the mortgage payments are not for an employee, do not
constitute disposable earnings, and are not exempt, the 25 percent limitation for garnishment of

-5-
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disposable earnings in NRS 31.295(2)(a) should not be withheld from the $69,854.30 and Far
West should be paid that entirc amount. See Roen Writ Answers, Ex. 6 to Motion at page 4
(Roen reporting that Mr. Mona is paid $0 in gross and disposable earnings).
C. Roen Should Not Be Permitted to Set Aside the Default

In Corrales v. Castillo, No. 2:07-CV-00141-LRH-LR, 2008 WL 1840773, at *3 (D. Nev.
Feb. 25, 2008), the garnishees made the same arguments Roen is asserting here; namely that
“default judgment should not be entered because plaintiffs are not prejudiced by its failure to
answer the garnishment interrogatories™ and “that any failure to answer should be excused due to
excusable neglect.” Jd. The U.S. District Court rejected both arguments explaining that
“Nevada’s attachment statute, which governs attachment and ghmishment in this case, provides
that the garnishee ‘shall be deemed in default’ upon failing to timely answer garnishment
interrogatories. NRS 31.290(2) (emphasis added). The court is thus left with no discretion in this
regard.” Id  (emphasis in original). Nevada’s garnishment statutes further state that if the

“garnishee fails, neglects or refuses to answer the interrogatories within the time required, the

court shall, upon application therefor by the plaintiff with at least 5 days’ notice of the hearing
upon the application given to each defendant who has appeared in the action, enter judgment”.
NRS 31.320. Accordingly, the Court is “left with no discretion in this regard.” Corrales, 2008
WL 1840773, at *3. Pursuant to Nevada’s garnishment statutes, this Court is required to enter
the default judgment against Roen.

Assuming for the sake of argument that the standards for setting aside default did apply,
the only standard at issue would be NRCP 55 because NRCP 60 relates to relief from judgment,
not entry of default. See NRCP 60 (title “Relief from Judgment or Order™); 1 Nevada Civil
Practice Manual, § 10.05 (“Practitioners commonly confuse the standards for setting aside
defaults and setting aside default judgments . . . In order to justify setting aside an entry of
default, a showing of “good cause” is required under NRCP 55(c). If a default judgment has
been entered, the judgment must be set aside in accordance with NRCP 60). . Here, Far West is
seeking entry of judgment through the Motion. Roen cannot seek to set aside a judgment that

has not yet been entered.

-6 -
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Decfault cannot be set aside pursuant to NRCP 55(c) unless the defaulted party carries its
burden by demonstrating good cause. NRCP 55(c); Nev. Direct Ins. Co. v. Fields, No. 66561,
2016 WL 797048, at *2 (Nev. Feb. 26, 2016) (quoting Intermountain Lumber & Builders Supply,
Inc. v. Glens Falls Ins. Co., 83 Nev. 126, 129, 424 P.2d 884, 886 (1967)). In determining
whether Roen has demonstrated good cause, the Court should consider whether Roen engaged in
culpable conduct that led to the default and whether setting aside the default would prejudice Far
West. Id. (citing FED. R. C1v. P. 55(c) as analogous to NRCP 55(c) and Franchise Holding II,
LLC v. Huntington Rests. Grp., Inc., 375 F.3d 922, 926 (9th Cir. 2004)).?

Where a party receives actual notice of an action and fails to answer, its conduct is
culpable. Id. (citing Franchise Holding, 375 F.3d 922, 926 (9th Cir. 2004)). In Nev. Direct, the
Nevada Supreme Court found a defendant’s conduct to be culpable when it was served by
publication and then failed to answer or otherwise respond. Id. Here, Roen’s conduct is even
more culpable than the defaulted party in Nev. Direct because it is undisputed that it received
actual notice by personal service upon Mr. Mackay. See Served Writ of Garnishment, Executed
by L. Crane P #9595, Ex. 5 to the Motion. Roen’s weak assertion that it was somehow mistaken
or inadvertently answered the interrogatories late has no credibility. Roen’s principal, Mr.
Mackay, is an attorney and Roen is represented by counsel with respect to Far West’s Writ of
Garnishment. Between Mr. Mackay and Roen’s counsel, Roen cannot plausibly claim it did not
understand the clear warning in the Writ of Garnishment that “In case of your failure to answer
the interrogatories within 20 days, a Judgment by Default in the amount due the Plaintiff may be
entered against you[.]” Accordingly, the culpable conduct factor weighs heavily against setting

aside default.

3 Nevada law is unsettled as to whether a party must show a meritorious defense prior to the
setting aside a default, as opposed to a default judgment, under NRCP 55(c). In Epstein v.
Epstein, 113 Nev. 1401, 1405, 950 P.2d 771, 773 (1997), the Nevada Supreme Court overruled
prior authority that required a showing of a meritorious defense when considering whether to set
aside a default decree of divorce, i.e., a default judgment. In a more recent case, the Nevada
Supreme Court declined to consider whether a meritorious defense was necessary if a non-final
default judgment was entered against one or more but fewer than all parties, instead focusing on
the culpable conduct and prejudice considerations. Nevada Direct Ins. Co. v. Fields, No. 66561,
2016 WL 797048, at *1-2 (Nev. Feb. 26, 2016).

-7-
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While mere delay in resolution of a matter is not sufficient prejudice under NRCP 55(c),
see Nev. Direct, 2016 WL 797048, at *3 (Nev. Feb. 26, 2016), here, Far West has been
prejudiced by having to bring the Motion to obtain information from Roen that should have been
disclosed in its answers to the interrogatories. Initially, Roen’s answers reflected that Mr. Mona
is not its employee and receives no disposable earnings from it, but only now, after being held
accountable for its default, Roen reports that it wrote a check for approximately $42,000 for six
months of advance mortgage payments for Mr. Mona.

The picture Roen paints of itself as an innocent garnishec being blindsided by Far West’s
collection efforts is inaccurate. The suspicious timing of Mr. Mackay writing a $41,912.58
check to Bank of America for six months of Mr. Mona’s mortgage payments immediately after
Mr. Mona’s counsel was served with Far West’s Writ of Garnishment for his Roen earnings
tracks a pattern of Mr. Mona hiding assets subject to Far West’s imminent execution. While Mr.
Mackay reports that this was a matter of convenience because of personal matters, when coupled
with the timing of Roen’s payment of Mr. Mona’s mortgage, his explanation lacks credibility.
Moreover, Roen’s withholding of information of this prepayment has harmed Far West and
militates against setting aside the deemed default under NRS 31.290(2).

D. Roen Should Be Required to Turnover Any Further Payments to or for the Benefit
of Mr. Mona

To prevent Roen and Mr. Mona from playing additional games to avoid the garnishment
(c.g., prepayment of amounts due), the Court should enter an order that all future payments under
the Management Agreement must be applied to satisfy the Judgment. The Management
Agreement does not make payments contingent, other than performance bonuses, and Roen
obviously has the ability to make such payments on demand. NRS 21.320 provides that “[tjhe
judge or master may order any property of the judgment debtor not exempt from execution, in

the hands of such debtor or any other person, or due to the judgment debtor, to be applied

toward the satisfaction of the judgment.” Accordingly, Roen should be ordered to turnover any
and all future payments under the Management Agreement to Far West pursuant to NRS 21.320.

"
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E. Roen Is Not Entitled to Attorneys’ Fees and Costs

Roen admits that it failed to answer the interrogatories in the Writ of Garnishment within
the time required. See Roen’s Opposition and Countermotion at 11:1-2, For this reason alone,
Roen’s Countermotion must be denied because the Motion is well founded in law (NRS 31.260
and 31.290) and undisputed facts (Roen’s admitted late answers to interrogatories). Roen’s
claims of traps and overreaching by Far West are nothing more than its grasping at straws upon
learning of the severe consequences of its disregard of its duties as garnishee.

III.
CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Far West respectfully requests that this Court grant the
Motion.
Dated this 14th day of March, 2016.

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON

S

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 9549

ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 12580

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiff, Far West Industries
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on March 14, 2016, pursuant to EDCR 8.05 and NRCP 5(b), I

caused to be served electronically using the Court’s E-File & Serve System, a true and correct

copy of the foregoing PLAINTIFF FAR WEST INDUSTRIES’ REPLY TO ROEN

VENTURE, LLC’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION (1) FOR DEFAULT JUDGMENT

AGAINST ROEN VENTURES, LLC FOR UNTIMELY ANSWERS TO WRIT OF

GARNISHMENT INTERROGATORIES; AND (2) TO COMPEL ROEN VENTURES,

LLC’S TURNOVER OF PAYMENTS MADE TO, ON BEHALF OF, OR FOR THE

BENEFIT OF MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., AND OPPOSITION TO COUNTERMOTION

FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS to the parties below:

Aurora M. Maskall, Esq.

David S. Lee, Esq.

LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM &
GARAFALO

7575 Vegas Drive, #150

Las Vegas, NV 89128

James E. Whitmire, Esq.
SANTORO WHITMIRE

10100 West Charleston Boulevard,
Suite 250

Las Vegas, Nevada 89135
Attorney for Rhonda Helene Mona

e

/

10594-01/Reply to Opposition to Motion for Default Judgment

Tye S. Hanseen, Esq.

Terry A. Coffing, Esq.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
1001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89145

Attorney for Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Erika Pike Turner

Dylan Ciciliano

GARMAN TURNER GORDON
650 White Drive

Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Attornev for Roen Ventures, LLC

employée of H,
Fine Wray Puzey & Thompson
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AMEN

F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 9549

E-mail: tedwards@nevadafirm.com
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 12580

E-mail: agandara@nevadafirm.com
HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH

FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone:  702/791-0308

Facsimile: 702/791-1912

Attorneys for Plaintiff Far West Industries

Electronically Filed
03/15/2016 01:35:20 PM

A b e

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California
corporation,

Plaintiff,
v.

RIO VISTA NEVADA, LLC, a Nevada limited
liability company; WORLD DEVELOPMENT,
INC., a California corporation; BRUCE MAIZE,
an individual, MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an
individual; DOES 1 through 100, inclusive,

Defendants.

Plaintiff Far West Industries hereby submits its Amended Appendix of Exhibits to
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply in Support of Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to

Judgment filed on March 14, 2016. The original electronically filed Appendix did not include

Case No.: A-12-670352-F
Dept. No.: XV

AMENDED APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS
TO PLAINTIFF FAR WEST
INDUSTRIES’ REPLY IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION TO REDUCE SANCTIONS
ORDER TO JUDGMENT

DATE OF HEARING: March 21, 2016
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 A.M.

Exhibit 10 to the Reply, which exhibit is attached hereto.

"
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TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXHIBIT NO. | DOCUMENT PAGE
~ | NOS.
10. Real Party In Interest’s Answering Brief 1-61

11.

Supplemental Appendix to Real Party In Interest’s Answering | 62-1062
Brief

TN
Dated this | 5 day of March, 2016.
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F. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9549

ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
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Attorneys for Plaintiff Far West Industries
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ HEREBY CERTIFY that on March 15, 2016, pursuant to EDCR 8.05 and NRCP 5(b), 1
caused to be served electronically using the Court’s E-File & Serve System, a true and correct
copy of the foregoing AMENDED APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS TO PLAINTIFF FAR WEST
INDUSTRIES’ REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO REDUCE SANCTIONS ORDER
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NRAP 26.1 DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

The undersigned counsel of record certifies that the following are persons
and entities as described in NRAP 26.1(a), and must be disclosed. These
representations are made in order that the Justices of the Court may evaluate
possible disqualification or recusal.

1. Real Party in Interest Far West Industries (“Far West”) is a
nongovernmental entity.

2. Far West has no parent corporations and there is no publicly held
company which owns 10% or more of Far West’s stock.

3. The law firm of Lee, Hernandez, Landrum & Garofalo, formerly
known as Lee, Hernandez, Landrum, Garofalo & Blake, previously represented Far
West in proceedings before the Eighth Judicial District Court (the “District
Court”).

4. The law firm of Holley Driggs Walch Fine Wray Puzey & Thompson,
formerly known as Holley Driggs Walch Puzey & Thompson, currently represents
11/

11/
1/
1/

1/

10594-01/1577805.doc
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Far West in proceedings before the District Court and in the proceedings before

this Court.

Dated this 30th day of September, 2015.

10594-01/1577805.doc

HOLLEY DRIGGS WALCH
FINE WRAY PUZEY & THOMPSON

/s/ F. Thomas Edwards

. THOMAS EDWARDS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9549
RACHEL E. DONN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 10568
ANDREA M. GANDARA, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12580
400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for
Real Party in Interest
Far West Industries
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ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Whether the District Court has the power to sanction an individual subject to
a Court order for knowingly failing to abide by that same order.

2. Whether the District Court has personal jurisdiction over an individual duly
served with an order for judgment debtor examination, who appears at a
judgment debtor examination, a telephonic hearing and subsequent District
Court proceedings without raising the issue of personal jurisdiction.

3. Whether this Court should disregard its decision in Randono v. Turk, 86

Nev. 123, 466 P.2d 218 (1970) and prevent judgment creditors from
executing their judgments against community property.

4. Whether the District Court can order Petitioners not to dispose of assets
pursuant to NRS 21.280 and 21.330.

5. Whether NRS 21320 allows the District Court to order the community
property of Mr. Mona, held in Mrs. Mona’s account, to be used to satisfy a
judgment.

6. Whether the District Court needs to conduct an evidentiary hearing before
awarding sanctions when there are no disputed material facts.

7. Whether the District Court in awarding sanctions is required to specifically

-4-
10594-01/1577805.doc
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reference Young v. Johnny Ribeiro Blvd. Inc., 106 Nev. 88, 787 P.2d 777

(1990) despite considering all relevant factors, including those identified in
Young.
"

"

1

"

/1

"

"

"

/1

/!

"

1/

/1

1/

/1

"
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II.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Superior Court of the State of California, County of Riverside
(“California Court”), found Michael J. Mona, Jr. (“Mr. Mona”) guilty of fraud.
The California Court also determined Mr. Mona was the alter ego of the Mona
Family Trust Dated February 21, 2002 (“Mona Family Trust”) and awarded Far
West a judgment of approximately $18,000,000.00 against Mr. Mona and the
Mona Family Trust. See Judgment and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law
(“Judgment”), 1 Pet. App. 174-93." However, Mr. Mona failed to limit his fraud
and deceit to the underlying action, but persisted with this conduct during Far
West’s attempts to execute upon the Judgment. Mr. Mona’s wife, Rhonda Helene
Mona (“Mrs. Mona” and collectively with Mr. Mona, the “Petitioners”)
participated in Mr. Mona’s fraudulent and deceitful conduct. Petitioners waged a
campaign spanning two years to avoid satisfying the Judgment. Petitioners’ efforts
to avoid the Judgment included fraudulent transfers between spouses, fraudulent

transfers to their children, fraudulent transfers to related entities and now a sham

' “Pet. App.” refers to Petitioners’ Appendix and is preceded by the volume
number and is followed by the page number. “FW App.” refers Far West’s
Supplemental Appendix and is preceded by the volume number and followed by
the page number. “NRAP” refers to the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.
“NRCP” refers to the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, and “NRS” refers to the
Nevada Revised Statutes.

-6-
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divorce.

Petitioners’ efforts to avoid the Judgment also included the violation of court
orders and the concealment of records. Even more egregious, Mr. Mona lied under
oath to conceal the transfer of community property totaling more than
$3,400,000.00 to Mrs. Mona (“Transfer”). After discovering the Transfer, the lies
and the violations of court orders to conceal the Transfer, Far West requested
sanctions against Petitioners. In the Order Regarding Order to Show Cause Why
Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should Not Be Subject to Execution and Why the
Court Should Not Find Monas in Contempt (“Sanction Order”), 2 Pet. App. 348-
58, the Eighth Judicial District Court (“District Court”) properly found that
Petitioners violated court orders, lied under oath and made gross omissions in their
briefing. Given the severity of the Petitioners’ misconduct and as explained further
below, the Court should affirm the Sanction Order.

III.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

A. Entry of the Fraud Judgment

In April 2012, the California Court entered the Judgment in favor of Far
West of more than $18,000,000.00 against Petitioner Michael J. Mona, Jr., and the

Mona Family Trust, various claims, including fraud. 1 Pet. App. 174-93. With

10594-01/1577805.doc
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interest, the Judgment currently exceeds $24,000,000.00.

B. Initial Judgment Debtor Examination Proceedings

On October 18, 2012, Far West domesticated the Judgment in Nevada. 1
FW App. 1-7. On January 30, 2013, the District Court entered its original order for
the judgment debtor examination of Mr. Mona (“First JDE Order”). 1 FW App. 8-
15. The First JDE Order required Mr. Mona to produce all of his financial records
and any contracts to which he was a party. Id. After months of delays by Mr.
Mona, the Court entered another order requiring that that Mr. Mona complete his
production of the documents by September 25, 2013 (“Second JDE Order”).” 1
Pet. App. 19-21. Rather than comply with the First and Second JDE Orders, in
September of 2013, Mr. Mona inundated Far West with approximately 33,000
pages of documents, which can only be characterized as a document dump. 2 Pet.
App. 351.

Unbeknownst to Far West at the time, Petitioners recently sold community
property shares of Medical Marijuana, Inc. for approximately $6,800,000.00. 1
Pet. App. 145-56. The sale of these shares occurred from March 2013 through
August 2013, just two months after the Court entered the First JDE Order and one
month prior to the deadline for Mr. Mona to complete production of the required

documents. Id. Sitting on $6,800,000.00 with Mr. Mona’s judgment debtor

2 Mr. Mona’s delay tactics went so far as refusing to appear at a duly noticed
hearing.

10594-01/1577805.doc
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examination looming, the Petitioners devised a plan to turn themselves from
millionaires to paupers in just a few weeks.

First, the Petitioners executed a Post-Marital Property Settlement Agreement
on September 13, 2013, just 12 days prior to the September 25, 2013 deadline to
complete the production of documents. 1 Pet. App. 19-21, 145-56. The Post-
Marital Property Settlement Agreement purports to divide the $6,800,000.00
proceeds equally between the Petitioners as their separate property, with each
receiving approximately $3,400,000.00. 1 Pet. App. 145-56. Second, Mr. Mona
transferred his portion of the funds to his commercial entities in the form of loans
and other contributions.’

In sum, Mr. Mona disposed of approximately $6,800,000.00 within two
months of the scheduled judgment debtor examination. This sequence of events
demonstrates that Mr Mona intentionally delayed the judgment debtor
examination for months in order to unlawfully dissipate his assets without
interference or oversight.

At his November 25, 2013 judgment debtor examination, when asked what
he did with the $6,800,000.00 in stock sale proceeds, Mr. Mona perjured himself,
refusing to disclose the $3,400,000.00 transfer to his wife. 1 FW App. 105.

Instead, Mr. Mona testified that he paid some “personal bills” and loaned the rest

} These transfers to Roen Ventures, LLC were the subject of a fraudulent transfer
action, Case No. A-14-695786-B, which the parties recently settled.

-9.
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to Roen Ventures, LLC, a company for which he was 50% owner. 1d. Notably,
Mr. Mona also failed to produce the Post-Marital Property Settlement Agreement,
despite the First and Second JDE Orders requiring him to produce all of his
financial records and contracts to which he was a party. 2 Pet. App. 350-51.

C. Recent Judgment Debtor Examination Proceedings

On May 13, 2015, the District Court entered orders scheduling the judgment
debtor examinations of Mr. and Mrs. Mona (“Third JDE Order” and “Fourth JDE
Order,” respectively). 1 FW App. 161-78. Mrs. Mona was a trustee of the Mona
Family Trust, one of the judgment debtors, and the District Court ordered her to
appear in that capacity. 1 FW App. 170-78. The Third and Fourth JDE Orders set
forth a list of documents that Mr. and Mrs. Mona were required to produce,
including all bank records and documents evidencing any of their assets. 1 FW
App. 161-78.

Among the documents produced by the Petitioners in conjunction with the
Third and Fourth JDE Orders was the Post-Marital Property Settlement Agreement
that Mr. Mona failed to produce almost two years earlier. 1 Pet. App. 145-56. Mr.
Mona conceded at his June 30, 2015 judgment debtor examination that he
“definitely” should have produced the Post-Marital Property Settlement Agreement
back in 2013 and “definitely” should have testified about the transfer of

$3,4000,000.00 to his wife at his 2013 judgment debtor examination. 3 FW App.

-10 -
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208-10. Moreover, the Petitioners still continued to withhold bank records in the
name of Mrs. Mona, despite the fact that the accounts contained community
property. 2 Pet. App. 353.

Mrs. Mona begrudgingly testified at her examination that she has three
different bank accounts in her name, which hold approximately $190,000.00 in
earnings from design projects performed by Mrs. Mona during the marriage, and
approximately $300,000.00 — the only money remaining from the $6,800,000.00
purportedly split between Mr. and Mrs. Mona. 2 FW App.207-208, 218-219. To
date, the Petitioners still failed to produce any records related to these accounts,
despite the fact that they contain community property subject to execution to
satisfy Far West’s Judgment.

After the judgment debtor examination and upon Far West’s application, the
District Court entered an order to show cause why the accounts of Mrs. Mona
should not be subject to execution and why the Petitioners should not be
sanctioned. 1 Pet. App. 127-193 (the “Order to Show Cause”). The Order to Show
Cause set a briefing schedule and a hearing date. 1 Pet. App. 194-96. After
considering the parties’ briefs and lengthy oral argument, the District Court
sanctioned Petitioners based upon the their repeated failure to produce the required
documents pursuant to District Court orders and the fact that Mr. Mona lied at his

judgment debtor examination. 2 Pet. App. 348-58. Emphasizing the severity of

-11 -
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Petitioners’ misconduct, the District Court found that said conduct resulted in the
dissipation of millions of dollars in assets that otherwise should have gone towards
satisfaction of the Judgment. 2 Pet. App. 356.

As part of the sanctions, after a thorough analysis of the undisputed facts
before it, the District Court found the Post-Martial Property Settlement Agreement
was a fraudulent transfer and the facts establishing the fraudulent transfer were
deemed established, pursuant to NRCP 37(b)(2)(A).* 2 Pet. App. 357. The
District Court also determined that the previously undisclosed bank accounts in
Mrs. Mona’s name contained community property, subject to execution by Far
West pursuant to Randono, 86 Nev. at 131, 466 P.2d at 223.° 2 Pet. App. 356-57.
Considering that Petitioners’ misconduct resulted in the dissipation of millions of
dollars that should have otherwise gone towards satisfying the Judgment, the
District Court also prohibited Petitioners from claiming that the comparably small
amount money remaining in the previously undisclosed bank accounts is exempt
from execution, pursuant to NRCP 37(b)(2)(B). 2 Pet. App. 356-57. Finally, the

District Court awarded Far West its fees and costs incurred as a result of the

*In order to reduce this finding to a judgment against Mrs. Mona, and to address
other fraudulent transfers discovered during the recent judgment debtor
examinations, Far West filed a new complaint against Petitioners and others. 4 FW
App. 980-97.

> Notably, Petitioners do not dispute that the Bank of George checking account
contains community property.

-12 -
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violations of the District Court’s orders and, to preserve the status quo, ordered that
Petitioners may not dispose of any non-exempt assets until the money in the
undisclosed bank accounts is applied towards the Judgment. 2 Pet. App. 357.

While these sanctions are serious, they are justified by the serious
misconduct by Petitioners, which resulted in the dissipation of millions of dollars
that should have otherwise gone towards satisfying the Judgment. When
Petitioners decided to lie under oath and violate the District Court’s orders, they
put themselves at risk of these sanctions. Therefore, the Court should affirm the
Sanction Order.

Iv.

STATEMENT OF THE STANDARD OF REVIEW

This Court, “in reviewing sanctions, [does] not consider whether [it], as an
original matter, would have imposed the sanctions . . . [T]he standard of review is

whether the District Court abused its discretion in doing so.” Bahena v. Goodyear

Tire & Rubber Co., 126 Nev. Adv. Op. 26, 235 P.3d 592, 596 (2010).

Additionally, this Court does not impose a “heightened standard of review,” where
the sanction does not result in dismissal of a case or the striking of a pleading. See
id. In the underlying Bahena case, this Court determined that were the District

Court to strike all of the parties’ affirmative defenses, or even were the District

-13-
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Court to strike the parties’ answer on the issue of liability, those would not be case
concluding sanctions and do not require a heightened standard of review. 1d. In
this case, the sanctions are monetary. No pleadings have been stricken. As a
result, an abuse of discretion remains the standard of review.

Additionally, “in the appellate context, [the Supreme] Court will not disturb
a district court’s findings of fact unless they are clearly erroneous and not based on

substantial evidence.” Int’l Fid. Ins. Co. ex. rel. Blackjack Bonding v. State, 122

Nev. 39,42, 126 P.3d 1133, 1134-35 (2006). Therefore, the Court should apply its
abuse of discretion standard to analyzing the District Court’s decision regarding
the sanctions against Appellants, and should further not disturb the District Court’s

findings of fact.

V.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The District Court had jurisdiction to sanction Mrs. Mona where she had
been served with the Order requiring her to appear for a judgment debtor
examination. While this in and of itself is sufficient to confer jurisdiction to
sanction Mrs. Mona for failure to comply with that same Order with which she was
served, the Court further had jurisdiction to sanction Mrs. Mona after she appeared

at the judgment debtor exam without raising any objection as to her personal
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jurisdiction. Jurisdiction to sanction Mrs. Mona was further conferred when she
and her counsel participated in a hearing before the District Court and again failed
to raise the issue of personal jurisdiction.

Petitioners’ accusation that Far West added Mrs. Mona as a party to the
Judgment is simply inaccurate. The Judgment has always been against Mr. Mona
and the Mona Family Trust. The issue before the District Court was not whether to
add Mrs. Mona as a party to the Judgment so that Far West could collect against
her separate property, but instead the issue was whether Far West could collect its
Judgment against the community property of Mr. Mona, held in bank accounts in
Mrs. Mona’s name.

This Court should disregard the Petitioners’ efforts to make the Court
overrule its long standing decision in the Randono case, that expressly holds,
consistent with several states, that all community property was subject to a
Jjudgment against a tortfeasor’s spouse, regardless of whether the other spouse was
a party to the underlying litigation. 86 Nev. at, 131, 466 P.2d at 223. As a result,
no additional proceeding against Mrs. Mona is required.

Public policy is served by allowing Far West to collect its Judgment against
Mrs. Mona without instituting an additional action. To require a creditor to name a
debtor’s spouse whenever it seeks to collect against community property would

simply encourage the same type of fraudulent conduct which occurred in this case
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where one spouse can transfer assets to another spouse in an effort to force the
creditor to undertake further legal action. Requiring a separate action to be
instituted whenever community property is implicated would greatly increase the
costs to all parties in litigation as well as infiltrate the courts’ dockets with
duplicative and unnecessary litigation.

Petitioners’ due process rights were satisfied in that they had notice and an
opportunity to be heard. Not only were Petitioners served with an Order to Show
Cause which set forth the briefing schedule and a hearing, but Far West
specifically offered to continue the briefing schedule and hearing date to afford
Petitioners additional time and the Petitioners declined. At the hearing on the
Order to Show Cause, both Petitioners appeared and were represented by counsel.
The District Court further offered to continue the hearing to give Petitioners
additional time but again, the Petitioners refused. The hearing included lengthy
oral argument from all parties. Petitioners were clearly given notice and
substantial opportunity to be heard and as a result their due process rights were
satisfied.

The District Court properly applied Nevada law for the proceeding
supplement to the execution of the Judgment. This Sanction Order was made
pursuant to NRCP 37 and the inherent powers of the Court. NRS 21.280 and

21.330 are only implicated to prevent the Petitioners from disposing of their assets.
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Despite the Petitioners contentions to the contrary, there were no meet and
confer requirements since NRCP 37(a)(2)(A) was inapplicable to the sanctions at
issue in this case. The Motion for Sanctions was made pursuant to NRCP 37(b)
and did not implicate the meet and confer requirement or NRCP 37(a)(2)(A) in that
it was not addressing the failure to disclose required under NRCP 16.1(a) or
16.2(a) and likewise since it was not a discovery motion, EDCR 2.34 did not
apply.

The District Court was not required to hold an evidentiary hearing where
there was no material factual question, and the sanctions do not involve dismissal
with prejudice. The District Court likewise considered and made explicit findings
of the relevant factors in issuing its Order regarding the sanctions. While the Order
did not expressly cite to the Young case, the factors in the underlying decision
were addressed within the Order. A review of these undisputed facts demonstrate
that the District Court did not abuse its discretion in determining that the Post-
Martial Settlement Agreement was a fraudulent transfer.

For these reasons, it is respectfully submitted that this Court should affirm

the District Court’s Sanction Order.
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VI.

ARGUMENT

A. The District Court Had Jurisdiction Over Mrs. Mona

Petitioners take the bizarre position that the District Court had the power to
order Mrs. Mona to produce records and appear at a judgment debtor examination,
but that the District Court was powerless to sanction Mrs. Mona for violating that
same order. This argument defies logic. If the District Court can order Mrs. Mona
to appear for a judgment debtor examination, which she did without objection, the
District Court must also have the authority to sanction Mrs. Mona for violating that
order.

The District Court acquired jurisdiction over Mrs. Mona when Far West
duly served the order requiring her to appear for the judgment debtor examination.
I Pet. App. 75-77. Tt is undisputed that the Mona Family Trust is a judgment
debtor and that Mrs. Mona was a trustee of the Mona Family Trust. 1 Pet. App.
173-93; 2 FW App. 237 (59:2-6). The order requiring Mrs. Mona to appear for the
judgment debtor examination identified Mrs. Mona as the trustee of the Mona
Family Trust. 1 FW App. 170-78.

Consistent with the Petitioners’ conduct throughout this action, Mrs. Mona
attempted to avoid service of the Fourth JDE Order. Pursuant to NRS
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14.090(1)(b), which provides alternative methods of service for “any legal
process,” Far West requested to serve Mrs. Mona by certified or registered mail
because Petitioners’ residence was gated and entry through the locked gate was not
reasonably available. 1 Pet. App. 62-69. On May 26, 2015, the District Court
entered an order permitting service upon Mrs. Mona by certified or registered mail.
1 Pet. App. 70-74. That same day, Far West served the Fourth JDE Order upon
Mrs. Mona via certified and registered mail. 1 Pet. App. 75-77.°

Without citing to any authority to support their position, it appears
Petitioners are asking this Court to invalidate NRS 14.090 and declare that service
by mail pursuant to NRS 14.090 is a violation of due process. Although this Court
has not addressed in a written opinion whether service by mail comports with due
process requirements, both the U.S. Supreme Court and the Ninth Circuit have
found that service by mail does comply with due process requirements. Int’l Shoe

Co. v. State of Wash., 326 U.S. 310, 320, 66 S. Ct. 154, 160 (1945) (holding that

mailing of the notice of suit by registered mail was reasonably calculated to apprise

% To the extent Mrs. Mona argues that she avoided service of the Fourth JDO Order
by not picking up her mail, that argument is frivolous and her attempt to avoid
service is ineffective. See Broad. Music, Inc. v. Blueberry Hill Family Rests., Inc.,
899 F. Supp. 474, 476 (D. Nev. 1995) (in case where defendant refused certified
mailing, “This court will not accept Blueberry Hill's implicit, but unsupported,
argument that nine letters went undelivered. The argument approaches the
frivolous given that Blueberry Hill recognized and refused to accept mail from
BMI that required a return receipt. Simply stated, Blueberry Hill cannot claim
innocence after actively, though ineffectively, attempting to ignore BML.”).
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the party of the suit); Travelers Health Ass’n v. Com. of Va. ex rel. State Corp.

Comm’n, 339 U.S. 643, 650-51, 70 S. Ct. 927, 931 (1950) (confirming that service
by mail complies with due process requirements because it provides adequate and

reasonable notice as held in Int’l Shoe); Rio Properties, Inc. v. Rio Int'l Interlink,

284 F.3d 1007, 1016-17 (9th Cir. 2002) (holding that service by mail and email
complied with due process requirements, stating: “Without hesitation, we conclude
that each alternative method of service of process ordered by the district court was
constitutionally acceptable.”). Therefore, service by registered and certified mail,
in compliance with NRS 14.090(1)(b) and pursuant to order of the District Court,
complies with due process requirements and confers jurisdiction over Mrs. Mona.’
When Mrs. Mona was served via certified and registered mail with the
Fourth JDE Order on May 26, 2015, Mrs. Mona was a trustee of judgment debtor
Mona Family Trust, which was necessarily a party to the collection proceeding
before the District Court. Therefore, Petitioners’ attempt to equate the judgment
debtor examination order to a third-party subpoena is not supported by the facts or

any case law, and this Court should completely disregard it. See Edwards v.

Emperor’s Garden Rest., 122 Nev. 317, 330 n. 38, 130 P.3d 1280, 1288 n. 38

(2006) (“Edwards neglected his responsibility to cogently argue, and present

7 Notably, NRS 21.270, which authorizes judgment debtor examinations, simply
requires that the order be “regularly served” and does not provide for a specific
type of service, nor does it suggest that service methods pursuant to NRS 14.090
would be invalid.
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relevant authority, in support of his appellate concerns. Thus, we need not
consider these claims.”) (citations omitted).

At her judgment debtor examination, Mrs. Mona testified that she ceased to
be a trustee of the Mona Family Trust the week of June 15, 2015, but refused to
testify why she resigned. 2 FW App. 237-238.® Mrs. Mona’s later resignation as
trustee is irrelevant to the question of personal jurisdiction, as the District Court
obtained personal jurisdiction over Mrs. Mona upon service of the Fourth JDE
Order on May 26, 2015. 1 Pet. App. 75-77.

To the extent there was any question about the Court’s jurisdiction over Mrs.
Mona, Mrs. Mona appeared pursuant to the Fourth JDE Order on June 26, 2015,
without raising any objection as to personal jurisdiction. 2 FW App. 179-365.
Moreover, Mrs. Mona and her counsel participated in a telephonic hearing with the
District Court to address the scope of Mrs. Mona’s examination. 2 FW App. 183-
198. At no time prior to or during the telephonic hearing or judgment debtor
examination did Mrs. Mona object on the basis of personal jurisdiction. 2 FW

App. 19-365. Therefore, any objection on the basis of personal jurisdiction (were

it even to have a basis) has been waived. Hansen v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court ex

rel. Cnty. of Clark, 116 Nev. 650, 656, 6 P.3d 982, 986 (2000) (objection to

personal jurisdiction is waived if not timely raised in motion or responsive

8 Mrs. Mona did not take any action to quash the subpoena or inform Far West or
the Court she was no longer the trustee prior to the exam.
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pleading). Counsel for Petitioners subsequently argued at a July 9, 2015 hearing
that Mrs. Mona was not a party. 2 Pet. App. 345. Even if that subsequent
argument could liberally be construed as a personal jurisdiction objection, Mrs.
Mona had already waived any personal jurisdiction objection by appearing at the
judgment debtor examination and participating in a telephonic hearing on June 26,
2015 without raising any personal jurisdiction objection. Hansen, 116 Nev. at 656,
6 P.3d at 986.

Petitioners argue that although the District Court had jurisdiction over Mrs.
Mona in her representative capacity as trustee of the Mona Family Trust, it did not
have jurisdiction over Mrs. Mona individually. To support this argument,

Petitioners cite to the single case of Salman v Newell, 110 Nev. 1333, 1335, 885

P.2d 607, 608 (1994). However Salman had nothing to do with personal
Jurisdiction. Id. Rather, in Salman, the Court simply confirmed that a non-
attorney cannot represent a corporation or trust, even if the non-attorney claimed to
be a trustee. Id. Therefore, Salman does not support Petitioners’ argument and
this Court should completely disregard it. See Edwards, 122 Nev. at 330 n. 38,
130 P.3d at 1288 n. 38.

In any event, NRCP 37(b)(2) expressly permits sanctions against a
“managing agent of a party,” which would necessarily include Mrs. Mona as

trustee of the Mona Family Trust. Moreover, the District Court has the broad and
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inherent power to sanction anybody that appears before it. See Emerson v. Eighth

Judicial Dist. Court of the State, ex. rel. Cnty. of Clark, 127 Nev. Adv. Op. 61, 263

P.3d 224, 229 (2011). As Mrs. Mona appeared before the District Court, the
District Court had authority to issue sanctions against her.

The District Court ordered Mrs. Mona to appear for a judgment debtor
examination and produce related documents. Far West properly served Mrs. Mona
with that order via registered and certified mail in compliance with NRS
14.090(1)(b). Recognizing the District Court’s jurisdiction over her, she appeared
at the judgment debtor examination and participated in a telephonic hearing
without raising any personal jurisdiction argument. The District Court
subsequently determined that Mrs. Mona failed to comply with the District Court’s
order, warranting sanctions under NRCP 37 and the District Court’s broad and
inherent powers. For these reasons, the District Court had personal jurisdiction
over Mrs. Mona and the authority to sanction her, such that the Court should affirm
the Sanction Order.

B. The District Court Did Not “Add New Parties” to the Judgment and No
Separate Action is Necessary to Issue Sanctions

Petitioners falsely accuse Far West of adding Mrs. Mona as a party to the
Judgment. The Judgment has always been against Mr. Mona and the Mona Family
Trust and Far West has never asked to add Mrs. Mona to the Judgment nor has it

attempted in the District Court proceeding to collect against Mrs. Mona’s separate
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property. Petitioners are improperly attempting to conflate the addition of parties
to a judgment, which is not allowed under Nevada law, with the ability of a
judgment creditor to execute upon community property, which is allowed under
Nevada law.

It is well-established Nevada law that a judgment creditor can execute
against community property in its entirety regardless of whether the judgment is
only against one spouse for tortious conduct. In Randono, the Nevada Supreme
Court held that all community property was subject to a judgment against a
tortfeasor husband, regardless of whether the non-tortfeasor wife was not party to
the underlying litigation. 86 Nev. at 131, 466 P.2d at 223. In Randono, a case
with facts analogous to the current matter, the judgment creditors obtained a
judgment against the husband based on the husband’s fraudulent inducement and
fraudulent misrepresentations and the lower court made the husband’s community
property and wife liable for the judgment against the husband.” Id. at 129-30.
This Court stated, “If community property can be given away by the husband and

is subject to his debts upon his death (NRS 123.260), we see no reason why it is

? The Nevada Supreme Court has since clarified that a spouse cannot be held
personally liable for the wrongdoing of a spouse simply by virtue of being married.
Jewett v. Patt, 95 Nev. 246, 247-48, 591 P.2d 1151, 1152 (1979). However, in that
decision, the Court cited to Randono and indicated whether community property is
subject to the judgment against the wrongdoing spouse is a separate consideration.
Id. In this case Far West is not suggesting Mrs. Mona is personally liable, only
that Far West should be able to execute its judgment against community property.
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not subject to his debts, whether arising out of tort or contract, during his lifetime.”
Id. at 132 (internal citations omitted)."’

The Nevada Supreme Court and other courts have repeatedly recognized the
principle that a judgment against one spouse can be enforced against all
community property, including the non-judgment debtor spouse’s portion. See

Cirac v. Lander Cnty., 95 Nev. 723, 731, 602 P.2d 1012, 1017 (1979) (“this court

has recognized the fact that community property of spouses may be subject to
liability of judgments whether or not the wife was a party to the suit.”); Nelson v.

United States, 53 F.3d 339, 339, 1995 WL 257884, *1 (9th Cir. 1995)

(unpublished) (“It does not matter which spouse incurred the debt. It is a
community debt and can be collected from the whole of the community, not just

the actor’s one-half.”); F.T.C. v. Neiswonger, 580 F.3d 769, 776 (8th Cir. 2009)

(affirming court order for turnover of Nevada real property despite contemnor’s

wife claim that she had marital interest in the property) (citing Jones v. Swanson,

' Consistent with the Court’s holding in Randono, NRS 123.050 provides that the
spouse’s share of the community property is not liable for the debts of the other
spouse contracted before the marriage, which necessarily implies that community
property is liable for debts incurred during the marriage. Likewise, NRS
123.225(1) provides that “the respective interests of the husband and wife in
community property during continuance of the marriage relation are present,
existing and equal interests,” such that there is no reason to exempt community
property from the execution upon a judgment entered during the marriage.
Petitioners’ argument that Randondo is somehow not supported by Nevada statutes
is not adequately explained or supported, such that this Court should completely
disregard it. See Edwards, 122 Nev. at 330 n.38, 130 P.3d at 1288 n.38.
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341 F.3d 723, 738 n. 6 (8th Cir. 2003), Randono, 86 Nev. at 123, 466 P.2d at 224,
and Cirac, 95 Nev. at 723, 602 P.2d at 1017 (1979)).

In its analysis of Nevada’s community property law with respect to
judgment collection, the federal district court for the District of Nevada explained:

[A] spouse is not personally liable for his or her spouse’s intentional
torts committed during marriage merely by virtue of being married.
Jewett v. Patt, 591 P.2d 1151, 1152 (Nev. 1979). Consequently, the
non-tortfeasor spouse’s separate property is not subject to a judgment
against the tortfeasor spouse. See id. However, a tort committed
during the marriage by one spouse is considered a community
debt, and the entirety of the community property is subject to a
judgment against the tortfeasor spouse, even if the other spouse
was not a named party to the suit. Randono v. Turk, 466 P.2d 218,
223-24 (Nev. 1970); see also F.T.C. v. Neiswonger, 580 F.3d 769,
776 (8th Cir. 2009) (analyzing Nevada law).

Here, Kirk Henry was injured in September 2001, Plaintiffs filed suit
against Rick Rizzolo in October 2001, and the Rizzolos divorced in
June 2005. Because the conduct giving rise to Plaintiffs’ claim
against Rick Rizzolo occurred during the marriage, Plaintiffs'
claim against Rick Rizzolo is a community debt. Lisa Rizzolo's
separate property is not subject to the judgment, but the entire
community is subject to a judgment, even though Lisa Rizzolo
was not a named party to the lawsuit Plaintiffs filed against Rick
Rizzolo. Accordingly, Lisa Rizzolo's share of the community
property is “subject to process by a creditor holding a claim
against only one tenant” as set forth in NUFTA § 112.150(2)(c),
and therefore falls within the definition of an “asset” that can be
fraudulently transferred.

Henry v. Rizzolo, 2012 WL 1376967, *2-3 (D. Nev. April 19, 2012) (unpublished)

(emphasis added). Therefore, it is clear under Nevada law that a judgment arising

from conduct that occurred during the marriage is a community debt and that the
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judgment creditor is entitled to collect against the entirety of the community
property. As the Judgment arose from conduct during the Petitioners’ thirty two-
year marriage, it is a community debt and Far West may collect against the entirety
of the community property. 1 Pet. App. 173-93; 2 FW App. 212. In a case
factually similar to this one, the United States District Court of the Northern
District of California, specifically addressed whether the tax debts of one’s spouse

could be collected against community property. Seidel v. United States, No. C07-

3141 JF, 2007 WL 2070328, at *2 (N.D. Cal. July 16, 2007) (unpublished). In the
Seidel case, the government attempted to collect a tax debt against one spouse
against the wages of the other spouse without instituting an additional action. Id.
at *1. The non-debtor spouse filed a complaint seeking to enjoin the government
from levying against her assets to satisfy the tax debt owed by her husband. Id.
The Court in reviewing non-debtor spouse’s request for a temporary restraining
order found that:

Her arguments appeared to be based upon a misunderstanding of the
community property principles that apply to marriages between
residents of California and of the federal policy that directs the IRS to
look to state property regimes in making levies.

While Plaintiff may view the levies as being directed against her
personally, as a legal matter, the government is levying against
assets that clearly are treated as community property under
California law. Because the community is liable for either spouses’
separate tax liabilities during marriage, a spouses’ wages may be
levied in their entirety to satisfy the liability of the community
property caused by the other spouse.

-27 -
10594-01/1577805.doc

35

2360




Id. (Emphasis added). The Court in Seidel further determined that an evidentiary
hearing was unnecessary in making its determination. Id. at *1 n.3.

Petitions rely exclusively upon Callie v Bowling, 123 Nev. 181, 160 P.3d

878 (2007), to argue that the District Court was not allowed to add Mrs. Mona to
the Judgment. In Callie, the Court held that a judgment creditor may not file a
motion to amend a judgment based upon an alter ego claim. 123 Nev. at 185, 160
P.3d at 880. However, Callie is not applicable to this case because: (1) Far West
never sought to amend the Judgment; (2) Far West never asserted an alter ego
claim against Mrs. Mona; (3) the District Court never added Mrs. Mona to the
Judgment; (4) Callie does not address collection of a judgment against community
property; and (5) Callie does not address the issue of sanctions.

As soon as Petitioners decided to violate District Court orders and lie under
oath, they put themselves at risk of being sanctioned. There is no requirement
under Nevada law to file a separate action to obtain sanctions. The District Court
had ample authority to sanction Petitioners without the filing of a separate action.

C. Public Policy is Served by Allowing Far West to Collect Its Judgment
Against Mrs. Mona Without Instituting an Additional Action

There is a strong public policy in favor of allowing creditors to collect
against community property. As stated by the Arizona Court of Appeals in the

case of State ex. rel. Indus. Comm’n of Arizona v. Wright, 202 Ariz. 255, 256, 43
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P.3d 203, 204 Ct. App. 2002), there is “no public policy favoring the use of
community property laws to circumvent the legitimate collection of the debt by a
creditor.” The United States Bankruptcy Court has likewise found public policy is
not served by allowing a debtor to “hide,” behind their spouse. See In re LeSueur,
53 B.R. 414, 416 (Bankr. D. Ariz. 1985).

No public policy in this case is served by requiring the creditor to institute
an additional action to collect on a judgment he has already received against the
community property of the debtor subject to the judgment. In fact, requiring a
debtor to institute a separate action whenever it seeks to collect on community
property encourages the exact type of surreptitious conduct that has gone on in this
case where one spouse transfers assets to another spouse in an attempt to frustrate
the creditors’ efforts. Furthermore, a rule such as that which the Appellants are
proposing in this instance would require a creditor to virtually always institute an
additional action against the debtor’s spouse in any collection action against a
married individual because all income and property acquired during the course of

the marriage are presumed to be community property. Northwest Fin. v. Lawver,

109 Nev. 242, 245, 849 P.2d 324, 326 (1993). For example, wages generated
during the course of the marriage is considered community property. Id.
Consequently, to garnish a debtor’s wages, under Appellants’ suggested

application of the law, would require that the creditor bring the spouse into the
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garnishment proceeding, or any other effort to collect against the debtor in which
community property may be implicated. Such result would lead to significant
additional costs to all parties, numerous additional legal actions which would tie up
the courts’ dockets, and be duplicative. Public policy requires the Court to allow
collection of a judgment against the debtor’s community property without
instituting a duplicative and unnecessary subsequent action against the debtor’s
spouse.

D. Petitioners Had Notice and an Opportunity to be Heard

Petitioners argue that the Sanction Order violated Petitioners’ procedural due

process rights as articulated in Callie. Callie “recognized that procedural due

process ‘requires notice and an opportunity to be heard.”” 123 Nev. at, 183, 160

P.3d at 879 (quoting Maiola v. State, 120 Nev. 671, 675, 99 P.2d 227, 229 (2004)).

Petitioners cannot credibly deny that they had notice and an opportunity to be
heard prior to the issuance of the Sanction Order.

Far West served counsel for Petitioners with the Order to Show Cause, along
with the underlying application, on June 30, 2015 via hand delivery."" 2 Pet. App.
197-99. The Order to Show Cause set a briefing schedule and a hearing for July 8,

2015. 2 Pet. App. 194-96. Prior to the hearing, counsel for Far West offered to

" Terry Coffing, Esq., appeared as counsel for Mrs. Mona during the June 26, 2015
telephonic hearing and judgment debtor examination. 2 FW App. 183.
Accordingly, subsequent service upon Mrs. Mona through Attorney Coffing’s
office complies with NRCP 5(b)(1).
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continue the briefing schedule and hearing date, but Petitioners refused. 2 Pet.
App. 317. Counsel for Petitioners filed a response to the Order to Show Cause on
July 7, 2015 and a supplement to the response on July 8, 2015.% 2 Pet. App. 206-
52,292-97.

Attorney Coffing appeared at the July 9, 2015 hearing on behalf of both
Petitioners. 2 Pet. App. 303 (“Mr. Coffing: Terry Coffing on behalf of Mike
Mona, and for the purposes of this motion, on behalf of Rhonda Mona”). Even
divorce counsel for Mrs. Mona appeared at the hearing. Id. (“Andrew Kynaston
and Ed Kainen. We’re not appearing officially in this case, but we represent
Rhonda Mona in the divorce case that’s been filed in Family Court. And she asked
us to be present today for this hearing.”). The hearing lasted for over an hour. 2
Pet. App. 302-346. The District Court even offered to continue the hearing to give
the Petitioners additional time, but Petitioners refused. 2 Pet. App. 316-17.

The Petitioners had notice of the July 9, 2015 hearing, as evidenced by the
Receipt of Copy of the Order to Show Cause (2 Pet. App. 197-99), and the fact that
Petitioners were represented by counsel at the hearing. 2 Pet. App. 303. The
Petitioners also had an opportunity to be heard during the lengthy oral argument

allowed by the District Court. 2 Pet. App. 302-346. Only after providing

2 Despite the fact that Attorney Coffing’s office previously appeared on behalf of
Mrs. Mona, the response and supplement to the response purported to only have
been filed on behalf of Mr. Mona, despite raising arguments on behalf of both
Petitioners.
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Petitioners both notice and an opportunity to be heard (and even offering additional
time), the District Court entered the Sanction Order. Therefore, the Sanction Order
did not violate the Petitioners’ procedural due process rights and the Court should
affirm the Sanction Order.

E. The District Court Properly Applied Nevada Law for Proceedings
Supplementary to Execution

Petitioners misrepresent the Sanction Order when they say that the District
Court relied upon NRS 21.330 to sanction Petitioners. The District Court
sanctioned Petitioners under NRCP 37 and the District Court’s broad and inherent
powers. The only citation to NRS 21.330 in the Sanction Order relates to the
District Court ordering that Petitioners not dispose of or transfer their assets, which
was not a sanction, but rather an act expressly permitted by statute.

This Court has authority pursuant to NRS 21.280 and, to the extent

Mrs. Mona is considered a third party, pursuant to NRS 21.330, to

order Mr. and Mrs. Mona to not dispose and/or transfer their assets as
the Court has done in the past and does again in this Order.

2 Pet. App. 357.

NRS 21.330 expressly provides that “the court or judge may, by order,
forbid a transfer or other disposition of such interest or debt until an action can be
commenced and prosecuted to judgment.” Therefore, the District Court’s citation
to NRS 21.330 as the basis for ordering Petitioners not to dispose of their assets is

entirely appropriate. Moreover, there is nothing in NRS 21.330 that requires a
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separate action before the District Court can freeze the assets. Instead, NRS
21.330 provides for the freeze of assets before any action is filed.

As for the District Court’s additional order that “[t]he funds in Mrs. Mona’s
three (3) bank accounts shall be applied towards satisfaction of the Judgment
pursuant to NRS 21.320,” that order is provided for by statute. 2 Pet. App. 356.
NRS 21.320 provides that “[t]he judge or master may order any property of the
Judgment debtor not exempt from execution, in the hands of such debtor or any
other person, or due to the judgment debtor, to be applied toward the satisfaction of
the judgment.”” Petitioners fail to explain how the Sanction Order, which mirrors
the authority granted by NRS 21.320 to order that certain assets be applied to the
Judgment, is somehow inappropriate. Therefore, the District Court properly
applied Nevada law for proceedings supplementary to execution and the Court
should affirm the Sanction Order.

F. There Was No “Meet and Confer” Requirement

In an apparent attempt to minimize their misconduct, Petitioners suggest that
the sanctions were the result of a motion to compel discovery. That is untrue. At
the 2015 judgment debtor examinations, Far West discovered Petitioners’ lies and

concealment of critical records in violation of the orders for the judgment debtor

B NRCP 37(b)(2) allows the District Court to enter an “order refusing to allow the
disobedient party to support or oppose designated claims or defenses.” Therefore,
the District Court had the authority to prohibit the Petitioners from claiming the
money in the accounts was exempt from execution.
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examinations. Those lies and concealment of records prohibited Far West from
timely executing upon the $3,400,000.00 transferred to Mrs. Mona in 2012 and
cost Far West millions of dollars as only $490,000.00 of the $4,300,000.00 remains
available for execution. Accordingly, Far West asked the District Court to enter an
order to show cause why Petitioners should not be sanctioned and why Far West
should not be allowed to execute upon the community property hidden in Mrs.
Mona’s bank accounts. This cannot be reasonably characterized as a discovery
motion. The District Court entered the Order to Show Cause, set a briefing
schedule and set a hearing date giving Petitioners notice and an opportunity to
respond. 2 Pet. App. 194-96."

The meet and confer requirement of NRCP 37(a)(2)(A), upon which
Petitioners’ rely, only applies “[i]f a party fails to make a disclosure required by
Rule 16.1(a) or 16.2(a).” In this judgment enforcement action, neither NRCP
16.1(a) or 16.2(a) is applicable, such that the meet and confer requirement is
likewise not applicable. Petitioners’ failed to produce documents in violation of

court orders, not in violation of NRCP 16.1(a) or 16.2(a). Likewise, EDCR 2.34

' Petitioners also take issue with the issuance of the Order to Show Cause ex parte,
despite the fact that the District Court did not issue any sanctions until Petitioners
had notice and an opportunity to be heard at the scheduled hearing. Advance
notice of the request to temporarily freeze Petitioners’ non-exempt assets pursuant
to NRS 21.280 and 21.330 pending the hearing just nine (9) days later would have
allowed Petitioners to transfer away their few remaining assets, rendering the
request and the collection proceedings moot.

-34-
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14, WAIVER: LANDLORD'S failure 1o require compliarce with the conditions of this Agreement. or to
excrcise any right provided hercin, shail rot be deemed a waiver by LANDLORD of such condition or
fight. LANDLORD'S acceptance of rent with knowledge of any defaclt ander agreement by TENANT
shalt not be deemed a waives of such default, nor shall it limit LANDLORD'S righns with respect 1o that
ot any subscquent right 1 is further agreed between the parties that the payimen: of ent at any ime shall
not be & waiver @ any UNLAWFUL DETAINER action unless LANDLORD in writing specificaily
acknowledges that fhis constinges a waiver to the UNLAWTUL DETAINER action.

15, VALIDITY/SEVERABILITY: I any provision of s agreement is heid to be nvalid, such
invalidity shall rot aflect the validity or enforzezbility of any other provision of this Agreement.

16. ATTORNEY FEES: la the event action is bronght hy any party 10 enforce any teims of this
agrecment o1 10 recover posscssion of the premisss, the provailing pary shall recover from the other pasay
rensonable atomey fees. Mis acknowledged, between the parties, that juny irials significantly increase the
costs of ary Hitigation between the parties. {tis also acknowledged that jury trials require a fonger length
of time to acjudicate the comtroversy. On this basis, all panies waive their rights fo have any maner
settied by jury tral.

17, NOTICES Al actices 1o the enant shall be deemed served upon matiing by fist class mail,
addressed 1o the wenant, al the subiect premises or upon personal delivery 10 the pramises whcther or not
TENANT is sctually present at the cime of said delivery. All notices o LANDLORD shall be served by
meiiing first class mail ar by personal delivery to such address as LANDLORD may designate in writing
1o TENANT.

18. PERSONAL PROPERTY OF TENANT Once TENANT vacates the premises, all personal property
left on the premises shall be stored by the LANDLORD for 18 days. {fwithin that time period, TENANT
does not claim said property, LANDLORD may dispose of said items in eny manner LANDLORD

chooses.

19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: [hc foregoing Agreement constitutes the ¢ntire agreement between the
partics and supersedes any oral or Written representations of agréements that may have been made by
cither party. Farther, TENANT represents that TENANT has relied solely on TENANT'S judgment :n
entering nto this agreement. TENANT acknowledges having been adviset 1o consull with independent
legal counse before éntering into this Agreement and has decided 10 waive such representation and
advice. TENANT acknowledges that TENANT has read and understood this agrerment and has hesn
furmished 8 duplicate eriginal.

EXECUTED on the date set forth hereafier,

Daic: EO{ [3e% (‘ZOM Daze: J‘Q&\B_\_\_L__
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Filed for Record at Request of:

Desholm Limited, LLC
6725 Via Austi Parkway, Suite 380
Las Vegas, NV 89119

DEED OF TRUST

THIS DEED OF TRUST made this 'h{hﬂ day of December, 2011, between Dunholm Limited, LLC, a
Nevada limited liability company (hereafier referred to as the "GRANTOR®), and First American Title,
(hereafter the “TRUSTEE”), whose address is 323 W Count St, San Bemardine, CA 92401, and Scarler
Properties, LLC lronwood Series, a Nevada Series tmited liability company (hereafter referred 10 as the
"BENEFICIARY™).

WITNESSETH: Grantor hercby bargains, sells and conveys to Trustee in Trust, with power of sale, the
following described real property situated in the County of San Bernardine, Stute of California, boundued
and described as follows (hereafler the “Real Property™):

PARCEL ONE (1)

LOT 68, TRACT NO. 12166, IN THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE (814
CALIFORNIA, AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 168 OF MAPS, PAGE 88, RECORDS
OF SAID COUNTY.

Parcel Number: 0308-121-33

TOGETHER with alf sight, title and interest of Grantor in ail buildings and improvements now located or
hereafter 1o be constructed thereon (cotlectively “Improvements™);

TOGETHER with ail right, title and interest of Grantor in the appurtenances, hereditaments, privileges,
reversions, remainders, profits, casements, franchises and tenements thereof, including all timber, natural
resources, minerals, oil, gas and other hydrocarbon substances thereon or therein, water rights, air rights,
and any land lying in the streets, roads or avenues, open or proposed, in front of or adjoining the Real
Property and Improvements;

TOGETHER with all of Grantor's right, title and interest to ail proceeds (including claims or demands
thereto) from the conversion, volunlary or involuntary, of any of the Real Property and improvemenis into
cash or liguidated claims, including, without limitation proceeds of all present and future fire, hazard or
casualty insurance policies and all condemnation awards or payments in licu thereof made by any public
body or decree by any court of competent jurisdiction for raking or for degradation of the value in any
condemnation or eminent domain proceeding, and all causes of action and the proceeds thereof of all types
for any damage or injury to the Real Property and Improvements or any pant thereof, including, without
limitation, causes of action arising in tort or contract and causes of action for fraud or concealment of a
material fact, and alt proceeds from the sale of the Real Propenty and/or Improvements.

TOGETHER with alf right, title and interest of Granter in and to (i) all leases, rental agreements and other
contracts and agreements relating to use and possession (collectively “Leases™) of any of the Real Property
or hnprovements, and (i) the rents, issues, profits and proceeds therefrom together with all guarantees
thereof and all deposits (to the full extent pcrmitted by law) and other security therefore (collectively

Page 1 of 6 Initials:
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“Remts™). The Real Property, Improvements, Leases, Renis and all other right, title and interest of Grantor
deseribed above are hereafier cotlectively referred to as the “Property”.

i, Obligations Secured. Grantor makes this Deed of Trust for the purpose of securing:

a. payment of all indebtedness and other obligations evidenced by a promissory note in the
amount of Sixty-Five Thousand ($65,000) dated December 16, 2011, made by Grantor as principal and/or
guarantor and Beneficiary as party thereto.

b. ayment and performance of all obligations of Granter under this Dred of Trust,
including payment of all sums expended of advanced by Beneficiary (or any one of them) hereunder and
under the above-mentioned promissory nete, together with interest thereon, in the preservation,
enforcement and realization of the rights of Heneliciary hercunder or under any of the other obligations
sccured hereby including, but not limited to, attomey’s fees, court costs, other litigation expenses, and

foreclosure expenscs.

c Payment and performance of all future advances and other obligations that the then
record awner of all or part of the Property may sgrec (o pay of perform (whether as principal, surcty or
guarantor) for the benefit of Beneficiary, when such obligation is evidenced by a writing which states that it
is secured by this Deed of Trust.

d. All modifications, extensions and renewals (if any) of one or more of the obligations
secured hereby, including without limitation (1) modifications of the required principal payment dates or
interest payment dates, deferring of accelerating payment daies wholly or partly, and (i) modifications,
extensions or renewals at a different rate of interest, whether of not, in the case of a note or other contract,
the modification, extension or rencwal is cvidenced by a new or additional promissory note or other

contract.

The obligations securcd by this Deed of Trust arc herein collectively catled the “Secured Obligations”. All
persons who may have or acquire an intesest in the Property shall be deemed to have notice of, and shall be
bound by, the terms of the Agreement, this Deed of Trust, and any other instruments or documents made or
entered ito in connection hesewith (collectively “Documents™) and each of the Secured Obligations.

2 Leases and Rents.
a. Neither the assignment of the Leases and Rents set forth in this Deed of Trust nor any

provision of the Agreement shall impose upon Beneficiary any duty to produce Rents from the Property or
cause Beneficiary to be {a) a “montgagee in possession” for any purpose, (b) responsible for performing any
of the ebligations of the lessor under any Lease oF {¢) responsible or Hable for any wasic by any lessces of
any other parties, for any dangerous of defective condition of the Property, for any negligence in the
management, upkeep, repair or control of the Property or for any other act or omission by any other person.

b. Grantor covenants and agrees that Grantor shall not (i) amend, modify or change any
term, covenant or cendition of any Leasc in existence on the date of this Deed of Trust without the prior
written consent of Beneficiary or (i) enter into any Lease of the Property, or any interest therein, or any
portion there of, from and afler the date of this Decd of Trust without the prior written consent of
Beneficiary. Grantor agrees that commencing with an Event of Default, as hereinafier defined, cach tenant
of the Property, or any portion thereof, shall make such Rents payable to and pay such Rents to
Beneficiary, or Bencficiary's agem, upon Reneficiary's written demand to cach tenant therefor, without any
liability on the part of such tcnant to inquire further as to the existence of a Default by Grantor, provided,
however, in the event of Grantor's cure of any such Default as herein provided, Grantor shall again be
entitled to recover and collect such Rents as provided above prior (o the cvent of Default.
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[ Grantor shall (i} fulfill or perform each and ever condition and covenant of each Lease to

be fulfilicd or performed by the lessor thereunder, {ii) give prompt notice to Beneficiary of any notice of
default by the Jessor or the lessee thereunder reeeived by Grantor together with a complete copy of any
such notice, and (iii) enforee, short of termination thereof, the performance or observance of cach and every
covenant and condition thereof by the lesser thereunder to be performed or obseeved.

d. Graptor shall furnish to Bencficiary, within thirty (30) days sfter a request by
Beneficiary, a written statement containing the names of all lessees of the Property, the terms of their
respective Leases, the spaces occupied and the rentals payable and received thereunder and a copy of cach

Lcase.

3 Further Covensats of Grantor. To protect the security of this Deod of Trust, Grantor further
covenants and agrees:

a. To keep the property in good condition and repair; to permit no waste thereof, to
complete any building, structure or improvement being built or about to be built thercon; 1o restore
promptly any building, structure or improvement thereon which may be damaged or destroyed; and to
comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, covenants, conditions and restrictions affecting the property.

b To pay before delinquent alt fawful faxes and asscssments upon the property, 1o keep the
property free and clear of afl other charges, licns or encumbrances impairing the security of this Deed of
Trust except as otherwise expressly authorized in writing by the Beneficiary.

[ To keep all buildings now or hercafler erected on the property described herein
cominuously insured against loss by fire or other hazards in an amount niol less than the total debt secored
by this Deed of Trust. Al policies shall be beld by the Bencficiary, and be in such companies as the
Beneficiary may approve and have loss payable first the Beneficiary and thea to the Grantor. The amount
collected under any insurance policy may be applied upon any indebledness hereby secured in such order
as the Beneficiary shall determine. Such application by the Bencficiary shall not cause discontinuance of
any proceedings to foreclose this Deed of Trust. In the event of foreclosure, all rights of the Grantor in
insurance policies then in force shall pass to the purchascr at the foreclosure sale.

d. To defend any action or proceeding purporting to affect the security hercof or the rights
or powers of the Benchciary or Trustec, and to pay all costs and expenses, including cost of title scarch and
attorney's fees in a reasonable amount, in any such action or proceeding, and in.any suit brought by the
Beneficiary 1o foreclose the Deed of Trust.

€. To pay sl costs, fees and cxpenses in connection with this Deed of Frust, including the
expenses of the Trustce incwrred in enforcing the obligation secured hereby and Trustee’s and attomey's
fees actually incusred, as provided by statute.

f Should Grantor fail 1o pay when due any taxes, assessments, insurance premiums, liens,
encumbrances or other charges against the property hereinabove described, BeneSficiary may pay the same,
and the amount so paid, with interest at the rate set torth in the note secured bereby, shall be added 10 and

become a part of the debt secured in this Deed of Trust.

4. Additional Agreemenis of Parties. 1t is mutually agreed that:

a In the evenl any portion of the Property is taken or damaged in an cminent domain
proceeding, the entire amount of the award or such portion as may be nccessary to fully satisfy the
obligations secured hercby, shall be paid to Beneficiary to be applied to said obligation.

Initials: 63
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b. By accepting payment of any sum sccured bereby afler its due date, Beneficiary does not
waive their rights 10 require prompt payment when due of all other sums so secured or to declare default for
failure to so pay.

<. The Trustee shall reconvey all or any part of the Property covered by this Deed of Trust
to the person entitled thercto, un written request of the Grantor and the Beneficiary, or upon satisfaction of
the obligations sccurcd and written request for reconveyance made by the Beneficiary or the person entitled

thereto.

d. Upon default by Geanior in the payment of any indebicdness secured hereby or in the
perfusmance of any agrecment containesd herein, all sums secured hercby shall immediately become duc
and payable at the option of the Beneficiary. In such event and upen wrilten request of the Beneficiary,
Trustee shall sell the trust property, in accordance with the laws of the State of California, st public auction
1o the highest bidder. Any person except the Trustee may bid at the Trustee’s sale. Trustee shall apply the
proceeds of the sale as follows: (a) to the expense of the sale, including a reasonable Trustee's fee and
sttomey’s fee; (b) to the obligations secured by this Deed of Trust, (¢} the suplus, if any, shall be
distributed to the persons entitled thereto.

e ‘Frustee shall deliver (o the purchaser at tie sale its deed, without warianty, which shall
convey to the purchaser the interest in the property which Grantor has or had the power to convey at the
time of his execution of this Deed of Trust, and such as he may have acquired thereafler. Trustee's deed
shail recite the facts showing that the sale was conducted n compliance with all the requirements of faw and
of this Deed of Trust, which recital shall be prima facie evidence of such compliance and conclusive
evidence thercof in favor of bona fide purchaser and encumbrances for value.

f The power of sale conferred by this Deed of Trust and hy the laws of the State of
California is not an exclusive remedy; Beneficiary may cause this Deed of Trust to be foreclosed as a

morigage.

g 1o the event of the death, incapacity, disability or resignation of Trustee, Beneficiary may
appoint in writing a successor trustee, and upon the recording of such appointment in the mongage records
of the county in which this Deed of Trust is recorded, the successor trustee shall be vested with all powers
of the original trustee. The Trusice is not obligated to notify any panty hereto of pending sale under any
other Decd of Trust or of any action or proceeding in which Grantor, Trustee or Beneficiary shall be a party

unless such action or proceeding is brought by the Trustee.
h. This Deed of Trust applies to, inures to the benefit of, and is binding not only on the

parties hereto, but on their heirs, devisees, legatecs, administrators, executors and assigns.  The term
Beneficiary shall mean the holders and owners of the note secured herchy, whether or not named as &

Beneficiary herein.
“GRANTOR™

Dunhoim Limited, LLC
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STATE OF NEVADA ]
) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

On this _!é’m_ day of Detemnber, 2011, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of
Nevada, duly commissioned and swom, personally appeared Christopher Bentley, to me known to be the
mmanager of Dunholm Limited LLC, who acknowledged that he excouted the foregoing instrument on

behalf of said entity for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

above written.

Witness my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year f

Notary Public in and for the State of Nevada

BRIAN HOLLAND 1}
Hotary Public $tte of Mevods
No. 05-93791-1
My appt. axp. Aug. 20, 2014
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actual ngstion is ivitinted and specifically vatil such time sll posi-judgment collection scions heve conchaded,
Payor scknowledges and sgrees that Holder™s attomey's normal hourly rates shall be deemed reasonable.

s, Governing Law: This Note has been wade and delivercd in the State of Nevada, with refevence 1o the lawy
of the Stafe of Nevada, and the fegality, cnforceability and comstrcaion of this Note shall be govemned by the laws of
the State of Nevada and il legal proceedings arising herofrom shadl he brought in the courts of the State of Novads,
tocated in Clark County. The umlersigned consents o the jurisdiction of said courts Tor tis purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, these presents are executed as of the date writien iklow,

Payor: Holder:
) Mow =~

,,,,, b 4 N By: FLAD
Nome: | Mi A Name: Michact ). Moaa 1l

Date: u(w{i‘b’, ‘
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SHCHAEL J. MONA'W:
77 |SLAND AVE., UNIT 605
N DIEGO, CA 52101715+
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LOAN AGREEMENT

Payor Michael Mona, Jr. Holder Shannon Filarde

168% . Rmnbow Houlevard - Sunc B 9905 Pinnscic Pass Drive

Las Vigar, NV $%i46 tas Vegas NV 89117

tiste. November 20, 2013 Frintypal Amount. $ 1200.08

for velue received Michael Mons, Jo., mdividuatly and on hehalf of his marial Commisaity | SPCCCSSOns iE BANIgEns
“Psyor”) promises 1o pay 1o Shannan Filardo (“Holder™) o order. the prncips! sum of One Thoussas Two
Hundred Dolluex (£7.200.003. scovedance wah snd on the wems set forth below . This Note shall hear interest M
& rate of 3% per annum and chall be ropawt as ves forth bedow irs dvis Socion |

A, Mateoty Daic loscrest Paymosps. The Swie shail he repasd m full, mcluding principat sad accrved bus
unpsid intered o the demand of Holder at any tme wRer June 505, 7011 bt no baser than ehe st day of Uclobr,
2023 (the ~“Matnrity DT} unless catended an sddmonal serm by the mulual agreement of the Pamies.  Holders
demand for paywncns i fidl prior o the Manaity Thate shiall be given by written msie 1o Payur 8 feast sen () (1 doyy
prior (o the required payment date. Priov ta the Mansngy Date, Pavos shall make quanerly payments to Holder equal
Yo the avcnsed bl wnpad inierest on the substendmyg priscipal halance of the Note. Sard quancrly inscrest payment

shall be paid on of before the 1 day of the manihs of Janusry. Aprid. Jufy und October wih the mnial payment
Alt payiments of prncipal, micrest and sums paysble herrundee 1o be paid o

made on o hefore aprd b 2014
4 be dehisored o sech Sankong insietion as Halder may

fawful money of the United States of Amencs sod o

deagnaix [rem 1me 1 1k

H Paosol Pros e Maaty  The Note may e pavidd in 1wl prior so the Matunty Dase without penaley,

= Lagats of Default The following shalt comutule cvents of defauh thereaticr refierred o indivadualiy o
collectnety s an “Event of Defaslt”), the occwmeace of onc of more of which \hatt cnntke Holder, at s optiva,
athout NENCe of prescataiest of demand. to declare the entite mduMedaes evidenced hereby 45 immedinicly due

snd puyable regardiess of the Mwturay Date.
A Payos's failuns to ke ans pryment when due herrusder.

i The terminstion o breach ot o agreemwnl including agrocnients oiher than thin Note Agreement. 1
exintence of hereafier trrered 1o betw con Fayer and Holder wor ant affiiare 2¥ Hoiders. of the nullification of any
wch agrecment by legsl sreocess of athernise; o

U Ihe i imolency of Paror, ot (i) the commencement of any prodecdings under any band rupicy o

profvency vy relating G the relief of debloea of fun the apposument of & TEEAIvET OVET some of 8 subsianing
portion uf the 23wty of Pasor. the occunence of whsch causes Holder m good Fayth ta deem nself intecuns

Upon the occusrence 4nd dunng the contimuance of ¢ Defauh, the Holder may, by sriten sosice 1o Payor, sccelerte
the duc dmic of the principal smosns owiog under the Notes  Such aceriernted amounts shall hecome immedinely
due nd payable upan receipt of such notice by Payor. If the Holder accelerates he amounts due under the Notes,
the Holder shalt hase the tight o punsue any or all of the remedies provided in this Note. including, but act limvied

1. the right i bring sui on the Newes,

BN
pritest, nodice of proiest. nobice of dishunx of nen-payment of the Nate. The fathure of Holder 1o cxorersr s rghty

3 Waiver: Payur hoteby waives any and 3t presentment. noksce wl’ preseatinent, demand, norice of demand,
’
Irercunder upon the occurtenve of 20 Lvent of Delaukt shall nor e deemed s wasves of such right by Hoider %‘(

& Collection Conéy and fegy.  In the cvent ihe Nole i pisced wil an yuomey for collecrion. o7 a legal
procceding is commenced 1o enforce the provision heesof. Payor shall pey sl costs of sui and collecuon, Including
\

any and afl smorney ‘s fees and costy actually incumred Holder in any such legal sctwn, regardies of whether or not \\
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scussal Gviguieca o initined ¥nd spefically wand such sroac wfl pesi-udgment vollection Jctions have concluded
Pay ot acknow bedees ed agress Ut Holder s aome s Bormal hourly rates shabi he degrmed reasohable.

5, Goverming Law: This Nobe bas beon made snd delivered in the State of Nevads, with refevence to thhe Tans
of the Suae of Nevada, wid the iepality. enfosveabiliny and comstruction of thr Note shall be gorsemned by the laws of
the State of Mevada and all kepal proceedings ansing hereftom shail he brought 12 the pourts of the Sinte of MNovada,
tocased i Clark Counny  The umdensipned consemis 16 the jurisdicion of said courts for this purpose.

IN WTTNESS W HERLOF, s presenss are wuecuted 3 af the date written bebon,

Holder P

Pavor »
N o 1]

¥

B o~
Nagw: .\g’bid
Achall of B opd

Dase b
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LOAN AGREEMENT

Holder: Chnis Morzo
1730 Thomas Avenuc-Uni2
San Diego, CA 2117

Payor: Michsel Mons, Jr.

2688 5. Rainbow Boulevard - Suite B
Las Vegas, NV 89140

Date: November 26, 2013 Principal Amount: § 1,000.00

For value received Michact Mona, Jr.. individuaily and on behalf of his manitad community, SUCCessors or ussigns
("Payor™) promiscs 1o pay to Chris Morco (“Holder”), or order, the principal sum of Ove Thousand Dollars
($1.000.00), in accerdance with and an the teams set forth befow.  This Note shail hear interest ot 3.5/8t0 of 3% per
anoum and shaill be ropaid as set forth belaw in this Section L

A ¢ . Ipterest Pryrment.  The Nate shall be repaid in full, including prncipat and sccrued b
unpaid interest on the demand of Hulder at any time sfler June 30, 2013 but no later than the 315t day of October,
2023 (the “Maturity Date”) unless extended an additional wrm by the mutual agreement of the Parties. Holder's
demand for payment in full prior to the Maturity Date shall be given by wrinten notice Lo Payor at teast ten {10) days
prior t the requircd psyment date. Prios to the Maturity Dute, Payor shall make quaniecty payments Holder oqual
to the accrued but uvnpaid interest on the outstanding principal balance of the Nete. Said quarterly intcrest payment
shall be paid on or before te 1® day of the mombs of January, April, July and October with the initial paymend
made on or before April 1, 2014, All psyments of principal. intcrest and sums payable hercunder to be paid in
lawiul money of the United States of America wnd shall be delivered to such banking institution as Holder muay

designate from time Lo time.
B. Pavient Prior 1o Masurity. The Note may be paid in full prior to the Maturity Date without penalty.

La

collectively as an “Event of Defauk™), the occurrence of one or more of which shail ennitle Holder, at its option,
without notice or presentment or demand, to declare the entire indetedness evidenced hereby as immediately duc

and payable regardless of the Memrity Date:

2 Events of Defauly: The following shail constindte events of default (hereafter referred to individually or

A. Pavor's failure 10 make any payicol when due hercunder;

B. The termination or bresch of any agrecment, including agreements other than this Note Agreement, in
existence of hereafler entered into between Payor and Holder (or any affiliate of Holder), or the nullification of any

such apreement by legal process or otherwise; or

C. The (i) insolvency of Payor, or (i) the commencement of any procecdings under any bankruptey of
insolvency laws relating to the relief of debtors: or {iii) the appointment of a receiver over some of & substantial
portion of the assety of Payor, the accurrence of which causes Holder in good faith 1o deem itself insecure.

Upon the nccurrence and during the continuance of a Defauit, the Holder may, by wrilten notice to Payor, accelemte
the due date of the principal amount owing vnder the Notes. Quch scotlcrated armounts shall become immedistely
dus and payable upon receipr of such notice by Payor. 1 the Holder accelerates the amouats due under the Notes,
the Holder shall have the right to pursuc any of all of tio remedies provided in this Note, including, but pot Jimited
to, the right 1o bring suit on the Notes.

1 Wajver. Payos bereby waives any and all presentment, notice of presentment, demand, notice of demand,
provest, notice of protest, notice of dishonor or non-payment of the Mote, The failure of Holder to excreise its rights
bereunder upon the occurrence of an Event of Defaukt shall not be deemed a waiver of such right by Holder,

4. Collection Costs pnd Fees: In the event the Note is placed with an attormey for collection, or a legal

proceeding is commenced 1o enforoe the provision heceof, Payor shall pay all costs of suit and collection, including
any and alf attorney’s fees and costs actoally incurred Holder in any such legal action, regardiess of whether of not

i
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actual litigation is initisied and specifically untif such time all post-judpment collection actions have conclded,
Payor acknowledges and agrees that Hoelder’s atomey's normal hourly rates shall be deemed reasonable.

s. Governlng Law: This MNote bay been made and delivered in the Siste of Nevada, with referenee to the bws
of the State of Navadz, and the legslity, enforceability snd consiruction of this Note shail be governed by the lgws of
the State of Nevada and all legal procesdings arising herefrom shall be brought in ihe courts of the State of Nevada,
tocated in Clark County. The undersigned consents o the jerisdiction of suid courts for this purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, these pyzseuts are oxecuted as of the date wrigsen below,

Pawor: Yolder

heis Mesco

A - By
Mo, }r\hx‘iiwi Hy and on Name:

Behalf of hs marttal bomgpanity
\ Diater {{»/ZO/VS,W ’

e Ly <
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FOAN AGRELSMERT

Payor Michael Monas, Jr Helder: Soannyg Peak LLE

168% S Rammbow Bhvd-Swie H 11623 So Lusiem
bas Vegas, NV 89146 Hendetsm, NA 89042

Dase; Novembher 21, 2013 Prancipal Amcunt: $ 3.500.00

For value received Michset Mona, e individually snd on behadf of b maeital COnuNIY . SUCTE0NS OF 3ssigm
Pavor™) promipas wpay o SOARING PEAK LLU (“Hokier & vr wder. the (4 incipdl sum of Three Thousawd
Five Hondred Dullir 133,800.00), in sccondance with and o the tennm wct foseh bedow.  Vhis Mowe shall besr
interest 81 1 rate of 2o por annum and dhull be repaid as et forth hokiw urthis Seaon 1

A Matuginy Date: Indenos Pavai. e Mot hadl be repaid i Tul i uding principal and sooreed bu
anpaid taterest on the demand of Hotder at any e aiter June 30, 2013 b o lafer than the St day of Outuber.
3073 trhe “Maurnty Dute ) unbess extemted an sdditonal i by rhe mutaal agrevment of il Pates. THolder™s
demaud for pament i full prior 1o the Maturin fxe shall b given by written notice 1o Pasor 3t et ton (10} days
prior 10 the required sy ment dae. Poor 1o the Murrin Date. Pasor shall mahe quastarhy penmments o Holder cyest
i the acersed but sapaid iaterext on the outsianding prncipal batance of the \atc Suid guarter!y intcrest pay ment
shall be paid on o hefore the 17 duy of the nonths o faraiaey . Apeil. Juls and Dctober with the anitd payment
musde o0 of before Apnit £, 2014 A pesyments of principnt. tierest amd wms pasable hervamber to be pand in
fawiul mones of the Untod Siates of Anrerica and shall be Jelivered o soch banking fositution g Holder may

Jesagnaic Jrem nme e e,
B. Pavment Priog o Matwnny. The Now may be paid in Tull prios 1o the Mawrity Dase withow penalty.

b Leenty of Default the following shell connitute cventa of detaule thercafier refurred 1o mdisidualiy oy
cotlectivehy as an ~Event of Defacll). the vecurrence ol vae of more of which shalh entitle Holder, 31 sis opeion.
withoul natice of presentment of deriand. e declare the cabee indebiedacss vyidenced heredy s immediately due

and pay ahle regardless of the Maturity Dawe
A, Pavor's (oilure 1o make 863 Y Qe When due Biurvunden:

8 The termination or breach of any apreenwint, mcibding agrovnmwenis other than this Nefe Apreement. ut
avndenee of hereafler eniered im0 between Payor and Hulder sor s alfiliare of Holders, of the nutlification of any
such agrecment by lepal procea of otherise: of

L. The () insadvency of Payer. o g0} the conunencvaent of iy procevdings under any bankruptcy or

insofvency Lews relating o ihe retief of vobors, or 111} the appaininent o 3 feCener vier voaw o 3 substantial
portion oF the ussers of Payor. the otcurrance af which cawses Holder in yood faith @ deem itsel inscenrs

l;pm:! the oecurrence and during the continoande of 1 Defanlt the Holder may, by writtin notice W Payur, dccekerste
the due date of the principel amount owing under the Nows Such accekerated amsunts shall hecome wunmediptels
diwe and pavable upon reeeipt of sich notice by Pasor. 1 1he Holkder aceelerstes the amuoumic due upder the Notes,
e Holder hatl have the qight to pun any of all o the remedies prvaded ¢ thes Note, inchuding. but not limited
10, the right (o bring tisit on the Notes

3 Wmver. Paver hereby waives wiy and all prosentment, autice of presentmont. demand. notice of demanc.

proteal, potice of protest. notice of dishunoe of BoR-pa mwik of the Note The fathuce of Haolder 1o exerciwe us rights
hereunder upon the accwrmence of an Frent of Defaul sholf not be deened o waivet of such right iy Holder

5. Collestion Con» mod Degs: o the event the Nuote is placed with an Moy Jor colfection. or 1 keyal
priweding s comnwenced 10 enfarcy the pros sion hereof, Payor <hall pay all costs of s and cullevtion, including
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4, Catlprnpen § sy ot Fapss b e yvent the Mot w gl od wul an BReeryt by LOMeTIION, &Y B ;andt
mmn‘mm’ in cornmreTieed 10 entisee the pros isin herenl, Pavar anail pay slicoses of sos amd collectivn, nmtudmg
wirs and wfl mniwen s fees wnd iy scrsatly incorred Hobder moamy sl legel setion. (opaniloss of ahether ar not
acvual Brsgation i it and speeificali aotil such time off pocpudprant coblesten actons fave concluded

v woknn fedgos aed sgrees i Helder's atomer © s al hmuh rapes hatt b devmied ronsorable,

P

3, Doverping Law Thiz o s bevn made and detivesed in e ‘»m;- of Novade, sah refereoe b the Bovs
of the S of Nevssa, aml the lepabis, enforceablty vt consrton ¢ ke Mo vhiad Be povgrnest Dy the fais of
e State st Sevada sed ait Segal provecdings ansag butciron el be Fapsmehi B8 she camin o the Sis of Nevada,
et o £ Bk oty i uadersinial consente (o the i sdivtion of sasd contts for th purpeed.

Py WITNEFOY W HERFOE sheor prosents are veuiied s of S Jatg wiltieg Frdoss

Fayo Heddes
v
[N j*m e ;
T ¥, Jraters e -
Havw Mu.‘lwf ;-1 & . w%w( At avad o E

Prehatl of s z»;s 2\:!» TRy

e AR \\_J \ 4‘3% W

Drate
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; AUTO BOUTIQUE
10624 S EABTERN AVE STE A2
HENOERSON, NV ASORT

U260

1085
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.1 $3,500%
%Ollars 6B
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NEVADA
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LOAN AGREEMENT

Holder: Michael Mineuti
1755 J5. Hallandale Beach Blvd
Hallendale, F1. 33009

Payor; Michacl Mona, Jr.

2688 S. Rainbuw Boulevard - Suite B
Lass Vegas, NV 89146

Date: November 15, 2613 Principal Amount: S 1,560.060

For value received Michael Yona, Jr.. usdividuslly and on behslf of his marital ComERUNITY, SUCCESSOIS of ASIENS
(*Payor”) promises 10 pay o Michaet Minetti {Hobder™}, or ocder, the peincipal sum of Ope Thoussad Five
Handred Doltaes (5 1,.500.00}, in sccordance with and on the s s¢t forth below. Tois Kot shall bear interes st
3 rate of 3% per annun and shall be repaid as set forth below in this Scction 1

A. Matwrity Date; {nterest Pryment. the Note shal] be repaid in full, iscluding principal and accrued but
unpaid interest on the demand of Holder &t any time sfler June 30, 2013 bul no later than the 3ist day of October,
2023 (the “Matwrity D’} unless extended an additional tenn by the mutual agreement of the Paries. Helder's
demand for payment in foll prier 1o the Maturity Date shall be given by writien notice to Payor 8t least ten {10) days
prior to the required payment daie. Prior 10 the Maturity Date, Payor shall make quarterly payments 6 Holder squal
to the accrued but unpaid interest on the vutstanding principal balance of the Note. Said quarterly inncrest payrnent
shall be paid on or before the )4 duy of the months of January, April, July and October with she initisl payment
ande on or befure April 1, 2014, All paymoats of principal, interest and sums payable hercundar 0 be paid in
tawlul monev of the United Statcs of America and shail be delivered 1o such banking instinstion as Holder msy

designate from time to time.
B. Payment Priot wn Mawrity. The Note mav he paid in full prior w the Mantrity Date withou: penalty.

2. Lvents of Defaul: The following shall constiluic events of defanlt (hereaficr referred to individually or
coliectively as an “Event of Defauit”), the occurrence of one or more of which shall cuitke Holder, at us option,
withowt notics or preseniment or demand, to doclare the entice indcbiedness avidenced hereby 85 immedizicly dus
and payable regardless of the Maturity Date:

A. Payor's failure to make any pgyment when due hercunder;

B. The termipation of breach of any agreement, including agreements orber than this Note Agreement, in
existence or hereafier entered info betwoen Payor and Holder {or any affiliste of Holder), or the nullification of any

such agreement by legal process of otherwise; oF

C. The (i) insolvency of Payvr, or (i) the commencemens of any proveedings under any bankruptey or
insolvency laws relating to the relief of debiors; or (iii) the appoiniment of a reteiver over some or a subs(nting
portion of the asscts of Payor, the accurrence of which causes Holder in good faith io deem ltself insecure.

Upan the occurrence and dharing the continuance of a Defaalt, the Holder may, by writien notice to Payor, accelerate
the dve date of the principal amount owing under the Notes. Such secelerated amounts shall become isumedintcly
doe and payable upon receipt of such notice by Fayor. If the Holder sccelerates the amounts due under the Notes,
ihe Holder shall have the right to pursue any of all of the remedita provided in this Nete, including, but not limied
1. the right fo bring suit on the Notes.

3, Waiver: Payor hereby waives any end all presentrmient, notice of prescalment, demand, notice of demand,
protest, notice of proest. notice of dishonor or non-payment of 1he Nowe, The filure of Holder 10 txeccise i1s rights
herounder upon the occurrence of an Event of Default shall not be decmed a waiver of such right by Holder.

4. Collection Costs_snd Fees: I the evem the Note is placed with an attomcy for collection, or a legal

proceading is commenced to enforce the provision hereof, Payor shall pay alf costs of suit and collecton, including
any and ali antorncy’s fees and costs actually incurred Holder in any such legal action. regardless of whether of not
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acual litigation is initiated and specifically until such time all post-judgment collectioe sctions have concluded.
Payor acknowlodges and agrees that Holdes™s attomey’s normai hourly raies shall be deemed reasonsble,

. Goveming Law: This Note hes been made and delivered in the State of Nevada, with reference 1o the laws
of the State of Nevada, and the legality, enforceability and construction of this Note shall be goveraed by ihe laws of
the State of Nevada and afl fegal procecdings wrising herefrom shall be brought in the courts of the State of Nevada,
jocated in Clark County. The undersigned consents 1o the jurisdiction of said courts for this purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, these presents are executed 55 of the dew written below.

Payor: Holder.
By N X By: .
Name: M Jr. Indiduaily and on Nzme: Michas! Minet

Bebalf of hislmdeital g

Date:  \ \&L ‘XMELWM Pate:
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i@bank CASHIER'S CHECK  No. 7107505741
: DATE:  NOVEMBER 25,2013

: PAY FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS AND 60 CENTS {
[ 1

£ $ 500,000.00

HEEE

i onpen of: - MICHAEL ] MONA

o PURPOSEREMITTER: MICHARL MONA Ry

Y {

& Location: 7107 Reicbow & Sahais \M_/Q’ D :
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SCHEDULE A ltemized Deductions : 201 4
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and 1 Madical and dental axpensas (see instructions) |, SRE STATEMENT 7 . i1 10,283,
Dental 2 EnteramountfromFomm 1040, k0038 l2.  77,708.]~
Expenses 3 Mtiply ine 2 by T0% (101, Hut d ofthar you. 0r Your 3pouse wis boeh beloss

4 Subtract ke 3 froni ke 1. 11 g J is more than kne 1 snlel{}
..SBE_STATEMENT 8 |5 6,357.

Taxes You &
Paid

.3

OV No. 1843-0074

anusary 2, 1650, rtiply Bne 2by 7.5% (07S)wstead o |3 7.373.

T4 2,512,

Stale and local (check only one box):
a [ 1ncome taxss, or

b [X) Genaral sales taxas

Real estale taxes ee instivclions) '

T Personal properly taxey .
8 OWer laxus. Llsttypomdmmnl b
9 A0Q knes 5 through 8 . . 26,032,
fnterest 10 lmmmwnues!mdpoﬂ::snmedmywmlum w0 .o .
You Paid 1t Home mortgaga intorest not reported 1o you on Form 1098, Ilpaﬂmmewm
from whorm you bought the ¢ , SO0 NSWUCTIoNs akd show thal person’s name,
identifyng no., and sddress i
_SEE STATEMENT 4 .. e !
Nole. L. A 50,878,
ourmonG® 12 Poants ol reportod 10 you or Form 1098, See istructions for 8packs nubs | a2 1,500, STMT 5
duduction mgy 13 Morigage neurance premiums (soo mstructions) . < T _—
D TS (856 14 iovgtmen intorost, Attach Form 4962 if roquired, {See instructions) 34
nsructions),
15 4. e 15 52,378.
Gifts to 1 Gifts by cash o check. Hmmnuﬂd&ﬁoum.mwm . 8. 5,750,
Charity 17 Orher than by cash or check. I any get of $250 or mure, ¥oe Netructions.
" u acte 8 You must attach Fom 8283 dover 500 . SEE STATEMENT. 6. 17 475.
m—mvgﬂr- 18 Casryover from pror yeor .8
seehswdbra.n Add Eings 16 through 18 e 19 6,225,
ML“'“ 20 _CasuaRy or thett loss(es). Atach Form 4684, (Sog mnsiructions.) e ;
um 21 Urveimbursed cmployes expenses - job travel, mdwspbedumnnmc
and Aftach Form 2106 or 2106.EZ 4 required. {See instructions ) b j
Deductions . e = v e e
e e e e P4
29 Tax prepuration fees j22) -
23 Other axpenaes - nwsmmsalaggpcsﬂm: ﬁcl:sllvpemdmwub- :
........................................... 1
24 - Apg Enes 21 through 23 e e e 4
26 Enter amoun hom Form * 040, e 36 |26] .
26 Muttiply bne 25 by 29% (0) JURS V- -] i
27 Suttract e 26 from hne 24. ﬂlm?&nmglhmlme?d anter -
Other 28 Other - from st in imsituctions, st lype andamount» R
Miscelianeous
Deductions @ ~ - - - o T os s oo TEm s Tem e
28 is Form 1040, ine 38, aver $152.5257
X} Na. Your decuction s not iruted. Add the amounts in 16 fas nght solumn
Total ___ Tor in2s 4 through 28. Also, snter this amount on Form 1040, fine 40.
Itemized "7 Yeu. Your daduction may be Bratec. See the flemued Doductions
Deductions Workshoet in the nstructions Lo iguro the amount to emer.
30 ! vou elect to Remize deductions even though they are lesa than your stancard oeduction.
check horg e Db X
LHA 4msct 01008 For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, zee Form 1Ddoh‘whnﬂanl. Schedhde A (Form ¥040) 2014
4
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SCHEDULE B Interest and Ordinary Dividends
{Form 1040A or 1040} bAnanhnFcrm 1040A o 1040

Part! 1 List rame of payor, if any intersst is 7om @ selier firanced morgage and the buyer used the
Interest propesty as a pesorml residence, sew nistructions end kst hes interost first, Also, show that
buyer's socwl scourily rumber and addesss P
BANR_OF GEQRGE 5,.338.
ROEN VENTURES, LLC 15,918,
- 1
Note. If you
receved a Form
10994NT,
“orm 1088-04D,
o audisttuty — -
statemant from
a fimm,
o the frm's e
naane us 11w
and anter - e
the total imerast
mm'fﬂ 2 Addteamountsonbnal [EUPRUEVR B4 21,256,
) 3 -lcwmmuesimmEEux:IUS avngabordanamdnﬂwmﬂc
Altach Forr 8815 3
4 Subtrect ind 3 from Ine 2 Erter e esUR hera and on Foam 10404, of Form 1040, kno Ba >4 21,256.
Note. H ine 4 js over $1.500. you must completa Part il. Amount
Part i} 5 Lstname of payer P>
Ordinary EMPLOYERS HOLDINGS INC N ” 3,037,
Dividends
Nots. i — 5
recetved 3 Form
109901V or
subsifiute e e s . [
n rom
a brokerage fiem,
st the firm’s S
name as the
E:yaanﬂerﬂer
ordnary
dividerids sthwwrny
on that form
8 __Adc tha amounts on &ne 5. Enter the total hore and on Form 1040A, of Form 1040, n0Ba .. I | 6 3,027,
Ko 6is over $) 1.
You must compute this pan # you () had over $1,500 of taxabla interos) or ordinary dividanda; o) had a lorogn

Part I8 account; o (o] recaved a distribation from, of ware & grantor of, of 8 iranaleror 1o, A foreign trust.

Foreign 78 Al any time dunng 2014, g you have a firancial interest in o1 signature authority over a financial acoount {suct
Accounts 83 8 bank acoount, securities account, or brokerage account) located in a ‘oreign “ountry? See instructions .
and ¥ *Yes,* 210 you required to e FnCEN Form 114, Seport of Formgn dank and Francal Accounts (FBAR),
Trusts 1o report that francial interest Of $iNatee authority? See FnCEN Form 114 and its instructions for filng

requiramants and sxceptions tc thoss requinnerns

b 1t you ars roquirad 1o file FinCen Form 114, muwammmm:mmm

isocated . . . »
) B8 During 2014, Mmm-dﬂrhxmhumamywlhwﬂud o transteror (0. B foceign trust?
ot  *Yes,* you may have to fée Fom 3520, Seainstctions . . ... .. .., » .
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Aot Notice, ese your tax return instructions. waﬁmmummu
5
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SCHEDULE D
(Form 1040)

Oapewtmmrt of te Tomry P infe
wrovw Reverus By e 56}

Capital Gains and Losses
P Attach to Form 1040 or Form HMONR.

P> Use Form 8948 to list your transactions for lines 1b, 2, 3, 8b, 8, and 10.

about Schedule D and its separate inatructions Is at www.is.govischeduled .

Co3 ha "244-00i4

bn. o .

2014

St e, 12

Harrem ¥ Twn o retun

MICHARL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA

Your 4Gl ety e

"Part '] Short-Term Capital Gains and Losses - Assots Held One Year or Less

Saommutskxmum}um[lnmmmm @ @
e
enter on the #nes below. Proc

Cout
s karm may be gasier to complete f you ounc off (sales prica) {oe othor bass)
cents (0 wixwe dolars,

{h) Gain or {loss)
Subtract column (e)

fron colone (U} amd
combine the wesuit
with colurmn ()

13 " clabs ox ol whorl e anenciacnn oo ed on Horm W1
o Wiwcls Ll WA SANCTIed 80 the BHI Aned for Wi ath your Awe
PO ML AATIEAS (30l Fainect onal  owwvr, § o0 00 >
wear! ol o cme Yansectons on Farer BRP, lekevst Tiig Sr e olarx
I reE . . -

ib  Totals for pi trarsactions mpavtman Fomys}
. 049 with Box A checkx] . I

2 Tulﬂn!rxanrarmmurwmadmfwm(x)
______ 8949 with Box B checked

3 Toross for ol irarsactions roporied on Formis) +

8949 with Box C checked

4 Shor-term gain from Fomn 5252 and saod-tesir. gain or (foss} from Forme 4684, 6781, and 8324
5 Net shortlenm gen of (loss) from partnerships, S corporations, cstales, and trusts
tromr Schedule(s) K1
8 brcrtmncnpidloucmyovm l-morlmamcun imvllwnltmadrwrcmuiLou
Carryover Warksheel in the nstruchions |

7 Net short-tesrm capital gain or (loss). Co-rmsnuhlhrmmemmnmw nymmmymtmm

capital gans O Iosses, 0o 1o Pan | below. Otbarwise, 9o to Part Ut on pago 2

{_ Part 3Long-TannCapna|GamsmdLosm-AmbsHeldMoteThanOneYear

See inatructions for Yow 10 figure the amouma o 2]
unter on the Snes below. (L] {e]
Procesds Cost
This form may be easet 16 comosets 4 you round off {saies orice} {or other nasis)
cems 10 whole doders.

Adprstments
to gain of loas from
Formi{g) 8349, Part ii,
hez uulum(ﬂ

th) Qain or (loss)
Suntract columr ()
from colunn (d) ang
ombing Tha Mt
with cokmn ()

83 “aafo ol tng lem TEMAcSrY TS on Form W96-3
or wivzl DBRS WaS FICOrad *0 e S and o wivoh you have
~C MOpMFIREr 'S Wee TN ong) owe, £ p0.) onoe o
TERar 2 e ERNROoRare 0N Fow BReS. leve s i Binn

- .L1 . T.]

8o Tu:fsbralummmmrun(s)
B949 with Bax D cnecked

9 Tozals for all transactions reported on Formis)
949 with Box E chechkeo _

101,125, 10,467.

90,5658,

10 Totsis for gl transactions reported on rcvm(l}
_ 5949 with Bax F checked ... I

11 Gain trom Form 4797, Pars ). br\q-lolmgahbunl‘mm2439ww and long-term gain or (losx)
from Forms 4684, 6781, anxd 8824 . e e e .
SEE STATEMENT 10

12 Net longterm gan of (uss) fram Dannerships. S corporations. estates, and liusts from Schodulefs) K1,

1“4 ng-lummpulosacuryova Emulhemmﬂ lmy lvunheﬂdquitdmemm
Wocksheel in the instructions

15 mwwmcuumuomxmmmmwgh Mmcamnm) Thengo o T

____Paiiionpage2 . ...

‘l..

12 <5%90,911.>

13

4 ]

13 <500,253.>

LHA FaPmmAnm mmmulwnmum

Aysty
‘12404

RN MONAM
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Schodule D (Form 1040} 2014 C L J. MONA JR . MONA

Summary

18 Combina jines 7 and 15 nnd entor tha result

* ifine 16 ia & gain, erder the amount from sine 16 on Form 1040, ine 13, or Farm 10408, &no 14
Than go 1u w 17 bokew.

& Ithine 16 is a loss, $ki2 Ines 17 through 20 below. Thon 9o to na 21. Also bo sung 10 compidie
kne 22

& (ffne 18 s ze10, skyp Wnes 37 through 21 below and sntar 0 on Form 1040, ine 13, or Form
1040NR, line 14_ Then go 1o kne 22.

17 Aveluws 15 wd 16 both gass?
— Yos.Goto Mw 18.
— No, Skiv iines 18 through 21. and ga 1o kne 22.

18 Enter the amownt, il any, from ine 7 of tha 20% Rty Gain Worksheet i the inatruations

19 Ewot the amount, 1 any, from ine 18 of the Unrecaptured Section 1250 Gain Warksheet in
the instruchors

20 Ase nes 18 and 19 both Zero o Iiank?
") Yes. Complete the Qualified Dividenda and Capital Gain Tax Worksheet #1 iy mstructions
fox Form 10450, line 44 {or in the natructions for Fonn 1G4ONA, na 42), Do not completa koes
21 and 22 below.

1 Ke. Compinta the S je D Tax Worksheat in the irstnsct Do not zomplete knes 21
and 22 below.

21 M ino 16 is a koss, antor hore wnd on Form 1040, bne 13, of Forrn 10400, 0o 14, the smadler of:

¢ “haloas or bne 1@ or .. ..SEE _STATEMENT 11
* (83,200, or o marned teng separatuly, (31,500)
Note. ¥hen figunng which amount is smaller, ireal bath amounts as positive umoars.

22 Do you have quasfiad dividends on Form 1040, Bne Sb, or o 1040NR, ine 1067

X_ Yes. Compiete the Qualified Dividends and Capital Gain Tax Worksheet 41 the instructions
for Fortn “ 040, lino 44 (or in the sstroctions for Form 1040KR, 00 42).

..‘._] No. Complete the rest of Form 3040 or Form 1040NR

16 <500,253.>
=71

7
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Fomm 8949 (2¢€ 14} Antachment Sy
Mﬂmmrﬁmmm%awu«mm,mrmltﬂmmoﬂym

._MON,
Reinn you, uoeh Gox D, 3, o 7 bhelow -&-mumdn&mnw-aammvmmm.awmlunnn—-uuwum sabe 8
m“wmmmmm-_wmmamumukmns M--mn:.pmnmaumumsmmmmnmwwmuwmm
InCnITIntS you Coup 8 2014 o ) 7
ml.ung-'rm Transactions Mnhwng capital assets you hakd) moee 1han 1 yoas are ong tem. For shorl4em transachons, sas page 1.
Neots. You may aggtagats 3 longiam irareactions mported on Form{s) 1006-5 showing bass was roorted 10 the IRS ana lor which no adgatments o
cados ase raquited. Entar 1he LIl dengtly on Schaodbe U, ine Ba; you A 1ol racstud 10 repaa thase sanmetions on Fomm 2949 (kes natrcions).

You rust check Box D, E, or F below, Mwmm-mn—mmmnmwwvamm:mrmm. paga 2, kot wick appicahe 008
lamm“mmmﬂln*wh ane or more of the Dozen, Garpiess &8 740y OMAS W= S 208 DOX eckad S8 705, Memg.

..;J {D} Long-tern transactions roported on Form{s) 109400 showng basis was reported {0 the IRS (3ea Note above)
X1 (£} Lorgrtorm tranaactions reportoc o Formig) 1099.8 showsng basis waz not repcrted 1o the RS
[_] @) congterm trmansactions not reported to you on Fomn 10098 e .

Dascription of propesty Dat acquired o ebintg), ants 3.000¢ b  Sain or (loss)
(Cxameie: 100 sh, XYZ Loy {Mo., cay, yry oﬂunn(_f).%ellmwou Fubtrac cona e)
T O N e tram cohwnn () &
n (ﬂ)‘l‘ combing he rosult
Cocleds) ,“Mm"""” wih column ()
5045 SHS
EMPLOYERS . -
"HOLDINGS INC _ __NARIOUS 90,658.
2 Totads. AGG the amounss 1n comarrs (). (6, (@ and M) tsubtract] T 1T
negative amounts). Enter eact ol hete and include 00 yuur
Scheduie D, line 8b @ Box D above i checked). line § (f Box € S
above is checkiod], or fine 10 (f Box F above s checkes) B> | 101,125, 10,467.150 90,658,
mnmcrwmomummmmmms\mmmmnmiqhbmsammmms;mdemum
mmhmm@lomnqmsms”m@hm parale Irstr for how to figure the amourt of the adiusiment.
4730 10418 Form D948 2014)
8
SRR MONAM SEEEENNS ONA, MICHAEL MONAM__1
0888

MONA 20d JDE - 00399

2220




SCHEDULE D
{Form 1040}

Dot of tho Timsmsy
o Tectymn Sees B

ALTERNATIVE MINIMUM TAX

Capital Gains and Losses
P Attach 1o Form 1040 of Form 1040NSL
P Information sboul Schadula D and its sapacate instructions is at . i govfscheduled -

IS o ChAL 0074

2014

Seaniane 12

for kines 1b, 2, 3, 8,9, and 10,

P Use Form 8248 19 lisl yOIN tranal

Nowrvr(as hom - a rekant

MICHARL J. MONA JR_& RHONDA H. MONA

- [Part} | Short-Term Capital Gaina and Losses - Assets Held One Year o Less

Voum aocat aecadty i

Som wstrctions (o how 10 bgﬁm“ln amounts o I o " thy Gan or (*933)
anlar on the linrs bolow, {1} (e) Acfustments Subtract oolunm {o}
Precesds Cost & (ion Of 1088 from | from cohene {d] ang
The form tay be camer 1o comancte i you round off {swes fnce) (0r othes basis) Formis) 8348, Dan |, combing the msuit
(mlsmvmolnms hie 2, coluen i) wath cohumn ig)
1a fiuhdwiwkmmmﬁrnﬁmﬁ ' T
kw wieck bass was anorisd op the Fifi and e sty yine bave
wir et WrAarin (e v Rowave, § mog cheoee b2
remaort 55 Bhene Wormeators om bone B4R, leawa T e Baark
L atgigald Sl e
1 Totals for ltm-‘u:mm twm-al on Funrds)
8949 with Box A thecked - e R
7 Totats for Al ransactans m;mﬂml on Fum s}
8965 wah Box B chavied e . I
3 ol for af lrsnsachions :cwtul m}onﬁ(?é
. Bg with Box Conocked S
4 Short-term gain from Sonr H262 and shodlem gain o Joss) Iram Eovme 4604, G781, and 8874 . 4 B i
6 Not s0rlIeTm gan of [1035) Irten padnorshps, 8 comporations, estales, arg) trusts
ot SShedule{s) K1 - R
6 Srortterm capdtal K5s Canyover. Lfneuhem;n Kany. Ytem llnu 8 01 yw: Capﬂat Lcess
Carryover Worksheet i the watnictions . e 8 )
7 Net ghort-torm capital gain or {loss). Conting hm,s 'a .-ua.;ghé i cohmn (), M you have any ong Ietm
captal zow of lossus, g9 10 Pt ibolow Otherwsse gofo Pant onpage?2 .. . PP I 4
[Pari ] Long-Term Capital Gains and Losses - Assets Held More Than One Year
Son rsinctions for how 10 figuré he arrounis 1c. [ (0} Gaia or (toss)
ardie on 1ho Boas bokow. (< {s) Adpstments Subtract column {o}
Proceds Cost to gain or foss from | from column [d) and
Thes form may be easier to complete o .4 round off jsales prca) {or other hasis) Forrmis) 8049, Part ll, | comizre the osult
cmzs |o \mole doliars, . ke 2 column (g) with colwtn (g}
8a 1mwwmwvw-mmmwmﬂn ST
e wosh: Laea won rrortnd 16 L IS e whaghy yixa fowe.
O EEETReTE S RETUC! (w Asatea i g e 2 .
repal a shoes Fasxdinsh o0 Frm BT seve e e g " B
e g 43 beve 26 - AN CY
6h  Toluw for uf 'u:vvsacuoﬂs lemfted or fnlmis‘k
8349 with Boa Dehecsed . P [V PN
9 Totale for aff transacbions reported W luvm{sl
8949 with Box E checked - 101,125, 10.467. 90,6358,
W Totals for all ransactona rgsoted on Fonnm

B89 with Box F chuscued

+
i

11 Genhoenioma79s Panl, hujlmmq:m lrumlmm 2439 urwd 5262, unglmnrpnmgms}

from Forms 4684, 6781, and 8824 SO SRPIDRDSUVORPRRVRNS S0 § (1 IS -

SEE STATEMENT 12

12 Net longlerm gain of (0ss) rom parnershipa, S corporelions, eslales, ard inesta from Scheduels) K1 12 <590,911.>
13 Capial gaw cistnbutions e 1B ———
14 Long term capital loss canover. Emmmc m H aﬂy tmmlre u(z- your ca;xtﬂl.osacarm

Workshesat 71 the mstructons 14 !
15 Net long-term capital gain of {loss). Sombre knes Balluougi H moeiunm (h) Trgu;aze

Vart 1l on page @ i .15 <500,253.>
LHA  For Paprework Remmtion AclNolloo see ywrt::mm instructions. Schedule O (Form 1040) 2014
4zians
1924 4

9
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ALTERNATIVE MINIMUK 'TAX
Schedule D Foun 1045 2014 MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA

{Partlil_ Summary

16 Combmne kres ¢ anc 15 and antes the msust

® V' hie 16 M & gain, snter the anouat from line 15 0n Form 1043, e 13, or Form: 10ACHA, dne 14,

Then go o kw17 Dok,

*  Hiine 15 5 a foss, sk kg 17 Ivough 20 betow. Then go to e 21 Afso be surs to corglote
e 22

® i e 168 zero, k0 Enas 17 thaough 21 bolow and enter 2-cn Form 1040, ke 13, or Form
0AGNA, tno 14, Ten go tolna 22

17 Avalines 15 and )G both gans?
E_”_ | Yaa. Goto e 18,
] No. Skip #nwg 18 through 2, 3 go to g 22,

16 Lrine the amount, f oy, from w7 of e 26% Rate Goln Worksheet in the instroctigng

10 Crior the amoumt, if any, from line 18 of e Uor T"‘ ed Section 1250 Gain Worksheet &
ha instrochions

20 Areines 13 and 19 bolh 1200 or blank?
77| Yes, Compiete the Qualified Dividends end Copatat Gain Tax Wooudmet 11 the insteuctions
100 Foarm 1040, le A4 (v a the nstructons o “onn HHGNA, e 47) Do not conplete knes
27 anc 22 Lukorwr.

{771 mo. Complete the Sichadute D Tax Worksheet i the instractions: Do not £ompiata inas 21
and 77 bekri
21 e 16 ia @ £58, enter hera and on Fonm 1340, e 13, or Form 1 MONR, g 14, the amaller oi:

* holosy on o 18 @ ... SEE STATEMENT 13
® (53000, or ¥ mamed hing separatoly. 41,5000

Note. Whes higuang whnch kst i smallor, reat DOIE amounts IS positvg RUmbers
22 1 vou have Quattied dividends on Fomr 1040, 3ra 8b, or Form 1C4ONR, bno 1CL7

"X Yeu. Complete e Qualified Dividonds and Capitnl Gan Tax Worksheet i the insinuctions
Tow Fcem 1243, ine 44 (of it ihe instrocnens for § orm 1C40NR, g 421

77T No. Sompante the res: of Form 1040 o Fonn 1030NH.

wi  <500,253.>

21 | 3,000,

“zsasy
]
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ALTERNATIVE MINTIMUM TAX

Ms)smwnonm&n.'mam SSN or taxpayer idantification no. not mmdmmwm

MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA .
3arore you check Box O E. or & below, dee whnthe' you iecwivac say Frtrsn 10801 or mﬁh-ﬂ-mmmm A pulrsiile simement wil Nove the same NIl a1 M ~orm 1000-8.
mrummmmymmmrmnuawwnwummm-muwmuumummmmuummmwnmm

wrm:'dwhm
Term Tmmmwmcapﬂﬂmnhywmﬂmtm1ywmlmgm For Sno10m fransactions, seopagnl
Now. You may aggragate of long-lamm trarasctions raportac on Formis) 1089-0 showing busis was tepcried 1 tha IS and for which no sdaatments o
COdRS, e recriNed, Emsﬂ-lom:tmlu'on&imhlhum ywunmrnqgadlommm mr-mmn(.-mww
You musi check Box O, £, or F below, Check only 0ne DOX. ¥ more han ons b acies ki you uang tompists & £orm 8349, ma_umnﬂzﬂua
mwm-gmm‘ﬂmﬁm&rnumodvﬂm Wnn-qt—ﬂ!nlmmmnwm
ﬁtmmmm:mmFm}‘mmmmmvepododm"um(:ummabova)

[XJ (B Lorg torm transactions reported on Formis) 10898 showing basis wes not roponed 10 16 1RS

[:_j.[ﬂl.orm-mm' s N reported to you on Foem 10998

1 L] ®) {e) (<% ) cont (o) “i""?;",ﬁ, Rasy, o w ®
Dascription of property Date acquired | ' Date aold or Procesds or other Qaia or ).
(Eamoie: 1008h. XYZ Do) [ Mo, day. i | diposed | (RUeSPACR) | base. Seethe piedeai | [&.‘" Lol g, fbins a)ti)
| Mo..day. yr} 500 Cotrn: (@ | 10 (o) wmnm(ml
: the instructions | Sodels} e“"“‘! ol |t cousnn {g)

504 H o N

EMPLOYERS } b e -
HOLDINGS INC  NARIOUS !)‘31’20/1@1 101,125.] 10.467. 90,658.

2 Totals. Add tha amounis n conmns (d), (e}, () and (h) (subtract]
negalive amounis). Enter aach 10tal here and includa on your
Schadule D, line 8b (1 Box D above ks checked), line 9 ( Box E P
above is chacked), of ine 10 Box Fabove s checsady B> ; 101 ,125.] 10,467,

e ¥ _|. 80,658,

Note. lyoummxumbmunbaxsmponemoWIRSmrmm.m«ncdm(qwbubummdhmms and entor an
adjustmont in column (g} to comrect the basis. Soe Cokamn @hmumlmmmemmmdmwmm

@207 120014 Form 8946 2014)
11
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0891
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2223




Serwrie ¢ Aoms 1640 20

Nanels; arcn o reRen nﬂmmwmmm-mmmw

HAE'

NA

MONA

M !m; N
You mnl cunity numbet

-

Caulion, Iumwumrm 0N youF X Fetuin with 2mouiits shown o Scnedulels) K- 1.

[Partil.

Income or Loss From Partnerships and
any amoul 15 not at risk, you mld\mcm»le)mhamawt'amﬁlﬂ See nstiructions.

fons  Nots. llymr@gﬂnmlmmnlmmwfaﬁm

27 mmmorimawhsmlmmmwﬂdnmmmm umswmm,whssimmummmmhom

passive actvity (f thal loss was 1ol reported o1 Foro BSH?), OF e eamioursed parmershio acpenses? Cves Dmo
____Myou answered "Yes," ses insbucSians belore complcing this section. 5
ol d [ 4 0) Crecx
2 () Home ),;ﬂl umemmw =
A SEE STATEMENT 14
8
c -
0 R S i —
— e Passive ncame and Loss . WMWMLQI
1) Passive loss aflowed T (qyPasswemcome | (h) Monpessive koss Iﬂwmw (i) Honoassve mcome
(attach Form 8502 4 reouved) Imm semmx 1 from Schedule X-1 from form from Schedula K-1
A e 4
8 DS S I
£ ~ - ~ _
[1] . —_
202 Totals - . _ ‘T:A'!' 'l" s o i ol ~
v Tolas G s el 163, 098. . B S
0 Mdcolumw)andmuihu?& . 20
31 A6t colmas (f), (N), and (ol e 206 st J( 163,098.}
32 Total pactnership snd 8 cosporation woome of (lnn] Lnnﬁhemaﬂmdil Entes the
resyk fiere and ncude i the 1DtIon kno 4t betow 2 -163,098.
[Pant ] Income or Loss From Estates and Trusis
P {a) Name e gyt
A
B . e e e
Peasive Income and Loss Nonpessive income and Loes
[c) Passie deducion or loss alawed Sd)P&hm {2} Deductun os loss {0} Dthet mcome from
(attach Form 8562 il requitec) rom Scheduie K-1 from Schedwie K-1 Schedwie K-1
A
sl o ] .
My fotate | PP R, T
b Tolk . ol i, S ity
35  Aid pomns {u)ana(! ullna:s& 3
% mwmm{ﬂmd(a)omuub . E L )
37 Totatestate and trust income of (loss mmmasamsesmnmmnmmmmnmw“m«w K]
[Pariid] Income or Loss From Real Estate Morigage Investment Condults (REMICS] - Residual Holder
TeJ s nckslon Rom 1mnbmm el
T N e o
[r— PR - & it
i ing 41 below -
&lmmmy_ 1111 w BN:PJLS DISPO&I{IEQN Ol’ NONPASSIVE AC'I'IVI'L'Y
40 mmmmna(bn)hmfomﬂ%kmmnﬂww
41 Tota! ISCORME Of {I058), Cowme bnma 16, 32,37 39 i € Sotet ¥20 ‘weush P 4l or. Far 1040, fne 1%, 01 Horn WO S 10 -163,098.
42 Recoaciliatios of farming uad fisking income. Eawr your gress farming and Rshing income e
reported on Form 4835, ime 7; Schedule K-1 (Form 1065), bax 14, cada B; Schedwie K- 1
(Form 1920S}, box 17, ode V;, and Schequle K-1 ;Form 1041), box 14, CO08 F geer- catrucons u L__ o
43 Recoaciliztion for rzal estats protessiondls. x you wors o 1eet sutare tone B
i The et eicome o feasa] eu AN nvenes or Fory 040 0 SO HMONR Form o fence ol catce |- Sﬁmﬂ
2cthvios 1 mCh 0, TRty civirad urhy he [asaive Doy Gwn hiey u | -590,911. i ER: LG
SMIE(FQII»IMHOM
421501
0-22-H
12
‘SENENEREE MONAM SRS MONA, MICHAEL MONAM__ 1
0892
MONA 20d JDE - 00403

2224




LR L
L PRRL

BED

Tl Ll O OBD il SuOpnEay Y

FUORNGUILDD SITERMEYS

.;
|

i

|

S
i

I

sNOUONG3Q oFzmaL |

BB UG BGALE 18y ALY
YOS BHUGGNE 158100 YUKL IRBALY
zoew WHOd )
SEPORLS § NOVNUCD GEZ] L0TE
favtnt ueh Cus wisel Buoy ey

ey wed (ded wsey uoi

4 TNGaHS s
USHEORRD U0 DX CBoRi
T U e umt oy wonoeg

1610 WHO4 i

A3

, MR

T2 W00 3§ et Diuyd #3601
: TG BaRERTUGY

L IBASTRUOU) SORUIBOXS DALMGUBR I

T UONBIAL A4S0 OF Ofil) DAMOER)
U somckam OnaEdey
wonita eDRLeOEy

T USRMCRD SO0

I BNTERO DUDDBS;

IO daEse (e

T [we0p weou ey

SHO[ WKy eS8

IBURIXE ] VOHIGE DBROIEEY)

T SBADALED DU f1 T VOO
Sauied peaiReng

| PSUSTNE ISTI0W saserd padleopme

BI8CT B0y ANRIRGD i siluelsy
(SO DRYR FRIAY 100 PO
{9501} UWOOW; BIBIED WYL (UM

| ANSEO AR ©1 @ PRSI | DA,

TS EWINT
“DEE N SS

Ed344

L 3DV INZNEIVAS HONOWHLESYY IKOHd IWOON!

{

W NTIE {SS0Y) A myden SEER ARy APUIIC
. 30V FINAIOS o
Luir g XY SBCT FE e BAYEEVion

SEIHFEHR LAV

COWNEH =TI T UiEne oS RET o TR ubnonpssey

2225

0893

MONA 20d JDE - 00404



¥1

BETTARA

|

Crrd e

*5 o) &' WD
R

T sany e pare Ayenseq

SYDELD ;0 SR IAL RN} LIRS

WO

sfigans )0 mwRDyBe Auee uo Ayeuad
Dol S DL WEUISTYDR GOroRpekey
GOl Sapranye viqarpnd popeny)
R i
SIBUIC UB3 WapUAADg

T 0K - ERNE EYPaN

fiace oF LW} L g

X DATCLEIRA 1 PR

Surgyivwe amyong

¥oRsd Suml WLOED poNGIISIINN
U@ OHYSaTLAdY s AimAcy

| soapdoy

2 Buesy v Suiuue ReoUTy

(0 v wgic) Joueydaq

T weuunine |ny § ARG

) $008 & wel parnipey
YHLECL IR THRLASIYDR LSueesdan

1ST9 WKDA

BWCHUI {SE I ikdwexd e ]
EPURDLAID PBIRTT

" sty Ay

T soueg 50 way 1shseuy
WUUTA SRR

SONIGAIQ ONV ISIWUNT |

WO KB

] L 507 i ¥ 1y
[BASTR DAMOTRSIC: DMSSBH SB3A SMg | 01 3nQ UBMURI

ST Uy

PaRgECn J895 Y

yIIEFIS

TN S/NSS

n

Ry | svey) $347 sy
T} S POMDIERQ - DI} T4 iy

YRR Ly

al

TRISEVIRER

dIHSYINIEVE

EEEER -

Z 30vd LNIWALYLS HONOBHISSYE WOMZ IWQON!

TFT TRAReaad O ER yBroansvey

FVROR T TIVAOTH eumty
2 INQAHDS

0894

MONA 2nd JIDE - 00405

2226



s3

eIl
LGRELY

bt o)

BeisTIOR ORI G DRE R S

" BN ST B e

i SNOUONOIA GEZIWAL |

BT WAL W6 o

i . Z68Y WHO A |

A —
: L YORDEAS R SRERVOO §LZ 1 LONDNS

suo) el gus upe-Bud; 1on

{5500 Ll aR WLE-LoUS N

i —

i — . Q31Na3HS |

OISO U0 A dBTTI g1 vonoeg

T 3e0) un Lz wonso

i L6LF W04 i

ZREEST S dDotios s

GO BASTRCUON

T laarstrdiou) A5LCH CORINGL i
T LRI WGG O $7D DRMOERY

100D L0
uijopdsp efeluacag

SO 1507
RRpiQ wassed Dudiedy

D410 3A58 180§

T Iseon) ewotu i8Ny
SHUY ULB) S5TTX Y

A5UBAD G| L0NO9E PAMOTERG

BACALED PUB 621 200206

e pind DeBILBIEN D
BILHOXD [SO5DIN Iashrd pRBRYD- g

i

r
i
}
i
§

;
i
i
M

$.520 B0y AIDySINS .t 2 P
s iaTlicat i SUT IR - R R Hiled

(RR0] SLOD DIRILO (857 [Bhidy

(S90) L0 VIR L0

L™ 48]

i
!
[ S—

EFAvaXYE

8803

T C—— N{INGS

oz

FEUE

: H8
BRSTES DOVITRYID 44398 100, Tie | 91 ANC prwoyee |

i

i Lo i
T LOHRIUNY RSP A R0 St
Fed i q._w C1 81 RaMDLTEI] ﬁ DAY

£ 39vd '3 31N03HOS
T¥NOIYSIANEG CLBE

gle TR

Ay | WEY SRISYLISILEVE WINEIYR

dIHSEINLENE

ai

SRR R - 217 e1undFEL TR gBncanseed

P 309 ANZWALYLIS HOMNCOYWHLISSYd WO JINOON!

£0 vnon T IEVHSIR ewen
2 3INAIHOS

0895

MONA 2nd JDE - 00406

2227



at

PLLOSST
TERI Y

WO Yaul puw Aymagnsy
© O supor)

SUPSID (O BINICRIGAET SO

TTON
BOUARS (0 kIR L Afima g0 Ayeag

221 1y M pauneY e ulincraseeg

1 PUOSU SRR ETINMINIA LI
SR Oy

SHBUST SUTD BOLTEQ

Ol - S IRaren o RO
BP0 e eouRs)
¥E] DIBLIIED S0y 2D

ROt orsseR

PRSI Surelk mRcRY panGuISPUN

| uOROICSD/AISUBAXE ApYAly)

T sauedoy

3 Bunyey § Suwuny g90i0
BRLRAL/ S Shu LB PSSO o

STIGANY T30S N

Ll

D e 0) LoMaag
IO BNPR Ly 8 Areryauag)
SETY 40 Ledl polenioy

GHALE/ZL BYY UAUNSTETE DONPNGOA0

SDUBPIND 0R YErD

SIUDDIAD ABARIO

T epuon S Wy 1688
e T DLIOOU 18I

YNNI xB}

. 5307 i G507
LRAISTR, DOMOTRS ! SARTRY S0 S0

1 |__ SON3CIAG ONV ISIUIINT |

St Inf VIL [ SRy UCHEIT HERE

£507 S5ey ;
LB SRAOERR | DAVMDNRIT 1884 S:\: QF 2 PLOUBRy - DANOgRUN) B4 Mg

N S A .-
ok i TVEOTERIIOM oo
T UIES CNILYAIDIZMVE WIEIIVR
JIHgWARIYEA

L.

£ 30¥d INIWILYLS HONOUHLSSYY WOHS SWOINL

FIPLLNEA ATN T gEE0INGA HER ulinoxpesey
v T TR{TYRON TTTTIVIZIN sumn
3 3ING3HOS

0896

00407

MONA 2nd JDE -

2228



P———

L1

VLT
Suster

Lt

BN OGO O DNBIE BL23ONL]
SLONFAJUIISS JCEUBUD

SNOLLONG30 GIZWIL
T DO ITEIAN Tond RRG)

¥ OUDT - SRUBCXE JERHILT LIBLLNEAL]

796y WHO4 -

T SHMDDENT ¥ SRBAUNT Q6T VOIS

RN

B0 el e tuakfon jany
ISR} Lkl IR ¢ AL S LBy

Q3 MOIHOS

OATROTI 140 8 NIGRTE] B4 1 LS
(PR WIRE [EZ1 Liied;

484 WHO S
USRS eRRRGTE (Y
AT BASEBILAN
BMRSEOLOU! SBSUBIXE DISINGUERIN
UENBIE Ly S4G% 01 5710 DANDESI]
IBATL B LT VRO
Dlcan plmURAay
HORTED 1630
R0 Aaamsed TNoag
EIRLET S BT
SEO WLOCTN 13N

L0 LB} ESBON

SV NSTIRDS B SRR

FEUPUXD (1 OIS PIRMOHESK]

ALGAUCS BUB §2| LIRS

} siewfed peaLEsRn:)
DEUPLKE 5B LY ansIRC BRI G

]

€103 aou Lpiisos Surap s Cutiuy
[t RS CSURRUFIVERE N DT e
3509) BRuODL: BIBI50 B LAy
i) s SYaUITNG ARUD
23Dvd '3 3INOIHOE

+
wirey 21 5907 ¢
OS8R DaLwa)! B

" IR N iT/NSS

ree

% 5. E-J.\
UG g TLETC DRROTRSG TIMNBUL T iClg| 0L 3NQ PRWOBRI

SEC TSI WOREIRY w_aﬂms | TEOT SHTE

SONDTEET MA ey

re— - TNTTIRE IS IR
IVEY ONILVAISILHYE IVIWEINH
ITHINARLNYS

3

T

i 30Vd INTFWILYLS HONOUHLISEYd WOUL IWNODHI

%0 - OTTRGILIsIfTov 89h yDnonpssey
GO S auen
FIINAINDS

0897

MONA 2nd JDE - 00408

2229



Y Y
ThE. 2»
81

B l'. ||I|w T .:l:! T h o m O RN DR ensen
o T ! ! o - T T sppang
oo - _ IR G 817 RSO X0
L L - I . T o
: . BURATS ;0 BARIDYuA | 1B8 w0 ARoa g
T - * [ A L OrOL Wity O] dunmnening kR ISRy
o o o — |.,41! - T .m:;;l FICTH SIUALSE UETINIOT DI TNY
| , ST JuBDARKISY
T ~ r e - i,IM - SERUS 8, 8D JUSDUICH0
4:.': - - a;...s.!ri: 000 - BRI P
T » T o R G810 UDHEETOUED
s Co ] i AR SRELISE T Py
— - e T e o b . - )
et R T i _— 4 Eaprsp e ey
- M ~ — ‘ 1923 SUTEE [BPCED DINGNSR
R T T T : S : UONBCRE SIS Ayeioy
————e v e — ] , : Ay
R AT T N — b 1 Bradsy @ Surum) ss0.0
1 : FEEEAN/(S30]) $DUNLBG JUBLIAOKTI IS Jag
= o et | S S
; + . Al oy
e o _ — - 10 LR By aing
R e A T — WeunIE pany 1 Armbotg
— T R A S T ueon s uitS pRIsnIpRy
A e T — G/LEZL RNE oeuniipe Lol TORIKkicy
llwl.l.l,i. I , - % T —m&aﬂtOm .].. J
, BOS 1EBaD 1 KIS XD Ye ]
JEERE ST et i, — e e ~ D T SOBRAD DBGTENY)
- R - T T e T wpuepap Aetagy
; - = SPUCE *Gf) LAY 1538
e — R R T g ssMaYy
. , e i e SONIQIAI] ONY LS3HIUNI
wa e 8607 507 At ty SOMTEETY . Ujesun) wseg sseremey | el by TVRCISSTIRT LY

TrrgEl NAROTEE; BATER IBOA IO | 0 7D RiACHINR]  puwmOigu” 1234 I, .«_ 9) SNQ pOMO; BRI | TDIRUN RO, 5_“3 IWEY DHIIVATI]LEYE TYIEAIVR

,,,,,, e I ) JTASHINLUVYS

dTAVATVL Sa——— a T Wan - S0 WO LI TRIIOEN TETd ybnonnsaey
OB  NI/NSS T T T T T GR (TS IR sy

3 INQIHIS
rioZ ¥ 39vd INIWNALVIS HONOUHLISSVE WOY S JROON!

0898
2230

MONA 2nd IDE - 00409



6T

vo334D
wS5alr

0899

- 00410

¥
.

2231

N H W R,
- WU D, el O R Ead S ROUTNDeo)

U IO QTR

: — B R T j T T T snoudnoagodziwau

! ) 3 JWCTer Rl sesul U BGE Y

_—— . - i WO BNLEG (3. JUDUIIEDAL
P - I - T T

. i : | TSP WMOS

; : ERIRREIIS § GI0E. 00 982 L uenidd

fewey om gro uuee Sy ey
W . fewuh umll duD wWie; LOUS Jeny

Lo e e ‘ .; . ! : aFInaaHos

- B

|

AN RIED o aundtodt Aot LS 0%

; H head Um0 Ll LONOIG

, " - . : , ; G W04
P s R : BRIV T erweans o)

: FRJID SARMWUUON
(PAISSECLOUL GORLULXD DISHNILIIIN
LOTEI $E5E O AND PavOLR K
JECTRTE SV eli-Ta |7y
it sleiuessig
T uamueh (e
* T : TG PABSTY Ui
ey ) TG DNSTRC 182 §
o0 BUCIE 18N
i e ! M - ’ ’ : TED LA, SEAONT
: ; M ) L i ; . BSURIED 21 LAISBSE DOACEEK]
! [ ' ; T - SRR DUB 61 UONDRS
- ” T " ) swmnied paarRnG
“ T : T actuadxa 8051 avEsed DR LIS
m, ’ ’ . . E e oo . " €1500 & i Lapaisns B o plon)
H
i
_

900 BLIOTU BIVEL IRE IO
{E5X5) MLO7Mn SYEI9S HdL &y
TR MunDI FERURNG APLIO
2 3DYd '3 SINAIHOS

vJQLm =- '& . .‘w%.ﬂ £l J al
VOIVEY LRIINGIDIINNE TVIWELwH

- 1THEHIRLEVE

e TTOEYTEY B4 v i uBnonpistey
%..,,lii-z_m.,zmw \t.s!ii?ll 1,\‘ F,..Q.

. | !
m , m I

Loeyxey o 995 ¢ o end | K e ;o FEG eyl PoudRur eseg 3 S5ey
DAIDTEA DBMOHESIT, DGy M4 w3y | [P H7] TR BRI s TR ER = Cl 9N DOAAOYB B WVNZ.E__Z: it

¥l

I TNAIHDS
p 414 I 30Vd INIWILYLIS HONOBRISSYd WOHI INOONI

MONA 2nd JDE



PART E

PART E

Docket 68434 Document 2015-29796

2232



2.4

Ll o
sy

W gAY DL AfeneRsy

£5pouD

R85 10 INIBIRFEENE] UK

SORERES 0 MBI Kieean Ky
QD W04 O s ASNIDE ISnonESE
O] SAAL IR LOTIPOIE DRTIND

sy JuBeanow

SIHABT SIS uapLadag

Dol - SIS DA
b i JRa R HF)-E Al g
REYDATRLLN WY YA T

Brrtgiv does

wpar SueD REIED DOPIGIaTIDLN
wsdapsasusdve L lon

o Bty § i) o9y

saBeAEs0) sBUNNE ILeLIAMIE JIeE

SNOINVTIIOSIN 2

(0l LG IR UCIARG
yapunsnlpe |y S ARIEIGE

S e D petiDy
WG, e HMUHSHIDe SONBReXI]

1970 WHOd |

LR R0 IS K,

T w

T SPURAD PRpPNG
SPUNDIAID Arrugu
fre s i R T ]
. saoour SeIEL

Utjoy ey o)

¥

YN
(SAETeS DEWDITEID] DNSSRL BB 30y | O W oo

BSONITIAQ ONY LSIUIUNI

520 | 48 vt { SRRy

“EEINEENT
T NIINSS

rIoZ

Elond -]

pRedgrer ey i overg pIMOEBnS

JL T B A

cxtapmiV o)

TYEW i LYLiOILENE TYIVIIVR
’ LESYERLHVE

2 3nVE INBV3LY1S HONOHRLISSYd WObE IWOCONI

TOWUOT rt T ubnoaissed
"W WEeR Y HIVEOIR sweN
FINTIHIS

00411

MONA 2nd JDE -

0900

2233



T

T

¥ pose
PR

S

SRS TN O] PR1MAr QKT
UYL 00 HARRS
P —

SROLDNUEI GIDWIL

BLANE JRALIERAA Wkl BN
YOUS I RN AL
T esty mE04 T

T DIRAE B BSOS G581 uoriks
e vl deo e Suol 19N
©oiasod WG ORD DT LTUS e

QINAIMIS .

-

FARTORR 40 eICEIe] 611 D06
isuog ued 121 voey

Iy L

*TI-

iz afedi Y sNpBGEEESL
RN GASYREUTy
{ARERRALO) RS B IO T}
HRLET LR G0 53 OND CoMOuE)
SAADLIIED Waas

uonecap slewsomy

JOUMCIP 1507

YD BRHISED DUCDeY

B akRmel Ry

[ BT TR TN

TS0y LAIR] LTOCHT

BELBANG A7 L LOUOES DEMOHES )

T SNGALRY DB i1 SOnDeg

T ganiARS PALEMN
TERACAY (SueTF bassed e e
RO Uy D00 Sl el
BE0( PURSIE [ERS Tk ML)

15500 HUODY" BIRIS B BIUSY

G Bz BFEIIST K] AR’y

T 30¥d 3 3INCIHOS

52 I
MBI DEMOPTEY]

Lrigy K]

5577

#H T

S0V xS

INGTRm B Dind | S B SEMONREC]  [IERORRUN P34 S0

UTMER L) NSRH

N} BN PAMOITRSI) § DARFIY PHL i

sersmg |

A ey ad
RN NS

e

' N

al

ERTEEVERON T

ATHIAENIEYS

SRS TRGILETT EVIL v 6aeELE uBnoriseed

FEOVE INIWTLIVLS HONOHKHLSSYd WOdd SWOONI

RITGHOR T TaVASIR swen
I INAINDS

0901

MONA 2nd JDE - 00412

2234



A

[ ol
683

T ey e P Apees

C e

E1.00D 1 SEEEEOESeNT] U

| B
| SOweBs 0 R Ayma o Ay
T opgr wabs o1 astipe uSnangseey

SUISOU $3EAEIN 10 IINDRA SAIEND)

s juskeiety
T eyaan AR OB LAGDY

DL - BOUR YSU IO

WD O IR

FE PGS K RO

T fkarnon s OMORE

PO SumEd [eYIEY PAWE AN
ao.mn_avva»n_hg AleAoy

T sonmAoy

= Sugm § Sueire; ssen
TFRRIACKLR [0S

shtim, _.S.

BNOINVTIOSIN

)

T e umGy 12qit) uegsideg

wERNIe DNy B AR ou0g
oy w0 Bl palenipy

GELLTL SYR LbuISNINA Kx@x&:awﬂ

L1ST0 WHOd

T et SerE Eﬂxoxﬂ

SDUBTAATY PREIMACY

SOLADIND ABU DI

SpUCA G A WK 1swiBiuy
BLATUERBU

SONICIAID NV LSSUIINI

LINiEu Ve

S

TRV

| v

xﬁm?
gﬁﬁm& .biﬂﬂﬂn a, nmm ,mm:x.m: ) BT Vuﬁﬁ,ﬂw% n,m-.ﬁ:éa 03 B D) NG DassiRE

3841 wm i W HA

£501 858y
BRI REA S
AR A M

T, G

o ——

2 I9V4 INSWILVLS HONOBHLESYY WOH4 IWOINI

WEIITR i.“u mm i,:a o

row W BATEQNARGR
41HSUTNLYVS
TTESTISTE weeny vasveIY ubnoapstey
HF wRoR 4 SEVESIR auwen
FINAIHOS

0902

MONA 20d JDE - {413

2235



DOES NOT APPLY
rom 6251 Alternative Minimum Tax - Individuals

= Information about Form G?ﬁ' and its separate insuuclium in at www fregovitornB251.

ey AN ATE

2014

Filpiviind

Evporeanis 32

Usparizart ol 19 Heabay
‘rigrend Reveog Sevam W,

Nm‘n{s} ahew on Form 040 or Fom $40NA Your social secudity sumbet

MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA co—
(Part

; Alternative Minimum Taxable ncome
v { fiirg Schaduts A T tan 1040). arter the Amour fram Fomn 1040, g 4%, and go 10 ine 2. LAheowsa. onter the i

Aot 16660 Forn 1040, Tine 39, and go 10 1ne 7 01 loss than 76m0, erteras a nogabve amaunt.) . 9,441,

2 Medea i senta, i yoi of vour spouns wig 66 or oklet, gier the smstierof Schadule A Fon 10400, ke &, ]
or 2 5% (.025] of Form 1040, ke 38, {26000 ‘esy, e & e i v 3

3 Taxestrom Schomda A (Form 1040, e 9 ado 26,032,

4 Enter the home mortgage nismst 20p.stment, § any, m)m 1y £ o the workshest o tho umlng,tu Yo s 30
& MECES0UE dOULCTRNS it Schiadkiic A (Form 10401, tna 27
B it Egan 1030, ine 30,15 $152,525 of 19ss, enler O Othgevase, soé NRIGICHD"S
Tux riatursd from Fore: 1040, line 10 o ke I

B investawsy ntorond tpnss (oiforancs hetween regs A.u vm wdANﬂ

o Daphstion {ddfererce 1egubnr lax arad AMY)

10 Nt operating foss deductin from Form HR0, b 21, iy LT uu:mwu rmkm}t

11 Aharnstve bax not oporatig 06s deduction .
12 Iotirast om spocificd pivals actiily bomds u:ﬁrﬂl froan Hm egar Lax
13 {saliied smal Dusingss S10CK (7% of gam exchitend ynder sechon UG
14 Exerise of nconties stock optinns (ess of AW T inCome over reguiar nx e aku
15 [atates and fnats Bmoostl hom Schedute K3 (Fotm D415 bex 12, Code A}
18 Eloctinyg bwpa pannorstups (amoost fom Schodus 151 [Frrm 1685:8), box §)
17 Dhsposkion of sepperty ftimance tetwesn AMT arc: sejuid tax gain o0 1053)
18 Cepecatcn on FSots paced in sesviaaatter 100 idfterenco Detwarna regtar tax mmm STMT 16
18 Passve activiics (licrarnco Sotween AMT and requaar (3% NCOMe 3085}
20 Loss ineabons (ciference between AMT and raguidr L incoms of 1085)
21 Croulation costs Eierence betedon leQusst 1ax &k AMT, §

Longaerm Contrits [Uiltoronc bOtwiroe AMT ard eogiar Tax Hcor

~

23 Minng costs [diterence Dotween 1aguae tax and AMT, e N
24 Resepch and expermentat costs {ittersnce batween mguiar -ax nnd AMI- o
2% Incoma Trom coran jnstalynent sies betore Jangary 1. 1347 28
26 Intargoe dnkng tosts preference . A . |28 O o
27. (thar acjustnents, nicaxsing reomirtasest related adiusiments | S B d 4
2B Atternative minimum taxible incotne, Gombmne ines 1 theucgh 27 {!Im.mm fnimg gwammy araf lm 88
r__rg_e:_mszm_m% e e s 28 12,294,
Part il | Altemnative Minimum Tax (AMT) . v . i
29 Dweenpton, (I you wors oo aqc)amthaend:r“cm P i
I¥ yire fling status s . AND line 28 i3 not over... THEMN enter on lme 24,
Saghe or hsaer ol hogesobd . £112.7%% 52 KK N
Kamed thng jointly or cualitylg wr;kmim) ‘1:36.5{.10 . 82,100
Mamed B0y supeslely BRSO e AYS0 29 52,100,
1 lirws 2B 1% ower e Mo shewr ,sm-m Tost o thing S1aTUS, 500 NG LCONG
BT Cobera e 76 BGEE 0 O 8T YRR 0D ene 21 I D Sem dnter O D 3 00 Ve 31 33, A9 WD, IR 33 WG o I . Q.
31 ® iy e fling Form 2855 o 2555 £ 506 wtruchons for the amourt toentor. ’
® { yous taported i g dismbiunions diectly on Form 1040, ive 13, you repoted quantiod gaddenas
o Form 1043, Ine B or you ~ad 3 gain on bath ines 15 and 16 of Schedule (HEor 1CAM {as refgparac l L
i e AMT . # nacessary), complete Part il O page 2 and enler Lke amount tromm tiews 64 tere ) a1 0.
'Mmmxﬁm%hﬂ&wﬁm ass "$91 250 0c bass d muned A soparataly), multipdy ke 30 by - - A o
269% 1.28). Oenerwine, muilnily e 30 Ly 299 (29) and sultrs $3.£590 (31 626 1 mamed ting
-%WMBM from the wgault. #
32 Ademalive renimum tax foreigr Wx credd (see instiuctons).
23 Teotatrn mremum iax. Subtract e 32 fomdre 31 - L 0.
24 Ad Toem 040, kg 44 imaus ary tax 1am Fenm 4072, and Form 1340, lne 46 Subtract Irom 200 reaul aay
foreign tax CrecHt from Form 1040, kne 48 # you wsaa S J 10 hgine YO 1ax on Eoem 1043, kne 44, sfegra
that tex wihout sting M.m J bifore compigting this kne (00 Mstiuctons) o e
u line r 2 o M3, anter -3 Enier hang B on Form 1640, tine - e ds 0.
TEE L VHA  Fox Paperwork Reduclion Act Notice, se your tax returm instrugtions. Eorm: 8251 (2074
23
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Tax Gomputation Using Maximum Capital Gams Rates

Formszsipete _ MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. . SR
[Partw]

iorpiede Part 1 oty of you ury g sesd te do 89 try kinm 31 o by e Foresyn Eamied incony
Erter i@ arcunt fiom Fumml Ena 3Q. if you are fitig Form 2555ut 255542, enter “De.amount
Hne 3 of i wotkshit 3 1ha inatrucmons for s 31
T Atr thedimatnt from g 6 of the Ouaiast Divaords arsd Capital Gair Tax arrusmm w thn muuwmm
for Eoem 1240, a4, of tha amount fom ing 13.0f the Schedule 1 Tax Wetksheet n the struchions to
Schetie 0 Forr WMO), whisheves spphes (3 refgparond i tha AMT nipossary) [sed wisticies), 1
o e fleg Form 2565 or 2565 F7, sae nstructions fon Y amount "o ental
Erver the wnourt from Schedulie D (Form 10405, kne 19 (& refigumsd for the: AMT. i necessary: (see
nstrucikins), I you ara ting Form 2658 o FEEBEZ, yew inslruclons 1o e et 10 e
11 you 66 not compieta a Schaaule D Tax Workstest T Uty etigrudir tEx o Ao AMT, ard e |he mwv'
trcem b 37 {thearwines, 30 ines 37 andd 38 and enter the amalier of 1hat sl o the amout from lee
10 of tha Senockda D bax Wosheed 13 robguied for the AMT, f nacessary) B you aro Ting Furmgthhb o
PEES-EZ e imhravhons. fon (e arnger 10 srfee
Evdgr the smatior of log 36 of kng 39
Subirat ling A0 lomfne 36

an Workshoot s mstiuctions
|

1€ b 41 1 $162.500 S leas (§91 260 or kss Linaod Rng wepraanely, maltipsy ling 41 by 26% (26} Gtiarwiss,

iy oo 41 by 28% {26) and subiract $3,650{31 150 & asuned g noparistoly) tror thi rogut

":I'l‘ﬂl

® $73 B0 1t aroed filiog jontty of quiddyng wikowtos),

© Jl, 9000 i gl <w Tesantions S kit 50 }

& 545 400 i 2ead of housshold.

Erte I amout o tiwr Fot Tha Cimtifed Craseniasd Capdut Gan Tax Wolkstoat ntbe ingstroctioen
Toe Forr 1040, xne 44, o e amesd {rom beis 14 of the Scherde O “ix Wirkshes wi fhe vislrichons K
Sebodio $ Fonm 10400, whichiwer appHes {36 hawed for the ekt M) 1 yor, okt POl DOMpRTR Sihet
wioskeheet Yor e eguiar X, Brter the anmpunt from Form 1040, e 42, zer o bsa, mite 41 H you
are fiing Form PESS o 255564, a0 rutruchions “of the amount 1o of 14

Subitract bne 44 Tron ing 43.if zens or less, ater C

Enter the srnmiter of bna 36 or fing 37

Ermer the smalier 5t ime 45 of e £8. 1Maﬂwn&lauw¢ﬂa%

Subsitae ting 47 trom ling 46

Ermtes:

® $496.75C d 5o ]

® $2O000C i marmed King separately }

* $457 600 #f mairiad filing oty o m.ﬂr wiiormien)
@ SARD 200 hunidd dm hea

ErterAng armount from oedS

Entar th amourt from ko 7 0f ﬂ'u:: fMﬂ-&c Dmdtmjs HHS ("npnm Uan lax Wurmwm filhe ka&tlm%wm

Tor Boin 1040, b 44, or the amourt g kne 19 of tha Sohadias D Tax Wadsheet, whichaver ipaion
(s bigurect for the cegalar tax). # you cid not complete sitner workshiom i St AR 12X, onlir the
arnoun] from o 1040, ne 4% # 760 or ess, oater O (¢ yoo areling Fonr bk o P 55582,
sEe Istiuctona o the amoan lo este:

Adc be Si-arad kw57

Subtract Jing 52 et e 49. 1 200 or less, antor O

Eistar the smader o ine 48 or ke 5%

Mutitdy ke B4 by 165 (15

At s 47 and 56

H fings 56 and 36 aea the same, mm {ings 57 theough 61 md go ﬁne 82. Od\u'mn, go to lipe 57,
Suttrats o 58 hom g 46 . et e e e B . e e
Mutiply five 57 by 2096 {20)
It hng 38 s zero or blank, skip finct 59 through 61 mdectnlamw O‘Ihmr\mm. 9o ln&nnﬁn

A Snes 41, S8, and §7

Sibiract uw 59 o B 36 R

Mullip'y tne 6C by 2536 (25) .

Al www 42 55, 58, arnd 1

If lirag 756 s §7102,500 or Wad ($91.250 0 ket ﬂﬂwnﬂ flan aeparatelyl, mubiply hm 3‘3 w, ?6}

>4

Othernsa, mottiply frie 35 by 2096 L28) and subiract 33,650 (81 525 4 marrexd tlirg wmmm from tho et

Ertee tha smaslier of ¥ 52 0f e 62 here and on ke 31, Hypic are fing Form 2655 or 25557, do ot ente

U5s amonrst on i 21, kistead, enterd on Ena 4 of 1he worksneal i the ingtructions tor ing 31
ww

24
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TN 5ONAM

Additional Medicare Tax

P 1t any e does sat apply 1o you, Teave it blank. See separate Instructions.
P Attach to Form 1040, 1MONR, 1040-PR, or 1040-88.

rn 8909

Lepmmrtrart of e "Ry
Wt g Bmsmen 308 el

Harmeds) shown of rokan

MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA
Part]  Additional Medicare Tax on Medicare Wages

1 Medieare wages anc tpa from Form W 2, o s, i yeuraw
o=t Yy o Forn W2, anter Tho tani of the amounts
fombox s

Unesieoteo L fmm L #13? hn w 6

N

Wapes from Forr 88190, e €
Ak woes 1 Ugouh 3 .

¥ritgr the tolomsng snoum ko muf Ié-r»g shatus: |
Narvioct Tiaw) omily $260.000
Marand g separately $125.000

2

213,3

L.

s W

.. 250,000,

Sy, tieaa ol hossanhnid, of Cruakfying widowier). $200,0K00
a8 ‘-m'mt:! e £ ot e A Mz o8 less, anter c}

a ‘wl umuiwwumi ummo fwom E“g;he&h 3 |l~un1 I(Wh.
Sactesrs A, 4, or Soction 6. e 6. H you hada Kiss, erter
3 {Fomm 1686 1t and Form 108085 Yirs. toe USRS |
@ Fobee sy folowaneg e ount For yOr Tng eTatis:
o Tibegy poainiby S0 000
Marresdd tliof soprarately B 1T o)
Givghe, HEAA (F o sBhoic of (X M‘w'q wnctaw(et S200.000

A0 Ender the amount flomibne &

11 Subtact o 40 tont fine &, Hlﬁﬂ: mmc afﬁﬁ' l.}
42 Sablrach e © 1 oy Hoa 8, Lovo O s ender O
3 Aadimonal Medkard 1 ax o sot-omployimenrt income. Mulliply ke 12 by 0.9% rm Erm«

Tt wrnd go 1o Pat 1

LIl __Additional Medicare Tax on ﬂallrood Retirement Tax Act (RRTA) Gompensahnn
11 Ramoat retraroa (RFATA}corpensation and g (rmm J

Foemes) W22, pax 14 {sea msinsciics) 14

15 Enter the folowing Akt ks vou® Simg statis
Marripd filfing intty SHHO.000
Migprrind Aoy sopnaticly $125.000

Saipghe; Head of household, o mam st} $IXLO00 55| S
18 Skitract oo 15 trom bog T4 260 of lags, enter O
17 ASCONN Medicare T OF 1airoard reteynoeat mRTﬁ)imxmm Mumwf iy T by

D% L 0D Erver bamg anet (010 Tan IV

PartlV  Total Additional Medicare Tax_

m A W0es 7,13, an0 17, Also wekais i amont un Fonrt 1040, bne 62, Ferm 1040NA,
53 Tiers, soe fEtuch 10 Py

- AGOEE
Pan 'V __Withholding F  Reconciliation
13 Medicar 1ax withfiokd Fom Form W2, box B, I you Tsave moxe than
nom Form W-2, enter the tatad of the amounts from bax &
2 Emor the.amoust som e 1 )
21 Mudtpdy bove 20 by 1.45% ((145), This s your regidat

3,359,

1T 219,521,

3,183,

Miesheinem tax wildioldng cn Mediars wages 24 |
22 SubMiact fng 21 foen e 19, )7 2400 Op less, arter 0 mmym- M«.«uonw Methciwe Tax

withholditiy on Medcare wages
23 Mddiioral Bodgicue Tax withbokdeg o raimu rmumm TFREA uxwmzmnx ilorn Form

W2, bico 14 {3ee Instructionn)
24 Tolol Additional Medicare Tax wnthtwlding. Aad Imszzm‘d 23 NSO nc:ma Ws
amaund Wit Sederal mcome tax withhoksing on Form 1040, ke 64 (Form 1040N3, 1040-FR,

24

B_R

176.

and 104058 fibars. soe nstructions)

Traoee  LHA  For Paperwurk Reduttion Act Notice, see your tax elwrn insiructiona,
26
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MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA _ ‘ L
TABLE 1 1Kewp for your 1ecores.)

[Part1] Qealified Loan Limt

1 Enter B average batice ol a1 your grapdiatired dest Ses e ISUOCtOnS 1 -
2 Enier the average BOKNCE of ab yous hoiie SCQuiSAon Oebt See e ? Mstuciions 2 1.178,640.
9 Ener 31,000,060 1£500,200 ¥ married flng separately) 311,000,000,
& Frags (2 Jarges of the IMguaton a-1.ar the amourd el 3 ; 411,000,000,
5 Add g amounts onfines 1and 2 Eole MMM DIE L Lol e e e e i 511,178,640,
& Frder e amalies of fitg aspunt on bne 4 2 the syt on e 5 6..1,000,000,
7 Enier $100,000 ($60.000 4 rurricit g Sepaalety] o6 yous hendec aimaiwet. Sae e £ St CHAS foe A Wit 1AL riay mw ? 100,000,
i « G208 7, znter the total This iy your quafified ioan lmit 1 100,000,
Dudl. clible Homes Mortgaga Iaterent e e e
§ Coles the lomat of i averags balences of alf morigages on 4l quakiied homas, Sen dae § inskuchons g11,178,.649.
w» Hlkne 06 levs e boe &, go o do e 10, T
w iLkng 8 15 couat to 0 roore thar ine 3, stoy et AF 01 your wilerest oa ak e appntgages vickuded ko ¥ 5 detuctibne
8 home morupe nterest on Schedie i (F ormi 1640
10 Caer the thtal amensit 38 kitrrest that you pasd. See Wi 10 instructions 10 54,532,
¥ Uhvide the Aot on §1g.8 by e amsonbon e 9. Emer he resul s 3 decunsl anount tounded © tues places! . 11 a0 .933
12 bAnliphethe amnt on ke 16 by the Segimal sincut on bie 1. Enter the resyR. The < yoor dpductible home
mongage Interest. Liter (s smona: on Sehedule A boem MHA0) 12
(3 Sublaget “he smaual of e 14 FCIn e ampunk on e M Emes ibesesull. Thes S 00t ho mig margage intera s,
o3 e 13 inshetiong s s TR 15 3,654,
498"
AR
26.1
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MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA S

g e e

FORM 1040 V WAGES RECEIVED AND TAXES WITHHELD STATEMENT 1
FEDRRAL STATE CITY
T AMOUNT TAX TAX 5D1 FICA MEDICARE
5 EMPLOYER'S NAME PAID WITHHELD WITHHELD TAX W/H TAX TAX
T CANNAVEST CORP 219,521, 5%,365. 7,254. 3,359.
TOTALS 219.521. 55,365. 7,254. 3,359,
FORM 1040 QUALIFIED DIVIDENDS STATEMENT 2
ORDINARY QUALIFIRD
NAME OF PAYER DIVIDENDS DIVIDENDS
EMPLOYERS HOLDINGS INC 3.027. 3,027.
TOTAL INCLUDED TH FORM 1040, LINE 9B 3;027.
FORM 1040 FEDERAL INCOME TAX WITﬂﬂéLﬁ STATEHKRT 3
T
S DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
T CANNAVEST CORP 55, 365.
FORM E5%5, LINE 24 176.
POTAL PO FORM 1040, LINE 64 55,541,
27 STATEMENT(S) 1, 2. 3
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MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA 1. MONA

SCHEDULE A HOME MORTGAGRE INTEREST PAID TO INDIVIDUALS/
FORM 1098 RECEIVED BY OTHER THAN TAXPAYER

STATEMENT 4

NAME AND ADDRESS OF PAYRBE/FORM 1098 RECIPIENT

iDF 94-16487665 BANK OF AMBRICA, PO BOX 5170, SIMI VALLEY, CA

93062

TQTAL TO SCHEDULE &, LINE 11

AMOUNT

50,878.

50.878.

SCHEDULE A POINTS NOT REPORTED ON FPORM 1098 STATBMENT 5
AMORT.

DATE RE- TOTAL PERIOD AMORTIZATION
DESCRIPTION FINANCED PQINTS /MOS. THIS YEAR
REFINANCING 04/03/06 15,000, 120 1,500.
TOTAL TO SCHEDULE A, LINE 12 1,500.

e e S e ey
SCHEDULE A CONTRIBUTIONS OTHER THAN CASH OR CHECK STATEMENT 6
AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT

DESCRIPTION 100% LIMIT 50% LIMIT 30% LIKIT 208 LIMIT
SHADE TREE - CLOTHING & '
MISC 47s.
SUBTOTALS 475.
POTAL TO SCHEDULE A, LINE 17 475,

TR A

SCREBULE A MEDICAL AND DENTAL EAPENSES STATEMENT 7
DESCRIPTION ANOUNT

DOCTORS, DENTISTS, ATC. 4,518,
SELF®-EMPLOYED HEALTH INSURANCE 5,765.
TOTAL TO SCHEDULE A, LINE 1 10,283,

28
(ORNOTREEE  ONAN OIS 1sCNA, MICHAEL

STATEMENT(S) 4, 5, 6, 7
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MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA T

SCHEDULE A STATE AND LOCAL GENERAL SALES TAXES STATEMENT 8
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
STATE SALES TAX 802,
LOCAL SALES TAX 146.
SALES TAX PAID ON SPECIFIED I'TEMS 5,409,
POTAL TO SCHEDULE A, LINE 5 6,357.

29 STATEMENT(S) 8
G MONAM SUPRREIY MOoNA, MICHAEL MONAM_ 1

0910
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MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHOWDA H. MONA L )

e

5

SCHEDULE A GENERAL SALES TAX DEDUCTION WORKSHEET STATEMENT 9

1 ENTER YOUR STATE GENERAL SALES TAXES FROM THE
APPLICABLE TABLE, 802,
NEVADA
IF, FOR ALL, OF 2014, YOU LIVED ONLY IN CONNECTICUT,
PHR DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, INDIANA, KENTUCKY, MAINE,
MARYLAND, MASSACHUSETTS, MICHIGAN, NEW JERSEY,
OR RHODE ISLAND, SKIP LINES 2 THROUGH 5, ENTER
-0- ON LINE 6, AND GO 1Q LINE 7.
QTHERWISE, GO TO LINE 2,
DID YOU LIVR IN ALASKA, ARIZONA, ARKANSAS,
COLORADQ, GRORGIA, ILLINOIS, LOUISIANA,
MISSOURT, NRW YORK, NORTH CAROLINA,
SOUTH CAROLINA, TENNESSEE, UTAH,
VIRGINIA, OR WEST VIRGINIA IN 20147
I¥ NO, ENTER -0-.
1F YES, BNTER YOUR LOCAL GENERAL SALES
TAXES FROM THE APPLICABLE TABLE. 0-
4 DID YOUR LOCALITY IMPOSE A LOCAL GENERAL
SALES TAX IN 20147 RESIDENTS OF
CALIFORNIA AND NEVADA SER INSTRUCTIGNS.
IF NO, SKIP LINBS 3 THROUGH 5, ENTER
0- ON LINE & AND GO TO LINE 7.
1F YES, ENTER YOUR LOCAL GENERAL SALES
TAX RATE, BUT OMIT THE PERCENTAGE SIGN. 1.2500
LAS VEBGAS
4 DID YOU ENTER -0- ON LINE 2 ABOVE?
IF NO, SKIP LINES 4 AND 5 AND GO TO LINE 6.
TF YRS, ENTER YOUR STATE GENERAL SALES

b3

TAX RATE, BUT OMIT THE PERCENTAGE SIGN. 6.8500
$ DIVIDE LINE 3 BY LINE 4. ENTER THE RESULT AS
A DECIMAL (ROUNDRD TO AT LEAST THREE PLACES). .1820

6 DIP YOU BENTER -0 ON LINE 2 ABOVE?
IF NO, MULTIPLY LINE 2 BY LINE 3.

IF YES, MULTIPLY LINE 1 BY LINE 5. 146.
6A ADD LINE 1 AND LINE: 6. 948,
6B PART-YEAR DAYS RATE. 1,000000
6C MULTIPLY LINE 6A AY LINE 6B. 348,

7 ENTER YOUR GENERAL SALES TAXES PAID ON SPECIFIED ITEMS,
IF ANY. 5,408,

8 DEDUCTION FOR GENERAL SALES TAXES. ADD LINES 6C AND 7,
ENTER THE RESULT HERE AND ON SCHEDULE A, LINE 5 AND CHECK

BOX "B” ON THAT LINE. 6,357,
30 STATEMENT(S) 9
PO 0  MONAM OUEEESEES MONA , MICHAEL MONAM 1
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MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MCNA ol

SCHEDULE D ' NET LONG-TERM GAIN OR LOSS FROM STATEMENT 10
PARTNERSHIPS, S8 CORPORATIONS, AND FIDUCTIARIES

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY GAIN OR LOSS 28% GAIN
MEM VENTURES 209,077.
HER 381,834,
POTAL PO SCHEDULE D, PART II, LINE 12 599,911,
31 STATEMENT{S) 10
CPERND 110N AM SUEPEPP) 4ONA, MICHAEL MONAM__ 1
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MICHARL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA

- ===
SCHEDULE D CAPITAL LOSS CARRYOVER STATEMENT 11
1. BNTER THE AMOUNT FROM FORM 1040, LINE 41 9,441.
2. ENTER THE LOSS FROM SCHEDULE D, LINE 21, A5 A POSITIVE AMOUNT 3,000.
3. COMBINE LINES 1 AND 2. iF ZERO OR LES§, ENTER -0- a.
4. BNTER THE SMALLER OF LINE 2 OR LINE 3 a.
5. ENTER THE LOSS FROM S$CHEDULE D, LINE 7, AS A POSITIVE AMOUNT ¢
6. ENTER THE GAIN, IF ANY, FROM SCHEDULE D,
LINE 15
7. ADD LINES 4 AND 6
8. SHORT-TERM CAPITAL LOSS CARRYOVER TO NEXT YEAR.
SUBTRACT LINE 7 PROM LINE 5. IF ZERO OR LESS, BNTER ~0-
9. ENTER THE LOSS FROM SCHEDULE D, LINE 15, AS A POSITIVE AMOUNT 500,253,
10. ENTER THR GAIN, IF ANY, FROM SCHEDULE D,
LINE 7
11. SUBTHACT LINE S FROM LINE 4. IF ZERC OR LESS,
ENTER 0
12. ADD LINES 10 AND 11
13, LONG-'FERM CAPITAL LOSS CARRYOVER TO NEXT YFAR.
SUBTRACT LINE 12 FROM LINE 9. IF ZBRO OR LESS, ENTER -0- 500,253,
SCHEDULE D ALTERNATIVE MINIMUM TAX STATEMENT 12
NET LONG-TERM GAIN OR LOSS FROM
PARTNERSHIZS, § CORPORATIONS, RSTATES AND TRUSTS
GAIN
DESCRIPTION OF -ACTIVITY OR LOSS 28% GAIN
M&M VENTURES -209,077.
H&R -381,834.
FOTAL TO SCHEDULE D, PART IL. LINE 12 -590,911.
) 32 STATEMENT(S) 11, 12
CERARNEENRRE. ONAM WPREPRN 1oNA, MICHABL MONAM__ 1
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MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA R

SCHEDULE D ALTERNATIVE MINIMUM TAX STATEMENT 13
CAPITAL LOSS CARRYOVER

1. ENTER THE AMOUNT FROW PORM 6251, LINE 28 12,294,
2. ENTER THE LOSS FROM 8CH D, LINE 21, AS A POSITIVE AMOUNT 3,000,
3. COMBINE LINES 1 AND 2. IF ZERO OR LESS, ENTER -0- 15,294,
4. ENTER THE SMALLER OF LINE 2 OR LINE 3 , 3,000.

. ENTER THE LOSS FROM SCH D, LINE 7, AS A POSITIVE AMOUNT
. ENTER THE CAIN, I¥ ANY, FROM SCHEDULE D,

LINE 15
7. ADD LINES 4 AND 6
8. SHORT-TERM CAPITAL LOSS CARRYOVER TO NEXT YEAR.
SUBTRACT LINE 7 FROM LINE 5. LF ZERO OR LRSS, ENTER -0-

9. ENTER THE LOSS FROM SCH D, LINE 15, AS A POSITIVE AMOUNT 500,251,
10. ERTER THE GAIN, IF ANY, FROM SCHEDULE D,

LINE 7
11. SUBTRACT LINE 5 FROM LINER 4. (¥ ZERO OR LEHS5,

ENTER -0~ 3,4000.

12. ADD LINES 10 ARD 11 3,000.
13. LONG-TERM CAPITA] LOSS CARRYQVER TO NEXT YEAR.

SUBTRACT LINE 12 FROM LINE 9. IP ZERQ OR LESS, ENTER -0- 497,253,
SCHEDULE E INCOME OR (LOSS) FROM PARTNERSHIPS AND § CORPS STATEMENT 14
HAME

ANY
NOT X
BMPLOYER AT IF PASSIVE PASSIVE -NONPASSIVE $EC. 179 NONPASSIVE
ID RO. RISK FEN CODE LOSS INCOME LOss DEDUCTION INCOME
MONA €O DEVELOPMENT, LLC
8B-0464692 P 163,005,
M&M VENTURES LLC
20-1994%76 p 0.
H&R ACQUISITION LLC
30-0293708 P 0.
AZ 12, LLC
202989920 P g.
STRARGER THAN FICTION, LLC
20-5503879 P $3.
TOTALS TO SCH. E, LN. 29 163,098,

* ENTIRE DISPOSITION OF NONPASSIVE ACTIVITY

33 . STATEMENT(S) 13, 14
IR 1 ONAM AP ONE., MICHAEL MONAM. 1
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MICHARL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MOKRA L]

SCHEDULE B RECONCILINPION FOR REAL ESTATE PROFESSIONALS STATEMERT 15
PORM DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

SCH D/4797 M&M VENTUREBS -209,077.
SCH D/4797  HER -381,834.
TOTAL TC SCHEDULE E, LINE 43 «+590,911.

ot e )

FORM 6251 DEPRECTIATION ON ASSETS PLACED IN SERVICE AFTER 1986 STATEMENT 16

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
FROM K-1 - MONACO ' ~1,044.
TOTAL TO RPORM 6251, LINE 18 =1,044.
34 STATEMENT(S) 15, 16
STREEEERERE) MONAM 2PN HONA, MICHAEL HONAM_ 1

0915

MONA 2nd IDE « 00426

2248




DO NOT MAIL THIS FORM TO THE FTB

TAXAQLEYEAR ' e o _gy_
2014  California e-file Signature Authorization for Individuals 79

Your name T Your SSK or MIN

MICHAEL J. MOMA JR B e

Spouse's/RDS nane Spouse &HDF's SSN or IT N

RHONDA _H. MONA
Part | Tax Return Information fwhols doiters only)
1 Canornia Adjusted Sross income (Form 540, ina 17; Form 540 2£2, ling 16; Long Form S40NA, fina 32.

ot Short Form SA0NR. ke 32 oo sotemsses o oo voen T .1 _.~146,605,
2 Amount You Owe Forn 540, ine 111; Form 840 2€2. e 27. Long Form 540NR, line 121;

o Stort Form SENEL BTN e st e s s B . U
3 Refund or Na Amount Due (Form SAC, ke 116; Form 540 262, ke 28, _ong Focm S40NR, kne 126;

O Short Form SAOMI, B 125) b R S LY

Partii__ Taxpayer Declaration and Signature Authorization (Be sur you obtain ard keep a copy of yous setum

Undes penakies of pet jury. | decire that | liave maminad 3 copy of my individual lacoime tux return and accompanying schadules and stalements for the Ly yew eading.
Decomber 31, 20 14, and 10.the best of my knowdedge and beliel, i i Wnis, correst, and complete. - furliver deche hal the irformation | nrovided o ory GRCHONK retwn
origInator {HIR0), bansmatrer, of inarmedinte sevice pravides (Rcluttiog my name, =00ress, M) SOCRM SECU Ity numbes or fodividual lax identiitation aumbar) and he
amounts shown in Part Labive agros with Ina Information 300 AMDURTS s50wn.an the corrsoanthing kes of my sleckame moame tax return. If appcable, | authorize an
seckunic hnds withdeawat of the amouof on o 2 an:Vor the sstanated tix payments 25 Shown o0& iify 1ol and on foum F YR 8455, Calkiriia - fle Payment Jocord
individuals, of 8 comparabic foem; If appficable, | dectare that divect depdsit retund amount oo ine 3 agraes with Iive dieect deposit authoruzation saled pn my rewn. i1
~xave lied a it rebury, this ks a0 ingvocaoie sppamntment of toe othel Spousc/RDP 25 anagent 12 aulhorzs il CicironK: Unds WiAwal of Giecl deposit, § authorue
wiv ERO, Ransmetier, ov. inter mediate safvice provioer 10 ransimt my complote (Glurn to oo Franchea lax Boarg (+TH). B the pracessing ol my return of refund is
delayed, | aythorizs tho FTB o disticse o nry ERD, isterrmadiate service provider, and/or ransminst 1he toason{s) for e dotay o Bha date whan the refund was
seat. 1 | am fing u bakancu due Fkurn, | §ngersiand that if the FTB dovs 0l tecaive full and timaly payment of my tax Kabily, t cemsin kabie fof Ire fax Eabidy a0d al
appicable inlerest anc penaRies. | acknowiedpe that | Aave read and cansent i the Flechanic Funds Withdeawal Tonsent included on the coby of my crlanic Ncome
1ax et | havs seleciod a porsoial ontticaton aumber {PIR) as my signatwe for My elecrome incorme: tax rekis® and, Tappicable, my Pscione Fusds Withorawal
Canspal

Taxpayer's PIN: check one box only
X1 v avtoonze - WIL & COMPANY, CPA'S _ 30 poter myy PIN
ERO firm nama

as iy sgnature 20 my 2014 e-tied Califarnea indhadimel BICOMe WX ratsm.

Do not enter all zeros

T bl ool iy I ag ity Signaiess o my 2014 -l Caonnin mahvehsal neame Lax returm, Chick 1 Dax only i you are evterng yo.s own
PIN and youi “earn i fled using the Practitionar PIN method. The ERO mus; completo Past I helow,

Your signature P+ o ] Date P> 04/02/2015

Spause’s/RDP's. PiN: check one box only

[Z11outhone WILSON & COMBPANY, CPA'S . Y o
ERO fim name Do not entaw all 2er0e

as iy sigrialure off Ay 2014 ediea Caltdmis MAMOUM ¥'COMo TaX retucn

7] 1 wittertex ety PIN s my ssgnafiurs on My 20° 4 ediled Cailfornia individust inCome 18x returi. Shieck this bk only # you are entenag vour own
PN :and yous tetum s fled using ihe Fracttiorier PIN method. Thi £HO must compiolo Part 11 bolow.

SposasRDP's signature pate - 04/02/2015

Fractitionsr PIN Methacd Henans » CONNUE Delow
Part il GCertification and Authentication - ‘m&'ﬁ er PIN Mathod Only

ERO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your sixigt EFIN ‘oliowexd by your fve-digt selt-seleciad PIN. m
Do not enter i) xeros

1gerkily tat (2 ahove numenic eniry 15 my PIN, which is iy sgaalus lot the 2014 Cablosn indhsidul income @x retun for the mexpayer(s) indicated above. tapaliom
it | am subragting s rehin i1 accorlancs with e resuremals of the Practtsaner PIK metiod and FTB Pub. 1345, 20° 4 ¢-Hie Hindbock b Authorized ¢l
Browidens.

EROs sgoatus > . Date P

For Privocy Notios, gat FTB 1131 ENG/SP, FTB 8879 C2 2014

Lol
13003

s P X
TR MONAY, U0 A . MICHAEL HONRAM__ 1
0916
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' £ Ton B Ttk £ Sl ]
FORH »

TAXABLE YR . ot
2014 P e et Botura ' __Long Form 540NR
APE ) R
MONA S 14
MICHARIL J MORA JR A
RHONDA H MONA Lo A
R
2793 RED ARROW DRIVE r
[.AS VEGAS NV 89135
08-02-1954 05 13 1959
4 11 deend of bousehnil (with tualing person). S instgctions
5 1| Ouskiyeg weowlen) with dependant child Lnter ves spossed0 bt
{71 Married 0P thing separatgly. Enter spinrve SIS S5H 61 LT above and 1ul nae here e
f voor Caltrla fisng Stys & dilarent fromm Your 1a0eral Hing statos, chack fie box Wity , -
§ If somoone can claim you {01 your spouse/ROP) as 2 deperent, chii (he box e, ee NSTuttinns L 1:_:]
W “or ke 7, sz B, e 3, and line 10 Mullipzy the amount you anler in the bex by tha pres irkied dokas amount for that e, - & o aobes ceny
7 Personal; Il you checked box 1, 3, 0f 4 above. enter 1 the box. Il you checkad box 2 0r b, eater 2,
W you checked tie box on fine 5, see instruchons o 25} x$in- @5 216
8 Dllad: f you (or your spouseMDF) aie visuslly smpared, enter 1, § bofh ave visualy wmpaved, enler 2 . @l ixgwse @5
9 Sesior. 1790 {or 70ur SOCUSERDP) e b5 of wider, enter W both e o v okler et 2 s xswgs &5
0 D et r spoute/RDP.
5 Pepeadenty, 0o tot e sovrastl oL xout 0 i e
s € L Eu o ®
& b ] e .
& ® »
Yot dependeot prompbons . L e ey
t1 Exmptioh amoust AOCENS 7troUgh®e 10 . n ®s 216
12 Yol Callornia wages lomypur Fornys) W2, 00x 16 pae ®AZo .
13 Baves tedecd AL ram Forn 1040, line 47; %NJ&WZI 1IMDH m‘ lm ﬁn: 36,
g Of 10AONR-T B0 10 . ) @y 17.706. 00
£ 14 Carlorna adnssunents - sublriclions. Enter the anount feum Scncduh:(‘ak MONIT) imc 8. u.ohmmﬂ . L& o0
& 45 SchuaptWoe 14 Wom line 13,1 kess than 7ero, entyr e resplt n parentheses, Seeinskuctons. o o 0 18 77,706, o0
§ 16 Casarnia adhisiments - additons. Frtar the amousl om Schedule CA (S40NR), ine 37, cumn G B S
*; {7 Adpistod gress menme Fom ap sgurges. Combme g 15 and ine 16 - e e 7,106,
% 18 Lnigrihe fargerot Your Colfuinia hemized deductions 1om Schiedute CA IS‘IONR). ine-“ GR
v Yous Catria stawdard deduckion. See inthiuclions et 82,733, 00

Subiracs g 18 from line 17 This & your total taxabls imcoms. if less than 7ora, enter -0- @9 .. D.ge

Tt Provacy Nowe, g 118 11 E0GSP, 022 1 3131144 | T leiomsrnncizon sie1 R

' 0917
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‘ SHEOAY 08648

vow mme; MICHAEL J. MONA JR ) yoar S o v (Y
31 Tox Chock the box £ from 1. Tax Tanle 1) Tax folo Sch. #1__ JHB3800 o[ Fly 3603

37 SAadkswd gross wcome o Schedule SA (SHONR), Part V. e 45 * 32 .. ~146
35 LA laxable tneome Wom Schedule CA (SAONA), Pa %, ine 49 ¥ e
B a6 CAToxilate.Dwoeinedtoyme’ @
2 3T CRTax Defore Dxemplicn Credes. Mulwnm:!swmfm
& 38 LAExmphon Credit Peecoriage. Divide ke 35 by v 39 1Emore than enter 1000000 38 e it
B s APt Exemplion Siecis. Mulip ke 11 by ks, 1 the amount oa e 13 15 ute han
K S1IGA13, sée mstuckons, B ®a 0.0
S 46 ChReguiar TaxBeofoce Creviss, Subtract ine 30 hom tne 37, [l kg than 2ew0, anter 0 ¢
A1 Tax See wmadructions. Chooy the box itiom: o | 1 Senaduie 61 [ 1 P16 58008
47 N e and koAt
50 Norrefuncadie Chid and Depandant (e € xpaoses Uisci. See wsiruchons, Atich form ETE 3506 s 50 R .3
51 (st lo gund custidy head of lonsehold ) L . ..
52 Creddfor depangent parent St wslchons LR S T |
59 Credil e semipi hea ot buusetiokd, Ste mstibctions LA (. |
n M Gredit percanags, Divade e 3 oy b 18
3 .t than 4, el 1.0000, See wsirtons - ‘ . L D
& 55 Gredit amount See nshuctions . . " . ] . v 55
g S§ (e opddrame - cote. e awdamant @ 58
56 Frk credrome R . 4 . wanent LI .
60 ommmr.uﬂmtmuwefsﬂ».ﬁcumhucmm ______ . i e, ™ DO
61  Nomelundabi romles’s edd Seewstuuons S e UL |
62 A e S0, e 55, 00 Bz 3 through hne 1, !mmnmwuem g R
83 Sublesgt boe 87 froe e A2, s han 200 0l - L e e O OE
i
2 71 Aterazive mineam s Attach Schedur P (5AOKH) . N
3 72 Mool Heoth Soavees Tax, See instuctons. . T L - S .
§ 73 Other taxes and creda recagiure. Sex wsituctions LI 5 — .
70 Add ine B3 6 71, kne 77, and boe 7. Thiss o . 74 SR Y.

Cakninia income Dax withheld, See sl ctons

204 (A astamabsl bar and ol paainants. See mummm
Toeal estate: nd v thes withinidmg. See nvstiuctions

Pxiens SEE jor VPO wehbedl Sep insiricions

Paymerts
grges

00 W0 BT, ling B2 ling: B3 20 ko B4, Mhése ase your tolal payments @ 0.0

3 é 101 Qwerpaid tax, H e B85 s more than beve 74, subwaceine M bom e 85 & PR .
% % 102 Amint ot e 10° o want apDIRN 0 yous 2045 estemiated tax ‘ . owr W
6'§ 103 Oviszpaid tax avaiiabie s vear, Subtract v 102 fom don 01 . L1038 B
2104 7ax dor 1 me B5 s st i e 74, Subiact ine 85 hom e 74 . ) - s 0@
Bl Sz toncrom SaRICI 20N 0221 3132140 | i
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' ASI0AY 0°-08-1

Yowname MICHARL J. MONA JR ] Your SSH or 1T ANENIENEUIND
Code  Amomat

Calormm Seni g Spociai fund. Seamst.  * 400 .0 Calfgraa Gancer Reseach Fund

Alzheimes's DiseaseMelated Disorders bung - * 401 o 6 Chd Victins of Myman Tratfickiag Fund

Rare and Endangesed Hpecies Schipul Suppies tor Homeless Chisdeen Fund
Freseyvalion Progaam 103 _ . 09 Sz Parks Prolscton Fund/Parks Pass

Calfornia Dreast Cancas Research Fund * 405 00 Purch . R

Cabloena Frehighiess’ MemosialFung 408 .90 Puotect O Coast and Ceeans fund

Linergency Food kor Famibiss Tuad - 07 20 Keep Arts.in Schools Fund I

Caidornia Meaca ONficer Memoral Amexican Aed Crass, Catdornia Chaplers (o ®
foundationFund - L S 408 o 20  Caiboimia Semar L egisiatire Fund

Calornia Sea Jtier Funa sy 00 Habita g Hunaody Fund

Cablosa Sexual Viokence Vict Sevicts
fund

170 _Add code 400 pugn cods 429, This is yout olal conbution e, b P S
121 AMOUNT YOU OWE, Add bine 104 and lne 120. See inskucsions. Do sot sead cash,
e 121

Mait 10: FRANGHRSE TAX S0ARD, PO BOX 842867, SACRAMENTO CA $4267-0001 st e

y Unliee - Lo to i fov e slormabon, .

122 Interesst, fate return penalties, and lte paymeit perives BT P L LW

123 Underpaviment of sstimated tax, Chock e box | FTB 5005 atisched ® | FTB S805F atached oy
124 Towl unount due. Ses insiuctions, Enchse, bul do sol stap any paymenl . 1

intecest and] Amount
Pengitisa [You

125 REFUND OR %0 AMOUNT DUE ‘Sublract linc 120 rom Soe. 103
Mad 1o FRANGINSE TAX BOARD, PO BOX 942040, SACRAMENTO CA 04240-0001 .. .. *128 0.

§ £# w the sormalion 10 authostoe deec: depasit of your refumd inke one o o 1ctounts. Do pol 20tach a vouded chock of A deposd 5Up. See istruclions.

2 mnmmﬁmmrauungmdmaumﬂmmm:m.

3 Al o the oliswmng ampont of my teluad ting 125} is autioraed for dicect Seposi into 1he account shown betow:

g . Savegs . .|
« Routing number o Type » Actount numther » 126 Drect deposit amunl

E The reaaining smoust alimy refund (ke 125} is autorized lor direct deposh i Ihe account showt. o,

> L___J Checking

- {7 savogs 00

» Boubng pumber oType o ficount pumbes @ 127 Dicec] deposil amwounl

|MPORTANT, Attach a copv of yous  fedo o relwin.

Undes penalties of perjury, | deckere thak | ave axaminad Lhis Bx retum, INCKIIRG CCOMPATYNG sehetiies atit stakemments, 2 lo the best of dry kngedetige and bebet, it

i irisg, Cotrect, 3nd ORI - S .
Your signatire ; - Dale ‘ Tpause S0P 5 signaturd (K E jom tax telirn, Bolf iwst sgn)
% X
gﬁgn " Youw e aditess (DoUOnalS. Enter oaW ome emall agdress. ) Taytime phone numizer (00tional)
Here a0 prepaiers sigratne [deciaratios of preparer is based on ail information of which preparer has any knowledge)
olrgn Firmi's name (of yours, f soit-empkyyed) ~ ’ » SN
weramn W IE Y
s gumes, WILSON & COMPANY, CPA'S P01227966

Firm 5 address P
octmani 2688 §. RAINBOW BLVD, STE LAS VEGAS, NV 891456 88-0340469
Soo petvmtens 0o wank 10 allow aR0INGE P0ES0R 0 GCuss g tax returm with us? (See insmuckans) e [Xves _ ko

Print Third Parly Designes’s Name Teleshons Number

EDWARD A WILJON S -

[ | ol a13nias T Timeensemcioy sk: N
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e A e e
AXABLE YEM California Adjustments - - T
2014 Nonresidents or Part-Year Residents CA [540NR)
TABCIATE ARsch H% schietiule befnnd | ong Fosm AT, S48 3 a8 & SUppIY g Calorna schedule, i
Nagried) as shiva on tax tehun 5

MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA _
Parti A Rcddmylmrmkl 7‘ lummlairpmhmaldmumum

Cvowst

Duting 2014;
1 & twasdomcied 0 enter siale of coumbry? ‘Q “EVABA S A
0 1 wasn e miitkary it staboaed i (onier stabeor wumﬂi) R & N gf et
2 1 ograme  Sikteenin sesidardiar i oo dobe G Suupdry OF R GERGRE 9P S0 @ rkaey OWN ,ﬁm e .
3 Ihecame d norresidentisnier new stats o couotry oftesdense and dalz ol awve) & N/A .
4 b was g nomesden) of Calforig the entire yoa (enter stife o counlry of resigence) (B NV
% Hhe anoer of days | spem in Caslornia (foe apy 29p0se) s R N/R e
8 1 wndd 3 wompaproporty i Castneriy (ented Yas"on HeT & N O
fetors 2014
T § was g Caldormia cesubent fon 1he perod of (eptae ibares as aur/alyyYy) ICRETEY i
B 1 efviicd Callarma on fentz: Ju12 a8 mvVdyyyy) O NID ML._. -
Q_ileh Caldotnia pe fenter gale a5 mimvdyyvy . IR & N/R % N/
# rt I income AdiumentSchedule A | R R 13 I R
Federal Amounis Sublragtans Adtitions Total Amossts Usisg CA CA Amounls
taxable amounts Spe instructions Sensyuctons | LOwARHYox Weren § drome saned o ek mite 3
O Yo Tederal (didrgnce bobwotny [dfnence etwees CA Resident et VoM Kb S2LREE
QCERHT) CA & feor3! awl A A todera taw) il w5 A eIV
7 Wapes, sslarics, s, Ci. Se0 : e
Bshictong bokws making
amenymest e 71%® 219,521.|® & & 219,521.0%
8 Razablendpsesl
" OBz 21,2568 * ® 41,256.1®
8 Uyosary dhitends.
w® 3,027, )@ 3,0274® & @ 3,02708 o
10 Tanhit tc:t‘uuasuc-edn%w :
mnnﬁxn w® L] - L E
1 Awnony cesened I » L ® e
12 Guseess ncome o (s3] 12§® . & & . N £ N
13 Capitai gan o1 (lass) aj® 3,000.4® o -3,000.]®
14 e gams ot gosses) A ® ® ® ®»
15 HA drsadiulibng,
e e e B M i B i
18 Pensions and anmitics.
w e Lk BT * N
L] QI TU U P l
5 omnhiny i, L v@ 163,098, & 00 I®
18 farm moome of (1ss) we @ e i
19 (meapoyma corpemator 19 @ L T L : : = skt s
20 Socki sezutty berels, e - BN
We ___ om® Lk T
21 Other income.
3 Califoris oty winoings 1 @ 1
B verm opcamcrm tar Th MY » @ ]
2 Feasw i3, ey Wab w29 T LY T
dsiommarennesne  2|® - ld & a o @& u® 146,605,
& W hoon FTI WO
"ﬂi‘w FTE 3808, N @& °
FUB 3N o TTR M0 =
L L ) . 1 & e
72 5 Totak Zoempeom Tieilerdt ; ‘ ‘
et camani 200 7T, 70_—5_71@} ] iL3 I@ 77,106 & ~-146,605.
B o P roe g FTE VI ERGSE. 022 | 7741144 i Scnohen 04 eaony 2014 sice 8 IR
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‘ Schedule D and Capital Loss Carryover Worksheets for B 2014

Californias Nonresidents and Part-Year Residents »
Namels) 23 shawn o1 tetn " Social scvrdy sutobey

MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA i

Schedute D Workshest
Y 8 e () B
Eehes o) amourEs T tiner amowns Entos amounts Erdes Dol is Fotal
ax iy wore 3 CA ey rend OF roceived caned or retiwed aErint Of rooeed Combiinw coharne
rasitent for Ihe trom CA sources as  dunng the portion of from CA sourcs | g O,
onlire yoor. VO wers 3 109 Yo Yo WerR during thes pertigey
nonresident foe the 4 CA regirdant, ol the yoar you
antiro year. wing.4a
ke S — nowesident, .
o 90,6580 A
) . ~599,911, :
B : Poge yew osg
OO Do b i RN i S ST
4 | Gombing hows i
| heounh ~500, A3 ..
6 | Evtor the sivabor of
thi WS ot line 40 A
$3,000 ($1.60 4 ‘
mavnod {ing ) e B
;”mal@} PR 3 7] 0 Oﬂ‘ : SR -5 S, P : e P
Cwmll!.mg Carryover Worlmmm ALL SQ_QRC&S
‘ stgunhsulmniw werkshoot tor Schedubi {1, mnnimgmm 3,000,
Acrewrs ram Form SA0R, e 17 ) 77.706.
A Ay rom Form S40NA, w18 o : . . 82,733,
. Mmmlm?ﬁwnm&lﬂw%mmug“_mmaw R 5,027,
somtang ke 3 ang bie 4. ks than raic, entes o i . X 0.
Luas frren e 4, Sch D workstwel for Sctwshs 0 e B} - 500,253,
¥ | Enter the unalor of lne t or fine 5 RS - ] I
8 er'mmm&hns:ﬂmrcmwmwm@_?g 500,253,

(,mim Luss (“Jarymm Wurtamm

38 from bre 4, 5cn Dwmwjmmmmc ﬁuéé*
T fn&mtmnmsmdisuofmq

AT
S

6.1
PPN HONAM SN 11, MICHAEL MONAM__1
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' 35050 A8
ANAER L !U}f' (;:,:!;(Ilm FOA
2014 Net Operating Loss (NOL) Computation and NOL and 3805V

Disaster Loss Limitations - Individuals, Estates, and Trusts
Attach 10 your California tax rotien, ] i o Lsswerti .

Hatneds) a5 showay 5o rehn

FEIN

L.J. MONA JR & RHOND& H. MONA

Part | Compunation of Cartant Yeur NOL Jor Individusle, Eokates, and Trusts. 18 you do it hiavea covent year NG g ot it R
Section A ~Cililoreia Residents nly (Nonresiderts pa to Secton B}
1 Adasiad pross mcamme fiom 2014 Foern 541, ¥ne 17, o vogalret, ust 'asaﬁuh

Folites and Teasts, begn 2 dpe} . o
7 Vpomcsd deduchions o staradisd deducion kmtiﬁ)“ lwn 'M me G e e i e g [
3 @ Combine Sog Y and b 7 (Fslates ang Trugss, enser lrabyie e oo, wn mhm:mm l lun'ualm [ bmh-h‘
1t posiive, eiles -0 here a0 o tine 25; Do sot compkes e eest of Sachion & Yow dn a0l bave 2 Coveanl yoxt HiE .
Comgplete Part 4 and Pant 5o you bawe @ canryorer lrok Do years . .9
b P04 Grsiguated disasr fogy mckited e 3a. Eniir a3 a pusdne nusilies ow
¢ Combine ke 32 and bne 30, It negatse, Use bragkyts and cortinue W Wae i, 11 ot o rrfua du ol umuuhw un rest ol
Srar) | ¥ dlex The 2mnount trom e b, tany, PR, e 3, colmn {d) and complele Park il wnd Parl 1! a5 sshigcles ¥
Enter gnounts O line 4 theough Bng 24 as J Iney warg al powitive rumbers. Set axshie bons
§ Nonbyginess 2apilal ogses 4 e
5 Monbusiness saptal gaing o LI 00
& ¥ lme 4.5 e s vig b, enlig the ml!wmce, aherske, ke & i o)
T ¥ ime 35 sessihan bow 5, anter the dliirincs; atherwisp, ene -C- I [64]
§ Nesyusitess deoicbons [ L
9 Runbusaiess meome other Ban sapkal gans ] R :
10 Aodime?andlned o L T, -
{1 i line B 15 move than iee i, eter tie ‘kﬂum citirwise, epter v "
12 Bom bim mok thar 1w 4, w1 1l 2 S AR T, STt L 12 o0
13 Buspess Zapai sses . L5 3
14 Bespess -pdd gras . . L 14
15 Ago doe 1) 209 b 14 K
16 i lng 13 & more than bine 15, enter the dderence; ulwrwise, ciles - w
17 Agdtiee § and ime 15 . . L« <3

18 Euter the 9ss, 't any, trum msu!xnme D{s—m\ Eslaies a9 Teysts, entss 118 Bss, r#any
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2014 Income from Passthroughs " CA ALL-SOURCES

MONA CO DEVELOPMENT, LLC
I.0. NUMBER: Wiy

TAXABLE INCOME {(LOSS) SUMMARY:

NONPASSIVE LDOSS ALLOWED ~163,005
NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR ENTITY T716%,605
ACTIVITY INFORMATION:
KONACO
ORDINARY INCOME (LOSS) -163,00%
TOTAL NONPASSIVE GAIN (LOSS) ' -163,60%
£
10.1
CUTEEER0  MONAM GTEEREd MONA, MICHAEL MONAM 1
0927
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2259




2014 Income from Passthroughs

CA ALL-SOURCES

STRANGER THAN FICTION, LLC
I.D. NUMBER:

TAXABLE INCOME (LOSS) SUMMARY:
NONPASSIVE LOSS ALLOWED
NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR ENTITY
ACTIVITY INFORMATYIOMN:
STRANGER THAN FICTION

ORDINARY INCOME (LOSS)

93

-93
-93

TOTAL NONPASSIVE GAIN (LOSS)

a;?-‘!l
10.2
URASARNREEEND }ONAM CEENNRNERPONA . MICHABL

-93

MONAM 1
70928
MONA 2nd JDE - 00439
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MICHAEL J. MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA

CA SCHEDULE CA " QTHER ADJUSTMENTS STATEMENT 1
X IF ROT
' SUBJECT TO 2%
DESCRIPTION OF AGI LIMIT AMOUN'T
MEDICAL/DENTAL BXPENSE ADJUSTMENT 1,943,

TOTAL TO SCHEDULE CA(540¥R). LINE 41

1,943.

CA 3805V LINE 8 - NONBUSINESS DEDUCTIONS STATEMENT 2
DBSCRIPTION AMOUNT
CALIFORNIA ITEMIZED DERDUCTIONS 82,733,
TOTAL TO 3805V, LINE 8 82,733.
[ —

CA 3805v

NONBUSINESS INCOME

STATEMENT 3

DESCRIPTION

INTERBEST INCOME
DIVIDEND INCOME

TOTAL TO FORM 3805V, LINE 9

PR MONAM

11
SRR MONA, MICHAEL

AMOUNT

21,256,
3,027,

24,283,

STATEMENT(S) 1, 2, 3

1
0929

MONAM__

MONA 2nd JDE - 00440
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ALTERNATIVE MINIMUM TAX
AMOLY, 1710 14

2014 Net Operating Loss (NOL) Computation and NOL and 3805V
Disaster Loss Limitations - Individuals, Estates, and Trusts
Antach to your California tax return. )
Karneis) 25 Shown on telien

SSNaor (TN

FEIM

MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA
élgji{ eo-uE:TuTmolmmYurlm fot Indviduais, Esintas, and Trusis. llmoonmmnmrmm' 4wm!’mu.
SocﬂmA ~ Galiboraia Residents Only (Norwesidents g0 to Sazsion 9.)
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1l postive, entes 4+ bere and on ine 25, Do not complese the restof Section A You 40 ! have 3 current yeu MK
Camplele Part 11 200 Pact 1 you have a cartyoves bomprioryvews B OB
& 2014 designated disaster 063 included i Ene 3. Lrdex &8 A poskive oumbe: — oo
¢ - Gombme e 33 ane ine 3. 4 pegatve, use brackets ang continye 10 e 4. §f rer0 nr mnm m uulcmwl:l: !h:rtsl o
Fart 1. Emer the amount rom 1k b, it any, in Part #, See 3, columin (d) and complee Part H and Fart tif as instrucied 3
Friter amounis on Boe 4 1neough ling 24 a5 & they were al pesitive numpers, Soe inslisctions.
Nonbusiness capial lsses 4 Lo

Konbusioess capdaigamy R UIO. .

it fing 48 maue Ihan e 5, mwﬁudﬂuuumm-ﬂ-
160ng 4 is less than kg 5, enier the dilference; olherwiss, enter -0-
Noobusmess deductions . B
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10 Addkne7andlned
1 nmnsmemmmmmmmnmumn- : L . " 00
12 0 e 8 boce T bee 13 arisr e ilrinam ofverwind, ek . 12 00
13 Busingss raokal losses ‘ e Y X
14 Qugmess capeal gains e . 00
15 Ado bive 12 and e 74 » RN -
1§ | kne 13 b5 07 than tne 15, emmmwmmmm-ﬂ‘ et v e e
7 Age Wng £ and line 16 ) I L
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troven fwie 9; cokann (c), of Scheduk 3 (5411, 1 you da not have 2. 0ss on thal ine, Skig Boe 18
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W om o Th A

lslz's
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JROY 1214

Section C - Election o Waive Cairybsck

A1) Check the box i the Individual, Estate, o Trust elcets 1 Telinquistl the entire camyliack o0n0d with jespect o 2 20° ANOL order mcw n?z'nxa By
making the election, Ihe individuad, Estaie, or Trest s secting & canry an HOL torward instead of carrying 2 back in the previous we years. Onice the slection &

made, i & Frevocalie. See nsiructions.

Continue mift P 1, Determne 2014 toddied Taxable Income [MT1) and P2t 11, HOL Carrvoves and Disasier Loss Cairyoves Limaations, (o wot conpiete Farl

IV, ROL Carrvbacs,

Part il
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MICHAEL J, MONA JR & RHONDA H. MONA L Y

CA 3805V AMT ALTERNATIVE MINIMUM TAX ITEMIZED DEDUCTIONS STATEMENT 4
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
FORM S4ONR, LINE 18 82,733,
PERSONAL AND REAL PROPERTY TAXES AMT ADJUSTMENT -19,675.
TOTAL TO 3B05Y AMT, LINE 2 63,058.

11.5 STATEMENT(S) 4
QPURERSEEE (  MONAN RPN ONA, MICHAEL MONAM.__ 1
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

MICHAEL J. MONA, JR., an individual,

Appellant,

VS.

FAR WEST INDUSTRIES, a California

corporation,

Respondent.

Case No.© 73815 Electronically Filed
Jan 09 2018 04:33 p.m.

Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Appeal from the Eighth Judicial District
Court, The Honorable Joe Hardy
Presiding.

APPELLANT’S APPENDIX

(Volume 10, Bates Nos. 2128-2367)

Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Terry A. Coffing, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 4949
Tye S. Hanseen, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 10365
Tom W. Stewart, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14280
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
tcoffing@maclaw.com
thanseen@maclaw.com
tstewart@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Appellant

Docket 73815 Document 2018-01239



INDEX TO APPELLANT’S APPENDIX

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Application of Foreign Judgment (filed 10/1812) Volume 1
Bates Nos. 1-7
Notice of Filing Application of Foreign Judgment & Volume 1

Affidavit (filed (10/23/12)

Bates Nos. 8-17

Far West Industries’ Ex Parte Motion for Order Allowing
Examination of Judgment Debtor (filed 01/17/13)

Volume 1
Bates Nos. 18-19

Exhibit to Far West Industries’ Ex Parte
Motion for Order Allowing Examination of
Judgment Debtor

Exhibit | Document Description

A Affidavit of John R. Hawley, Esq. in Support of
Ex Parte Motion for Examination of Judgment
Debtor

Volume 1
Bates Nos. 20-22

Minute Order re: Recusal and Reassignment-no hearing
held (filed 01/24/13)

Volume 1
Bates Nos. 23

Order for Appearance of Judgment Debtors (filed 01/30/13)

Volume 1
Bates Nos. 24-25

Exhibit to Order for Appearance of Judgment
Debtors

Exhibit | Document Description

A List of Documents and Things to be Produced at | Volume 1
Debtor’s Examination Bates Nos. 2631
Amended Order for Appearance of Judgment Debtors (filed | Volume 1

02/06/13)

Bates Nos. 32-33

Notice of Examination of Judgment Debtor on an Order
Shortening Time (filed 02/13/13)

Volume 1
Bates Nos. 34-38

Exhibits to Notice of Examination of Judgment
Debtor on an Order Shortening Time

Exhibit | Document Description

A Application of Foreign Judgment (filed 10/18/12) | Volume 1
Bates Nos. 3944
B Order for Appearance of Judgment Debtors (filed | Volume 1

01/30/13)

Bates Nos. 45-53




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Notice of Examination of Judgment
Debtor on an Order Shortening Time (cont.)
C Amended Order for Appearance of Judgment Volume 1
Debtors (filed 02/06/13) Bates Nos. 54-56
Second Amended Order for Appearance of Judgment Volume 1
Debtors (filed 02/20/13) Bates Nos. 57-58
Amended Order for Examination of Judgment Debtor (filed | Volume 1
04/29/13) Bates Nos. 59-61
Motion for Order to Show Cause Regarding Contempt on | Volume 1
Order Shortening Time (filed 05/21/13) Bates Nos. 6272
Exhibits to Motion for Order to Show Cause
Regarding Contempt on Order Shortening
Time
Exhibit | Document Description
A Collective documents domesticating a California | Volume 1
judgment Bates Nos. 73—80
B Order for Appearance of Judgment Debtors (filed | Volume 1
01/30/13) Bates Nos. 81-90
C Emails re dates for examination of judgment Volume 1
debtors Bates Nos. 91-94
D Emails re dates for examination of judgment Volume 1
debtors Bates Nos. 95-96
E Amended Order for Examination of Judgment Volume 1
Debtor (filed 04/29/13) Bates Nos. 97-100
F Affidavit of John Hawley, Esq. in Support of Volume 1
Order Shortening Time Bates Nos. 101-103
G Letter from Tye Hanseen re: no longer Volume 1
representing Mr. Mona Bates Nos. 104-105
H Transcript re nonappearance of Michael J. Mona | Volume 1
for examination of judgment debtor. Bates Nos. 106-109
Special Appearance and Objection to Further Proceedings | Volume 1
on Order to Show Cause Predicated Upon Lack of Personal | Bates Nos. 110-116
Jurisdiction (filed 05/30/13)
Supplemental Points and Authorities Regarding a Lack of | Volume 1
Personal Jurisdiction (filed 06/18/13) Bates Nos. 117-125




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION

Reply in Support of Motion to Order to Show Cause Re Volume 1
Contempt (filed 06/28/13) Bates Nos. 126129
Order to Show Cause (filed 07/10/13) Volume 1

Bates Nos. 130132
Stipulation and Order (filed 07/26/13) Volume 1

Bates Nos. 133—-136
Notice to Vacate Examination of Judgment Debtors (filed | Volume 1
9/10/13) Bates Nos. 137-139
Order (filed 10/07/13) Volume 1

Bates Nos. 140-142
Notice of Examination of Judgment Debtor (filed 10/31/13) | Volume 1

Bates Nos. 143—145
Return and Answer to Writ of Garnishment as to Cannavest | Volume 1
Corp. (filed 12/26/13) Bates Nos. 146-147

Exhibits to Return and Answer to Writ of
Garnishment as to Cannavest Corp.
Exhibit | Document Description
I Writ of Garnishment Volume 1

Bates Nos. 148—154
Notice of Changes to Transcript of Judgment Debtor Volume 1
Examination of Michael J. Mona Jr. (filed 01/06/14) Bates Nos. 155-158
Discovery Commissioners Report and Recommendations Volume 1
(filed 05/15/14) Bates Nos. 159-162
Notice of Entry of Order Regarding the Discovery Volume 1
Commissioner’s Report and Recommendation (filed Bates Nos. 163—-168
05/15/14)
Ex Parte Application for Examination of Judgment Debtor | Volume 1
Examination of Michael J. Mona, Individually, and as Bates Nos. 169-172

Trustee of the Mona Family Trust Dated February 12,
2002, and Rhonda Mona as Trustee of the Mona Family
trust Dated February 12, 2002 (filed 05/08/15)




Exhibits to Ex Parte Application for
Examination of Judgment Debtor Examination
of Michael J. Mona, Individually, and as
Trustee of the Mona Family Trust Dated
February 12, 2002, and Rhonda Mona as
Trustee of the Mona Family trust Dated
February 12, 2002

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Definitions Volume 1
Bates Nos. 173—-179
Order Regarding Motion for Protective Order on Order Volume 1
Shortening Time (filed 06/17/15) Bates Nos. 180182
Notice of Entry of Order Regarding Motion for Protective Volume 1
Order on Order Shortening Time (filed 06/17/15) Bates Nos. 183-187
Ex Parte Application for Order to Show Cause why Volume 1
Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should not be Subject to Bates Nos. 188-204
Execution and Why the Court Should Not Find the Monas in
Contempt (filed 06/29/15)
Exhibits to Ex Parte Application for Order to
Show Cause why Accounts of Rhonda Mona
Should not be Subject to Execution and Why the
Court Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Post-Marital Property Settlement Agreement Volume 1
Bates Nos. 205-217
2 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Mona | Volume 1
Bates Nos. 218223
3 Rough Draft Transcript of Deposition of Rhonda Volume 1
H. Mona Bates Nos. 224-233
4 Judgment and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of | Volume 2
Law Bates Nos. 234-254
Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of Rhonda Mona Volume 2
should not be Subject to Execution and Why the Court Bates Nos. 255-257

Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed 06/30/15)




Notice of Entry of Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of | Volume 2
Rhonda Mona Should not be Subject to Execution and Why | Bates Nos. 258-263
the Court Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed
06/30/15)
Response to Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of Rhonda | Volume 2
Mona should not be Subject to Execution and Why the Court | Bates Nos. 264-278
Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed 07/07/15)
Exhibits to Response to Order to Show Cause
Why Accounts of Rhonda Mona should not be
Subject to Execution and Why the Court
Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt
Exhibit | Document Description
A Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law (filed Volume 2
03/06/12 in Superior Court of California Bates Nos. 279-295
Riverside)
B Post-Marital Property Settlement Agreement Volume 2
Bates Nos. 296-308
C Declaration of Mike Mona in Support of Response | Volume 2
to Order to Show Cause Bates Nos. 309-310
Supplement to Response to Order to Show Cause Why Volume 2
Accounts of Rhonda Mona should not be Subject to Bates Nos. 311-316
Execution and Why the Court Should Not Find the Monas in
Contempt (filed 07/08/15)
Declaration in Support of Request for Contempt (filed Volume 2
07/08/15) Bates Nos. 317-324
Order Regarding Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of Volume 2
Rhonda Mona should not be Subject to Execution and Why | Bates Nos. 325-335
the Court Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed
07/15/15)
Notice of Entry of Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of | Volume 2
Rhonda Mona should not be Subject to Execution and Why | Bates Nos. 336-349
the Court Should Not Find the Monas in Contempt (filed
07/16/15)
Motion to Compel Application of Particular Assets Toward | Volume 2
Satisfaction of Judgment (filed 07/16/15) Bates Nos. 350-360




Exhibits to Motion to Compel Application of
Particular Assets Toward Satisfaction of
Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Volume 2
Mona, Jr. Bates Nos. 361-370
2 Deposition of Rhonda Mona Volume 2
Bates Nos. 371-376
Plaintiff’s Memorandum of Fees and Costs Associated with | Volume 2
Order to Show Cause Why Accounts of Rhonda Mona Bates Nos. 377-380
should Not be Subject to Execution and Why the Court
Should Not Find Monas in Contempt (filed 07/20/15)
Motion on an Order Shortening Time for Bond Pending Volume 2
Appeal (filed 09/09/15) Bates Nos. 381-391
Exhibits to Motion on an Order Shortening
Time for Bond Pending Appeal
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Order (filed 08-31-15) Volume 2
Bates Nos. 392-395
2 Judgment (filed 04/27/12 in the Superior Court of | Volume 2
California Riverside Bates Nos. 396414
3 Deed of Trust Volume 2
Bates Nos. 415-422
4 Deed of Trust with Assignment of Rents Volume 2
Bates Nos. 423430
Opposition to Motion on an Order Shortening Time for Volume 2
Bond Pending Appeal (filed 09/16/15) Bates Nos. 431439
Exhibits to Opposition to Motion on an Order
Shortening Time for Bond Pending Appeal
Exhibit | Document Description
A Order (filed 08/31/15) Volume 2
Bates Nos. 440—443
B Transcript of Proceedings of July 9, 2015 Hearing | Volume 2
(filed 07/14/15) Bates Nos. 444447
C Third Amended Complaint (filed 07/15/14) Volume 2

Bates Nos.

448459




Exhibits to Opposition to Motion on an Order
Shortening Time for Bond Pending Appeal

(cont.)
D Complaint (filed 09/11/15) Volume 2
Bates Nos. 460473
E Far West’s Motion to Intervene, for a finding and | Volume 3
Order that the Post-Marital Agreement is void Bates Nos. 474-517
Based on the Principles of Res Judicata and Issue
Preclusion, and that the Plaintiff and Defendant are
Jointly Liable for the Judgment Held by Intervenor
(filed 09/04/15)
Second Motion to Compel Application of Particular Assets | Volume 3
Towards Satisfaction of Judgment (filed 10/12/15) Bates Nos. 518-524
Exhibits to Second Motion to Compel
Application of Particular Assets Towards
Satisfaction of Judgment
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Mona, | Volume 3
Jr Bates Nos. 525-531

2 Order Granting Temporary Stay (filed 07/20/15) Volume 3
Bates Nos. 532534

3 Order (filed 08/31/15) Volume 3
Bates Nos. 535-538

4 Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15) Volume 3
Bates Nos. 539-545

Order Regarding Motion on an Order Shortening time for Volume 3
Bond Pending Appeal (filed 10/16/15) Bates Nos. 546-553

Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion for Determination of Volume 3
Priority of Garnishment (filed 02/16/16) Bates Nos. 554-563

Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

1 Judgment (filed 04/27/12 in the Superior Court of | Volume 3
the State of California, Riverside) Bates Nos. 564567




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment (cont.)

2 Case Summary Volume 3
Bates Nos. 568-570
3 Writ of Execution Volume 3
Bates Nos. 571-575
4 Instructions to the Sheriff/Constable-Clark County | Volume 3
Bates Nos. 576589
5 Writ of Garnishment Volume 3
Bates Nos. 590-598
6 Email Chain between Tom Edward and Tye Volume 3
Hanseen Bates Nos. 599-602
7 Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/2015) Volume 3
Bates Nos. 603—609
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion: (1) For Default Volume 3
Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for Untimely Bates Nos. 610-622
Answers to Writ of Garnishment and Interrogatories; and (2)
to Compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of Payment
Made to, on Behalf of, or for the Benefit of Michael J.
Mona, Jr. (filed 02/16/16)
Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion: (1) For Default Judgment Against Roen
Ventures, LLC for Untimely Answers to Writ of
Garnishment and Interrogatories; and (2) to
Compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of
Payment Made to, on Behalf of, or for the
Benefit of Michael J. Mona, Jr.
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Judgment (filed 04/27/12 in the Superior Court of | Volume 3
the State of California, Riverside) Bates Nos. 623—-626
2 Management Agreement Volume 3
Bates Nos. 627-630
3 Management Agreement Volume 3
Bates Nos. 631-635
4 Writ of Execution Volume 3
Bates Nos. 636—641
5 Instructions to the Sheriff/Constable-Clark County | Volume 3

Bates Nos.

642-656




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion: (1) For Default Judgment Against Roen
Ventures, LLC for Untimely Answers to Writ of
Garnishment and Interrogatories; and (2) to
Compel Roen Ventures, LLLC’s Turnover of
Payment Made to, on Behalf of, or for the
Benefit of Michael J. Mona, Jr. (cont.)

6 Writ of Garnishment Volume 3
Bates Nos. 657-676
Plaintiff Far West Industries” Motion to Reduce Sanctions Volume 3
Order to Judgment (filed 02/19/16) Bates Nos. 677-679
Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed
02/19/16)
Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far
West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions
Order to Judgment
Exhibit | Document Description

1 Order Regarding Order to Show Cause Why Volume 3
Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should Not Be Subject | Bates Nos. 680—691
to Execution and Why the Court Should Not Find
Monas in Contempt (filed 07/15/15) (cont. in Vol.

4)

2 Plaintiff's Memorandum of Fees and Costs Volume 3
Associated With Order to Show Cause Why Bates Nos. 692696
Accounts of Rhonda Mona Should Not be Subject
to Execution and Why the Court Should Not Find
Monas in Contempt (filed 07/20/15)

3 Transcript of Show Cause Hearing: Why Accounts | Volume 4
Of Rhonda Mona Should Not Be Subject To Bates Nos. 697-807
Execution And Why The Court Should Not Find
Monas In Contempt (filed 07/14/15)

4 Petition for Writ of Mandamus or Prohibition (filed | Volume 4
07/17/15) Bates Nos. 808—849

5 : Volume 4
Order Granting Temporary Stay (filed 07/20/15) Bates Nos. 850852

6 Volume 4

Order (filed 10/16/15)

Bates Nos

. 853-856




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far
West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions
Order to Judgment (cont.)

7 . : Volume 4
Order Denying Motion (filed 11/19/15) Bates Nos. 857-860
8 Volume 4
Motion to Dismiss (filed December 4, 2015) Bates Nos. 861941
Volume 5
Bates Nos. 942957
9 Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr.’s Reply in Support |Volume 5
of Motion to Dismiss (filed 01/26/16) Bates Nos. 958978
Amended Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Volume 5
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment |Bates Nos. 979-981
(filed 02/22/16)
Exhibits to Amended Appendix of Exhibits to
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion to Reduce
Sanctions Order to Judgment
Exhibit | Document Description
4 Petition for Writ of Mandamus or Prohibition (filed |Volume 5
07/17/15) Bates Nos. 982-1023
Mona’s Opposition to Far West’s Motion for Determination |Volume 5
of Priority of Garnishment and Countermotion to Discharge |Bates Nos. 1024-1053
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 03/04/16)
Exhibits to Mona’s Opposition to Far West’s
Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Countermotion to Discharge
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds
Exhibit | Document Description
A Writ of Garnishment Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1054-1060
Third Party Roen Ventures, LLCs’ Opposition to Motion: Volume 5
(1) For Default Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for |Bates Nos. 1061-1080

Untimely Answers to Writ of Garnishment and
Interrogatories; and (2) to Compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s
Turnover of Payment Made to, on Behalf of, or for the
Benefit of Michael J. Mona, Jr.; and Countermotion for
Attorney’s Fees and Costs (filed 03/04/16)




Exhibits to Third Party Roen Ventures, LLCs’
Opposition to Motion: (1) For Default
Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for
Untimely Answers to Writ of Garnishment and
Interrogatories; and (2) to Compel Roen
Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of Payment Made
to, on Behalf of, or for the Benefit of Michael J.
Mona, Jr.; and Countermotion for Attorney’s
Fees and Costs

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Declaration of Bart Mackay in Support of Volume 5
Opposition to Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Bates Nos. 1081-1090
Motion: (1) for Default Judgment Against Roen
Ventures, etc.
2 Declaration of Dylan Ciciliano in Support of Volume 5
Opposition to Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Bates Nos. 1091-1102
Motion: (1) for Default Judgment Against Roen
Ventures, etc.
3 Complaint (filed 02/07/14) Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1103—-1110
4 Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement (filed  |Volume 5
11/10/15) Bates Nos. 1111-1144
5 Notice of Entry of Order (01/29/16) Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1145-1151
6 Motion to Dismiss the Roen Defendants with Volume 5
Prejudice (filed 03/03/16) Bates Nos. 1152-1171
7 Writ of Garnishment Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1172—-1179
8 Management Agreement Volume 5
Bates Nos. 1180-1184
Mike Mona’s Opposition to Motion to Reduce Sanctions Volume 6
Order to Judgment (filed 03/07/16) Bates Nos. 1185-1192
Non—Party Rhonda Mona’s Opposition to Plaintiff Far West |Volume 6
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment |Bates Nos. 1193-1200

(filed 03/07/16)




Exhibits to Non-Party Rhonda Mona’s
Opposition to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
A Defendant’s Opposition to Countermotion for Volume 6
Summary Judgment (filed 01/19/16) Bates Nos. 1201-1223
B Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 6
Countermotion for Summary Judgment Bates Nos. 1224-1227
C Petition for Writ of Mandamus or Prohibition Volume 6
(filed 07/17/15) Bates Nos. 1228—-1269
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply to Mona’s Opposition to |Volume 6
Far West’s Motion for Determination of Priority of Bates Nos. 1270-1282
Garnishment and Opposition to Countermotion to Discharge
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 03/14/16)
Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Reply to Mona’s Opposition to Far West’s
Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Opposition to
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and
for Return of Proceeds
Exhibit | Document Description
8 Writ of Garnishment Volume 6
Bates Nos. 1283-1289
9 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Volume 6
Mona, Jr. Bates Nos. 1290-1294
10 Deposition of Rhonda Mona Volume 6
Bates Nos. 1295-1298
11 Checks Volume 6
Bates Nos. 1299-1302
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply in Support of Motion to |Volume 6
Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed 03/14/16) Bates Nos. 1303-1309
Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply |Volume 6
in Support of Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Bates Nos. 1310-1311

Judgment (filed 03/14/16)




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff
Far West Industries’ Reply in Support of
Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description

11 Supplemental Appendix to Real Party In Interest’s

Answering Brief

Volume 6

Bates Nos. 1312-1424
Volume 7

Bates Nos. 1425-1664
Volume 8

Bates Nos. 1665—-1890
Volume 9

Bates Nos. 1891-2127
Volume 10

Bates Nos. 2128-2312

Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply to Roen Venture LLC’s
Opposition to Motion: (1) For Default Judgment Against
Roen Ventures, LLC for Untimely Answers to Writ of
Garnishment and Interrogatories; and (2) to Compel Roen
Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of Payment Made to, on Behalf
of, or for the Benefit of Michael J. Mona, Jr., and Opposition
to Countermotion for Attorney’s Fees and Costs (filed
03/14/16)

Volume 10
Bates Nos. 2313-2322

Amended Appendix of Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West
Industries’ Reply in Support of Motion to Reduce Sanctions
Order to Judgment (filed 03/15/16)

Volume 10
Bates Nos. 2323-2325

Exhibits to Amended Appendix of Exhibits to
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply in Support
of Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description

10 | Real Party in Interest’s Answering Brief

Volume 10
Bates Nos. 2326-2367
Volume 11
Bates Nos. 2368-2385




Exhibits to Amended Appendix of Exhibits to
Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Reply in Support
of Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment (cont.)

11

Supplemental Appendix to Real Party in Interest’s
Answering Brief

Volume 11
Bates Nos. 23862607
Volume 12
Bates Nos. 2608—-2836
Volume 13
Bates Nos. 2837-3081
Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3082-3138

Mona’s Reply in Support of Countermotion to Discharge
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 03/23/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3139-3154

Errata to Non-Party Rhonda Mona’s Opposition to Plaintiff
Far West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment (filed 03/29/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3155-3156

Non—Party Rhonda Mona’s Supplemental Briefing
Following Recent Oral Argument Concerning Plaintiff Far
West Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to
Judgment (filed 04/22/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3157-3172

Exhibits to Non-Party Rhonda Mona’s
Supplemental Briefing Following Recent Oral
Argument Concerning Plaintiff Far West
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order
to Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
A Defendant’s Opposition to Countermotion for Volume 14
Summary Judgment (filed 01/19/16) Bates Nos. 3173-3193
B Defendants Rhonda Helen Mona, Michael Mona II, |Volume 14
and Lundene Enterprises, LLC’s Reply to Bates Nos. 3194-3210
Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed
01/26/16)
C Transcript of Proceedings: Plaintiff Far West Volume 14
Industries’ Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Bates Nos. 3211-3279
Dismiss and Countermotion for Summary
Judgment (filed 04/06/26)
D Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15) Volume 14

Bates Nos. 3280-3286




Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Supplemental Brief Regarding
Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed
04/22/16)

Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3287-3298

Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries’
Supplemental Brief Regarding Motion to
Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment

Exhibit | Document Description
12 Writ of Garnishment-Bank of George Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3299-3305
13 Writ of Garnishment-Bank of Nevada Volume 14
Bates Nos. 33063313
14 Mona’s Redacted Bank Records Volume 14
Bates Nos. 3314-3327
Supplemental Brief Regarding Judicial Estoppel and Volume 15

Reducing the Sanction Order to Judgment (filed 04/23/16)

Bates Nos. 3328-3346

Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion: (1)
For Default Judgment Against Roen Ventures, LLC for
Untimely Answers to Writ of Garnishment Interrogatories;
and (2) to compel Roen Ventures, LLC’s Turnover of
Payments Made to, on Behalf of, or for the Benefit of
Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed 04/28/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3347-3350

Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion for
Determination of Priority of Garnishment and Defendant

Michael J. Mona’s Countermotion to Discharge
Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3351-3356

Notice of Entry of Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West
Industries” Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s

Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for Return of
Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3357-3365

Notice of Entry of Order Shortening Time and Notice of
Hearing (filed 07/07/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 33663372

Joint Case Appeal Statement (filed 07/14/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3373-3378




Joint Notice of Appeal (filed 07/15/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3379-3397

Claim of Exemption (filed 07/15/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3398-3400

Plaintiff’s Far West Industries’ Objection to Claim of

Exception from Execution on an Order Shortening Time
(filed 07/21/16)

Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3401-3411

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Far West Industries’
Objection to Claim of Exception from Execution
on an Order Shortening Time

Exhibit

Document Description

1 Writ of Garnishment-Michael Mona Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3412-3416

2 Writ of Execution Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3417-3421

Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim |[Volume 15

of Exemption and Discharge (filed 07/29/16)

Bates Nos. 3422-3452

Exhibits to Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption
and Discharge

Exhibit | Document Description
A Legislative History related to 120 day expiration Volume 15
period Bates Nos. 3453-3501
B Notice of Entry of Decree of Divorce Volume 15
Bates Nos. 3502-3510
C Plaintiff’s Opposition to Far West’s Motion to Volume 15

Intervene for a Finding and Order that the Post-
Marital Agreement is Void Based on the Principles
of Res Judicata and Issue Preclusion, and that the
Plaintiff and Defendant are Jointly Liable for the
Judgment Held by Intervenor and Plaintiff’s
Countermotion for Far West to Pay Plaintiff’s
Attorneys Fees and Costs Incurred Pursuant to
NRS 12.130(1)(d)

Bates Nos. 3511-3524




Exhibits to Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption
and Discharge (cont.)

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 08/09/16)

D Defendant Michael Mona’s Joinder to Plaintiff’s Volume 15
Opposition to Far West’s Motion to Intervene for a |Bates Nos. 3525-3528
Finding and Order that the Post-Marital Agreement
is Void Based on the Principles of Res Judicata and
Issue Preclusion, and that the Plaintiff and
Defendant are Jointly Liable for the Judgment Held
by Intervenor and Plaintiff’s Countermotion for Far
West to Pay Plaintiff’s Attorneys Fees and Costs
Incurred Pursuant to NRS 12.130(1)(d) (filed
09/29/15)

E Notice of Entry of Order (filed 12/01/15) Volume 15

Bates Nos. 3529-3533

F Writ of Garnishment-Michael Mona Volume 15

Bates Nos. 3534-3535

G Constable’s return of Notice of Execution after Volume 15
Judgment and Writ of Execution to Michael Mona |Bates Nos. 3536-3545

H Writ of Garnishment- Michael Mona Volume 15

Bates Nos. 35463556

I Claim of Exemption (filed 07/15/16) Volume 15

Bates Nos. 3557-3560

J Mona’s Opposition to Far West’s Motion for Volume 16
Determination of Priority of Garnishment and Bates Nos. 3561-3598
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 03/04/16)

K Mona’s Reply in Support of Countermotion to Volume 16
Discharge Garnishment and for Return of Proceeds |Bates Nos. 3599-3614
(filed 03/23/16)

L NRS 21.112 Volume 16

Bates Nos. 3615-3616

M Affidavit of Claiming Exempt Property form Volume 16

Bates Nos. 3617-3618
Order Sustaining Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Objection to |Volume 16

Bates Nos. 3619-3621

Memorandum of Points and authorizes in Support of Claim
of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
11/10/16)

Volume 16
Bates Nos. 3622-3659




Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion for Discharge of Garnishment (filed 11/10/16)

Volume 16
Bates Nos. 3660-3662

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion for
Discharge of Garnishment

Exhibit

Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 16
(1989) Bates Nos. 3663-3711

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 16
Bates Nos. 3712-3718

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 16
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 3719-3731

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 16
Opposition Bates Nos. 3732-3735

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 16
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 37363738

F Volume 16
Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Bates Nos. 3739-3740

G Volume 16
Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Bates Nos. 3741-3748

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with  |Volume 16
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 3749-3758

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 16
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 3759-3769

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 16
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 3770-3777

K Volume 16
NRS 21.075 Bates Nos. 3778-3780

L Volume 16
NRS 20.076 Bates Nos. 3781-3782

M Volume 16
NRS 21.090 Bates Nos. 3783-3785

N Volume 16
NRS 21.112 Bates Nos. 3786—3787

O Volume 16
NRS 31.200 Bates Nos. 3788—-3789

P Volume 16

NRS 31.249

Bates Nos. 3790-3791




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion for
Discharge of Garnishment (cont.)

Q Volume 16
NRS 31.260 Bates Nos. 3792-3793

R Volume 16
NRS 31.270 Bates Nos. 3794-3795

S Volume 16
NRS 31.295 Bates Nos. 3796-3797

T Volume 16
NRS 31.296 Bates Nos. 3798-3799

U Volume 16
EDCR 2.20 Bates Nos. 3800-3801

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 11/10/16) Volume 17

Bates Nos. 3802-3985

Far West Industries’ Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order shortening Time and Motion for
Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(b)
(filed 11/21/16)

Volume 17
Bates Nos. 39864002

Exhibits to Far West Industries’ Objection to
Claim of Exemption from Execution on an

Order shortening Time and Motion for Attorney
Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(b)

Exhibit

Document Description

1 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (filed Volume 17
03/06/12 Superior Court of California, County of  |Bates Nos. 40034019
Riverside
2 Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 17
Motion for Determination of Priority of Bates Nos. 4020-4026
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)
3 Writ of Execution Volume 17
Bates Nos. 4027-4035
4 Documents from the Office of the Ex—Officio Volume 17
Constable Bates Nos. 4036—4039
Affidavit of Service upon CV Sciences, Inc. FKA Cannavest |Volume 17

Corp. (filed 11/23/16)

Bates Nos. 4040-4041




Order Continuing Hearing re Far West’s Objection to Claim
of Exemption from Execution on an Order Shortening Time
(filed 12/06/16)

Volume 17
Bates Nos. 40424043

Notice of Entry of Order Continuing Hearing on Objection
to Claim of Exemption (filed 12/07/16)

Volume 18
Bates Nos. 40444048

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs |Volume 18
Pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(b) (filed 12/08/16) Bates Nos. 4049-4054
Declaration of Rosanna Wesp (filed 12/15/16) Volume 18

Bates Nos. 4055-4056
Order Regarding Mona’s Claim of Exemption, Motion to Volume 18

Discharge, Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and Far
West’s Objection to Claim or Exemption Regarding October
2016 Garnishment (filed 01/09/17)

Bates Nos. 40574058

Notice of Entry of Order (filed 01/10/17) Volume 18
Bates Nos. 4059-4063
Application for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant Volume 18

Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed 01/20/17)

Bates Nos. 40644066

Exhibits to Application for Issuance of Order
for Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Subpoena Duces Tecum to Michael D. Sifen Volume 18
Bates Nos. 4067-4076
Michael J. Mona’s Opposition to Application for Issuance of |Volume 18

Order for Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed
02/06/17)

Bates Nos. 4077—-4089

Exhibits to Michael J. Mona’s Opposition to
Application for Issuance of Order for Arrest of
Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Volume 18
Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15) Bates Nos. 4090—4096
Reply to Opposition to Application for Issuance of Order for |Volume 18

Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed 02/14/17)

Bates Nos. 40974107

Exhibits to Reply to Opposition to Application
for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr.

Exhibit | Document Description

A

Decree of Divorce (filed 07/23/15)

Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41084114




Exhibits to Reply to Opposition to Application
for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr. (cont.)

B Nevada Secretary of State Entity Details for CV Volume 18
Sciences, Inc. Bates Nos. 41154118
C Executive Employment Agreement Volume 18

Bates Nos. 41194136

Exhibits to Reply to Opposition to Application
for Issuance of Order for Arrest of Defendant
Michael J. Mona, Jr. (cont.)

D Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael Mona Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41374148

E Residential Lease/Rental Agreement Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41494152

F Management Agreement Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41534157

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 03/24/17) Volume 18
Bates Nos. 41584164

Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points ~ |Volume 18

and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 03/24/17)

Bates Nos. 41654167

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 18
(1989) Bates Nos. 41684216

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 18
Bates Nos. 4217-4223

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 18
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 4224-4236

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 18
Opposition Bates Nos. 42374240

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 18
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 4241-4243

F Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Volume 18

Bates Nos. 4244-4245




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

G Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Volume 18
Bates Nos. 42464253

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with  |Volume 18
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 42544263

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 18
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 4264-4274

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 18
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 42754282

K NRS 21.075 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 42834285

L NRS 20.076 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 42864287

M NRS 21.090 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4288—4290

N NRS 21.112 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4291-4292

@) NRS 31.200 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4293-4294

P NRS 31.249 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4295-4296

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4297-4298

R NRS 31.270 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 42994300

S NRS 31.295 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 43014302

T NRS 31.296 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4303-4304

U EDCR 2.20 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4305-4306

A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 19

of Garnishment

Bates Nos. 43074323




Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim
of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
03/30/17)

Volume 19
Bates Nos. 43244359

Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 03/30/17)

Volume 19
Bates Nos. 43604362

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 19
(1989) Bates Nos. 4363—4411

B Volume 19
Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Bates Nos. 44124418

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 19
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 4419-4431

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 19
Opposition Bates Nos. 4432—4435

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 19
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 44364438

F Volume 19
Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Bates Nos. 44394440

G Volume 19
Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Bates Nos. 44414448

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with | Volume 19
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 44494458

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 19
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 4459—4469

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 19
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 44704477

K NRS 21.075 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4478-4480

L NRS 20.076 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44814482

M | NRS 21.090 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44834485

N NRS 21.112 Volume 19

Bates Nos. 44864487




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

O NRS 31.200 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44884489

P NRS 31.249 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44904491

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44924493

R NRS 31.270 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44944495

S NRS 31.295 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 44964497

T NRS 31.296 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 4498-4499

U EDCR 2.20 Volume 19
Bates Nos. 45004501

A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 19
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 45024518

W Check to CV Sciences, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 20
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 45194535

X Affidavit of Service regarding March 15, 2017 Volume 20

service of Writ of Execution, and Writ of

Garnishment from Laughlin Township Constable’s
Office

Bates Nos. 45364537

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 03/30/17) Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4538-4544
Order Regarding Far West’s Application for Issuance of Volume 20

Order for Arrest of Defendant Michael J. Mona, Jr. (filed
03/31/17)

Bates Nos. 45454546

Notice of Entry of Order (filed 04/03/17) Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4547-4550
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim |Volume 20

of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
04/20/17)

Bates Nos. 45514585

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 04/20/17)

Volume 20
Bates Nos. 45864592




Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 04/20/17)

Volume 20
Bates Nos. 45934595

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit | Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 20
(1989) Bates Nos. 4596—4644

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 46454651

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 20
September 28, 2015 Bates Nos. 46524664

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s | Volume 20
Opposition Bates Nos. 4665—4668

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 20
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 4669-4671

F Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 46724673

G Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4674—4681

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with | Volume 20
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 46824691

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 20
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 46924702

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 20
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 47034710

K | NRS 21.075 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47114713

L NRS 20.076 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47144715

M | NRS 21.090 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47164718

N NRS 21.112 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 4719-4720

O NRS 31.200 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47214722

P NRS 31.249 Volume 20

Bates Nos. 47234724




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47254726
R NRS 31.270 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47274728
S NRS 31.295 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47294730
T NRS 31.296 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47314732
U EDCR 2.20 Volume 20
Bates Nos. 47334734
A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 20
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 47354751
W Check to CV Sciences, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 20
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 47524768
X Affidavit of Service regarding March 15, 2017 Volume 21
service of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Bates Nos. 47694770
Garnishment from Laughlin Township Constable’s
Office
Y Affidavit of Service regarding April 3, 2017 service |Volume 21

of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Garnishment
from Laughlin Township Constable’s Office

Bates Nos. 47714788

Stipulation and Order Regarding Amended Nunc Pro Tunc
Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Motion to
Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment (filed 04/24/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 47894791

Notice of Entry Stipulation and Order Regarding amended
Nunc Pro Tunc Order regarding Plaintiff Far West
Industries’ Motion to Reduce Sanctions Order to Judgment
(filed 04/25/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 47924797

Plaintiff Far West Industries Objection to Claim of
Exemption from Execution on an Order Shortening Time

and Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS
18.010(2)(b) (filed 05/02/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 47984817




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries
Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order Shortening Time and

Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010(2)(b)

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law (filed Volume 21
03/06/12 Superior Court of California Riverside)  |Bates Nos. 4818-4834
2 Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 21
Motion for Determination of Priority of Bates Nos. 48354841
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s
Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)
3 Nevada Secretary of State Entity Details for CV Volume 21
Sciences, Inc. Bates Nos. 48424845
4 Answers to Interrogatories Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4846—4850
Stipulation and Order Regarding Writ of Garnishment Volume 21

Served 04/03/17 and Claim of Exemption , and Vacating
Related Hearing without Prejudice (filed 05/15/17)

Bates Nos. 48514854

Notice of Entry of Stipulation and Order Regarding Writ of
Garnishment Served 04/03/17 and Claim of Exemption , and
Vacating Related Hearing without Prejudice (filed 05/16/17)

Volume 21
Bates Nos. 48554861

Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed 05/23/17) Volume 21
Bates Nos. 48624868
Appendix of Exhibits Attached to Memorandum of Points Volume 21

and Authorities in Support of Claim of Exemption and
Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed 05/23/17)

Bates Nos. 48694871

Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment

Exhibit

Document Description

A Nevada Assembly Bill 247, Chapter 338, Page 699 |Volume 21
(1989) Bates Nos. 4872—-4920

B Decree of Divorce dated July 23, 2015 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4921-4927

C Rhonda’s Opposition to Motion to Intervene dated |Volume 21

September 28, 2015

Bates Nos. 4928-4940




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

D Mona’s September 29, 2015 Joinder to Rhonda’s  |Volume 21
Opposition Bates Nos. 4941-4944

E November 25, 2015 Order Denying Intervention Volume 21
and awarding fees and costs Bates Nos. 4945-4947

F Writ of Garnishment expiring April 29, 2016 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49484949

G Writ of Garnishment served July 1, 2016 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49504957

H July 5, 2016 correspondence from Constable with | Volume 21
Notice and Writ of Execution Bates Nos. 4958—4967

I Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 21
October 31, 2016 Bates Nos. 4968—4978

J Claim of Exemption forms from Clark County and |Volume 21
the Self-Help Center Bates Nos. 4979-4986

K | NRS 21.075 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49874989

L NRS 20.076 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4990—-4991

M | NRS 21.090 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4992-4994

N NRS 21.112 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4995-4996

O NRS 31.200 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 49974998

P NRS 31.249 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 4999-5000

Q NRS 31.260 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5001-5002

R NRS 31.270 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5003-5004

S NRS 31.295 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5005-5006

T NRS 31.296 Volume 21

Bates Nos. 5007-5008




Exhibits to Appendix of Exhibits Attached to
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Claim of Exemption and Motion to
Discharge Garnishment (cont.)

U EDCR 2.20 Volume 21
Bates Nos. 5009-5010
A% Check to Mike Mona, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 22
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 5011-5027
W Check to CV Sciences, Writ of Execution, and Writ |Volume 22
of Garnishment Bates Nos. 5028-5044
X Affidavit of Service regarding March 15, 2017 Volume 22
service of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Bates Nos. 5045-5046
Garnishment from Laughlin Township Constable’s
Office
Y Affidavit of Service regarding April 3, 2017 service |Volume 22
of Writ of Execution, and Writ of Garnishment Bates Nos. 5047-5064
from Laughlin Township Constable’s Office
Z Writ of Execution and Writ of Garnishment served |Volume 22
May 9, 2017 Bates Nos. 50655078
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Claim |Volume 22

of Exemption and Motion to Discharge Garnishment (filed
05/23/17)

Bates Nos. 5079-5114

Plaintiff Far West Industries Objection to Claim of
Exemption from Execution on an Order Shortening Time

and Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS
18.010(2)(b) (filed 06/05/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5115-5131

Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries
Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order Shortening Time and

Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010(2)(b)

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law (filed Volume 22
03/06/12 in Superior Court of California Riverside) |Bates Nos. 5132-5148
2 Order Regarding Plaintiff Far West Industries’ Volume 22

Motion for Determination of Priority of
Garnishment and Defendant Michael J. Mona’s

Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment and for
Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Bates Nos. 5149-5155




Exhibits to Plaintiff Far West Industries
Objection to Claim of Exemption from
Execution on an Order Shortening Time and
Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 18.010(2)(b) (cont.)

3 Affidavit of Service by Laughlin Township Volume 22
Constable’s Office Bates Nos. 51565157

4 Affidavit of Service by Laughlin Township Volume 22
Constable’s Office Bates Nos. 5158-5159

Notice of Entry of Order Sustaining Plaintiff Far West Volume 22

Industries’ Objection to Claim of Exemption from Execution

(filed 07/19/17)

Bates Nos. 5160-5165

Ex Parte Motion for Order Allowing Judgment Debtor
Examination of Michael J. Mona, Jr., Individually, and as
Trustee of the Mona Family Trust Dated February 12, 2002
(filed 08/16/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 51665179

Notice of Appeal (filed 08/18/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5180-5182

Exhibits to Notice of Appeal

Exhibit | Document Description
1 Notice of Entry of Order Sustaining Plaintiff Far Volume 22
West Industries’ Objection to Claim of Exemption |Bates Nos. 5183-5189
from Execution (filed 07/19/17)
2 Notice of Entry of Order Regarding Plaintiff Far Volume 22

West Industries’ Motion for Determination of
Priority of Garnishment and Defendant Michael J.
Mona’s Countermotion to Discharge Garnishment
and for Return of Proceeds (filed 06/21/16)

Bates Nos. 5190-5199

Order for Examination of Judgment Debtor Michael J.
Mona, Jr., Individually, and as Trustee of the Mona Family
Trust dated February 12, 2002 (filed 08/18/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5200-5211

Far West Industries’ Reply to CV Sciences Inc.’s Answers to

Writ of Garnishment Interrogatories and Ex parte Request
for Order to Show Cause Why CV Sciences Inc. Should Not
be Subjected to Garnishment Penalties (filed 11/20/17)

Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5212-5223




Exhibits to Far West Industries’ Reply to CV
Sciences Inc.’s Answers to Writ of Garnishment
Interrogatories and Ex parte Request for Order
to Show Cause Why CV Sciences Inc. Should
Not be Subjected to Garnishment Penalties

Exhibit | Document Description

1 Answers to Interrogatories to be Answered by Volume 22
Garnishee Bates Nos. 5224-5229

2 United States Securities and Exchange Volume 22
Commission, Form 10-K Bates Nos. 5230-5233

3 Judgment Debtor Examination of Michael J. Mona, |Volume 22
Jr. Bates Nos. 5234-5241

4 Excerpts of Car Lease Documents Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5242-5244

5 Excerpts of Life Insurance Premium Documents Volume 22
Bates Nos. 5245-5250

6 Excerpts of Car Insurance Documents Volume 23
Bates Nos. 5251-5254

7 Laughlin Constable Affidavit of Service Volume 23
Bates Nos. 5255-5256

8 Laughlin Constable Affidavit of Mailing Volume 23
Bates Nos. 5257-5258

9 Answers to Writ of Garnishment Interrogatories Volume 23
Bates Nos. 5259-5263

10 | Email Exchange between Andrea Gandara an Tye |Volume 23
Hanseen June 26, 2017 through August 26, 2017 Bates Nos. 5264-5267

11 Email Exchange between Andrea Gandara an Tye |Volume 23
Hanseen, November 2017 Bates Nos. 5268-5275

Docket of Case No. A670352 Volume 23

Bates Nos. 52765284
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WHEKRE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, s
amended (the “"Exchange Act™), with the Scewrities and Exchange Comaussion {the "SEC™Y You may read and copy any document we file with
the SEC at the SEC™s public refercnce room located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, (LS AL Pleasy call the SEC ot 1-800-SEC-
D330 for further information on the public reference room. Qur SEC filings are also available 10 the public frum the SECs fntemet site at

fpAvww see gov.,
Un owr Interset website, hitpfwww CannaVestoom , we post the following recent filings ax soon as reasenably practicable after they are

clectronically filed with or fumished o the SEC: our annual reports on Form 10-K, our quatterly reparts on Form 18-, our curvent reporls on
Forrn §-K. and any amendments 1 thuse repints Filed or lurnished pursuant fo Scction §34a) or 15(d) of the Dxchange Act.

When se et terms “CapnaVest ", “Company . “we™, “owr™ and “us T we moan CanmaVest Cosp., o Dolavare corpostion, and its
cosefidaredt sufisicdiag s, Lo as o while, o5 well as aov predecessor exdities. unless the context others ise indiciiies.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Apnual Repost on Form 10K contains lorwand-lovking stalements, To the extent thal any sstements pade in this report cosnitain
infonnation that is not historical, these statomoents e essentially forward-looking. Forward-luoking staamenis can be identified by the use of
words such as “expects”, “plins”, may,”, “anticipates”, “betioves”, “should”, “iatends”, “estinates”, and other words of similar meamng. These
staterents an: subject (o risks und spcertainties that cannol fe predicted or quantificd and, consequently, aciual results may dilfer materially
from those expressed or heplicd by such forward-looking statements, Such risks and uncerainties include, withouw Hmitation, marketability of
our products; legal and regulatery nisks associated with the share exchange our ability to raise additional capital o finance our activities; the
elfectiveness, profitability and; the future truding of our commeon stock; our ability o operate as a public company: vur ability 10 profect our
progrictary infurmation; penvral cconomic and business condilions; ihe volaiility of our operating resuls and tinancial condition; our abibity to
atract or retain qualified senior management parsennel and research and developrent dafl; and other risks dewted from thme 10 e in o

filings with the SEC, or otherwise,

Information regarding market and industry statistics contained in this repont is included based on information available W us that we believe is
accuvate. It is generally based on industry and other publications that are noi produced for purposes of securities offerings or economic analysis.
Forecusts and other forward-looking information oblained from these sources are subject o the same gualifications and the additional
uncentainties accompanying any estinnates of fulure market size, revense and market acceplance of products and services. We do not undertake
any obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements. As @ result, investors should not place undue reliance on these forward-

looking statements,
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PART
PFEM L BUSINESS
Uverview

We are in the business of developing, producing, marketing and selfiog end consumer products 1o the nutraceuticnl industyy containing the hemp
plant extract, Cannabidiol (*CBI7), and reselling to third partics raw product acquired by us pursumnt w our supply relativuships i Eurupe, We
seek 1o ke advantage of an emerging worldwide trend to re-caergize the production of industrial hemp and (o foster its muny uses for

consumers, UBD is derived from hemp stalk and seed.

Historically cultivated for industrial and practical purposes, hemp is used today for textiles, paper, aufo paris, biofuel, cosmetics, animal feed,
supplereents apd much more. The global hemp market in 2065 is estimaied to offer over 250600 producis  an mpressive scope for such a
historically missnderstood and restricted commodity. The market for hemp-derived producis is expested to increase oxposentially over the next
five years, amd CannaVest is wedl positioncd 1o be a dominant player in the hemp industry.

Onr operstivas initially comsisted of supplying our raw producet to third partics. However in the thied quarter of 213, we lwnched our first
consuimier products, which included tinctures and capsules wder our Chbdey % hrand, and beauty products under owr Cibaderm ™ brand.
During 2014, we lanached PlusCBIYY™, aur new brand that includes oil, capsules, deops. UBD powder, water soluble CBD, vadous dietary
supplestents and beadty products. We eapect 1o continue 1o add new prodects 1o our PlusCREPY porfolio o cabance cor hise of CRD and

hemp-related consumer prodducts,

We expoet to reabize 1eveous by fusd our working capital peeds through the sde of raw and Timished products to thind parties. Howewer, we
cannot be assured that car working capital newds to develop, launch, oadket and sell our products will be mot through the sale of raw and
finished products (o thud panics. 1 not, we may not be able 1o mamsin profitable operations. I we are anable o anintin profitable operations
sufficient to fund o business, we would aced o maise additional capital through cither the issnance of equily, acquisition of debt or <ale of a
seginent of vur operations in the e, In the cvent we are unable fo maintain profitable operations or raise sulficient additional capital, our
ability to contimie as 4 going concern wonki be it jeupandy and nvestors coudd lose all of their investment m the Company.

Carrent Operations

We currently manufactare, market, and sell products containing hemp-derived CBD. Hemp derived CBEY is one of at least 80 cannabinoids
found in hermp. and is non-psychoactive. Tt has been showa, in clinical seltings. 1o sot only promete overall wellness, but also to petentially treat
a wide armay of conditions. Dr. Sanjay Gupta's ONN docmnentary, WEET) | was just the atest in an explosion of mainsicenm media altention to
the therapentic polentiad of CBE. We are already capitalizing on this exposure by offering safe, legal CBD from industoial herp ofl in a variety

of consumer products.

Our current product portfalio mcludes:

Lo PheCBEPY CannaYest beanded CBD-rich industrial hemp oil packaged with the highest concenteations available, desipned for

health and weliness.
Cibadex ™ Both 25 mp U3 capsules and Mavored tinctures packaged in bottles with concentrations of 100mg or S00 mg of CBD.

Cibaderm ™ - Beamty products containing CBERrich hemp oil including lotion, body wash, salve, shampoo, conditioner and hand

Cream,

2.
3

Numerous ether products are cureently in development and we will continue 1o scale up our processing capability to accommedate new products

in our pipeline,
Description of our Subsidiaries

The Company owns 100% of the issued and outstanding membership interests of three subsidisries: US Hemp Oil, LLC (“US Hemp OO0,
CanmaVest Labortories, LLC (formerly, PhytoSPHERE Systems, LLCY ("CannaVest Laboratories™) and Plus CBD, LLC (formerly, Global

Hemp Source, LEC) ("Plus CBD™)

LS liemp O provides farming, procurement, processing, marketing and distribution services of bulk whelesale hemp seed. In addition, US
Hemp Ol is involved with industry sdvocacy, creating greater public awarcness and media exposure for the nutritional profile of hemp seeds
and the envirosinential benefits of growing indusirial hemp., CannaVest Laboratories provides processing technology and product development of
nemp-based nutraceutical products. Plus CBD is the operating enlity for Company sales and expense of CRIE oil and end consumer products.
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Hemp - an Overview

Hemp is an industrial plant related fo marijuana, Fiber from the plant bas long been used to make paper, clothing, rope and other products. Hemp
il is found in body-cure products such as lotion, soap and cosmetics and in a host of foods, including energy bars, walfles, milk-frev cherse,

veppie burgers and bread,

Numerows uses exist, including hemp plant extracts that are used #s a medicine, nutrithnal supploanents and Tood sourees, Beyond this,
applications into textiles, building matenials, bio-fuels, papey. bio-plastics, livestock Teedmhedding as well as personal care products are readily

available.

Herap is a cousin to marijuana as both are classiffed under the same bivlogical category of Cannabis L Sativa. Fhe hasic difference between the
twa is that marijuana has significant amounts of tefmbydrocannabinot (FHEYH S 20%0), a psychoactive ingredient; whercas hemp has viawally no
THHC gess than B350 This (.3% THC i huomp s net high caoegh 1o provide the colloquial “high™ to sopport recreational usage, Typical
marijuana ranges from 3 20% THC for psychoactive usage. Conada, Ching and the United Kingdom are examples of major industrialized
coeuntries that have grown hemp responsibly and theived fiom their endeavors,

Inventory sad Salex

Currently, we have over 1000 metric tons of hemp oif iventory an hand or that is bomg processad. In addition, we have commitments from
suppliers overseas i 3 sigoificant amoust of funee inventory. Based on eupected increasing demand, we have wevested sigaificant capital o
devetop and maintsin yelationships with growers ai g global seale 1o easwre access 1o a sigimificant percentage of the worldwide hemp crop. We
spuree st rv matesials from well-established and wellvecounized hemp wrowers i Furope, We have conracts with these growers in place
cosure adequate supplics suing forward, We have arrangements with sonse of these srowers to hiave exclusive rights 1o their supply. Despite this
abready large tfootprim, we continue 1o explore and develop other relationships tor ensure that we can mect the expected demand for balk homp

products swell into the future.

Subject 1 applicable faw, the Company plans 10 fnitiate growing operations v the 115, imitially on a pilet scale with the goal of becoming a
rational grower of product.

Changes in the Law and Development Programs

For the first time sinec 1937, industrisl hemp has been decriminatived at the federal level and can be grown legally in the United States. but on a
Himited basis. A landwark provision passed m the Agricaltural Avt of 2819 recopmizes hemp as distinet from iis genelic consin, marijuana,
Federal law now exempts industrial hemp from U8, drug laws in order (o allow for crop rescarch by universitios, colleges and staie agriculture
departments. The new Federal Jaw allows for agricultural pilot progeams for industyial homp “in states that permit the growth or cultivation of

hemp.”

in 2013, we enicred an agreement with Keptueky's Mursay State University fo pssist in providing seeds, and also o provide agronomy,
processing and quality testing consulting for the University”s hemp rescarch pilot program under the Agricultural Act of 2014, We are working
closely with Murray State fo oplimize hemp cullivars, yields and planting wchematics. Additionally, we are pursuing opportunities within
Kentucky o evaluate investmont in processing cquipment and mills.

Product Quality

Crur Iaboratory and production lacility is uniguely cquipped with qualified ndustry leaders and slate of the art equipment tor testing constifuents
in hemp amd extracting CBD from the plant base material. We have developed vigorsus Quality Assurance/Quality Control proeesses and
provedures to ensure safety and quality. Each produet is tested soultiple Bimes for cannabinoid content, pesticide residoes, aromatic teepene
compounds, bravy metals and biological pathogens that could be harm{ul o the consumer. These pratocols ensire that our products are sake,
consistent and the highest quality on the market. In December 2004, we collaborated with Projeer (B8 | which is a non-profit cducational
seevice dedicated to promoting and publicizing research into the medical wtility of CBD. Project CBIY's mission is, in part, to support the efforts
of physicians and other rescarchiers to collect and publish data from paticnts o determine the patterns of UDBD «fficacy.

In our collaboration, we, together with Praject CID, had samples of our homp ol tested by an independent analytical lab to determine the safety
of our products. Specificatly, the independent Jab tesicd for the absence of presence of heavy metals and industrial solvent residues in our
products. The testing showed na detectable leveds of solvents and only trace elements of heavy metals well below acceptable fevels established

by the 1.8, Phanmacopeia Convention,

(3]
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Acquisition of PhytoSPHERE Systems, LLC

On December 15, 20012, we eniered o an Apreement for Purchase and Sale of Assets {the “Purchase Agreement™) with PhytoSPHERE
Systems, LLC, a Delaware Limited liability company ("PhytoSPHERE™), whereby on January 29, 2013, we acquired cortaln assels ol
PhyloSPHERE. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, we acquired from PhiytoSPHERE tanpible cuyuipment, inveniory including 460 kg of raw
fiemp oil, all URLS and domain names of PhytoSPHERE, all landline 1elephone numburs and posial addresses affiliated with PhytoSPHERE, an
exclusive license 1o use the names “PhytoSPHERE™ and “PhytoSPHERLE Systems”™ m the development and commerciafization of hemp-based
products including CBID, existing bank accounts with a total balance of 350773, vendor bists, permits, licenses and other approvals, and all

rights and obligations under existing and pending supply contracts.

Under current Fedesal cegulations, hemp muy be grown o the United States only ander certain conditions, However, it may Jegally be imported
pursusnl 1o Federal and State regulation. Our acquisition of PhxtoSPHERE s supply chain contracts allow us to secure raw hemp product from
our Furopean supplicrs sell~conmned hemp cultivation and hemp oil processing facilities. Pursuant o the Purchase Agreement, we acquired
from PhytoSPHERE all of its vights, and sssumed all of its luabifities, under contracts 10 sceure raw hemp proditess from production and
provessing fcilities in Eueope, which aflows us to scvure rw product for the development and production of car roducts, We also secured the
exclusive license 1o the name “PhytoSPHERE” and “PlipoSPHERE Systems” for use in the developinent and commercialization of hemp-hased

producis,

Parchase of the PhytoSPHIRE assets has atlowed us (o develop broadly applicable raw ingredionts, incurporate these taw mgredionts s our own
product mes and sefl raw ingredients fo third partics. Through our supply relationships. we are expandeng our efforts o cultivate thousands of
aeres of indnstrial hemp in specinl microchmales located sbroml, s demand for specialty hemp oil products continues © grow, we will develop
i broader supply chain bevond those acquined from PhytoSPHERE, and are carrenily working to establish production in the United States in
accordance with foderad amd stute Taw, With our suppliors, we will manage the entire growth and insnulacturing operation <tarting from the jritial
planting of specialty coltivars through the sonitering of the growth cycle to harvesting the ceeps and prodicing the end products,

in payment oader she Purchase Agreement, we issoed 5,825,000 shares of our common stiwk 1o PhvioSPHERE and pard $950,000 in cash.

Dispasition of investment in KannalL.ife Sciences, buc.

O Junc 2, 2014, the Company sold its 24.97% cquity invesimunt in Kannabife Sciences, Inc. C"Kannal ife™) 1o PhytoSPHERE in exchange Tor
$00,000 shares of Company common steck held by PhyloSPHERE. an affiliate of Kunnalife, Accordingly, the Company secogniaed a gain on
sale of equity investment of $7,899,306 based on the number of shares of Company commoen stock received af the closing trading price of
Cennpany commeon stock on June 2, 2014 of $16.60 per share,

Market, Customers and Distribution Methodds

The market, customers and distribution methods for hemp-based products are Targe and diverse. These markets range from hemp-based bio
plastics to textifes. This is an ever-evolving distnibution system that today includes early adopter retailers and ccommerce entities, and product
development companics that use our PlusCBD ail to develop consumer products for distribution. There are only a few outlets in mainstream
commercial and retail stores that currently stock and sell cur products. However, we believe that as awareness grows for the “green,”
enviromnentally-friendly products derived from hempicannabis, the industry will adapt its current product Tines o integrate them with hemp-
based additives or veplace harmful components i their existing products with the components of hempicannahis.,

To understand the market and consumers as well as distribution methods, we have studied all the uses of hempicannabis and its fegal structure in
she LS. and abroad, including in the Ewropean Union, Africa and Latin America, There are more than 56.000 known vses for hempicannabis
based products, most of which were used in the past and were replaced by colton. petroleunioil, concrete, com and soybeans. We believe the
market potentially represents billions of dollars in worldwide product sales. The Company will focus on products thal we believe will have the
greatest positive enviconmental impact, profitability and case to nrarket. These tend to be new. innovative pesducts ss well as the replacement of
raw base materials for products that exist today, such as foods and nutritional cupplements.

Our target customers are first and foremost end consumers via inlemel sales, Jdireci-fo-consumer health and wellness stures, collectives,
cooperatives, affiliate sales and master distributors. Secondarily. we are targeting manufactures of products that can readily replace their raw
base materials for our basc materials, making the products more environmentally friendly and susiainable. Neat, we will rarpet national and
regional broker networks and major distribution companics who have preexisting relationships with major setail chain stores, In addition, we are
directly pursuing distribution opportunities with national retailers. As we continue to develop our business, these markets may change, be re-
prioritized or eliminated as mansgement responds to consumer and regidatory developments.

s
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IempMeds Agrecwment

On August 11, 2004, we terminated the Non-Exclusive Ficense and Distribution Agreanent with HempMeds PX, LLC ¢he “HempMeds
Agreement”), On or about August 13, 2014, tHempMeds PX, LLC ("HempMeds™} demuanded arbiieation against us and recommended that the
partics engage Private Trials in Lus Vegas, Nevada so conduact the arbitration, denying that flempMeds was in breach of the HempMeds
Agreement. Un August 22, 2014, HempMeds filed o complaint in the Eighth Judicial District, Clark County, Nevada (the “Nevada Complaint™y
against us for breach of the HempMeds Agreement, vnjust enrichment, and interference with prospective business wlvantage, claiming that it
had satisfied all of its obligations under the HempMeds Agreement and that we breached that agreemen by tenminuting it without just cause,
Concurrently, HenpMeds filed 2 Motion for Prefiminary Injunction, asking the Court o reinstate the HempMeds Agreement, namely the
provision that ideatified HentpMeds as the exclusive on-line selfer of certain products of the Company. The court denied HempMeds' motion on
October 3, 2014, We have not yot snswered the Nevada Complaint because the parties have agreed to arbitration and are atiempting © resolve
the issue of wiere the arbitration will be held. We deny {lempMeds® claims and intend to vigorously defend the allegations and file approprisie
counter-claims, Since the action was recently tiled und no discovery has been conducted, an estimate of the possible loss oF recovery cannot be

made ai this thne.

Corapetition

Vhere are many develupers of hesmp-based consumer products, stany of which are under-vapiializcd which we consider 1o be viable acquisition
trpets, We routinedy evaluate oppontunitics to purchase existing prodiuct lines, sesices of CID and other sssets from certain competing
companies, These are abso large, well-funded conspanies that currently do sot offer bemp-bioed products bug may Jo so in the future,

[ntelfectual Property

We have filed rademark applications oa our brands. foges and marks including, but ol tisited w0 CanmaVest, Ciliderm ™. Cibdex Y™, Real
Seientific Homp (O 7™ (RSHO, Pls CED ™ and B Sinple ¥, We review our intellechial property portfolie on a periodic basis and we will
confinue 1o broaden ow portfclio o fiscally prndent manner. We intend to file for patent protection on certam prosduets and methods importaing
fu our business, as those processes are developed and patentable. In connection with air pirchase of assets from PhivioSPHERT, we acquired afl
LIRLs and domatn names of PhytoSPHERE and an exclusive license o use the names “PhyoSPHERE”™ and “PhytoSPHERE Systems™ in the
development and cormmeraaization of hemp-based products, includiog CBD.

Research and Development

We opened a laboratory Geitity in San Diego, California in September 2013, Qur lab specializes in process development and product resting. We
incurred research and development cxpenses of 3999280 and 3524476, respectively, for tie years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,

Source and Availability of Raw Matenials

‘The Company is u party ta a contract for the growth and processing of 2600 kilograms of produet currently being delivercd and scheduled 10 be
delivercd through August 31, 2015, The total amount left 1o be paid under this contract is upproximately $7.2 miltion through Decomber 2008,
The Comipany i parly W a sceond purchasing contract fo provide up te | million kilograms of mw product to the Company. There is
approxisnately 31,8 mitlion remaining 10 be paid under this second contract through December 31, 2015 We have contractual rights for the
geowih and processing of henp oif for delivery through Uctober 2018 under both of these confracts. We anticipate the cust under both contracts

with remain consistent with current year prices,

Employecs

As of March 26, 2005 we have 34 full-tine employees and 2 part-time cmployees. We are currently in discussions with qualified individuals o
enpage them for positions in sales and marketing, rescarch and development, and operations. Mapagement belicves the Company has good
relationships with ifs employees,

FTEM 1A, RISK FACTORS
Not applicable ta a “unaller reporting company ™ as defined in ftem 10601} of Regulation $-K.
JITEM 1B, UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Kot applicable to a “smaller reporting company ™ as defined in ftem 10X 1) of Regulation S-K.
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ITEM L PROPERTIES

The Company leases centatn office space in Las Vegas, MNevada pursuant to 2 muonth-to-month lease agreement dated April |, 2013, which
provides for 3 sonthly rent of $1,500. The landlord is a fimited Lability company of which a former director of the Company is the sole smember,

O March 27 2014, the Company eatered info a lease fur 5,323 square feet of office space in San Diego, California for a tenm of 39 months, The
monthly base rent under the lease is approximately $1.2,250, subject 10 an increase of 3% wnnuaily. The lease allows for rent abarement allowing
une month free rent ollowing cach 12 month period of paid rent during the term of the lease. The lease commenced o May 7. 2014, the date the
Company took possessium of the sew space. On December 24, 2014, the Company entered into a new fease for a 4,266 square foot expansion of

its San Dicgo office facifities. The term of the office expansion lease oxtends to Augnst 2017 and includes monthly base rent of $12,247,

On August 13, 2613, the Company entered into a lease for approximately 2,400 square Teet laboratory space in San Dicgo, California. The
manihly base rent was approximately $4.200 per month for a tenn of 12 months, On April 1, 2014, the Company entered into an aimendment o
increase the amount of kiboratory space vnder the lease and extended the term of the lease for vne additional year theough August 2015, This
amendinent nereased the amouns of Tab space under lease o 3,276 and added storage space for an additional 887 square feet. The monthiy base
rent under the lease was increased o approximstely 36,320 per month. On February 23, 2043, the Company entered into anotiier ameadinent
ayabn ncrease the amoond of laboratory spave under the Tease and extended the rerm of the lease through December 31, 2016, This anwndment
mercased the amount of fab space under lease 1 4315 square feet, and increased the monthly base seot voder the lease 16 37,798

O May 13, 700 the Company estered into a Jense for approsisately S.000 square lect of warebouse space i San Dicpo, Califunia for o enm
of 3 years, The base rend sader this Tease s $$,000 pey aionth.

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On March 8, 2008, Far West Industrivs {“Par Wost™) sued Michael § Mona, Jr., President and Clief Exeontive Officer of the Company amd
others for damages sesulting from fruud aising out of a ld sansaction o Califomia Ghe “California Acton™y On February 23, 20012,
jucdpment was entered in the California Action in favor of Far West agadnat Me. Mong and others in the amount of $17,777.562. On October 18,
2012, the judgiment in the Calilornia Action was domesticated in Nevada and caforcement procecdings comaenced including, but not Buited (o
an examination of Mr. Mona as 2 judgment debtor, and parishments of various acconnis belonging to Mr. Mona. Buring the period, Mr. Mona
toaned $3.000.000 10 Roen Ventures, which was subsequently loaned 1o the Company. The st alleges that the loan iransactions were infended
to prejudice creditors like Far West by concealing and wasting asscts that would otherwise be available 10 satisfy the Judgment that Far West has
against Mr. Mona. Fursuant to @ Second Amendment Complaint filed by Far West Indusiries on February 20, 2014, the Company was added as a
defendant to the seit. On March 12, 2014, the Company was scorved with a complaint from Far West Industries. In sommary, Far West alleges
that the Company is in possession of funds as a result of an alegedly fraudulent transfer between Mr. Mona, Roen Ventures, LLC, and the
Company. On May 13, 2034, a motion to dismiss filed by the Conpany was granted and thus, the Company will no longer be a defendant in the
lawsuit. Although 1 West's counsed thereafter filed a thind Amended Complaint which improperly sought to re-name the Company as a
defendant, on October 16, 2014, Far West filed a dismissal of the Company after the Company thrvaiened to hring a motion for sanctions for
violating thie Court order of May 13, 2014, Accordingly, the Company has been formally dismisscd frem the action.

On Apeil 23, 2004, Tanya Sablustro filed o purported class action complaint (the ~Complaing} in the Southera District of New York {the
“Lourt") alleging secwrities fravd mmd related claims against the Company and certain of its officers and directors and sccking compensatory
damages including litigation costs. Ms. Sallustro alleges that botween March 1831, 2014, she purchased 323 shares of the Conpany™s conumon
stock fur 3 total investment of $13.791.00. The Complaint reters 1o Current Reports on Form 8-K and Corrent Reports on Form 8-K/A filings
made by the Cempany on Aprif 3, 2011 snd April 14, 2084, in which the Company ameaded previously disclosed sales (sales originally stated at
$1.275.000 were rostated fo 51082375 - redoction of $192,62%) und cestated goodwill as SLESSAI2 (previously reported at net zerol
Additionally, the Complaing states after the filing of the Company’s Carrent Repowt on Form 8K on April 3, 2014 and the following press
vefease, the Company's stock price “fell $7.30 per share, or more than 0%, to close at $25.30 per share.” Subsequent to the filing of the
Complaint, six differcat individuals have fifed a motion asking to be designated the lead plaintiff in the litigation. The Court schedufed a hearing
on August 14, 2014 to consider the mottons for designation as lead plaistiff. Yhe other individoals seeking lead plainiff designation are: Wayne
Chesner: Anamaria Schelling: Mark Williams: Otilda LaMont; Janc Ish and Steve Schuck. After a hearing held on August 14, 2014, the Coun
ook the mattcr umder submission, On March 19, 2013, the Court issucd a ruling appotnting Steve Schuck as lead plaintiff and setting an indtial
pre-trial copference for April 38, 2015, The Company has not yet answered the Complaint but mansgement intends to vigorously defend the

allegations.
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On March 17, 2015, sharcholder Michael Ruth filed a shareholder derivative suit in Nevada District Court alleging two causes of action: 1)
Breach of Fiduciary Duty, and 2) *Gross Mismanagement.” The claims are premised on the same event as the already-pending securities class
action case in New York - its alleged that the Form 8-K filings misstated goodwill and sales of the Company. which when corrected, lead 10 a
siguificant drop in stock price. The Company has not been served with the Complaint bui intends to vigerously defend the case after service is

syrade.

On Aupust 11, 2014, we terminated the Non-Exclusive License and [Distribution Agreenient with HempMeds PX, LLC (the “HempMeds
Agreement™}), On or about August 13, 2004, HempMeds PX, LLC ("HempMeds™y demanded arbiteation against us and recommended that the
parties engage Private Trials in Las Vegas. Nevada to conduct the arbitration, deaying that HempMeds was in breach of the HempMuds
Apreement. On August 22, 2014, HempMeuds filed a complaint in the Fighth Judicial District, Clark County, Nevada (the “Nevada Complaint™)
against us for breach of the HempMueds Agreement, unjust enrichment, and interference with prospective business advantage, claiming that it
had satisfied all of its obligations under the HempMeds Agreemont and that we breschesd that agreement by terminating it without just canse,
Concnrrently, HempMeds filed a Motion for Prefimioary Injunction, asking the Court to reinstate the HempMeds Agreement, namcly the
provision that dentified HempMeds as the exclusive onddine seller of centain products of the Company. The court dented Hempheds® motion on
Ociober 3, 2014, We have nol yet answered the Nevada Complaing because the parties have agreed to arbitration and are sttempting o resolve
the issue of where the arbiteation will be beld. We deny HempMeds™ olaims and itend to vigorously defend the allegations and Tile appropriate
comter-claims. Since the action was recently filed amd o discovery has been conducted, an estimate of the possible loss or recovery cannot be

snade at this time.

On September 11 2000, we filed a complaint for trademark infringement against Kamnwway, LLO. Geneal Hemp, DO and HDDOC Holdings,
FLC eollectively, “doefondants™) s the Laited States District Coure, Sogthern Disteict of California, Case N 13-0v- 21600 AB-BLM, usserting
that Jefendants bave infringed on CannaYest's Connabis Beauty® and Camabis Beauty Defined trademarks, CannaVest alleges, among other
things. that defendam HDDC Holdings, LLE CHODOT) assigned s rights in the CARNABIS BEAUTY DEFINED® mark 1o CanimVest (the
HDBC Assignment™) which was promptly fifed with the USPTO bt despite the foregoinp, THDIC s sister company., defendant Kannuwway,
FLO CRasgaway ™), i beproperly using the wademark on personal care products in competition with CannaVest, On February 200 2015,
Defendants filed a counterclaim agaiast CannaVest, assering that the HOLK Assignment was signed under “duress™ and that HDDC Hoensed
the wark 1o the viher defendants for 30 vears bofore it assigned the mark to CannaVest, Lastly, Coumterclaimumis assert claims for unfair
competition against (annaVest, althoogh they do aot identify the commercial activity giving nse to the olaim. We filed a Motion o Dismiss the
counterclaim which will be tnard on April 17, 2015, On February 12, 2015, the Court granted our motton for prefiminary injunction, enjoining
defendamts from using the Camnnbis Beamty Delined trademark or any confusingly similar mark. CannaVest has posting an underiaking for
$1.2M to secure the preliminary injunction uader FROP 65(c). Management intends to vigorously prosecuse this complaint and defend the
counterclaims. Since po discovery has been conducted, an estimate of the possible recovery or oss cannot be made at this time.

FYEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicahle.

PART U
FTEM S MARKET FOR HEGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASRES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Oyar common stock is traded or the OTC Bulletin Board vnder the symbol “CANV”. Trading of sceurities on the OTC Bulletin Board s ofien

sporadic and investors may have difficulty boying and seiling or ohiaining market quotations.

The followinyg table sets forth the reported high and low closing bid prices for vur common stock as reported on the OFC Baelletin Board for the
following periods. These prices do not include retail mark-ups, markdowns or commissions, and may nol necessarily represent actunl

fransactions.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

High Low
First quarter $ 20100 s 26.24
Second quanier $ REG S 1270
Third quarier ) 4 & 94
Founh guarter s 384 3 228

Fiscal Yeur Ended December 31, 2613

i Low
First quartes S 1895 § 4.50
Second quarter $ 000 % (0.01
Third quarter $ 00 3 200
; $ 4500 8 080590

[Fourth quarter
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No cash dividends have been paid on cur conunon steek for the 2014 and 2013 fiscal years and ne change of this policy is under consideration
by our Board,

ihe payment of cash dividends in the future will be detennined by our Board in light of conditions then existing, including our camings,
financial requirements, and opportunities for reinvesting carmings, business conditions, and other factors. There are otherwise no resirictions on
the payment of dividends. there were more than 8,000 shareholders ef record of our common stock on March 31, 2015,

We did not yepurchase any shares of our common stock during the fiscal year covered by this report. However, on June 2, 2014, the Company
sold is capital stoek in Kannal.ife 1o PhytoSPHERE in exchange for 500,000 shares of the Coppany’s commien stock held by PhytoSPHERY,

See the “Equity Compensation Plan lnformation” table in frem 12 of this Annual Repon oo For 10-K

Hecent Sules of Unregistered Sccurities

Ax previously reported on the Company 's Current Report on Fonm 8-K fited with the SEC on April 3, 2014 between April 3. 2034 apd April 23,
2014, the Campany sold an apgrepate of 781,606 shares of its sostricted common stuek for an aggrepute purchase prive of $1,142,.500 porsuant o
a private placement offering unanimously approved by the Board of Dieectors w sell up 1o $15 millon of restricted common stock to aceredited
wrvestors. O April 23, 2014, the Hoard of Directors tenminated the offerg.

3 Jansry 28, 2018, we conumenced an oifering whoreby the Company intesds to sell ap o 12 milfion shares of its restricted common stock in
@ private placoment to accreditcd Jnvestons at a price per share of $2.00 (he “Olfering ™) The tesuance of the shuses i conpection with e
Offering was exentpt from segistration nnder the Securities Act of 19335 as amended (he AT, in reliance on exemptions from she reghstradion
reguizement of the Act i ransaction noet invelve in a pubhic offering pursuant to Rule S06(B} of Regalation D, as Promuldgated by the Sccuritiex
and Exchange Comsssion under the At

As of March 31, 2013, the Company sold an agmregate of 1,260,000 shares of s restricted connpon stock pursuant to the Offering 10 27
wvestors for an sugregate purchase price of $2.520.000.

The shares of common stock referenced herein were issuad o reliance upon the exemption from secunties registration afforded by the provisions
of Section 4€23 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ("Securities Act™), andfor Regulation D as promulgated by the US. Sccurities and
Exchange Commission under the Securities Act, based upon the (ollowing: {a) each of the persons 1o whom the shares of common stock were
issued (each such person, an “Investor™) confinmed (o the Company that it is an “accredited investor.” as defined in Rule 501 of Regalation D
promulgated under the Scecurities Act and has such background, education and expericnce in financial and business malters as to be able o
evatuate the merits and risks of an investment in the scourities, {b) there was no pablic offering or general solicitation with respect to the offering
of such shares, (¢} cach investor was provided with centain disclosure materials and all other information requested with respect to the Company.,
{d) each investor acknowledged that all securitics being purchased were being purchased for investment intent and were “rostricred securities”
for purposes of the Securities Act, and agreed 10 transfer such securities only in a vansaction registered under the Securitics Act or exempt from
registration under the Securities Act and (¢ a fegend has been, or will be, placed on the centificates representing each such security stating that i
was restricted and could only be transforred iF subsequently registered under the Securities Act or transferred in o trmsaction excmpt from

regisiration under the Securities Act.
FIEM 6. SELECTED FINANUIAL DATA

Not applicable to & “smaller reporting company™ as defined in om (1) of SEC Regufation S-K.
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FEEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S BISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2014 und Decesnber 11, 2013
shonkd be read in conjimetion with the financial statements and the notes to those statements that are included clsewhere in this Annual Repont
ant Form 10-K. Our discussion includes forward-looking statemonts based upon cwrent expoctations thay involve risks and uocertmnties, such w
our plans, ohjectives, expoctations and intentions. Actual resulis and the thining of cvents could differ naterially from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statetnents as a result of « smnber of factors, including those set fath under the Risk Faciors appearing carlier in this Current
Report. We use wornds such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “project.” “comtinuing,” “ongoing,” “expect,” “believe,” “intend,” “may,” “will”
“should,” “conll,” and simifar cxpressions (o identify forward-looking statements,

OVERVIEW

Our business focus s to produce, niarket and distribute hemp-based consurmer products as well as supply raw hemp products inclading CBD s
third purties in the industry. We cannot assure vou that market conditions or one fimancial vesources will be soflicient 1o undeatake these and
wther steps that we anticipate will be necessary. The development of produsts in this highly repulaed industey corries significant risks and
unceraintics that are beyond vur conirol. As a result, we commot assure that we will suceessfidly market and <l our planned producis or, i we
are able o do 50, that we can achivve sales volume fevels thag wall allow us 1o cover onr Tixed costs.

We expect that we will need to ratse approximately $15 million in the pest 2 imondhs to husd our business and Juse begun raising funds under »
pravate placement, Given the small size of ous company and the carly stage of our operations, we ey find it Sfficult 1o raise sufficient capital o
weet our needs. We do not have any finn comanitments for all of our capited needs. und there are po assurances it will be available W oes, 11 we
are upable to acevss capital s nevessary, cor ability to peaerate revenues and to confinue as a going copcers will be in jeopardy.

Non-GAAP Finaocis Measures

We curcently focns on Adpusted EBEUTDA to cvaluste our business redationships and ouy reseliing opeaating perfoonance and Hoancial pusition.
Adjusted EBETTIA s defioed g EBIIDA {uet income plus inforost expense, income tax expense, depreciation and amortization), further
adjusted o exclnde certain non-cash expenses and other adjustments as st forth befow, We present Adjusted EBITDA beeause we consider i1 an
impostint measure of our performance and i s a meaning i) financial metric in assessing our operating performanee from period o peiod by
excluding certain ilems that we believe are not represeatative of our core basiness, such as certain non-cash Hems and other adjustments.

We believe that Adjusied EBEITDA, viewed in addition to, and not in lieu of, our reponted aesults in sccordance with accounling principles
gererally accepted in the United States ("GAAPT)L provides useful information (o investors regarding our performance for the following reasons:

because non-cash equity grants made to cmployees and non-employees at a cortain price and point in time do pot secessarily reflect

»
how otir business is performing at any pasticuby time, dock based compensation expense 15 not g key measure of our operating
performance; and

s revepses and expenses associated with acquisitions, dispositions, eyuity issuance and related offering costs can vary from period o

period and transaction to transaction and are not considered a key measure of our operating performance.
We nsed Adjusted EBITDA:

« s a measure of operating performance;
= toevaluate the ctfectiviness of our business strategies; and
e in communication with our board of directors concerning our financial performance

Adiusted EBITDA is & non-GAAP measure and docs net purport to be an allerative to net income as a measure of operating performance of o
cash flows from operating activities as 3 smeasure of Bguidity. The term Adjusted EBITDA is oot defined ander GAAP, and Adjusted EBITDA is
not a measure of net income (loss), operating income or any other performance measure derived in accordance with GAAP.
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Adjusted EBITDA has Jimitations us an analytical tool and should nof be consider in tsolation or as a substitute fur analysis of our results us
reporied under GAAP. Some of these limitations are:

s Adjted EBITDA does not reflect all cash expenditures, future requirements for capital expenditures or contracthial requiremonis;
»  Adiusted EBVTDA does not reflect changes m. or cash guirements for, workiog copital nceds, and
Adjusted FBITDA can differ significantly from company o company depending on strategic decisions regarding capital structure, the

-
tax jurisdictions in which companies operate, the level of capital investment, thus, Hinging s uselulness as 3 compartive measure,

Adjusted EBITDA should not be considerced as a measure of discretionary cash available to us for investment in our business. We compensate
for these Himitations by relying primarily on GAAP resuits and vsing Adjusted EBITDA as supplomental informaation.

4% reconciliation from our net loss 1o Adinsted EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, for the years ended Devember 31, 2014 and 2013 is detailed
bdows:

For the Years Fuded December 3,

2014 ) 2014
Net hoss 3 (L3193 % (2,304, 1 96)
Toierest mcane {30,033 .
Iaterest oxpense 613,344 RYAR L
Treome X expense :
Amortization of purchased intangible asseis 421500 FRIA00
Depreciation of property & eguipment 1121460 13,754
ERITDA 26,290 (1.160,831)
EBITDA Adjustments:
Stock-hased compensation expense {1} 7457988
KannaLife Sciences disposition related revenes (23 {7 899,306}
Allocated Joss on Kaanal ife Sciences equity insastment (3} 18,382 310,754
Other 34,816

£32,050 310,734

Total ERITDA Adjustments

Adjusied EBITDA s 338340 3§ {830,079

{13 Reprosents stock-basad compensation expense related to stock options awarded to ainployees, conspitants and pon-exceutive
directors based on the gront date fair value under the filack-Scholes valuation madel.

(2} Represents non-cash revenues related 1o sale of Kannal ife Sciences oquity investment.

{3} Represents allocated fosses related 1o Kansal, ife Sciences investment.

Critieal Aceounting Policies

The preparation of these fipancial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management o make estimates and assuoptions that alfecs the
reported amonats of assets and Habiiities ond the disclosure of contingent assets and labilities ot the dates of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. O an enpoing hasis manapemoent evidustes jis onitical accounting
policies and estimates,

A “eritical accounting pislicy”™ is one which is both important 1o the understanding of the financial condition and resulis of operations of the
Company and requires management’s most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, and offen reguires management to make estimates about
the effect of matiers that are inherently uncertain. Management believes the following accounting policies fit this definition:

Arguisition of PhytoSPHERE Assets - We huve accounted for the acquisition of the assets of PhytoSPHERE Systems, LLO i accordance with
the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASCTY Topic 805, Business Combinarions (“ASC Topic 8057} ASC Topic 805 establishes principles
and requiresnents for recognizing and measuring the total consideration transferred 10 and the assets acquived, Hiabilities assumed and any non-
controlling interests in the seguired target i sn asset purchase, ASC Topic 805 also provides guidance for recognizing and measuring goodwill

aequired and other tangible and intangible assets.
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Acenanis receivable - Accounts receivable consists of trade accounts arising in the normal course of business. No interest is charged on past duc
sccounts. Accounts for which no payments have been received afler 30 days are considered delioquent and customary collection efforts are
initiated. Accounts reevivable are carvied at original invoice amount Jess a reserve made for doubtful reccivables based on a review of afl

vulstanding amonts on g quarterly basis.

Management bas determined the allowance for doubtful accomnts by regelarly evalusting individual customer receivables and considering
customer's financial condition and credit history, amd current cconomic coaditions. As of Decemboer 310 2014 and 2013, we recoided an
atlowance for doubtfuf accounts refated (o our sccounts receivable in the amount of 510,000 and S400.000. respectively.

Brvenstary - Tnventory i stated at Jower of eost or markel, with cost being determined on average cost basis. There was no reserve fur obsolete
inventory as of Decomber 31, 2084 and 2013, Amounts paid to suppliers for inventory not received is clussified as prepaid inventory, Once
received, the cost of inventary received is reclassified o inventory.

Revenur Reeagnition - Ouwr revenue recozaition policy s consistent with the criteria set forth in Staff Aceounting Bolletin 104 Revems
Heengnition ("SAB 10471 for dotormining when sevenue is reabized or sealizable and carned We recornize revemme in accordare with the

reguitements of SAH 104 that

«  perswasive evidence of an arrangemend exists including a signed purchase order:
e delivery s occurred;

s he seller’s prive o the buyer is Jised or deternumnable; and

»  collectability i reasonubly assured,

The Company recognies evenne i accordance with the ASC Topie 603, Revenwe Koy ognition (CASC Topie 6057 which seguires persuasive
evitence of an acrungemens, delivery of a product or seevice, a fixed or deteominable price and assuranee of collection within a reasenable period
of tme, The Company records revenue when goods are debivered 1o customers and the rights of owncestip bave sansferred from the Company
tor the costoaner.

Long-Lived Assets - In accordance with ASC Topic 360, © Accounting for the Enposiomont op Disposal of Fong 1 ived Assets 7 the Company
reviews property and equipment for bapairment whenever vvenis or changes in circummstances indicate that the carrying smouni of an asset may
pot be recoverable, Recoverability of property and cquipmoent is measured by comparing #s carrying value to the undiscounted projected luture
cash flows that the asset{s) ure expected to generte. 11 the carrying amount of an asset is not tecoverable, we revognize an impaimaent Joss based
on the excess of the carryiug amount of the fong-lived asset over its respective fair value, which is generally determined as the present value ol
estimated foture cash flows or at the appraised value. The impainnent analysis is based on significant assumpliions of fubire results made by
management, including revenie and cash flow projections. Circumstances that may Jead to impairment of property and cquipment inchude a
sigmificant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset, a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset is
being used or in its physical comdition and a significant adverse change in legal factors or in ihe business climate that could affect the value of a
Tong-lived asset including an adverse action or assessment by a regolator,

Goodwill and nangible Assely - The Company evaluales the carrying value of goodwill during the fourth quarter of cach year and between
annual evaluations if events oceur or circumsiances change that would more likely than not seduce the fair value of the reporting it below its
sarrying amount. Such circumsiances could include. but are not limited to £1) a sigpificant adverse change in legal factors or in business climate,
{2} unanticipated competition, or (3} an adverse action or assessment by a repulator. When evaluating whether goodwill is impatred, the
Company compares the fair value of the reporting unit o which the goosdwill is assigned to the reporling unit’s carrving mnonnt, including
poundwill. The fair value of the reporting unit is estimated using 2 combination of the income, or discounted cash flows, approach and the market
approach, which utilizes comparable companies’ data, If the canrying amount of a reporting wnit exceeds itx fair value, then the amount of the
impairment loss must be measured. The impainment joss would be caleulated by comparing the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill to
ity carrying amount, In calculating the implicd fair value of ecporting unit goodwill, the fair value of the reporting uait is allocated © all of the
other assets and fiabilities of that unit based on their fair values, The excess of the fair vatue of a reporting vnit ever the wnount assigaed to its
other assets and Habilities is the implied fair value of goodwill.

We make critical assamptions and estimates in completing impairment assessments of goodwill and other intungible assets. Our cash flow

projections look several years into the future and include assumptions on variables such as future sales and operating margin growth rates,
economic conditions, market competition. inflation and discount rates.

We amortize the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives, which range up to five years. unless such lives are deemed
indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite fives are tested in the fourth quarter of cach fiscal year for impaitment, or more often il mdicators

warrant.
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Stock-Rased Compensation - Certain employees, officers, dircctors and consultants of the Company participate in various long-term incentive
plans that provide for granting stock options wnd restricted stock awards, Stock aptions generally vest in cqual incremunts over a fwo- 1 four-
year peried and expire on the fonth apniversary following the date of grant. Restricted stock awards generally vest 100% al the grant date,

The Company recognizes stock-based compensation for equity awands pranted to vinpluyees, officers, and directors a5 compensation and
benefits expense on the comsolidated statements of operations. The fair value of stock options is estimated using a Black-Schofes valuation
muxdel an the date of grant, The fair value of resteicted stock awands is equat 1o the closing price of the Company™s stuek i e date of grant.
Stoek-hased compensation is recognized over the requisite service period of the individual awards, which generally cquals the vesting period.

The Company recognizes stock-based compensation for equity awards granted to consultunts as selling, general and administrotive expense va
the comsolidated staiements of operations. The fair value of stock options is estimated using a Black-Scholes valuation moded on the date of gram
and unvested shares are revalued af cach reporting period. The fiir value of restricted stock awards is equal w the closing price of the Company's
stock on the date of grant muliplicd by the number of shares awarded. Stock-bused compensidion is reengnized over the sepusite servier pediod
of the individual swards, which generally equabs the vesting period,

Kecond Arcouniing Propouncements

Refes to Note 2 of owr consolidated fimncial statements foe o discussion of recent secountmg stundards and pronesscenmunts.

Resulis of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2004 vs. Becember 31,2013

Revevues

We hod sales of $10, 191,667 and oross profit of $3,800665, representing i gross peofit porcentige of 36 9% for the year caded December 31,
2014 versus sales of $2,1 84,063 and gross profitet $1.273 393, representing a gross profit percentage of 39.01%% oy the year ershal Devember 31,
2 The sales nerease tn 2004 over 2013 15 the result of the Company " s expansion of ds existig antonver markets,

Selling. geneval and adminisecative expenses - For the vear ended December 31 2014, the Company incorred selling, general anid
administrative (the “SGEAT) expenses in the amount of $13.357,633 campared with $2.366,438 for the year ended Decernber 31, 2013, This
increase is primaniy driven by the continued growth of Company operations, increase i our headeount, madketing and legal expense, and stock
based compemsation. SGEA expense during 2014 includes 57,851,635 of stock-based compensation, a non-cash expense. Our legal expenses
have increased due to various matters that we are vigorously defending. The SGEA expenses include $821,.500 and $733.500 of amorizaion
expense of intangible assets acquired through the Agreement for Purchase und Sale of Asscts (the “PhytoSPHERE Agreement™) entered into hy
the Company with PhytoSPHERE for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively,

Research and developmient rxpenses - For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company incurred research and developmient
expenses of $999 280 and $324,476, respectively. These expenses are related to the cost of process development, rental of our labosatory facility,
payrol expenses, faboratory supplies, praduct development and iesting, and outsourced research personnel for the period. The increase in 2014
over 2013 refates primarily to expansion of vur [aborstory facility and related expenses. Resewrch and developioent exponse doring 2044
includes $64,148 of stock-based compensation, a non-cash expense,

{nterest incomedexpense Intcrest income wis 30,703 and 30, respectively, for the years ended Devember 31, 2010 and 2013, Interest expense
was $635.344 for the year ended December 11, 2014 versus interest expense of $372,109 for the year ended Decomber 31, 2013, Interest for
2014 includes erest acerved under the Roen Ventures Noie in the amount of $25.870 and SS8%.474 representing the amortization of the
remaining debt discount at the date of conversion. Intesest for 2013 includes $161,5873 of interest acerved on the note payable to Roen Ventures
plos 3210,526 as amortization of the discount calculated on the note payable to Roen Ventures, LLC related w0 a heneficial conversion featigre.

teainLoss on Fauily Investmens - For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized losses of $38.352 and $318,784,
respectively, representing its pro rata share (11.97%) of the loss of Kannal ife. On June X, 2014, the Company sold its 24.97% equity investment
in Kanmabife 1o PhytwSPHERE in exchange for 200000 shares of Company common stock beld by PhytoSPHERE, an alfiliate of Kannal.ife.
Accordingly, the Company recognized a gain on sale of equity investment of $7.899,306 based on the number of shares of Company common
stock eegived af the closing trading price of Company common stock on June 2, 2014 of $16.60 per share.
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Liguidity and Capital Resouyces
A sumunary of our chimges in cash (lows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 is provided betow:

For the yeurs cnded December 31,

24 2013

Net cash Nows provided by (used in):

Operating activities & 6,701,999y § (4,879 234)

luvesting activities (1.384,384) (1,875,819

Financing activitivs 8,185,131 8,908,292
Net increase in cash 38,7498 224323
Cash, beginning of year 2243670 431
{Cash, end of vewr s 2302418 3 2.243.670

Cash requirernents and hiquidity needs are primarily funded throngh our cash flow frem operstions and our ability to obtiin proceeds from
selling Company stock.

Uiperaling Activities

Net cash provided by of used in operating activines iscludes oot Joss adjusted for ponevash evpenses such as depreciation md amortization, foss
o equily Hveshnent, eain og sale of cquity mvestment, bad debt expense and siock-based Compensation, Operating assets and liabilities
primarily mclude balances related ey funding of mventory parchases aid customer aecounts receivable, Operating sssets and Babibities that arise
frons the funding of mventory purchases and customer accounts reccivable can tuctuaie sipmbicantly from day o duy and perad o pened
depending og the tmmng of lnventory purchases and enstomer bohavior,

Net eash used i operaung activities for the years ended December 310 2008 and 2003 totalod $6.71 1999 and $4879.234, respectively. Cash
wsed for prepayments of laventory and inventory purchases was approsimately $2.977.718 for the year ended Decomber 31, 20842 compared o
$2.602,166 for the year ¢nded December 31, 2013, Cash provided by sceounts recetvable collection was $1,205852 foc the year cnded
December 31, 2014 compared to 51,749,064 vsed ta fund accounts receivable for the year ended Degcomber 31 2043, Duning the vewr ended
December 3, 2014, collection of accounts receivable was greater than anticipated resulting in a 3300,000 reduction of our alfowance for
doubtful accounts with s corresponding adjustment (credit) to bad debt expense of $3H0.000. Cash provided by accounts payable and accrued
expenses was $369,411 for the year ended December 31, 2004 and $247.373 for the year coded December 31, 2013, Amortization of the debt
discount totated $389.474 for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2018 compared to $210,526 for the year ended December 31, 2013, Additionatly, in
fune 2004, the Company sold its 24.97% equity investrment in KannaLife fo PhytoSPHERE in exchange for 500,000 <hares of Company
common stock held by PhytoSPHERFE, an affiliate of Kannal.ife. Accordingly, the Company recogniced a gain on sale of equity investment of
57,899,386 based on the number of shares of Company conumon stock received at the closing trading price of Company common stock on June
2. 2014 of $16.60 per share. This was a non-cash transaction and accordingly is an adjustment fi cash used in operating activities for the year
ended December 31, 2014, Stack-based compensation totaled $7.915.833 for the year ended December 31, 2014 while there was no oxpense in
2013, Depreciation and amonization totaled $933.600 for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared 10 $767,254 for the year ended

December 31, 2013,

Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing sciivities for the year ended Decomber 31, 2014 and 2013 wialed $1,384.384 and $1.875,819, respectively. The pet

cash used in investing activity for the year ended Decomber 31, 2014 consisted of $M9.211 of propenty and cquipment purchases, $264.827 of
principal repayments on aole receivable and issuance of a $1.200,000 note reeeivable in connection with sale of inventory 1o a customer, The act
cash used in investing activity for the vear ended December 310 2013 consisted primarily of cash paid for the PlwtoSPHERFE Agreement totaling
$930.000 and the investment in Kannal, (e totaling $736.000,

Fimancing Activities
Nef cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 30} 3 otaled 38,155,131 and $8.998,292, respeciively, Cash

flaws provided by financing activities in 2014 primarily include $8.247 300 in proceeds from the sale of common stock, Cash flows provided by
financing activitics in 2013 primanily include proceeds of $6,192.0669 from the Roen Ventures, LLC loan and $2.731,423 in proceeds from the
sale of common stock.

The Company has yet 1o attain a level of operations which allows it to mwet operating and working capital cash flow needs, Therefore, the
Company has commenced an offering and plans to raise an additional amount up 1o $24 millien through a private placement. We expect to be
dependent upon obiaining additional financing in order to adequately fund working capital, infrastructure and expenses in order 1o execute plans
for future operations so that we can achieve a level of revenue adequaie 10 suppaort our cost structure, none of which can be assured.
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OHf-Balance Sheet Arrangemenis

‘The Company has two supply agreements in place with European formers to supply raw materis! fu future years. These arrangements are eritical
to Company operations since the worldwide supply of raw hemp is carrenily fismited.

The first contract is for the growth and processing of 2,600 kilograms of product currenily being deliverad and scheduled o be delivered throngh
August 34, 2615, The wital amount left to be paid under this contract 1s approximately $72.2 million thiough December 2015, The sevoid contract
provides up to | million kilograms of raw product © the Company. There i approximately $E8 million remuiniag 1o be paid under this sccond
contracl. We have contractual rights for the growih and processing of bemp oil for delivery through October 2018 under both ol these contracts,
We anticipate the cast under both contrts will remain consistent with current year prices.

FVEM TA, QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOAURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

st applicable 6 a “smalfer reporting company™ os defined in Ttom (I 1) of Regulation 5-K,

FPEM & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY BAT S

Phe full toat of the Companys asdited consolidated Dnancnd stalensents for the fiseal vears ended Decomber 310 2008 aed 2013, bogias on page
F-1 of this Annual Report,

FFEM 9 CHANGES IN AND BPISAGREEMENTS WITHE ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOENTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Noww |
FTEM 95, CONTROLS ARD PROCEDURES
IHSCLOSERE CONTROLS AND PHOCEDURES

Our management, which 1s comprised of one person bolding the offices of President and Chiel Lxecutive (ffiver and one person holding the
offices of Chiel Financial Officer and Sceretary, ovaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as such tevm is defined in Rudes 13a-15(e) and 15d-13{c) promulyated under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covercd
by this report {the “Evaluation [Jate”) Based on such evaluation, our management concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
ot effective, at a reasonable assurance level, as of the Evaluation Dite, 10 ensure that information required 1o b disclosed in yeponts that we file
or submit under that Fxchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time puriods specified i SEC iles and forms
and fo ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit ander the Exchange Act s scoumulated and
vommunicatod to owe management o a manner that allows timely decisions regarding reguired disclosures.
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MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONYROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company s manapement is responsible for establishing and maintaining sdequate infernal control over flnancial reportiog, as such term is
defined in rule §3a-15{) of the Exchange Act. The Company’s internal comdrol system is dusipned o provide reasomble assomnce (o (he
Company’s management and Board of Drectors repading the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extemal purposes in accordance with GAAP. The Company's intermal control over Sinancial reporting includes those policics and procedures

that:

¢ Perigin to the maintenance of records that, in reusopable detail, acourately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposttions of the
assets of the Company:

+  Provide reasonable assorancye that fransactions are revorded ns aecessary fo peanit preparation of financixd statements in sccordance
with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made anly in accordance with asthonzations of manugement

and directors of the Company: and
¢ Provide reasomable assurance regaeding prevestion or tunely Jdetection of unawhornized acguisition, wse or disposition of the Campany s

assets that could have a mateeiaf effect on the Gnancial statements,

Hecauss of its imhorent limisation, imiemal control over financial reporting auy nol prevent o deteat msstsioments. Also, projections of any
evaluation of cffcoliveness to futare periods are subject (o e visk that contiols may become inadequate beoanse of clanges i conditions, or that
the degree of comphiance with the policies or procedures may deferiorate.

An eviduation was perforined vader the suporvision and with the participation of the Company”s management of the effuctnvaness of the design
and operation of the Campany s procedures and indernal costrol over Dnapaial seponiing as of Decentber 31, 2014 In making s asseasanent,
the Company used the oreria set forth by the Commitice of Sponsoring Organizations of the Dieadway Commission (COSO} i Internal
Contral-Integrated Framowork of 1992 {the “1992 COSO Framework ™) The Company i b the process of idegraning the apdated, 2013 version
of the 1992 COSO Framework. Based vn thal evaluation, the Company’s munagement concluded thai the Company’s nternal contrels over
finameial reporting were mat effoctive in that there wers muterial weaknesses as of Decanber 31, 214, Sce Inherent Pimitations of fnwcmal
Controls for discussion of matorial weaknesses,

The Company has a small Boand of Directers (3 members} and docs not provide sutficient entity level eversight over financial reporting duc 1o

its small Sae. AN theee current Board members also function as the Company s audit conmnittee. The Company is evaluating expansion of its
current Board, inchuding the addition of an independemt Board member with ificient accounting und financisl experience o chair the audit

commitiee.

A material weskness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencics in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material mi nt of the annuwd or interim financial statements will not be provented or detected on a timely basis by the
Company s internal controls.

Aestation Repogt of the Rexiviered Public Accounting Firm

This annual report docs wot include an attestation report of our registered public accounting finn regarding intermal control over fisancial
reporting. Management's report was niot subject (o attestation by the Company s registered public accounting firm pursuant to the Dodi-Frank
Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, wherein aon-wecvlerated fiers are exempt from Sarbanes-Oxley internal control andit

regIirements,
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CHANCES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINARCIAL REPORTING

there was no change in our infernal controf over financial reporting idestified in connection with our evaluation that ocomred during the vear
ended December 31, 2004, that have materially affevied, or ae soasonably Ukely o matenially affect, our internal contral over financial

reporting.

Inheremt Limitations of Intemgd Controls

There are inherent limitations fo the cffectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error
and the circumvention and overriding of contrals and procedures, A control system, no matier how well conceived and operated, can only
provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the controd system are mel, Fusther, the design of the comtrol system aunst
veflect the fact that there are resotirce constraints, and the benelits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Beeause of the inherent
limitations in a cost-effective control system, nisstatements due tn error frand may ocour and not be detected. These litherent limitations include
the realities that judgments in decision-mabing can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur due to funnan crror or mistake. Additonally,
controls, no matter bow well desipned, could be circumvented by the individual acts of specific persons within the organization. The design of
any systemt of controls is also bassl in part apon centain assurptions about the likelihond of future events, and there can be no wssnrance that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated objectives under all potential future conditions.

Managenent is aware that there 15 2 fack of segregation of doties and accounting personned with sppropriate gualifications at the Company due
ta the small number of employees dealing with general administiative and Goancial matters. This constitudes a deficiency i the ntermal conprols,
Management has taken steps to rectfy these deheivcies. The Company hired g fulb-time Chiel Financal Officer i June 2004 who is focssed un
developing policies and procedures 1o regatre proper segtegation of dities. In addition, the Company hired a new Controbler i November 2014
and an Assistant Controller in February 3043,

ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION

None,
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PART 111
FTEM 10 IRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, ANU {ORPORATE GOVERNARCE
e DIRECTORS ANG EXECCEVE OFbICERs GF THE COMPANY

Cr executive officers. key employees and directors are listed in the beluw table. There are oo amangements, agiceruents oF saderstandings
between pon-masaygement security holders and managesment under which non-mvasmgement security holders say directly or indisectly participate
i or influence the munagement of our aflairs. There are no arrangements or undorstanstings between any director asud any other person pursuant
e which any dircctor or exceutive officer was or is 10 be selected 95 a director or executive officer, as applicable. There currently are no legal
proceedings, and during the past ter vears thers have been no fegal proceedings thar are waterial to the evaluation of the ability or inlegrity of
any of our directors or direcior nominecs,

Nyme Age Positian iNrector since the below date (1}
Michael Mona, Ir. {12} 6 {hrector, President and Chief Exccutive Oflicer Ianuary 28, 2013 (2}

Toseph Dowling (4} 47 Chief Financial Oificer, Seorctary

Michael Mona, HE{3) 19 Vice President, Operations

Hart P Mackay {1} 53 Direvtor March 14, 2013

Larry Raskmn 3% Drirector May 7, 2013

(13 Fach dicector serves wietib 1he noat asnual meeting of tockholders

() Elected as Pressdent and Chiet Excomive Oficer on November 16, 0812
{31 Appointed as Vice President, Operations on huly 75, 2017

£4) Appointed as Secietary on August 23, 201

Blichael Mons, Jr. My, Mona possesses over 28 years of experience 1 the field of vonstruction, investiments and project developraent, holdding
various senior positions in these fields since 1987, Since 1994, Me. Mona has servad a5 the President of M&M Development, Inc. and in such
role has overseen the consfruction and aperation of various apartment projects, hotels and recreational vehicle parks throughour Las Vegas,
Nevada. As our Presidont, Mr. Mona is specially gqualified 1o serve on the Board because of his detailed hnowledge of our operations and searket.

Joseph Dowling, Mr. Dowling was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company on June 16, 2018 and was appeinted Seoretary on July
23, 2014, Prior te his appointment as CFO, My, Dowling held numerous senior positions inchuding President and Chiel Financial Officer of
MediVas, LLC, a life science company, and from 1998 to 2005 served as a Managing Director at Citigroup, a glebal financial services firm.,
Earfier in his carcer, Mr. Dowling served in vartous finance and accounting roles in both public accousting and in the bunking indusiry, Mr.
Dowhing praduated from University of California, Los Angeles in Economics and is a certified public accountant.

Sichael Mona, 1. Mr. Mona griduated Trom the University of San Diego in 2009, with a Bachelor of Ars in hsiness Administration. Mr,
Muona has heen since 2009 a managing member of Monsa Co, Development, and prior to joeining the Corapany in 2013 was the President and
Managing Member of Caps of S13 LLC. Prior to joining the Company. Mr. Mona was Vice Preswlent, Product Development for Medical
Marijuana, Inc., and was responsible for the development and testing of hemp-based products.

Bart P. Mackay . Me. Mackay is an attomey Beensed since 1984 with emphasis in corporate finance, technology and entreprencusinl foyal
matters. Mr. Mackay has been u principal of Muckay Ventures, Inc. since ML AMr Mackay has oxtensive experience w establishing and
developing new enterprises both from management and operational aspects. including the furmativn and growth of several of his own ventures.
Mr. Mackay's extensive busisess hackground makes him a valuable addition to the Board.

Larry Raskin , Mr. Raskin was witially appointed as a director of the Compuny on May 7, 2014, Mr. Rackhin has been the Global Vice President
of Leadership Development of ACN lne., a tclecommunications compuny, since 2012, Mr, Raskin joined ACN Inc. in (994 and has held vadous
positions i the company. including Vice President of Sales North America from 2001 10 2006 and Senior Vice President in 2812 prior to
stepping info his current position. Prior o joining AUN e, Mr. Raskin was National Marketing Director at Natosal Sagety Assoviates of
AMemphis, Tennessee from 1988 10 1994, Mr. Raskin's extensive business hack ground makes him g valuable addition 1o the Board.

0817

2148



(K1) RE’()R,\"I'I'I GOVERNANCE
General

We belteve that good comporate governance i inportant o ensure that tie Compasy is managad for the long-teom benefit of our stockholders,
This section describes key corporate governance practices that we have adapted.

Board of Directors Mectings and Attendance

The Buoard has responsibility for establishing broad corporate policics amd reviewing our overall performance rather than day <o-day operations,
The primary responsibility of the Bourd is 1o oversee the management of the Company and, i doing so, serve the best interests of the Company
and its steckholders. The Board selects. evalvates and provides for the suceession of execuiive officers and, subject o stockbolder election,
directors. 1t reviews and approves corporate objectives and strategies, and evatuoates sipnificany policies and proposed major commiunents of
corporate reseurces, The Board alse partivipaies i decisions that have a potestial majer cconomic impact on the Company, Management keeps
the directors idormed of Company activity through regular communication, mchuding wiitien reports and presentations st Board aod commiites

mectings.
Connpittees of the Board of Birectors

Cither than the Compensation Commiitee, we do oot bave sny votpmitiees of the Board, inchiding an Audit Uonunitiee or a Nomdouting
Commitice, o apy other committees porfaming similar functions. The fosctions of thost cormittens are being undertaken by the Board of

Thirectons as a whole.

The Compensation Conpittce consists of Lurry Raskin and Bant Mackay, and the Compensation Conunitice hay established a chanter tha
vesjisires al mentbers of the Compensation Uenmtitiee 1o be “noneemployee directons” for purpuses of Rule 16b-3 of the Seenrities Exchange Al
of 1934, as amended, and satisly the requirentents of an “outside directar™ for purposes of Section 16{m) of the Internal Revenue Code. The
Compensation Committee is responsible for vversceing and, as appropriate, making recommendations 1o the Board of Direclors segarding the
annual salarics and other compensation of cur execative officers, our general cimployee compensation aed otber policies and providing assistance
and recommendations with respect ta aur compensation policies and practices, The Compensation Conumitice is aunthorized 1o carry ont these
activities and other actions reasonably related 0 the Compensative Commitlee’s purposes or assigned by the Board of Diirectors from time to
time. The Compensation Committee's specific responsibilities are delineated in its charter.

We da not have a policy regarding the consideration of any director candidates which may be recommended by our stockhelders, including the
minimum qualifications for director candidates. nor has our Board established a process for identifying and evaluating director nominees, nor do
we have a policy regarding director diversity. We have not adopted a policy regarding the handling of any potential recommendation of director
candidates by our stockholders, inclhuding the procedures 1o be followed. Our Board has not considercd or adopted any of these policies as we
have never received a recommendation from any stockholder for any candidute 0 serve on our Board, We do not know if any of our
stockhoeldess will make a recommendation for any candidate 10 serve on our Board given the relatively small size of our company.

Section 16(a} Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16{a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers and directors, snd gersons who hencficially vwn more than 10% of g registered
chass of our equity securities 1o file with the SEC initial statements of beneficial ownershup, reports of changes in ownership amd annval repons
concermng their owaership of our common shares and other equily securilies, oo Forms 3, 4 and S respectively, Exccutive officers, directors and
greater than 1% stockholders are required by the SEC regulations 10 furnish us with copius of all Section 16(a} reports they file, Based on our
review of the vopies of such forms received by us, and 10 the best of eus knowledge, all executive officers, dircetors and persons holding greater
than 10% of our issued and oststanding stock have filed the required reports in a limely manner during fiscal 2014 with the exception of 1he late
fiting of one Form 3 by each of Michael Mona, Jr., and PhytoSPHERE, the Iate filing of Form 4 by Michael Mora IH and Joseph Dowling and
the failure to file g Form S by cach of PhytoSPHERE, Mercia Holdings LLC, Mai Dun Limited LLC and Bart Mackay.
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Other Direstorships

Other than as disclosed above, during the last 3 years, none of our directors held any other directorships inany company with a class of securities
registered pursuant o section 12 of the Fxchange Act or subject 10 the requirements of sectivn 15(d) of such Act or any company registered as an
investment company under the favestment Company Act ol 19460,

Cade of Eihies

We have adopled @ corporate code of ethics that applies 1o our puneipal exccutive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer
or contiobler, of persons perfonning similar functions. A copy of the code was filed as Exhibit 14.) o our Amnval Report on Form 16X filed
with the SLC on Aprif 16, 2013 and bs attached as Exhibit 140 to this Ansual Report on Ferm K.

Family Helationships

Owr Viee President of Operations, Michael Mona, T, is e son of vur President, Chief Excentive Officer and Director. Michael Mona, Ir.

Comgpensation of Directors

Ciur directors, otber than Mr. Mooa, have cach received compensation for their seevice as directons m the amoont of 3LEED, from inception to
the date of this report. We bave a formal plag A compensating our disectors for their services, whereby each dircctor, viher than vur Chatrman,
receives $300 per mceting of the Board of Dircetors attended. Each of our directors are expected in the futtire @ receive stoch grams as further
compensalion for their services.

On Oriober 1, 2004, vwo por-employee Company dircetors were cach granted 25,000 shares of conmon stock with a value cgual W the fair
rarket value isf the Company s common stock at the tme of the grant.

Conflicts of Interest

Cur directors and officers are ool obligated (0 commit their full time snd attention to our businesy ab, accordingly, they may cacounter a
conflict of interest in alfocating their time between our vperations and those of other businesses. In the conrse of their other business activities.
they may become uware of invesiment and business opportunitics which may be appropriate for presentation to us as well as other entities to
which they owe a fiduciary duty. As a result, they may have conflicts of interest in determining to which entity a particular business opportunity
should be presented, They may alse in the fature become affiliated with entitics that are engaged in business activities similar o those we intend
fu conduct.

in general, officers and directors of a corporation are required 1o present business oppertutities 1o the corporation il
s the corporation could financially undertake the opportunity:
«  the opportumty s within the corporation’s fine of business; and
»  itwould be unfair (o the corporation and jts stockholders not 10 bring the opportusity 16 the attention of the corparation,

We have adopted a code of ethics that obligates vur dircetors, officers and emplovees 10 disclose potential contlicts of interest and prohibits
those persons from cogaging in such tmngactions without sur consent,
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FIEM (L EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table summarizes afl compensation recorded by us in vach of the fast two completed fiscal years Tor our Chief Executive Gfficer
and the twe next most highly comperssated officers. The vidue attributable 10 any option awards is computed in accordance with FASE ASC 718
Shiee Based-Pay ment (" ASU 7187).

Now-Equily  Nosgualified

Name nad Stock Option  Incentive Plan Deferred Al Other Total
Principal Salary Bonus Awards Awarth  Compensation Compensatinn  Compensation  Earnings
Pasition Yeur (3} {3} (1) 2y {$) [&3) (%) 1%
Michael Mona, Jr. 2014 § 200521 § 10000 § - $8.32322 % - % S -~ 38542745
Chaivenan, CEC) 2013 15,921 10,000 7.500 63,423
Michact Mona, 11 2603 5 137808 % 10000 § 70306060 S1.149819 § hY % - 82002 627
VF. Ogerations B R 44,769 10,000 - 51,769
Joseph Dowling M4 S MO % 1o % ~ R A0604% 8 5 b 51,616,949
£ hicf Funanciod 213 -
et cant
Sekriney

{1} These amounts ceffect the gram date fair value of stock awards as determined hy the market price of the Conunen Stock on the dage of
serant,

2 These amonnts reflect the grant date {fair value of stock options as determined under FASR AST Topiv 718 and ssing the Black-Scheles
model, The underdving valuation assumptions for stock aption awards made are Juniher disclosed in Note 11 1o our consolidated
financial statements filed with our Aonual Reports on Fonn 10-K for the yoar ended December 31, 2014,

Compensation Arrangenents

‘The Board of Directors approved a salary of $300.008 for ow President and Chief Executive Officer on Augast 28, 2014, During fiscal year
2014, Mr. Mona was paid an aggregate sum of $3.939.950. In 2014, the Compensation Commitiee approved the grant of 4,000,000 stock options
10 Mr. Mona. The stock option is durational-based, with 67% vested as of the date of gramt and the remainder vesting in twelbve (12) equal
monthly installmenis measured from Januasy 31, 2015, and was granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s
comemon stock af the time of the graot.

the Board of Directors approved a <alary of SI130,000 for our Vice President, Operations on Augaust 25, 2014, Donng fiseal year 2014, Mr.
Mona B was paid an spgregate sum of $1.428,782, On Uctober 6, 2014, the Compensation Committee approved the grant of 200000 swck
options to Mr. Mooa and a stock award under the Company™s Form §-8 Regisiration Statemsent filed with the SEC on October 6, 2014 of an
angregate of SOE0H shares of common stock. The stoek award provided for the issuance of 250,000 shares of commen stock on Ocober 6,
2014 and 250000 shares of copmmon stock on fanuary 1, 2015, The stock option has a term of ten (10) vears. s dovational-based. with 25% {or
125,000 option shares) vested immediately, and the remaining option shiates vesting in thisty-six {36} equal monthly increments. As of March 31,
2013, H5,833 option shares have vested, amd M. Mona H has not exercised any stoek aptions.

Joseph Dowling was appointed as the Company s Chief Financial Officer an June 16, 2014 with an annual salary of $200.000 and during fiscal
2014 was paid an aggregate sum of $244,340. On October 6, 2014, the Compensation Committee approved the grant of 600,000 stock options ©
Ar. Dowling. The stock option is durational-bascd, with 23%% vested on the one year anmiversary of Mr. Dowling's service 1o the Company, and
the remaining options vesting In 36 cqual monthly instaliments,
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Option Lirants

On July 23, 2014, Company sharcholders approved the Ameanded and Restated LEquity Incentive Plan fihe “Amended 2013 Plan™), which
provides for the granting of stock optivias, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, stock bonus awards and performuace-based awards,
This Amended 2013 Plan serves as the successor 1o the 2013 Fquity Incentive Plan, There were o option awards wnder the 2013 Equity
Incentive Plan, Under the Amended 2013 Plan, the Company may geant up to 10,060,000 nev shares. As of December 31, 2014, the Company

had 3,530,000 of authorized unissued shares reserved and available.

Pension, Retirement or Similar Begefit Plang

‘There are no arrangemenis or plaas in which we provide pepsion, retirement or similar benefits 10 our directors or excoutive officers, We have no
waterial bonus or profit sharing plans pursuant 10 which cash or nor-cash compensation is or may be paid to our directors ar executive officers,
except that stock options may be grunted at the discretion of the Boand or a committer thereof,

FYEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Beneficial Owaership of Directors, Officers and 5% Steckholders

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance witl the rdes oof the SEC. In computing the nuniber of shares beneficially owned by a porson
and the percentage of ownership of that person, shures of commuon stock subject 10 oplions and warrants beld by that person that are currensly
exercisable or hecome exercisable within 60 Jays are deemed oubstamding even i they have sot actually been exercised. These shares, however,
are not deemed ontstanding for the purpose of computing the pescentage ownmership of any other person. The following table sets forth, as of
March 31, 2013, certain information 35 to shares of our common sfock owned by (i} each person kaown to beneficially vwn more than five
pescent of owr outstanding common stock or preferred siuck, {H) cach of vur directors, and exccutive officers named in our summary
compensation fable, and (i) all of our exeontive officers and ditectors as a group. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each named
heneficial owner is the same as thal of our principal exccutive offices looated 1t 2688 South Rainbow Avenuy, Suite §8, Las Vegas, NV 59146,

Number of Shares Percent of
of Common Steck Common Stock
Beneficially Beneficially
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner (1) Owned {2) COrwined
Mai Dun Limited, LLC (3) 5,463,162 15.64%
Roen Ventures, LLC (3} 10,0000600 28.63%
Mackay Ventures, Inc. (3} 618564 1.77%
AMINA Investarert Holdings, LLC (4) 4,925,000 14.10%
Medical Marijuana, Inc. (5) 3,930,252 11.25%
Michael Mona 11 {6) 1,875,833 5.37%
Michael Mouna, fr. (7) 3.304.659 9.46%
Bart Mackay (3) 16.081.726 46.04%
Larry Raskin (8} 400,000 {.15%
All executive offivers and directors as 2 group {five persons) 21662218 62.00%,

Benefictal ownership has been doermined i accordance with Rule 134d-3 wnder the Exchange Act. Pursuant to the rules of the
Commission, shares of our common stock that each named person and gronp has the right to acquire within 60 days pursuant o options,
warrants, or other rights, are deemed oulstanding for purposes of computing shares heneficially owned by the percentage ownership of
each such person and group. Applicable prreentages are based on 34,929,166 shares of our common stock outstanding on March 31,

2015, and are calculated as required by rules promulgated by the SEC.
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Unless otherwise noted, all shores listed are owned of record and the record owner has sole voting amd favestment power, subject o
communily property laws where applicable.

Bart Mackay is the sole member of cach of Reen Ventures, LLC and Mai Dua Limited, LLC. Fhe address of each of Roen Ventures,
LLC, Mat Druan Limited, 11.C and Mackay Ventures, fne. is 8. Rancho Drive, Suite A-7. Las Veyas, Novada 89806, Bart Mackay, the
sode memberstockholder of Roen Ventures, LLC, Mai Dun Binited, LLC and Mackay Vemtures, Inc. is deemed 1o have shared voting
anud investinent power ovir the shares of our common stock owned by cach of Roen Vestures, LLC, Mal Dun Limited, LLC and
Muckay Ventures, Inc.

The address of MINA Investment Holdings, LLC, a subsidiary of Medical Marijuana, Inc., is 12975 Bmook Printer PL, Suile 160,
Poway, CA 92064

Medical Marijuana, Inc. has benclicial ownership of 80% ol shares owned by MINA Holdings, LLC, theough its 80% ownership
interests of MINA Investment Holdings, 1.1.0.

Michael Mouna U owns 280,000 shares of record, 15 a benefivial owner and beneficiary of Mik Nik Trust, which owns 750,000 shares,
and on October 6, 2014 was pranted a stock option to purchase SO0.000 shares of common stock, The stock option is dumtional-based,
with 259 for 125000 option sharcs) vested bamedisicly, and the remaining option shares vesting in thirty-six (36} cqual montkly
meretnents, As of March 31, 2015, 145 833 option shares have vested,

Oa December 8, 2014, the Compensation Commitiee approved the grant of 1,000,000 stovk vptions © Michael Mona, Jr., dhe
Company s President and Chief Feeentive Officer. The stock option s durational-based, with 677 vested as of the date of grant smd the
remainder vesting i iwelve (12} equal monthly mstsllments measured from Jansary 31, 2005,

Less than 12

EOUTTY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMA LION

On July 23, N Company sharebolders approved the Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan (he “Amended 2013 Plan™y,

which provides for the granting of gtock options. restiicled stock awards, restricted stock units, stock bonus awandy and perfonmance-based
awards, e Amended 2003 Plan serves as the successor o the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan,

Nuinber of
securities remaining
Number of available for fure

securitics io be isswance under
1ssued upon equity

exercise of Weighted-average compensation plans

outstanding options, exercise price of {excluding
swarrants and rights cutstanding options, securities reffected
Plan Category {1} warrants and riphts in the first column}
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 6470000 S 270 3.330.000
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders -
Total 6,470,000 $ 270 3,330,000

{11 Consists splely of awards granted under our Amended 2013 Plan.
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FUEM 13, CERTAIN RELATIONSIHPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Except for the transactions described below, none of our directors, officers or principal sharcholders, nor any associate or affiliate of the
fisregoing, bave any interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction or in any proposed transaction since January 1. 2004 which materially affects

the Company or has affected the Company.

As previously disclosed in that certain Cusrent Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company with the SEC op Mareh 8, 2013, on Manch 1, 2013,
the Company issucd @ Promissory Note {the “Note™} lv Roen Ventures, LLC. a Nevada limited liability company {"Roen Vestures™), in
exchange for loans provided and to he provided in the fuiture in an smount of up o 32.000,000. As previonsly disclosed in that certain Crrrent
Report on Form 8-K fded by the Company with the SEC on July 31, 2013, on July 23, 2013, the disinterested members of our Board approved
au amendient (o the Note, (o provide for an increase i the amount of loans 10 he provided i the future in an amount of up to 36,000,500 and
the ability of Hoen Ventures to convert, in its sole discretion, the ourstanding bulance under the Nede fnte shares of the common stock of the
Company at a conversion price 1o be detenpined Hllowing the conclasion of a valnation of the common stock of the Company detennined
pursisnt 0 ASC 718 Stock Compensation . As previously disclosed ma that certain Curent Report on Porm B-K filed by the Company with the
SEC on November 13, 2013, g Board valuation was prepared puvsvant to lnternal Revenue Code Sectton 409A and Financil Accounting
Sundards Board Accounting Standards Codification 718 Sreck Compersarins (the “Valuation ™). The Valuation detenmined that the fair market
vitlue of the Corapany s restricted, pon-marketable common stock is $8.68 pes share. On November 7, 2613, the disinterested mambers of cur
Roard approved a secoind snendment fo the Note 1o provide for a conversion price of $0.60 per share, which represents an approximate 12%
discount 1o the fair market valoe of the Company™s restrivted, non-marketable compon steck pursuant to the Valuation. A previonsly disclosed
i that certain Curent Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company with the SEC on January 28, 2004, on Jamawy 720 2014 Roen Ventues
delivered a Notice of Flection to Convert fo Common Shares (the “Counversion Nutice™} pursnant 10 which Roen Ventares exercised its riplt
snder the Note 1o convert ali amounts owing veder the Note inte shuwes of common stock of the Compmny at the set conversion price of $0.60
por share, Ag of the date of the Conversion Netive, the balance of the foans cvidenced by the Note was $6.0¢0.000, inchuding alf principal and
aerest owing therewuder, Therefore, pursuant to the Cenversion Natice, on Lmuoary 22, 2014 the Company boued Roen Vemlures 10,000,000
shares of its common stock. As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10K, Bat Mackay, a menther of the Board, through his two whaolly-
swned limited Bability compantes, Mercia Heldiogs, LLC and Mai Dan Linited, LLU, owns 100% of the isterests i Rocn Ventures

O December 8, 20§4 and as sct forth in the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 18, 2014, the Compensation
Commifiee approved the grant of 1,000,000 stock options to Michacl Mona, Jr., the Company’s President and Chief Exccutive {Hbicer. The
stock option has a lerm of wa (10) years, s durational-based, with 67% vesied as of the date of grant and the remainder vesting in twelve (123
equal monihly installmenis measured from January 31, 2015, and was pramted with an exercise price equal to the fair marker value of the
Company's common stock at the time of grant. As of March 31, 2015, Mr. Mona has pot exercised any stock options.

On October 6, 2014, the Compensation Committee apptoved the grant of 300,000 stock options o Michacl Mona, 111, the Company s Chict
Opernting Officer and a stock award under the Company's Form §-8 Regissration Statement filed with the SEC on October 6, 2014 of an
aggregate of $00,000 shares of common stock. The stock award provided for the issuance of 230,000 shares of common stock on October 6,
2014 and 250,000 shares of common stock on Jansary 1, 2015 The stock option has a term of ten (10) years, is durational-based, with 25% (or
123,000 option shares) vested immediately, and the remaining option shares vesting in thirty-six {36) equal monmibly increments. As of March 31,
20158, B4S,833 oplion shares have vested, and Mr. Mona 1 has not excrcised any stock oplions.

On Oetober 6, 2014, the Compensation Committee approved the grant of 600.000 stock options 0 Juseph Dowling, the Company’s Chief
Fraancisl Officer. The stock option has a term of ten {10} years, 1 durational-bused. with 25%% of the option shares vesting on June 16, 2018, and
the remaintng option shares vesting in thirty-5ix (36} equal monthly instaliments.
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For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recugnized sales to the following related parties:

For the vesrs ended December 31,

Farty Relationship 2014 2013
Medical Marijuana, Inc. {"MINA®) Stockholder % - 3 92,690
HempMeds PX $0% owned by MINA 5443978 §71313
hixie/RedDice Holdings 0% owned by MINA - 365,058
Canchew Biotechnologies 0% owned by MINA #25.000
Total sales to refated parties £ 5,443,978 % 2,134,063
53.4% 100.0%

Pereent of {otal saley

During 2014, the Company discontinued sales 1o HempMeds PX {see Part §, ftem 33

At December 31, 2013, 1% of the Company’s accounts receivable balance wiahing £1.740.507 arc from these parties. At December 31, 2014,
the Compiny had a note reseivable from Dixie Botanicals of $335.173.

Praring the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company paid 39072028 wnd 51,9536, respectively, fo a stockholder of the
Company who is & supplier of hemp ol and hemp to the Company.

There have beey o other inmsactions since the beginning of ouy Jast fiscal year oc any currently proposed transactions in which we are, or plan
to be. a participant and the snount involved exceeds the lesser of $120.000 or ope percemt of the average of oy fotal assets st year end for the
Last two completed fiscal years, snd in which any related person had or will have a divect or indirect matenaf interest.

FTEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The following table sunwmarizes the fees, as applicable, of PKF Certified Public Accountants, 2 Professional Corporation, our independent
auditor for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013; Tumer, Stone & Company, L.L.P., our independent avditor for fiscal year 2012 and
the interim period through May 6. 2013, and Anton & Chia, LLP, our independent auditor from May 7. 2013 throngh November 14, 2013, billed
t0r us for cach of the last two fiscal years for andit services and billed to us in cach of the last two years for other services:

Fee Category 2814 2813

Audit Fees (1) $ 87022 % 20,426
Audit-Related Fees (2) $ 36,5314 $ ~
Tax Fees (3} $ 400§ 3,300
All Other Fees (1) ¢ s6s 8§

(1) Autdit fees includes the audit of our annual financial statements, review of financial statements included in our Form 10-Q quarterdy reponts
and services that are normally provided by the independent auditors in conbeetion with engagements for those fiscal years. This category also
ivcludes advice on audit and gccounting matters that arese during, or as @ result of, the sudit or the review of interim financial statements.

(2} Audit-reiated fees consist of assurance and related services by the independent auditors thit are reasonably related to the performance of the
andit or review of our financial statements and are not reported above under “Audit Fees.” The services for the fees disclosed under this category
include consultation regarding our correspondence with the SEC and other accounting consulting,

{3} Tax fees consist of professional services rendered by our advisors for tax complisnce and tax advice. The services for the fees disclosed
under this category include tax return preparation and technical tax advice.

(4) All ather fees consist of fees for other miscellaneous items.

Our Board has adopted a procedure for pre-approval of all fees charged by our independent auditors. Under the procedure, the Board approves
the engagement letter with respect to audit and review services. Other fees are subject to pre-approval by the Boord, or. in the period between
meetings, by a designated member of Board. Any such approval by the designated member is disclosed 1o the entive Board at the next
ineeting. The audit fees paid to the auditors with respect to 2014 and 2013 were pre-approved by the entire Board.
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PART 1Y
FIEM 15, EXHIBETS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Please see the Exhibit fndex which follows the signature page 16 this annual report on Form 10-K and which is incorporated by reference herein.

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registcant has duly caused this report 1o be
sipned on its behalf by the undersipned, thereunto duly authorized,

CANNAVEST CORP.
{Repistrant)

By A/ Michacl Mona, Jr.
Michael Mowa, Jr.
President and Chief Exceutive Officer
Drated March 31, 2015

By s/ doseph 12 Dowling
Juseph B, Dowling
Chief Financisl Officer
Dated March 31, 2015

Pussaant w the requirements of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behaif of the

registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Tisle Date
5/ Michacl Mona, Ir. President, Chief Executive Officer and March 31, 2015
Michact Mona, Jr, Dircctor
fsf Bart P, Mackay Pirector Muarch 31, 2015
Bart P. Mackay

Director March 31, 2018

/si Larry Raskin
Larry Raskin
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibit

Ll Agrecment and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 25, 2013, hy and berween CannaVEST Corp., a Texas corporation, and
CannaVEST Curp., a Delaware corporation.

Tieh) Certificate of Incorporation of CammaVEST Corp., as filed on January 26,2013,

32 Bylaws of CannaVEST Corp., dated as of Janpary 26, 2013,

4442 CannaVEST Corp. Specimen Stock Certificate

[{IRRR)] Stock Purchase Agreement, dated zs of November 16, 2012, by and among Mai Dun Limited, LLC, Mercia Holdings, LLC,
Cieneral Hemp, LLEC, Bamburgh Holdings, LLC, H.J. (ole and Foreclosure Sohations, Tac.

0.2 Siock Purchase Agreement (Non-AfTiliate), dated as of November 12, 2012, by and among Mai Dun Limited, LLC, Mereia

Holdings, LLC, General Hemp, LLC, Bambusgh Holdings, LLC, on the one hand, and Kevin Halter, on the other hand.

10.3 {2} Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Assets of PhytoSPHERE Systems LLC, dated December 15, 2012 by and between
Foveclosure Solutions, Inc. and PhytoSPHERE Systems, LLC.

1.4 {4 Stock and Watrant Purchase Agreement, dated March 4, 2013, by and among KannaLife Sciences, Ine., CanmaVEST Corp. and
Medical Martjnana, e

1.5 {5 Non-Fxclusive License and Distribution Agreement by and between the Company and HempMeds PX, LLC, dated August ¥,
2013 and effective as of July 1, 2013, ¢

L6 (2 CannaVEST Corp. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan,

10.7 {6) Amended and Restated Bquity Incentive Plan of CannaVEST Corp.

10.8(%) Form of Stock Option Award Grant Notice and Ferm of Steck Award Agreciment,

14, HE) CannaVEST Corp. Code of Ethics.

2 List of Subsidiprics

234 Consent of Independent Registered Accounting Firm,

(I Certification of the Chief Exeantive Oflicer pursuant 6 Soction 302{a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

ki Certifivation of the Chicf Financial Officer pursuant 1 Section 302(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

ELI A “ertification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 US.C. Section 1350, as adopred pursuant to Scction 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

32.2* Cenification of the Chief Finsncial Officer pursuant to 18 US.C. Section 350, as adopied pursvant lo Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

101 INS XBRL Instance Document®*®

101 SCH XBRL Schema Document*®

101 CAL KHRI. Caleutation Linkbase Document®*
101 LAB XBRL Labels Linkbase Document**

101 PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docoment®”
101 DEF KRBRL Definition Linkbase Document®™

* Filed herewith,

o5 The XBRL related information in Exhibit 101 shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Seourities Exchange Act of 1934,
as smended, or otherwise subjeet o liability of that section and shall ot be incorporated by reference into sy filing or other document pursuasd
1o the Sceurities Act of 1933, as amended, excepl as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filiog or document.

¢ Postions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a reguest for confidential treatment and the non-public information has been filed
separately with the Commission.

(1) Tncorporated by reference from an exhibit to our Quarterly Repott on Form 10-Q fifed on August 13, 2013,
{2} lncorporated by reference from an exhibit to o Current Report on Form 8-K. filed on July 31, 2013,

(3} Incorporated by reference from an exhibil o our Current Regort on Form 8-K filed on November 30, 2012,
(4} Incorporated by reference from an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 8, 2013,

(51 Incorporated by reference from an exhibit to cur Quasterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2013,
(6) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit 1o our Schedule 14A filed on July 2, 2014

{7y Incorporated by reference from an exhibit to our Form §-8 filed on October 6, 2014,

(8) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit to our Annnal Report on Form 10-K filed on April 16, 2013

* Filed herewith,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Boord of Directors and
Stockholders of CannaVest Corp. and Subsidiaries

We have andited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CannaVest Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of Decernber 31, 2014
and 2013, and the refated consolidated statements of operativns, changes in stockholders” equity (deficit), und cash flows for cach of the years in
the two-year period ended December 31, 2014, CannaVest Comp.’s managemest is responsible for these consolidated financial statements. Dur
vesponsibility is to expross an opinion on these consolidated fimancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the conselidated financial statements are free of material
wisstatenment. The Company is not required 1o have, nor were we engaged o pestorm, sn audi of its intermal control over financtal reporting.
Our audit included consideration of wternal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but aot for the purposc of cxpressing an opinion on the cffcctiveness af the Company s internal contiel over financial repoting.
Avcordingly, we express 0o such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting ihe ameamnts aod disclosures in
the consolidated financial stlements, assessing the accounting principles ased and significont estimates made by oupagement, a8 well as
evaluating the overall financial statement prescrtation. We believe it our audits provide a reasoitable Dasis for o opHRiL,

in our epinion, the consolidated fimancial statements refierred o above present fairly, in il matenial respeets, the fiancial position ol
CansaVIST Corp. and subsidiaries as oF December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the restilts of its operations and its cush fows for cach of the voars
it the tweoryear period ended Docember 31, 5014, in confarmity with acconnting prineiples genvrally accepied in the United States of America.

A PRY
San Dicgo, California PKF
March 31, 2015 Cerified Public Accountants

A Professional Corporation
P
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CANNAVEST CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,2014 December 31,2013
Assels
Current assets
Cash (Note 2) b 2,302418  § 2,243,670
Accounts receivable, net {Note 2) 282,407 1.430.,202
Notes receivable - current portion (Note 3) 1,508,468 -
Prepaid inventory 519,620 1,734,831
Inventory {Note 4) 11,666,251 2,473,322
Prepaid expenses and other current assels 527,104 174,317
Total current assets 16,806,268 8,056,342
Property & equipment, net (Note 2) 516,423 214,128
intangibles, net (Note 6) 2,535,000 3,356,500
Goodwill (Note 6) 1,855,512 1,855,512
Accounts receivable. net of current portion - 310,300
Note receivable - long term portion (Note 1) 26,705
Investment in Kannalife Sciences (Note 7) o 439,246
Tolal other assels 4,933,640 6,175,686
Total assels 3 21739908 3 $4,232,028
Liabilities zud stockholders' equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 3 546,387 3 24,622
Aecrucd expenses (Note 5) 118,206 222,703
Common stock to be issued (Note 10) - 175,000
Amount due to related party 300
Total current liabilities 664,593 422,625
Non-current liabilitics
Line of credit - Roen Ventures, LLC, net of debt discount {Note 9) - 5,502,595
Total Habilities 664,593 5,925,220
Commitments and contingencics {(Note 12)
Stockholders' equity (Note 10)
Preferred stock, par value $0.0001; 10,006,000 shares authorized; no shares yssued and
outstanding
Common stock, par value $0.0001; 190,000,000 shares authorized; 33,419,166 and 15,580,000
shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively 3,341 1,558
Additional paid-in capital 24,828337 10,749,662
Accumulated deficit (3,756,363) (2,444,412}
Totsl stockholders’ equity 21,075.315 8,306,808
Total liabilitics and stockholders' equity $ 21,739908 § 14,232,028
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-3
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CANNAVEST CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013
Product sales, net 3 10,190,667 2,154,063
Cost of goods sold 4,387,002 $80,470
Gross Profit 5,803,665 1,273.593
Operating Expenscs:
Selling. general and administrative 13,357,613 2,366,450
Rescarch and development 999,280 524476
Total Operating Expenses 14,356,913 2,890,926
Operating Loss {8,553,248) {1.617.333)
Other income {cxpense):
Interest income 30,703 -
Interest expense (615,344) {372,109}
Allocated losses on KannaLife Sciences investment {38.552) {310,754)
Gain on sale of KannaLife Sciences investment {Note 7) 7.899.306 :
Other (34.816) -
Totzi Other Income (Fxpense) 7,241,297 {682,863}
Loss before taxes (1,310.951) {2,300,196)
Provision {or income taxes - -
Net Loss b {1,311,951) (2,300,196}
Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic 31,581,101 9,879,098
Net income per comsmon share
Basic s (0.04) (0.23)
Sce accompanying notes (o consolidated financial statements.
F-4
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C ANNAVEST CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS™ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBLR 31, 2014 AND 2013

Additional
Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Totai

Balance - December 31, 2012 7,000,000 § 7006 3 143447 3 (144,216} § {(69)
Shares issued pursuant o

PhytoSPHERE acquisition (Note

6) 5,825,000 582 7.069.418 - 7,070,000
Shares issued for cash (net of

expenscs) {Note 10) 2,750,000 275 2,731,148 ~ 2,731,423
Restricted shares issued under

cmployment agreement

{Note 10) 5,000 1 5,649 - 5,650
Yo record beneficial conversion

feature of debt (Note ¥) - 806,000 -~ 800,000
Net loss - - - (2,300,196} (2,300,196)
Balance - December 31, 2013 15,580,000 1,558 10,749,662 (2,444.412) 8,306,808
Shares issued for cash (net of

cxpenscs) (Note 10) 8,031.666 303 8,421,697 - #,422.500
Shares issued for conversion of note

from Roen Ventures, LLC

{Note 9) 10,000,600 1,000 5,999,000 6.000,000
Shares issued pursuant o

cployment agreement

(Note 10) 7,500 - 42,125 - 42,125
Shares received in exchange for

sale of equity investment

{Note 7) {500,000) (50) (8,299,950} - {8,300,000)
Stock-based compensation

(Note 11) 300,000 30 7.915,803 - 7,915,833
Net loss ~ - ~ (1,311,951} {1,311,951)
Balance - December 31, 2014 33,419,166 § 3,341 s 24828337 S (3,756,363} § 21,075,315

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
F-S
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CANNAVEST CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31,

1014 2013
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (1L,31L,9sn § (2,300,196)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 933,600 767,254
Amoriization of debt discount 589474 210,526
Stock issued pursuant to employment agreemcent 42,125 5,650
Stock-based compensation 7.915,833 ~-
Loss on equity investment 38,552 310,754
Gain on sale of equity investment (7,899.306) -
Bad debt expense (300,000) 400,600
Other 34,816 -
Change in operatling assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1,205,952 (1,744,064}
Prepaid inventory 1215211 (474,321}
{nveniory {9.192,929) (2,127,845)
Prepaid expenses and other cusrent assets (352,787 {174,317)
Accounts payable 190.859 24,622
Accrued expenses 178,552 222,703
Net cash used in operating activities (6,711,999) (4,879,234}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash received on acquisition - 50,775
Purchase of equipment (449,211) {226,594}
Cash paid on PhytoSPHERE Agrecment - {950,000)
Investment in Kannalife Sciences {750.000)
Issusnce of note receivable (1,200,000) -
Repayment of principal on Dixie note receivable 264,827 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,384,384) (1,875,819}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Common stock issued for cash 8,247,500 2,731,423
Proceeds of loan from Roen Ventures - 6,192,069
Repayment of loan to Roen Ventures (92,069) {100.000)
Common stock to be issued - 175,000
Repayment of losn from related party (300) (200}
Net cash flows from financing activiies 8,155,131 8,998,292
F-6
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CANNAVEST CORPLAND SUBSIBIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHPLOWS  Contimuad

For the vears onded December 31,
FAGR] 2083

Nt inerease i cash 58748 2243259
€ ash, beginning of vear 2HMaa0 $34
sl end of vear b4 2302418 5 22436

Supplemental dischosores of noe-cash transactions:
Wabie ool dedst dlsvont 5 s LR
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Proporty anst squipmest assimed fuen Soduisition
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Hatangeble wsscts avyaired rons 4 eHES
S doe to PhyiehPHERE A vers
Comsion e for audgmistion
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Interest pand
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See gecomnpanying podes comsolitated fipanoial datemens
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CANNAVEST CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

CannaVest Corp. (formerly Foreclosure Solutions, Inc.} (the ~Company™, e or Cus”) was originally incorporuted on December 9,
3010, in the state of Texas, to provide imformation on pre-forectosure and foreclosed residential propertics 1o homebuyers and read
estate profussionals on its website, The sole director, the President, Secretary and Treasurer was 1.1 Cole ("Cole™). On March 31, 2011
the Company filed a Registration Statement on Form S-1 with the ©.5, Securities and Exclange Commission {the “SECT) The SEC
declared the Repistrtion Statement elfective on July 29, 2011

O3 November 16, 2012, Mai Dun Limited, LLC. Mercia Holdings, LLC, General Hemp, L1.C and Banburgh Holdings, LLC (the
“Buyers} acquired a total of 5,800,000 shares of common stock from Cole pursuant fo that cerain Stovk Purchase Agreement by and
among the Buyers, Cole and CannaVest Corp., a Texas { “orporation. Concurrently with the purchase, the Buyers acquired an additional
1.979.000 shares of common stock of the Cempany from other sharcholders in a series of private fransactions, An aggregate fofal of
6,579,900 shares of the Company were purchascdl for 3 total purchase price of 8375800, Upon completion of the purchase, the Buyers
collectively acquired 99.7% of the total issucd and vutstanding shares of common stock of the Company. On January 2%, 2003, the
Company amerded 15 Centificaie of Formation to change its stame o CansaVest Corpand on March 14, 2013, the Company increased

the size of #s Board of Directors and elected thiee directors.

O December 31, 2012, the Company entered into an Agreement for Purchisse and Sale of Assls {the “"PhytoSPHERE Agreement™}
with PhytoSPHERE Systems, LLC ("PhytoSPHERE™) wherehy upont the clasing of the transaction the Company scquired certin assels
of PhytoSPHERE. The closing occurred on January 29, 213, Throoghout the vear ended December 31, 2013, the Company issued
5875000 shares of common steck and paid $950,000 as payment for the assets purclarsed.

Om July 25, 2013, the Company s predecessor, CanuaVest Corp.. i Texas corportion {“CannaVest Texas ), merged with the Company,
a wholly-owned Defaware subsidiary of CannaVest Texas, to elfectuate a change in the Company’s state of incorporation from Texas o
Delaware,

The Company s business is that of developing, produsing, marketing and sciiing end consumer products 1o the nutraceutical industey
containing hemp plant extract, Cannabidiol (*CBD”} and reselling to third parties ravw product acquired by the Company pursiant to its
supply relationships in Europe. The Company is cusrently establishing pilat hemp growing operations in the United States with the goal
of establishing industrial hemp operations nationally in the near future.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation - the consolidoted financial statements include the aceounts of CannaVest Corp. and its wholly-owned
subsidiarics US Hemp Oil. LLC, CannaVest Laboratories, LLC and Ples CBD, LLU (eotlectively, the “Company ™). All intercompany

accounts and transactions have been climinated in consolidation. The Company commenced commercial operations. on January 29,

2013,

Husiness Acquisition - We have accounted for the acguisition of the astets of PhytoSPHERE Systems, LLU in accordance with the
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC™) Topic 805, Business Combinations {"ASC Topic 8057} ASC Topiwe 803 cstablishes
principles and requirements for recogaizing and measuring the iotal consideration transferred to and the assets acquired. liabilities
assumed and any son-controlling interests in the acquired farget in an asset purchase. ASC Topic 805 also provides guidance for
recopnizing and measuring goodwill acquired and ciber tangible and intangible assets. (Note 6)

Investrrents - The Company had a 24.97% interest in KannaL.ife Seiences, Inc. t“Kannalife™), a phylo-medical company specializing
in the research and development of pharmacofogical products derived from plants. “This investment was sccounted for under the equity
method of accounting.

Use of Estimates - The Company's consolidated financial staterocats have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States ("GAAPT). The preparation of these consolidated financial statcments requires us 1o nuke
significant estimales and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosures of
contingend assets and labilities. We evaluate our estimates, including those related w contingencies, on an ongoing basis. We base our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be ressonable under the circumstances, the
esults of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and fiabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under diffeccnt assumplions or conditions. Significant estimutes
include the valuation of intangible assets, the amortization fives of intangible assets and the allowance for doubtful accounts. It is ot
Jeast reasonably possible that a change in the cstimates will ocenr in the near term.
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Reportable Sepment - The Company’s infernal reporting is organieed into three channels: CBD products, laboratory services and hemp
farming activitics. These channels qualify as individual vperating segments and sre aggregated and viewed as one reportable scgoment
due to their similar cconomic characteristics, products, production, distribution processes and regulatory cnviromment.

Cast and Cash Fguivalents - Vor purposes of the consolidated statements of sash flows, the Company considers amounts held by
financial instingions and short-icnm mvestments with an original maturity of three months or Jess when purchased (o be cash and cash

equivalents. At cach of December 31, 2014 and 2043, the Company had no cash equivalems.

Concentrations of Credit Risk - As of December 31, 2014, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDICT) provided insurance
coverage of up 10 $250,000 per depositor per bank. The Company fas not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe
that the Company is exposed to significant risks from excess deposits. The Company’s cash balance in excess of FINC Hiits 1otaled
$2,130,366 at Decomber 31, 2014

At December 31, 2014 the Company bas a $1,200,800 rose reccivable related 10 2 single custemer, Medifone oldings. Tnc. bn addition,
o customer represerted 62% of our uceounts seceivable halace wt Decenther 31, 2014, Sales from two costomers accounted for 65%

of twial sales for the year onded December 31 2014 (Note 8.

Acenunis Recefvable - Generally, the Company regquires payment pHor o shipmend. However, it certain circumstances, the Company
s located throughout she 118, Accounts receivable consists of trade aceounts arising i the normal couese of
business. Accounts receivable wie unscoured and no mterest 1 chiarped on past due accousts, Acoounts for which no payments have
been received afier 30 days are considered delnguent and custoinaey collection vlorts are mitiated. Accomts receivable are corried at
prigioal mvoice amount dess s reserve ssde for douhtful recetvables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on s guarterly basis,

grants crodit 0 COMpas

Management has detenmined the allowance for doubtfl accounts by regulady evaluating ndividual customer receivables and
considering a customer’s financial condition and credit history, aod current econpmic conditions. As of December 31, 2000 and 2013,
the Company has recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts related 10 accounts receivable i the amonnt of $100.000 and $400.000,

respectively,

Revenue Recagnition - The Company recogiizes revenue in accordance with the ASC Topic 605, Reverwe Recogaition which requises
persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery of a product or service, a fixed or determinable price and assurance of collection within
a reasonable period of time. The Company records revenue when goods are delivered to customers and the rights of owaership have
transferred from the Company to the customer.

Shipping and Handling ~ Shipping and handling costs totaled $57,885 and $19,301 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respuetively, and are recorded in selling, general and administrative expense.

Retusns - Finished Products - Within ten {10} days of customer’s receipt of Company’s finished products, customers may return (i)
finished products that do not canfum to Contpany’s product specifications or (i), finished products which are defective, provided that
notice of condition is given within five (5} days of receiving the finished products. The failure o comply with the foregoing time
requirements shall be deemed a waiver of customer’s claim for incorrect or defiective shipments. In the event of the exisience of one or
wore material defects in any finished product upon delivery 10 cusiomer, the Company shall, at its sole option aud cost, either {a) take
such measures s are required to cure the defeci(s) designated m the potice, or (b} replace such defective finished produci(s). The
Company may, @l its sole option. require the wlarm oF destruction of the defective finished products. Customer shall afford the
Company the opportunity to verify that such defects existed prior to shipment apd were nob. for purposes of example and not Hmitation,
the result of improper transport, hundling, storage, prodduct rotation or misuse hy customer,

Hutk (5 Products - Al sales of bulk oil products are final, and the Company does nol accept retums under any Circumsiances.
There is no allowance for customer retwms ot December 31, 2014 or 2013 due o insignificant retum amounts experienced during the

years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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- ‘The Company records compensation and benelits expense for all cash and defered compensation,
<o includes compensation camed by
Company’s employees, primarily

Compeasation amd Benelits
benefits. and related taxes as earned by it cmployces. Compensation and benefits expense al
temporary employees and confractors who perfonn simtlar services those performed by the

information technology and project managoment activities,

Stock-Based Comprasation - Certain employees, officers, directors and consuliants of the Company participate in vasious Yong-fenm
incentive phans thal provide for granting stock options and restncied slock awards. Stock options generaily vest in equal incroments
over a two- 1o four-year period and expire on the tenth anniversary following the date of grant. Restricted stock awards generally vest

1% ot the grant date.

The Company recoenizes stock-based compensation for equity awards grapted o anployees, officers, and directors as compensation
aindd benefits expense on the consoliduted statements of operation. The fair value of stock options is estimated using a Bluck-Scholes
vatuation model on the dite of prant. The fair valoe of restricted stock awards is equal 1 the closing price of the Company’s stock on
the date of prant. Stock-based compensation is recognized over the requisite service pericd of the individual awands, which generally
equals the vesting period.

‘The Company recognizes stock-based compensation for cguity awards granied fo consultants as selling, general and adrinistrative
expense on fhe comsolidated statements of operations. | he fair value of stock options is estimated osing 3 Black-Scholes valuation
adel on the date of grant and unvested awards are revalued at cach reporting period. The fair value of restricted siock mwards is equal
to the closing price of the Company s stock on the date of gram maltiplied by the sumber of shares awarded, Stock-based conppensativon

is recopnized over the requisite service period of the individual awands, witich generally equals the vesting period,

Inventory - fnventory i stited #t Jower of cost or miarket, with ciost being determined o average cost basis. There was ko ruserve for
obsolete inventory as of December 31, 2084 and 2013 Amounts paid to supplicrs i advance for invemtory is classified as prepaid
ieventory. Onee the Company has assumed ownership, the cost of prepaid inventory s reclassified to inventory. As of ipecember 31,
2014, the Company had $5.766.147 of inventosy in Dusseldorf, Germany.

Praperty & Fquipment - Lquipment is stated at cost less sccumutated depreciation. Cost represents the purchase price of the asset and
other costs incurred to bring the asset inlo its existing use, Depreciation is provided on o straight-line basis over the assels” estimated
usciul lives. Tenant improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaising life of the rclated fease. Maintenance or
vepairs are charged 1o expense as incurred. Upon sale or disposition, the historically-recorded asset cost and accumulaled depreciation
are removed from the accounts and the net amount Jess proceeds from disposal is chasged or credited other income {expense).

Property and cquipment, net, at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Useful Lives 2014 2013
Office fumniture and equipment 3 years b 231390 8 515
Tenant improvements 14 to 39 months 36,474 -
Laboratory and other eguipment 5 years 354,363 222,723
642,277 227882
§.ess; accuwmulated depreciation {125.854) (13,754}
b 516423 % 214,128

Fair Value of Finapcial Instruments - In accordance with ASC Topic 825, Financial Instruments , the Company calculates the fair
value of its assets and liabilitics which qualify as financial instruments and includes this additional information in the notes to its
financial statements when the fair value is different than the carrying value of those financial instruments. The estinated fair value of
the Company's current assets and corrent liabilitics approximates their carrying amoont due to their readily avatlable nature and short

matority.
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Condwill aind Intangible Assets - The Compuny evaluates the carrying value of goodwill during the fourth quarter of cach year and
between annual evaluations i events ocesr of circumstances change that would more tikely than not reduce the fair value of the
reporting unit below its carrying ameunt. Such ciccumstances could include. but are not Timited fo (1) a significant adverse change in
fegad factors or in business climate, (2} santicipated competition, or (3) an adverse action or assessment by a regulator. When
cvaluating whether goodwill is impaired, the Company compares the fair value of the reporting unit 1o which the goodwill is assigned to
the reposting ut’s carrying amount, including goodwill. The fair value of the reporting unit is estimated using a combination of the
income, or disconnted cash flows, approach and the mket approach, witich wilizes comparable companies” data, 1 e carying
amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, then the amount of the impairment loss must be measured, The impairnient loss would
be caleutated by comparing the implied fair valie of reporting unit goodwill to its carrving amount, In caleulating the implied fair value
of reponting uait goodwill, the fair value of the reporting wnit is allocated 1o all of the other assets and liabilitics of that unit bused on
their fair values. The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the amount assizned 10 its other assets and liabilities is the implied

fair value of goodwill,

We make critical assumptions and cstimates in completing impainment assessments of zovilwill and other intangible assers. Cur cash
flow projections look seversl years fnto the future and mclude assumptions on variables such as futore sales and operating maygm
growth rates, coonomic conditions, market competition, mflation and discount rates, Diing the years ended recomber 31 2004 and

201 3, there werg no inpainments.

We armortize the cost of ofber intangible assets over teir cstimated wsclul lives, which range up o five years, unless sach lives aw

deemed indetinite, lotangible assets with indefiniic fives ate tested i the fowth quarter of cacls fiscal year for wnprivmant, of nrore
often if indicstors warrant. Duting the years cndid Docamber 31, 2014 and 2015 there were no Bnpasements,

Long-Lived Assets - b accordance with ASC 1 upic 360, Accosnting far the Iapaimens or Disposat af FongLivedt Assets | the
Company reviews properdy and cquipment for smpairtaent whenever cvants or changes in ciremnstances indicate that the carying
amount of an asset may not be recoversble. Recoverability of property and equipment s measured by comparing its carrying value to
the undiscounted projected future cash flows that the assetfs) ave expected o generate. I the carying amount of an asset s oot
recoverable, we recognize an impairent loss based on the excess of the carrving amount of the fony-Tived asset over ils respective fair
value, which is generally determined as the present value of elimated fusture cash flows or &t the apprased value, The impairment
analysis is based on significant assumptions of future results made by management, including revenue and cash flow projections.
Circurnstances that may lead to impainmunt of propenty and equipment include a2 significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived
asset, a significant adverse change in the extent or munner in which a long-lived asset is being used or in ifs physical condition and a
significant adverse change in legal factors of in the business climate that could affect the value of a long-lived asset including an

adverse action or assessment by a regulator.

Loss per Share - The Company calculites eaming of loss per share ("EPS™} in accordmnce with ASC Topic 260, Earnings per Share
which requires the computation and disclosure of two EPS amounts, basic and diluted. Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted
average number of shares of common stock oulstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed based on the weighted average
nummber of shares of common stock ontstanding plus all potentially dilutive shares of common stock outstanding dunng the period. The
Company has 6,470,000 of stock options outstanding thut are anti-dilutive st December 31, 2814 The Company has no dilutive shares

eutstanding al December 31, 2013

Research and Developnient Expense - Research and developmient cosis are charged 1o expense as incurred and include, but are not
timited to, employee salarics and benefits, cosy of imventury used in product development, consulting service foes, the cost of renting
and maintaining one laboratory facility and depreciation of Taboratory eguipment.

Income Taxes - Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and tiability method. Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are recognized
for 1he estimated luture ax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and lisbilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax asscts and labilitics are measured using enacted 1y rates expected to apply io
taxable income in the years in which the related semporary differences are expected 1o be recovered or settiod. The effect on deferred
1ax assets and liabilities of 3 change in tax rales is recognized when the sate change is cnacted. Valnation sllowances are recorded to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that will more likely than not be realized. in accordanee with ASC Topic 740, fncome Faxes
the Company recosnizes the elfect of uncertain income tax positions only if the positions are more fikely than not of being sustained in
an audit, based on the technical merits of the position. Recognized uncertain income tax positions are measured at the fargest amount
that is greater than S0% likely of heing realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which those
changes in judgment occur. The Company recognizes both interest and penalties related 10 uncertain fax positions as part of the income
tax provision. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 the Compuny did ot have a lability for unrecognized fax uncertainties. The
Company is subject to routine audits by faxing jurisdictions. Management belicves the Compuny is no fonger subject to tax

examinations for the years prior to 2010,
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Recent Issued and Newly Adopted Aceounting Pronouncements

in February 7013, the Financial Accounting Sundards Bosed (the "FASB™) issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2013-04,
Liabilities {Topic 405): Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability Asrangemonis for Which the Totad Amout of the
Obligation is Fixed a1 the Reporting Pate ("ASU No. 2013-047). The amendaems in ASU No. 2013-04 provide guidance for the
recognition, measarement, and disclosure of obligations resulting from joint and several Hability armngements for which the total
amount of the obligation within the scope of ASU No. 201304 1s fined at the reporting date. except for obligations addressed within
existing guidance in GAAP, The guidance requires an entily to measure those obligations as the sum of the amount the reporting cntity
agreed w pay on the basis of ifs urrangement anong its co-obligors and any additional smount the reporting entity expects (o pay on
behalfl of its co-obligors, The guidance in ASU No. 2013.04 also requires an entity 1o disclose the nature and amount of the ebligation
as well as other information about those obligations. The amenstment in this standard is cffective retrospectively for fiscal years, and
interit poriods within those years, beginning after Diecember 15, 2013, The Company clected 10 adopt ASU No. 2013-04 during the
first fiscal quarter of 2014, The adoption of this update did not Bave a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial

statusmenis.

fn May 2013, the FASE issued Acvounting Stambards Update 201409, Revenne fom Coulracts with { ‘wstomers {Topic 6061 (" ASU
2014-097), which vompletes the joint effort by the FASB and the titermational Accounting Standards Board to improve fisancial
reporting by crealing common rovenue secomtition guidance for GAAP and the fnternational Frasmvial Reporting Standards, ASU
201409 will become offective for the Company beginning January 1, 2017 and early adoption is not permitted. The Company s
currently evaluating the potential ippact of ASU 200409 on the Comppany 3 consolidated finanuial stateents.

12 Standards Board, or the FASH, issued puidance gequiriag management o evaluate on A
s have arisen that could raise substantiat doubt about the cntity’s ability to continue as a
fiition for the ferm “substantial doubl” (2) requires an evaluation cvery reporting
period, interim periods included. (3) provides principles for considering the mitipating lfeet of wmanagement’s plans o alleviate the
wuhstantial doubl. (3) requires cerntain disclosures if the subsiantial doubt is atleviated as 4 result of management’s plans, (3] requires an
express stafement, as well as other disclosures, if the substantial donbt is sot alleviated, and (63 requires an assessment period of one
vear from the date the financial statements are tesued. The standard is effective for the Company's reporting year beginning January 1.
2017 and early adoption is permiited. The Company is currently evalusting the extent and impact on the Company’s consohidated

Fre Augost 2014, the Vinancial Accountis
regular basis whether any conditions or ¢
guing eoncern, The guidance (1) provides a de

financial statements,

Other recemt acconnting pronouncements issned by the FASB (including its Emerging Jssues Task Foree), the Awmerican Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and the SEC did not, or are not believed by mansgement o have a maierial impact on the Company s
present or future financial statements.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are comprised of the following:

2014 2013
Drixie Botanicals note S 135,173 $
MediJane Holdings note 1.200.000
1.5835.1%3
Less corrent portion 1508468
[Long-term portion $ 26,708 $

The Dixic Botanicals note refates to an accounts receivable baliance that was due on December 31, 2083, Oa January 10, 2014, Medical
Marijuana. Inc. (“MINA") agreed to assume $725.000 of the accounts receivable and wrote-off $11,496. MINA paid the Company
$125.000 on January 17, 2014 owards this balance. The remaining $600.000 is subject 1o a promissory note between the parties,
whereby MINA will make monthly payments including inferest at 7% per annum over a two year pesiod. The note is secured by
MINA ‘s ownership share of the Company, through MINAS subsidiary PiyioSPHERE Systesgs, LLEC at two times the principal amount

of the note as cotfateral.

The Medilane Holdings ("MIMI™) note refates to the sale of Company products in exchange for a convertible promissory noke in the
amount of $1.200.000. The full amount of $1.200.000 is due on June 23, 2015 along with accrued interest at 10%. The Company has
the aption to convert the full amount of the note, along with accrued interest into shares, of common stock of MIMD.

¥- 12

0838

2170




&

INVENTORY

fnventory at Decembaer 31, 2014 and 2013 is comprised of the following:

2614 2013
Raw materinls $ fL209.419 % 1,867,751
Wink in process 470,442
Finished goods 487,132 135,129
$ £1.666.251 5 2473322
ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrwed expenses at ecember 312014 and 2013 wure as follows:
2004 213
Acorued interest $ - & 161,583
Accroed payviolt exponscs 08420 RURGS
Other acerued Tiabilities 14,286 44,163
hS 118,206 § 232703

ACQUISTIHON OF ASSETS OF PHY VOSPHERE SYSTEMS, LLC

On Decomber §5. 2012, we entered o an Agreoment for Purchase and Sale of Assets {the “Purchase Agreemon’) with
PhivtoSPHERE Systems, LLE, & Delaware Hmited Tability company (“PhytoSPIERE", whenby on Janpary 29, 2013 we acquired
certain assets of PhytoSPHERE. Pursuant 1o the Prrchase Agreement, we acquired from PhytoSPHERE tangible cquipment, mventory
inchuding 360 ke of raw hemp oif, all URLs and domain namus of PhyteSP FERE, ail tandline telephone numbers and postal addresses
alliliofed with PhytoSPHERE, an exclusive license 10 use the names “PhytoSPHERE™ and “PhytoSPHERE Sysfems” in the
development and commercialization of hemp-based products including CBD, existing bank secounts with a total balance of 380,775,
verdor Tists. permits, licenses and other approvals, and all rights and obligations under existing and pending supply contracts, The
Company purchased the assets of PhytoSPHERE as the basis for adoption of the Company’s new business model, which is 10
manufacture, market and sell products containing hemp oil. As part of the purchase price, the Compuny acquired intangihle assets
which could not be specifically identified which s been classified as goodwill on the accompanying conselidated financial statements.
Goudwill represents the residual value afier aff identifiable assets were vadoed and what ot valued independently and i3 primarily
attributable to assembled work foree, operating and process know-how and potential expansion into focal and global markcts. We expect
goodwill 1o be deductible for 1ax purposes.

As compensation for the purchase, the Company issued 5,825,000 shares of common <ock and paid $930.008 1 cash,
[he purchase price of the acquisitivn was derarmined to be $8.020.000 based v management’s estimate of the fair ruarkel vakue of the
business sequired. The fair market valie was determined (o be the more appropriate basis of valuation as the Company s common stock

was net trading and the Company had no operations a8 the time of acquisition in order to cstimate a fair marhet value of Company
common stock, The Company s common stock issued was contemporacously vaiued with the purchase price of PhytoSPHERE.
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The following is the atlocation of the purchase price:

Assets acquired
Tangible assets
Cash s 50,775
Accounts receivable 396,438
Inventory 345,477
Prepaid inventory 1,260,510
Property and equipment 1,288
Total tangible asseis 2,054,488
Identifiable intangible assets
Vendor relationships 1.170,000
Trade name 230,000
Neoncompete agreement - PhytoSPHERE 2,710,000
‘Total identifiable intangible asscts 4,110,000
Unidentifiable intangible assets
Goadwill residual estimate 1,855,512
Total assets acquired from PhytoSPHERE $ 8.020,000

Due fo the complexity and limited information avaifable from the sclling company of PhytoSPHERE, supplemental proforma
information has not been presented. The operations and management of PhytoSPHERE was not indicative of the current operations and
strategy, accordingly. the proforma information would not be indicative of future operations or be beneficial to the users of these

financial statements.

We have amontized the identifiable intangiblc assets using the straight-line method over a useful life of five years. We deiermined that
the useful life of those assels are based on the tenn of the noncompete agreement and estimated lives of relationships acquired.
Amortization of intangible assets is expected to be approximately $822,000 for the years ending December 31, 2015, 2016 and 2017
and $68.,500 for the year ending December 31, 2018.

Intangible assets consist of the following at December 31,2014 and 2013:

Original Fair Accumulated
Market Value Antortization Net
Balance - December 31, 2013:
Vendor refationships s 1,170,060 S 214500 % 955,500
Trade name 230,000 42,167 187.833
Noncompete agreement 2,710,000 196,833 2,213,167
$ 4,110,000 § 753500 % 3,356,500
Balance - December 31, 2014:
Vendor relationships $ 1,170,000 S 448000 % 722,600
Trade name 230,000 88,167 141,833
Noncompete agreement 2,710,000 1,038,833 1,671,167
s 4110000 S 1,575,600 § 2,535,000

Amortization cxpense for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 totaled $821,500 and $753,500, respectively.
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KANNALIFE SCIENCES INVESTMENT

During 2013, the Company invested $750,000 in Kannalife Sciences, Tnc. {“Kannalife™), which represented a 24.97% ownership
stake. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Commpany reeognized iis provata share of Kannal.ife losses of $38,552 and

$310,754, respectively.

Om duse 2, 2014, the Company sold ifs 24.97% cquity mvestment in Kannal.ife o PhywSPHERE s exclunge fn 500,000 shares o
Company common stock hield by PhytoSPHERE, an Affiliate of Kannal.ife. Accordingly. the Company recognized 3 gain on sale of
cquity investment of $7.399,306 hased on the sunber of shares of Company conmon stock received ot the closing trading price of
Company common stock on June 2, 2614 of $16.60 por share,

RELATED PARTIES

Dusing the vear ended Deceraber 31, 2013, the Company made a payment of 32001 for rent expense © rMonaCo Developnient, an
entity ownved 190% by Michael 1. Mona, Jr, the Company s President and Chief Fxeeutive Oficer, Additionally, the Company made o
payment of $7.500 to Mr. Mona in 013 for servives provided prior 1o the comsnmation of an employment agreement between the

Conspany and My, Mona

During the year ended Pecamber 31, 2013, the Company paid a total of $30.000 1 M. Staart Tits, a stockholder of the Company, for
consulting services provided. As of Devember 31, 1L My Titus is no fosger providing services o ibe Company.

Bart Mackay, o Board Dircctor of the Company owis 100 of Roen Veniwres, LLC through two wholly-cwned Hmited labihity
companics, Mai D, Lid, and Mercia Holdings, L1.6, For the years ended Deeomber 31 3014 and 2013, Mr, Mackay receivisd 3560
and $2.000, respectively, in fees paid tor services provided 1o the Company

As of December 31 2013, the Company owed Roen Ventures, 11O o tofal of $6,092.064 under 2 Promissory Note (Note 9}, {ipador the

terms of the mete, Roen Ventores, LLU had the optios 10 convert the balance vwed, up © S6.000.000 ity common shares of e
Company at a conversion price of $0.68 per hare. i addition. the Company owe:d Roen $161.383 b accrued interest under the nofe at
Decembes 31, 2013 and paid interest totaling $187.723 in January 2014, The note was converted during 2814 (hote 103

Michael 1. Mona, Jr., the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company previousfy held a 50% intercst in Roen Ventures, LLC
which he subsequently sold to Mr. Mackay during 2013,

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized sales o the Tollowing relatedt partics which represented

100% of total sales recopnized in 2013

For the years encled December 31,

Party Retationship 2014 2813
Medical Marijuana, e, ("MINA"Y Stockholder 3 - % 92,640
HempMeds PX 0% owned by MINA $,44397% R7L318
DixieRed Dice Holdings 60% owned by MINA 363,034
Canchew Biotechnologics 0% owned by MINA 825,000
5 5443978 § 2,154,063
$3.4% F00.0%

During 2014, the Company discontinoed sates to HompMeds PX (Note 123

100°% of the Company's accounts receivable st December 31, 2043 totaling $1.740,502 were from these paities. In addition, the
Company had a note roceivable from Dixic Botanicals of $3335.373 at December 31, 2014 (Note 31

During the vears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company paid $9,072.025 and $1.953.690, respectively, to a stockholder of
the Company who is a supplicr of hemp oil and hemp the Company.

On January 1, 2018, 250,000 shares of common stock was granted o the V.1 of Operations.
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LINE OF CREDIT - ROEN VENTURES, LLC

O March 1. 2013, the Company issued a Promissory Note {the "Nele™} to Roen Ventures, LLC, a Nevada limited lability company
{"Roen Vestures™), in exchange for foans provided and 1o be provided in the future in an amount of up to $2.000,000, subsequently
increased 1o $6.000,000. As of December 31, 2013, the principsl balance of the Nute was $6.092,06%. The Note was an unsecursd
obligation of the Company accruing interest at 3% that was due on July 25, 2015, As previously disclosed in our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 31, 2013, the disinterested mersbers of our Board of Directors (the Board™) approved an
amendment to the tetms of the Note to increase the credit fine 10 $6,000,000 and provide for the ability of Roen Ventures (0 convert, at
s sole discretion. the outstanding balance of the Note into shares of the common stock of the Company at a conversion price
determined folfowing the conclusion of a valuation of the Company's common stock. The valvation determined purswant fo ASC 718
Stock Compensation that the fair market value o our restricted common stack was $0.68 per share. On November 7, 2013, disinterested
members of the Board approved an amendment 1 the Note to altow for convession of the Note at a conversion price equal to $0.60 per
share, whic represents a discount of approximately 12% off the fair market valoe of our restricted common stock.

The Company has defermined that the conversing fenture is considered a beneficial conversion feature and determined its value on the
date of the amendment for 56,000,000 cn July 25, 2013 to be 3800000 The Company valculated the beneficial conversion feature at iy
intrinsic value, Accordingly, the beneficial conversion feature was acvouitted Tor as a debi discount 1o the Note and was amertized using
the elfective inferest method as interest expense over the remainisg Jite of the Note or upon conversion, if seoner. The amortiaition of
debt discounts for the yuars ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $4%0. 474 and $210.526, respeetively, and s included in mterest
expense in the accomparny g consolidated statements of operations

On January 22, 2014, Roen Vemares LLO defivered a Nutice of Election 1o Canvert o Common Shares, As g resull, in fanoary 2004
the Company isstied a total of 10,000,000 shares of the Company s commion stock undes the terns of the Conversion Notioe

STOCKHOLDERS FQUITY

{ommon Stock
The Company is authorized to issec up lo 190,000,000 shases of common stock (par value $0.0001). As of December 3, 2014 and

2013, the Company had 33,419,166 and 15,580,000 shisres of common stock issued and outstanding, respectively. Durnng 014, the
Company issied 8,039,166 shares of its common stock, of which 7,500 shares refated {0 an coployment agrecment and 8,031,666 were
pursuant 1o a private placement offering. The Company had received payment of $175,000 toward the purchase of these shares @t
December 31, 2013, In addition, during 2014, 10,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock were issued for a debt CORYEFSion
(Note 9); and, 300000 shares were issued on October 31, 2014 at a price of $2.82 per share, the Company's closimg price for common
stock, for compensation to directors and officers.

he Company issited a tofal of 73500 and 5,000 shares of common stock under an cmpleyment agreement during the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The agreement terminated in December 2014 and no further grants will be awarded under

this agreement.

On November 7, 2013, the Board of Directors approved the terms of an affering of up to $10 million of its restricted common stock ina
private placement to acoredited fnvestors st a prive of $1.00 per share. The oifering was conducted pursuant fo Rule 306{b) of
Regulation D, as promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, ax amended. As of December 31, 2013, the Company sofd a
total of 2,750,600 shares under the offering and reecived pet proceeds of $2,731,423 As of December 31, 2003, 5175000 was reccived
for 175,000 shases that were issued subsequent to yeor end.

On January 28, 2013, we commenced an offering whereby the Company intends to seli up to 12 million shares of its restricted common
stock in a private placement fo aceredited investors at a price per share of $2.00 (the “Offering™). The issuance of the sharcs in
connection with the Offering was exempt fron registration under the Seeurities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act™), in retiunce on
excrptions ffom the registration requirement of the Act in transaction not involve in a public offering pursuant to Rufe 506(b} of
Regulation 1), as Promulgated by the Securitics and Exchange Commission under the Act.

As of March 31, 2015, the Company sold an aggregate of 1,260,000 shares of its restricted common stock pursuant to the Offring to 27
investors for an appregate puschase price of $2,520,000.
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Preferved Stock

The Company is authorized o issue up to 10,000,000 shares of $.0001 par valuc preferred stock with designations, rights and
preferences 1o be determined from time to time by the Board, Each such serics or class shall have voling powers, it any, and such
preferences andfor vther special rights, with such qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such preferences andior nights as shall be
statéd in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such series of class of shares of preferred stock. As of December 31,

2014 and 2013 there is no preferred stock issued and outstanding.

Options/Warrants
On July 23, 2014, Company shareholders approved the Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan, which provides for the granting

of stock options, resiricted stock awards, restricted stock units, stock bonus awards and performance-based awards. This plan serves as
the successor to the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (Note 11).

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On July 23, 2014, Company sharcholders approved the Amended and Restated Eguity Incentive Plan (the “Amended 2013 Plan™),
which provides for the granting of stock options, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, stock bonus awards and performance-
bhased awards. The Amended 2013 Plan serves as the successor to the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. There were no aption awards under
the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. Under the Amended 2013 Plan, the Company may grant up 0 10,000,000 new stock. As
of December 31, 2014, the Company had approximately 3,530,000 of authorized unissued shares reserved and available for issuance

upon exercise and conversion of outstanding awards.

The stock options are excrcisable al no fess than the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of grani, and restricied stock
and restricted stock units are issued at a value not less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant
Generally, stock options awarded arc vested in equal increments ranging from two to four years on the annual anniversary date on
which such cquity grams were awarded. The stock options generally have a maximum term of 10 years. The following lable
summarizes stock option activity for the Amended 2013 Plan during the year ended December 31, 2014

Weighted Average

Remaining
Weighted Average Contract Term Aggregate
Mumber of Shares Exercise Price (¥ e=rs) Intrinsic Value
Outstanding - December 31,
2013 - :
Granted 6,470.000 § 2.70
Exercised - -
Forfeited .
Expired - -
Quistanding - December 31,
3014 6,470,000 S 2.70 9.88 3
Total exercisable - December
31,2014 3,048869 3 2.66 9.93 §
Tolal unvested - December 31,
2014 3,421,131 3 2.74 9.84 s -
Towal vested or cxpected to vest
- December 31,2014 6,470,000 b 2.70 9.88 s =
The following table summarizes unvested stock options as of December 31, 2014:
Weiphted Average
Fair Value Per
Share on Grant
Number of Shares Date
Unvested stock options - December 31, 2013 - 3 -
Granted 6,470,000 222
Vested 3,048,869 211
Forfeited - -
Unvested stock options - December 31, 2014 3421031 8§ 2.31

0843
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The following table presents the weighted-average assumptions used by the Company for caleulating the fair value of its cmployee,
non-employee, officer and director stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation nodel that have been granted during the year
ended December 31, 2014

Ewmployecs MNon-Employees
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Yolatility 103.48% 56.69%
Risk-Free Interest Rate 1.8 231%
Expected Temn 5.3 18100
Dividend Rate 0.00v% 4.00%
§2.2¢ $2.45

Fair Value Per Share on Grant Date

Phe risk-free inferest rutes nre based on the implied yield available on 15, Treasury constant artburities with romaliing feomns
equivalent o the respective expected terms of the options. The Company estimates the expecied rerm for stock options awarded 1o
employees, non-employees, officers and directors using the simplified mathod in accordance with Seaf¥ Accounting Bulletin 110
Certain Assumptions Lsed in Valvation Methos, Beeaise the Company does not have sufficient relevant historical information
develop reasonable expectations about fature excrcise patterns. The Cornpany estimates the expected term for stock options awarded to
employces, non-cmployees, officers and dicectors using the contractual term. bapected volatility is cafentated based on the Company’s
peer group, consisting of five companics in the industry in which the Company does business because the Company does not have
sufBicient historical volatility date, The Company will continue to use peer group volatility information sntil historical volatility of the
Company is available b measure expected volatility for future grants. I the future, as the Company gados istorical data for volatiiily
of its own stock and the wctual ferm over which stovk options are held, expreied volatility and the expected term may change, which
could substansially change the grant-date fair vahie of future stock aption awards, and, consequently. compensation of falure grants,

The Company recognized $7.062.833 relating 10 stock options and $888.125 relating to conunon stock issued to emaployees, non-
employees, ofticers, and directors during the year cnded Deverber 31, 2014, For the vear ended December 31, 2014, stock-based
compensation of $7.851,685 and $64,148, was expensed to Selling, General and Administration and Research and Dewlopmoent,
respectively. As of December 31, 2014, total unrecognized compensation cost related 1o nosevested stock-based  compensation
arrangements granted 10 employees, officers, and directors was $7.251.258, which s cxpected to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 2.28 vears,

COMMITVENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitmenis

The Company has non-cancelable operating leases, which expire through 2017, The lases generally contain renewal options ranging
from 1 to 3 years and require the Company to pay costs such as real estate laxes and common arca maintenance. The following table
provides the Company s lease commitiments at December 31, 2004

Total Operating
For the vears ending December 31, Leases
2015 s 383446
e 427914
2007 206,482
$ 1,017,842

The Company fncurred rent expense of $285,960 and $99,080 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company is a parly to a contract for the growth and processing of 2,600 kilograms of product curremly being delivered and
scheduled to be delivered through August 31, 2015, The total amount left to be paid under this conteact is approximately $7.2 million
through December 2015, The Conpany is party to a second purchasing contract to provide up to 1 million kilograms of raw product 1o
the Company. There is approximately $1.8 million resmaining 10 be paid vnder this sccond contract through December 31, 2015, We
have contractual rights for the prowth and processing of hemp oil for detivery through October 2018 under both of these contracts. We
anticipate the cost under both contracts will remain consistent with current year prices,
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Cantinpeniies

O March 8. 2008, Far West Industries (“Far West”} sued Michael §. Mona, Ir., President and Chief Fxceutive Officer of the Company
and others for damages resulting from fraud arising out of a fand wansaction ia California (the “California Action”). On February 23,
2012, a judgment was entered in the California Action in favor of Far West against Mr. Mons und others in the amount of $17.777,562.
On October 18, 2012, the judgment in the California Action was domesticated in Nevada and enforcement proceedings commenced
including, but not limited to an examination of Mr. Mona as a judgment debtor. and gamishments of various accounts belonging to Mr,
Mosa, During the period, Mr. Mona loaned $3,000,000 10 Roen Ventures, which was subsequently loaned 1o the Company. The suit
alleges that the loan transuctions were intended to prejudice creditors like Far West by concealing and wasting assets that wosld
otherwise be available 1o satisfy the judgment that Far West has against Mr. Mona. Pursuant to a Second Amendment Complaint filed
by Far West Industries on February 20, 2014, the Company was added as 3 defendant to the suit. On March 17, 2014, the Company was
served with @ complaint from Far Woest Tudustries. tn summary, Far West alleges that the Company is in possession of fundsas a result
of an allegedly fraudulent transfer between Mr. Mona, Roen Ventures, LLC, and the Company. On May 13, 2014, a motion 1o disyoiss
filed by the Company was granted s thus, the Company will o lomger be a defendant in the lawsiit. Alihougly Far West's counsel
therentter filed o Third Amended Complaint which iaproperty sought te re-name the Company as 4 defemdant, on October 16, 2014,
Far West filed a dismissal of the Company after the Company threatened to bring a motion foor sanctions for violating the Court order of
May 13, 2004, Accordingly. the Company has been formally dispiissesd from the action.

On Aprid 23, 2014, Tanya Sallustio filed 8 purported Class action complaint (the “Complaint”™} i the Sosthern District of New Yook
(the “Court”) ablening securities fraud and refated cloims against the Company and certuin ol iy officers and directors and seeking
compensitory damages including livgation costs. Ms. Salbustro stleges that between March 1831 2044, she purchased 328 shares of
the Company™s common stock for a tetal investment of £15.791. the Complaint refers 1o Current Keparts on Form 8K and Cusrant
Reports on Form 8-K/A filings made by the Company on April 3, 2014 amd April 14, 2014, in which the Company amended previously
disclosed sales (sales originally stated at $1.275,000 were restated o £1,082,375 - reduction of $192,625) and restated goodwill as
$1.855. 302 gpreviously seported at net cerol. Additionally. the Complaint states after the filing of the Company's Current Report on
Form &K on Aprit 3, 2014 and the following press release, the Company s stock price “fell $7.30 pec shave, of more than 2%, to close
al $25.30 per share.” Subsequent (o the filing of the Complaint, six different individuals have filed a motion asking 1o be desigaied the
Jead plaintifl in the litigation. The Court scheduled a hearing on August 14, 2014 to consider the motious for designation as lesd
plainiff. The other individuals seeking lead plaintifl designution are: Wayne Chesner, Anamaria Schelling; Mark Williams; Otilda
LaMont: Janc Ish and Steve Schuck. After a hearing held on August 14, 2014, the Court wok the matter under submission. On March
19, 2615, the Court issucd # raling appuinting Steve Schuck as lead plaintiff and sciting an initial pre-trial conference for April 30,
2015, The Company has not yet answered the Complaint but management intends te vigorously defend the allegations and an estimaty

of the possible loss cannot be made at this time.

On March 17, 2015, shareholder Michael Ruth filed a sharcholder derivative suit in Nevada District Court alleging two causes ol
action: 1) Breach of Fiduciary Duty, and 2) “Gross Mismanagement.” The claims are premised on the same event as the already-
pending securities class action case in New York - it is alleged that the Form 8-K [ilings misstated goodwill and sales of the Company,
which when corrected, lead to a significant drop in siock price. The Company taas ot been served with the Complaing but intends to

vigorously defend the case after service is made.

On August 11, 2014, we terminated the Mon-Exclusive License and Distribution Agreement with HempMeds PN, LLU {the
“HHempMeds Apreement”™). On or about August 13, 2614, ViempMeds X, LLC (“HempMeds” demarded arbitration against as and
recommended that the parties engage Private Trials in Lus Vegas, Nevada (o conduct the arbiteation, denying that HermpMeds was in
breach of the HempMeds Agreement. On Aupusi 22, 2014, HempMeds Bled a complaint in the Eighth Judicial Pristrict, Clark County,
Nevada (the “Nevada Complaint™) agatast us for breach of the HempMeds Agreement, umpust endichment, and intertercnce with
prospective business advantage, claiming that it had satisfied @l of its obligations under the HempMeds Agreement and that we
breached that agreement by terminating it without just cause. Concomrently, HempMeds filed a Motion for Preliminary Injunction,
asking the Court to reinstate the HempMeds Agrecinent, namely the provision that identified Hempheds as the exc lusive on-line seiler
of certain products of the Company. The coust demied HempMeds' motion on October 3, 2014, We have not yet answered the Nevada
Complaint because the parties have agreed to arhitration and are attempting to resobve the issue of where the arbitration will be held,
We deny HempMeds® claims and intend to vigorously defend the allegations and file appropriate counter-claims. Since the action was
recently filed and no discovery has been conducted, an estimate of the possible loss or recovery cannat be made al this time.
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On September 11, 2084, we filed a complaint for trademark infringement against Kannaway, LLC, Generml Hemp, LLC and HDDC
Holdings, LLC (collectively, “defendants”) in the United States Dhistrict Court, Southerns District of Califoraia, asserting that defendants
have infringed on the Company’s Cannabis Beauty® and Cannabis Beauty Defined trademarks. The Company alleges, among other
things, that defendant IIDC Holdings, LLC ("HDDCT) assigned its rights in the CANNABIS BEAUTY DEFINED® mark to the
Company (the "HDDU Assignment”) which was prowmptly filed with the USPTO but, despite the foregoing, HDDC's sister company,
defendant Kanpaway, LLC (“Kannaway™), is improperly using the trademark on personal care products in compefition with the
Company. On February 20, 2013, Defendants filed a counterclaim sgainst the Company. asserting that the HDDC A ssignment was
signed under “duress™ and that HDDC ticensed the mark 0 the other defendants for 50 years before it assipned the niark 1o the
Company. Lasily, Counterclaimants assert claims for unfair competition against the Company, although they do not identify the
commercial activity piving rise 1o the claim. We fited 2 Motion tu Dismiss the counterclaim which will be heard on April 17, 2015, On
February 12, 2015, the Court granted ous motion for preliminary injunction, enjoining defendants from using the Cannabis Beauty
Defined trademark or any confusingly similar mark. The Company has pasting an undedaking for $1.2M 1o secure the prehminary
injunction under FROP 65{¢h. Management intends to vigorously prosecute this complaint and defend the couplerclnims. Since no
discovery hus been conducted. an estimate of the possible recovery or Tass cannet be made at this tane,

INCOME TAXES

Defesred tax assets and labilities are provided for significant fncome and expense Hems recognized io difforent yews for ax and
financial reporting purposes. The Company periodicalty assessus the likeliiood that # will be able to recoves s deferred tax assets. The
Company considers all available evidence, both positive and nesative, including isiorical levels of mcome, expectations and risks
associated with estimates of Tufure taxable income and ongaong prudent and feasible profits. A December 31, 2004 and 2013, the
Company established valuation allowances equal to the full anount of its deferred tay assets due o the ancertaimty of the niilization of

the net uperaing Josses in furure periods.

2014 2013

Deferved tax assets;

Nt operating loss carryforwards $ Logi0nd  § 466.161

Atlowance for doubtful accounts 39,834 159,33

fntangible assets 310548 141,730

Investment in Kannal,ife Sciences - 123,787

Stack-based compensation 128,703 :

Other 313.596 113,399

1.595,745 1004415

Dreferred tux lishilities:

Propenty and equipment (85.21D {43,638}

Tolal deferrod tax assets 1.510.528 0,757
Valuation allowance (1,510.528} (960,757)
Net deferred tax assets S - %

I- 20

0846

2178




£

soed B 771 and BUH,UST forveus vaded Decamber 3 F0T4 amd POEY, respratively,

T vaheation allowancs &

350
These foss

o O camrvBavands o ,z;zg;xwl!lmh.

At December 11, 2814 the Comaany bas Pederal aed wade et opeaibing
sy l vRpeE i

€2 A2204H3, ros mmn which are avasdabie 1o offs fulue asabie noome amd whach
eurry forwisdds will Bkely be forifur Hrted pursaant 1o el Hevinag Cenbie Sections 387 due o the chunge oot

s

51

The difforences between the xpected ineonse ms beaetlt and the w fal reoorded meeme fax benefit computed gsing @ siatsory Redend

cate of 34%% ic as Tollows for the vears ended Decomber 31

104 ol

TR O6T)
EETIA S

% C314.440
State By fad A
Sromk bsed L oprpwnasiie AR U

Sivestint a1 hun R LY R
Arnortizaion of Jdieonnt o

troome tax beno bt at stalulory e

she SOy

wvertibile oot s gy

Pevpanet Jifforonaes
ey
i oy

fosal e e ST e L

BT Y

in v abation oo

SEBSEQEENT EYERTS

st o the derm o the

ihe wim of dhe fesg

i dease By owg

Oy Vebrasgy 75 IR we asend an aoid
additiong] 7B sanses frol of ikaztum
$ES with o o of 00 meanndes thyo

wa will b

&y

sapensod oo Murch

s eiferine wherchy the Company tends o scliup o 12 asidbion haves of ds restoctal vommpon

sive por shge of B0 Ovote 1

bamgaey TR ZOES we aonmm@m
in a private placement i acuroditnd vesions o 1

0847

2179




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNY ING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Resistration Statement on Form S-8 {ho. 3 13.199173), pertaining to the CamaVEST

Corp. 2013 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan, of our repert dated March 31, 2015, refating to the consulidated financial statements
of CannaVEST Corp. and Subsidiaries inctuded in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endut Docember 31, 2004

San Dicgo, Catifornia s PRE B
March 3, 2018 PRE

Cenified Public Accountants
A Professional Corporation
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Exhibit 351

CERTIFKCATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANY IO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES tJa-14(a) AND 15 4(a), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACY OF 2002

1. Michael | Mana, Jr., President and Chiel Execative Officer of CannaV¥est. Comp. (the “Company™) certify that:

1. 1 have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of the Company:

intrue stateiment of a material fact or omil 1o stafe a material fact pecessary 1o

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain dny i
hich such statements were made, not misfeading with respeet o the period

make the staternents made, i light of the circomstances uader w
covered by this report!
financial information included in this report, fairly presentin all materiad

3. Based on my knowledge. the financial statements, and other
¢ of, and for, the periods presented in this repott

respecis the Bnancial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the regastrant

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are tesponsible for establishing and maigtainiop disclosure controls and provedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules $3a-15(ey and §3dF S0y and imterual coutrad over {inancial reporting {as defined in Exchange Adt Rules t3a-13
£y and 15d-15(0) for the registrant and have:

{a} Designed such discosure controfs and procedures, or cansed sueh disclosure contrels and provedures @ be desiged umder our
supervision, 1© cnsure that material mformation relating o the wegistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarics, is made known
to us by others seithin those entitics, partic ularly dusing the period in which shis report is being prepared:

ar caused such inteenat control sver financial reporting o he designed
carding the reliabitity of timancial reporting aimd the prepacation of
accepted acoounting principles;

b} Designed such wmiemal control vver financial reporting,
ander our supervision, to provide reasomible assisance re
foancial satcments for extemal purposes in accordiunce with generally

ssteant's disclosure controls and procedures and preseated in this report our comnelasiens

{x} Evaluated the effectivencss of the reg
ols snd procedures, as of the end of the period coverd by this report based on

about the effectiveness ol the disclosure conte
such evaluation; and

() Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal vontrol over Financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiatly affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting: and

s, The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
board of directors {or persons performing the equivalem

reporling, o the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitice of the registint’s

functions):

{al Alb significans deficiencies and material wesknesses in ihe design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasomably likely to adversely affect the segistrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; aml

(b) Any frand, whether or not material, that involves managentent or other caployees who have a sipnificant rele in the registrant’s
juternat control over financial reporting.

Pated; March 31, 2015 By & Michacl J. Mona, Ir.

Michael J. Mona, Jr.
President snd Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Fxecutive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2

CERFIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINARCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-[4{u) AND {5(d)}-14(2}). AS ADOPTED PURSUANT 10O
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Joseph 2. Dowlding, Chief Financial Officer of CannaVest Corp. {the “Company™} centify that

1. 1 have reviewed this report on Farm 10-K of the Company.

2 material fact or omit to state a material fact pecessary to

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any satiue statement of
isleading with respect to the period

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not m
covered by this repost]

v included in this report, fairly present in all material

3. Based on iy knowledge, the financial stueinents, and other financial informatic
ods presented in this report.

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the pert
4. The registrant's other cenifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls s procedures (us
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15¢) and 15d-15(e)) and intermat control over financial reporting (ss defined in Exchange Act Rules 135-15

() and 1 3:-13(6)) Tor the registrant and have:

fures. or caused such disclosure controls and procedures 1o be designed under ou

{a} Desigined such disclosure controls and procex
uding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known

supervisien, 1o ensure that material nformastion relating 1o the registrant, il
1o us by others within those entities, particubady during the period in which this report is bebng prepared;

thi Designed such infernal control over financial reportigg, of caused such internal control over financial reporting o be designed
under our supervision, W provide reassnable assurance egas ding the rcliability of financial roporting and the preparation o4
financial statements for external purpases in accordance with generally aceepled sceounting principles

ant’s dischnsure controls and procedures and presented in this report owr conclusions

[t5] Fraluated the effectivencss of the registy
nd of the period coverad by this repont based on

aboul the effectiveness of the disclosure conisols and procedures, as of the ¢
such evaluation; and

{d} Ihsclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that vecurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect. the registramt’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other cerfifving officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal controb over financial
reposting, 1o the registrant’s anditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent

functions
{a} All signiticant defieiencics and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to sdversely aflect the registrant’s ability 1o record, provess, summarize and report financial

informuation; and

(b} Any frand, whether or not material, that involves management o other employees who have a significant role in the yegistrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

By: /s/ Joseph D. Dowling
Jaseph D. Dowling
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Dated: March 31, 2013
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Exhibit 321

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXFOUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 UK SECTION 1356, AS ABOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 966 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2062

In connection with the Annpal Report of CannaVest Corp. (the “Registrant”j on Form 10-K for e yewr ended Deeomber 3, 2004 {the
“Repoit™), 1, Michael 5. Mona, Ir., President and Chief Excoative Officer of the Registrant, do heseby centify, pursuant (¢ 18 US.C $1350, as
adopted pursuant to $906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knovledge:

{1} the Report, as filed with the Sccurities ad Prohange Commission, fully complics with the requirements of section 136} or 3(d) ot the
Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 and

(2} the information contained in the Repot faiely presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Registrant.

Paaed: March 31, 2813 fiv: s/ Michael I Mona, Jr.
Sichael J. Moua, Jr.
Fresident and Chic Esecutive {HTicer
{Principal Executive Offies)
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Exbibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 1L8.CL SECTHON 1358, A% ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACY OF 2002

fn connection with the Annual Report of CannaVest Corp. (the “Registrant”™} on Form 10-K for the year ended Deceniber 31, 2014 {the
“Report™), 1. Joseph B, Dowling, Chiel Financial Officer of the Registrant, do hereby certify, pursaant to 18 US.C. §1350, as sdapted pursuant
10 8906 af the Surbanes-Cixley Act of 2007, that to my knowledpe:

{13 the Report, us hiled with the Securities and Pxchange Commission, lnlly complies with the requirements of scotion 13a) or 13 di of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

{23 the information contained in the Repon firly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Registrant.

Dufed: March 51, 2018 By i Joseph D Dowling
Josepls B Bowling
Clief Finasein! Officer (Prineipal Financial Gificer}
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SIDENTIAL LEASE/RENTAL AGREEMENT
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by TENANT. TENANT gromises to keep the premises in 3 neat and sanitary condition and shall be
solely responsible to pay for any sums nccessary to repair any item, fixture or appurtenance that nerds

servige for any reason.

8. ALTERATIONS: TENANT shall he entitled to make reasonabie alicrations (o the premises, including
but not limited w installing aerials, lighting fixtures, dishwashers, washing machings, drycrs or ather bui
shall be solely responsible for the costs thereof. 1o this regard, TENANT shall ensure that ne fier or other
charpe is Jevied apainst the premiscs as e result of any such alternslions or improvements. TENANT
shalf aot place placards, signs, or other exhibiss in a window or any other place where they can be viewed

by other residents or by the general public

9. NOISE AND DISRUPTIVE ACTIVITIES: TENANT or hisier guests and invikees shall not disturb,
annoy, endanger ar inconvenience other tenants of the building, reighbors, the LANDLORD or his
ageats, or werkmen nor violate any Jaw, nor commit oF permit waste of ruisance in or abou? the premiscs.
Further, TENANT shail not do or kecp 2nything in or about the premises that will obstruct the pubiic

spaces aviailable 1o other residents,

(0. LANDLORD'S RIGHT OF ENTRY: LANDLORD may enier ard inspect the premises dwring
norma! busincss hours and upon seasonable advarce notice of at least 24 hours to TENANT.
LANDLORD is permitied to rake 2ll alterations, repairs and mainicnance that in LANDLORD'S
judgment is necessary to perform. I addition LANDLORD has all nght 1 enter 25 provided in the laws
of the Stale of Nevada,  |f the work perfornod requires thet TENANT temporanly vacate the piemises,
then TENANT shall vacate for thes temporary period upon being served 2 7 days notice by LANDLORD
TENANT agrees that in such event thel TENANT wilf be solely compensawed by ; corresponding
reduction in rent for those many days that TENANT was temporarily displaced.

If the work 0 be performed requires the cocperation of TENANT 10 perform certain tasks, then thase
1asks shall be performed upon serving 24 hours wrtten nictice by LANDLORD. (EXAMPLE -removing
food items from cabiricts so that the unitmay be sprayed for pests)

11, REPAIRS BY LANDLORD: Whers a repais is the rexponsibility of the LANDLORD, TENANT
must notify LANDLORD with a wrinen notice stating what ste:n aeeds servicing or repair. TENANT
must give LANDLORD a reasonable opportunity 1o service or repair said iem. TENANT acknowlcdges
thst tent will not be withheld unless a written noticc has been served on LANDLORD giving
LANDLORD 2 reasonable time to fix said item. Under no circumstances may TENANT withhold rent
umless said item constitutes a subsiantial breach of the warantee of habitability as provided by the faws of

the Siate of Nevada,

12, INSURANCE: TENANT shall maintain a propenty insurance as well as personal property inswrance
policy o cover any losses sustained 10 the premises or TENANT'S persoral property or vehicle. 1t is
acknowledged that TENANT'S insurance policy shall inderanity LANDLORD for any losses sustained o
the premises snd shalt name the LANDLORD as an additioral insured bencficiary thereof, TENANT'S
failure to maintain said poticy shall be 1 complete waiver of TENANT'S nght to seek demages againsi

LANDLORD for the above stated losscs.

13. TERMINATION OF LEASERENTAL AGREEMENT: At the expirstion of the teem set forth
sbove in paragraph 2, this lease shall become a month 1o month tenaxy upon the approval of
LANDLORD. Where said term is & month to month tenancy, either party may terminate this fenancy by
the serving of 8 30 day written notice.

MONA 2nd JDI - 91?4%4
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